0N AU AW

b S5 R

TABLE
OF
CONTENTS

Policy Council By Laws
Policy Council

Head Start Performances
Policies & Procedures
Management Guide

Job Descriptions
Organizational Chart
Time Table



I.

IIG

1L

FAYETTE COUNTY CHILD DEVELOPMENT, INC. HEAD START

POLICY COUNCIL BY-LAWS

NAME-- FAYETTE COUNTY CHILD DEVELOPMENT, INC. -
POLICY COUNCIL

PURPOSE:

The primary goal of the program is to provide comprehensive Early Head
Start and Head Start Services fo all eligible children and families. Adhering to
the philosophy that parents are prime educators of their children. The
parents/guardians of eligible enrolled children serve as members of the Policy
Council and committees with a direct voice in administrative and managerial
decisions.

A correlated effort between the home and the program must be reality for the
development of a comprehensive program for each child to his/her full
potential.

FUNCTION:
A. Serve as a link between public and private organizations, the Policy

B.

Coungcil, the grantee Board of Directors and the community it serves.
Initiate suggestions and ideas for program improvements and receive
reports on actions taken by the administering agency in regard to its
recommendation.

Plan, coordinate and organize agency-wide activities for parents with the
assistance of staff.

Major functions as outlined in the revised performances standards, subpart
D, appendix A. Each Policy member is expected to demonstrate ethical
conduct in matters such as meeting attendance, preparation, and
participation. As well as respecting all guidelines related to
confidentiality and should advocate Head Start at all times, especially
when attending Head Start trainings and conferences.

Grantee agencies must ensure that ali staff consultants and volunteers
abide by the program’s standard of conduct. These standards must specify
that:

1. They will respect and promote the unique identity of each child
and family and refrain from any derogatory or stereotyping on
the basis of gender, race, ethnicity, culture, religion or disability.

2. They will follow the program confidentiality policies concerning
information about any child, family or staff member.

3. No child will be left alone or unsupervised while in their care.

4. They will use positive methods of child guidance and will not
engage in corporal punishment emotional or physical abuse, or



discipline that involves isolation, the use of food as punishment
or reward, or the denial of basic needs.

E. TERMINATION OF MEMBERS

Any member who misses two (2) consecutive meetings without good
reason and without prior notification will be dropped from the Couneil.
Their name will be removed from the mailing list. The Secretary will
inform the Chairperson of the Policy Council and the Program Director.
The Policy Council will be responsible for replacing those members.

If the member’s conduct as addressed in Section IV Part D is detrimental
to the program or reflects negatively on the Policy Councit then that
member will be asked to step down from their position. If the member
refuses, the Policy Council members can vote to remove them with two-
thirds (2/3) of the voting membership.

F. VACANCIES IN MEMBERSHIP

A. Current center committee representative — the alternate will
automatically replace.

B. Alternate will be replaced after missing the second (2nd) meeting upon
being notified by the representative,

C. The appropriate Center Committee will elect a new member and/or
alternate to fill the vacancy as the need arises. The Policy Council
Chairperson will be notified of new members or alternates selected
prior to the next regular meeting.

D. Vacancies in community representation will be filled by the grantee
Board of Directors with the final approval by the parents of the Policy
Council.

IV. MEMBERSHIP:
A, COMPOSITION AND DISTRIBUTION FOR MEMBERSHIP
1. Atleast fifty-one percent (51%) parent and/or guardians of
children currently enrolled in Head Start.
2. No more than forty-nine percent (49%) community
representatives.
3. Atotal of 9 (nine) parent representatives and a maximum of 5
{(five} Community Representatives.
B. THE DISTRIBUTION OF MEMBERSHIP WILL BE AS
FOLLOWS:
1. Ansted Center — one (1) representative from each classroom and
one (1) alternate for the center;
2. Boomer Center — one (1) representative from each classroom and
one (1) alternate for the Center;



3. Oak Hill Center - one (1) representative from each ¢lassroom and
one (1) alternate for the Center;

4. Page Center - one (1) representative from each classroom and
one (1) alternate for the Center;

5. TFayetteville Center - one (1) representative from each classroom
and one (1) alternate for the Center;

6. Scarbro Center — one (1) representative from each classroom and
one (1) altemate for the Center.

7. EHS Home based will have one (1) representative and one (1)
alternate.

C. SELECTION OF MEMBERS

1. Policy Council members and alternates are elected by the
majority vote of the center committee members at the first
meeting,

2. Community Representatives are all selected by the Board of
Directors, and approved by the Policy Council parents of the
current year.

3. Community Representatives may be parents of former Head Start
children or representatives of private organizations which are
concerned about children and families and can contribute to the
program. A Community Representative may serve on the Policy
Council not to exceed three (3) years of total service for all
service on Policy Council.

D. NEPOTISM
Any immediate member of a family shall consist of the following persons:

HUSBAND BROTHER DAUGHTER-IN-LAW SON-IN-LAW

WIFE SISTER MOTHER-IN-LAW FATHER-IN-LAW
MOTHER  FATHER DAUGHTER SON

AUNT UNCLE GRANDPARENT

BROTHER-IN-LAW SISTER-IN-LAW

No person shall hold a job while he/she or any member of his/her immediate
family serves on a board or committee of this organization. If that board or
committee has the authority to order personnel actions affecting his/her job.
Neither, by rule or practice regularly nominate, recommend or screen
candidates for the agency or program by which he/she is employed.

V. MEETINGS

A. The regular meeting time of the Fayette County Child Development, Inc.
Policy Council shall be determined by the new group at the meeting held
on the 3" Monday in October. Alternate dates may be selected for the
convenience of the Council members.



VI

B. Special meetings may be called by the Policy Council Chairperson or
member with the approval of the chairperson upon writien request as the
need arises.

C. A notification of the meeting time and place will be sent to the
members five (5) days prior to the meeting date.

D. The Policy Council Chairperson and Family and Community Partnership
Manager will advise the Head Start Executive Secretary to type agendas
along with previous minutes and mail out to the members.

E. A quorum will consist of at least 5 members present. Two of those
present must be officers.

F. The Council may vote to close a session when needed, particularly to
discuss personnel issues.

G. Council meetings are open to the public with exception of closed sessions,
as stated in “F”,

H. Any matter that needs to be discussed but is not on the agenda may be
placed on the agenda by the Chairperson, but must be in writing and
presented to the Chair prior to the start of the meeting. Written
information regarding issues that require Policy Council action will be
sent to the members along with the agenda and minutes.

1. All Policy Council meetings may be taped.

J. In case of a matter that needs to be conducted before a regularly scheduled

_ meeting then a phone vote can be taken and fifty percent {50%) of total
membership must be reached.

K. ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER will be followed.

COMMITTEES

A. BYLAWS COMMITTEE
1. The purpose is to review bylaws annually and recommend changes in
order to keep Head Start projects in compliance with the performance
standards and to facilitate the functioning of the Policy Council as a

governing body.

2. Meetings will be held as needed but with at least one meeting prior to
the month of Apnl.

3. Membership will include three (3) members of the Policy Council.

4. The Chairperson of the Policy Council will chair the committee.

5. Quorum will consist of two (2) members.

6. Technical assistance — will be provided by the Family & Comimunity

Partnership Manager and the program Director.

B. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
1. The purpose of this committee is to plan meetings and activities for the
full Policy Council.
2. Meetings will be called monthly prior to the Policy Council meeting, if
needed.
3. Membership will consist of the officers of the Policy Council.



The Chairperson of the Executive Commattee will be the Chairperson of
the Policy Council.

The Head Start Director and Family & Community Partnership

Manager will provide technical assistance.

C. PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

1.

2.
3.

The purpose of this committee is to participate in personnel decisions,
which include the hiring and termination of Head Start staff, and
reviewing the Personnel Policies and Procedures before recommending
the approval of the Policy Council.
Meetings will be convened as needed.
Membership will consist of the Policy Council Chair, 2 Policy Council
Members, the Director and two (2) alternate members of the Policy
Council.
The Policy Council Chairperson will serve as the Vice-Chair, the
Program Director will chair.

. The Head Start Director and Family and Community Partnership

Manager will provide technical agsistance.
If the Personnel Committee can not decide on a candidate then the
candidate(s) can be called back for additional interviews.

D. HEALTH SERVICES ADVISORY COMMITTEE

1.

3.

4,

The purpose of the Health Service Advisory Committee is to
participate in the planning, operation, and evaluation of the health
services component.

The members of the committee shall consist of a ¢cross section of
parents and health care professionals: dentists, physicians,
optometrists, mental health and nutritional consultants, (not center
based). The committee will have one (1) Policy Council
representative.

The Policy Council shall be responsible for electing the Policy Council
Representative,

The committee shall present plans to the Policy Council for approval.

E. EDUCATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE

1.

The purpose of the Education Advisory Committee is to participate in
the planning, operation, and evaluation of the education services
component. The basic role of the committee 1s to assist the program in
mecting the Early Childhood Education Manager’s objectives and to
work with the Early Childhood Education Manager.

The members of the committee shall consist of a cross section of
parents and education professionals: teachers, principals,
disabilities/mental health specialists, and special education teachers.
(not center based). The committee will have one (1) Policy Council
representative.



3. The Policy Council shall be responsible for electing the Policy Council

Representative.
4. The commitiee shall present plans to the Policy Council for approval.

F. BUDGET COMMITTEE
The purpose of the Budget Committee will be to review the Budget by
the end of April. A copy of the proposed Budget will be submitted to
members of the Policy Council.

1. OBJECTIVES
To prepare an annual budget for the Policy Council
#1. Parent Activity Fund Budget
#2. Program Budget

a. The Palicy Council budget will be used for the following:
#1. Parent Activity Per Center
#2. Program-wide Parent Appreciation Function.
#3. Baby sitting fees.
#4. West Virginia Head Start Association Dues
#5. Miscellaneous
b. The amount of each of the above will be determined.
¢. The Budget Commitiee must approve any major changes in the
Policy Council budget.
d. Policy Council will administer funds to the parents commitiees
e. Policy Council will administer funds to the Policy Council
representatives to the state meetings to pay annual dues.

2. MEMBERSHIP
a. The Policy Council Treasurer will automatically be a member
b. The Policy Council Chairperson will appoint at least two (2) other
members.
1. Each member shall have an equal voice in how decisions are to
be made, one (1) vote per member.
2. Each member shall receive minutes and agendas.
3. Term of membership shall be one (1) year.
¢. The Family & Community Partnership Manager will give
technical assistance to the committee.

3. MEETINGS
a. Meetings will need to be held at the beginning of the program year
to go over the budget and review the Policy Council needs for the
year,
b. Meetings to be held prior to the submission of the grant application
to prepare the proposed budget.
¢. Other meetings can be called as needed.



VII. OFFICERS AND ELECTION PROCEDURES

> S B

Officers shall be Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Assistant
Secretary, Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer.

Election of new officers will be held as the first order of new business during
the first (1*") meeting of the full Policy Council held in October.

The term of office will be for one (1) year, from October of the current year
until the following October when the new Policy Council is elected.
Vacancies in the above officers will be billed by succession as listed above,
However, if requested, a new election of officers can be made if majority of
PC membet approve.

VIIL. FUNCTION AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF OFFICERS

A

B.

CHAIRPERSON

Conduct all meetings of the Policy Council

Carries out all majority votes of Council

Signs all documents

Develops monthly agendas with the assistance of the Executive Committee.

The Family & Community Partnership Manager and Head Start Director

may give input.

5. Participate in all committee meetings and acts as the Chairperson at the
Executive Committee,

6. May sign checks

T N

VICE-CHAIRPERSON

I. Carries out all duties of the Chairperson 1 his/her absence

2. Serves as Chairperson on the Policy Council Personnel Committee
3. May sign checks.

. SECRETARY

Records all minutes of the Policy Council meetings.
Reads the minutes.

Takes and records roll calls at meetings.

Prepares necessary correspondence.

Notifies Chairperson of member vacancies.

May ¢ign checks.

AN el e

. ASSISTANT SECRETARY

Carries out the duties of the Secretary in his/her absence

E. TREASURER

1. Keeps all Parent Activity Funds financial records of the Policy Council
with the assistance of the Family & Community Partnership Manager.
2. Submits monthly financial reports.



3. Signs all Policy Council checks which are co-signed by the Chair, Vice-
Chair, or the Secretary.

F. ASSISTANT TREASURER
Carries out the duties of the Treasurer in his/her absence

IX. PROCEDURE FOR HEARING PARENTS OR COMMUNITY
CONCERNS
REGARDING THE HEAD START PROGRAM OR PROJECT
(CONFLICT RESOLUTION)
A. PURPOSE AND STRUCTURE OF COMMUNITY COMPLAINT
RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE
I. Policy Council shall establish a committee, which shall investigate and
recommend resolutions to all community complaints.
2. The committee will be established in regards to each individual complaint
and situation.
3. The committee shall consist of:
a. One elected representative from Policy Council
b. Policy Council Chairperson
B. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
1. All complaints shall be written and shalt specify:
a. The grievant or grievants names
b. Description of the incident or situation including names, dates, times,
(2) places as appropriate, identify a proposed resolution.
2. The written complaint, after following all investigations by proper chain
of command, shall be submitted to the Head Start Director. After the
Director completes the investigation and submits responses to
complainant, if not satisfactory resolved, will PC Chair of complaint.
The PC Chair will then convene the grievance committee.
3. The committee shall then conduct an investigation of the complaint
which shall include:
a. Meet the grievant.
b. Talk to the pertinent witnesses.
¢. Check any pertinent records.
d. Consider all applicable policies, procedures, and resolutions.

4. The committee shall then make a recommendation to Policy Council for
resolving the complaint. If the Policy Council approves the
recommendation, it shall be submitted to the proper parties for action.

a. If the complaint involves a staff member, it shall go to the Head
Start Director.

b. If the complaint involves the Director, it shall go to the Board of
Directors.

¢. Ifthe recommendation concerns the program as a whole, it shall go
to the Board of Directors.

5. The party to whom the recommendation is submitted, shall then bring
back a report to the committee with regards to the action taken.



C. ALL COMPLAINTS AND GRIEVANCES SHALL BE TREATED
CONFIDENTIALLY
The committee has ten (10} working days to report back to all parties that are
involved.

X. MEMBER REIMBURSEMENT

A. Members will be reimbursed for mileage driven to conduct Policy Council
business such as attending PC meetings, Committee meetings, Interviews or
participation in Self-Assessment process.

B. Members shall receive a “pre-set” amount to cover the costs for baby sitting
services to allow members to attend meetings. Members who bring children
will not be eligible for this stipend unless the children are under 12 months of
age.

Revised: 04/22/09 - By Bylaws Committec
Revised: 11/26/12 - By Bylaws Committee
Revised: 10/09/17 — By Bylaws Committee



Head Start Program
Performance Standards

45 CFR Chapter Xl
September 2016

U.S. Departmentof Healthand HumanServices
Administration for Children and Families
Qffice of Head Start

Vetsion 12/7/2020
This compilation was prepared to assist grantees implementing the Head Start Program Performance

Standards. If OHS identifies information that would enhance the utility of this compilation, an
updated version will be posted.



Contents

Subchaptet B — The Administration for Children and Families, Head Start Program .............

Paxt 1301 — Program GOVELNANCE i eesess et assee et s s st cri e e s ssaresnocs

§1301.1 Purpose....

§1301.2 Go\rcrmng body .
§1301.3 Policy council and pohcy committee...
§1307.4 PArent COMMULLEES. w.vuiriierrrierrnssss e o ssmmnes s scss st ocamnss s s o rbins

§1307.5 THRANINZ. oottt e s e bt R bt s AR somsa e et st tees

§1301.6 Impasse PLOCEAULES. .uuinrrirmminisrrsmrsssscest ses i escasssessnsssese
Part §1302 — Program Opcrations
§1302.1 Overview. .. "
Subpart A — Eligibility, Recrnitment, Selection, En.rollmcnt, and Attcndance.'....... voon
§1302.10 Putpose. e
§1302.11 Determining community strengths, needs, and resousces................

§1302.12 Determining, verifying, and documenting elgibility......ccoooirmricnicnericiinn.

§1302.13 Recruitment of children. ..o sreen e
§1302.14 Selection process. ...
§1302.15 Enrollment...
§1302.16 Attendance. ..
§1302.17 Suspension and expulsmn bbb s
§1302.18 Fees. voommiciianns
Subpart B — PLOGIAmN SHUCHULE ..ccovriirimrersrasrrrseriases e seeems e amsssasesris s
§1302.20 Determining program StUCTULE. ...vr e irirerans e ssammsesssbassseis st sarios
§1302.21 Center-hased OPLOML vt et s s et s s rens
§1302.22 Home-based Option. .o cone.
§1302.23 Family child care OPHOM. w.vevreeesieerecerevsrisa coninisniescs st i s
§1302.24 T.ocally-designed program Option VAAHONS.....cc.oivnommsmmmrnecn e s ssieses
Subpart C — Education and Child Development Program Services v vmemniinone
§1302.30 Purpose.... -
§1302.31 Teaching ancl the learmng environment..
§1302.32 Cuzricula. ..
§1302.33 Child screenings and assessments.

M H H H
: H H H
b e ek e

[FX]

00 = ~1 -1 &N U s B

R O O O O O SO I O I O TN
- T TS N - R = = v R T

revrranee 30

§1302.34 Parcnt and family engagement in educatlon and Chl]d development services.
.33

§1302.35 Educat]on in homc bascd progtams... v

§1302.36 Tribal language preservation and revltahzat:lon
Subpart D — Health Program Services ... i

G1302.40 PULPOSE....cooiiiiiesnrerm et earnn ettt

§1302.41 Collaboration and communication with Parents....cumesrsiimamince

e 34
w36

36

rerrern 30
rerrrn 36

—



§1302.42 Child health status and Carc.. . memmerocrieiaminmn st sessesens 3
§1302.43 Otral health practic:es O PO OUO U OO O SRRSO OURUNC 1|
§1302.44 Child nutrition.. werreseriitarmnnns s 39
§1302.45 Child mental health and social and cmotlonal wc].l bemg VR )
§1302.46 Family support setvices for health, nutrition, and mental health. ............. 41
§1302.47 Safety practices. .. OO PP VRO OPRUPRRY - 374
Subpatt E — Family and Commumty Engagement Program SErvices o e 49
§1302.50 Family engagement. 45
§1302.51 Parent activities to promote child learning and development.....ec..o 45
§1302.52 Farnily partnership setvices. . . B0
§1302.53 Community partnershlps and coordination w1r.h other early ch.:ldhood and
education programs. ... eveeionsorsats e mnnnrnssenrareesnsassonsonn & 1
Subpart F — Additional Services for Cl-u]dren with Disabilities .. ISTSTURURURRRRIOTORSROIRR . .
§1302.60 Full participation in program services and actlvmcs....................J.................’48
§1302.61 Additional services for children. v 49
§1302.62 Additional sexvices fOr Patents. .oviamerinermirmnssimssssceimisscoocncensnn: 50
§1302.63 Coordination and collaboration with the local agency responsible for.
implementing IDEA. ..o v oo sssmis s ssssase s 90
Subpart G — Transition Services ... et es ettt e ir s nne s asnee s e D |
§1302.70 Transitions from Eaﬂy Head Statt ererrerseee s vess stasns s seasmeanissceneesias D |
§1302.71 Transitions from Head Start to k.lnderga.rtcn. OO OSSP DOOTRPRROY. 7
§1302.72 Transitions between Programs....... oo s 53
Subpart H — Services to Enrolled Pregnant OO oo eeneeenemensseeiean s sansesnssesmnmenns ms O
§1302.80 Enrolled pregnant WOImME . e somscomisremsssimsmisssas bisssssssisssasenss 9%
§1302.81 Prenatal and postpartum information, education, and services. .ov.vnerernn 54
§1302.82 Family partnership services for enrolled pregnant women. ... 54
Subpart I — Human Resources Management ... niviiiinimirsis s 33
§1302.90 Petsonnel POLCIES. ....miimisreressemninisiessmerssines st sina assierss st esiresesssnioss D0
§1302.91 Staff qualifications and cOMPELENCY TEGUILEMERTS. woovmereiimirmrmsimssssinesieaeren D 7
§1302.92 Training and professional development. ..., 59
§1302.93 Staff health and Wellness. .........ooovoveevesiiiicnnisicnsininisarismirnenmsssinsie e 01
§1302.94 VOIUNTEELS. ..coooverncrmmsermvisnsesmnrssonrmisssstassas sssssscomsisasesssommansssosnassssssasassssssesessonne O 1
Subpart ] — Program Management and Quality Improvement s .61
§1302.100 PULPOSE. 1ervuvnrrirrsrmsirrrrermsrirasssssssnissesssnsssssnerressssnserommssnmsanssesnassssenseoss s e O 1
§1302.101 MANagement SYSLEI. ....ovecunoererenssinssssesniresmssserisssamierrassssssmmsssssonatsemsessssisss O 1
§1302.102 Achieving program goals. . .c. v sisscssnmaisnmesesen 03
§1302.103 Implementation of program performance standards. ..o 65
§1303 — Financial and Administrative ReqUirémMents. ... s 67
§1303.1 OVEIVIEW. covvaeeecrrersecrreerarmerimremsissssssisnsmssassis s ssasmasssssasmssseesiosssanseisssssessssssisesaonse s 08
Subpart A — Financial Requirements ..o e e e 08




§1303.2 Purpose. covevvinreinannns

§1303.3 Other reqUILSIMENts. oot s sttt st oo i es
§1303.4 Federal financial assistance, non-federal match, and waiver requirements. ..
§1303.5 Limitadons on development and adminiStrative COSES. ...
Rl
eeena 70
|

e 71
e 71
|

Subpart B — Administrative Requitements cu v
§1303.10 Purpose veoren
§1303.11 Limitations and prohibitions....
§1303.12 Insurance and bonding..... e
Subpart C — Protectons for the Prvacy of Ch.l.ld Rccords
§1303.20 Establishing procedures. ...

§1303.21 Program procedures — apphcablc conﬁdenuahty PLOVISIONS. v,
§1303.22 Disclosures with, and without, parental CONSent. ...

§1303.23 Parental £ightS. oo s me sttt b s i s
.75

cirernne 70
e 16
crorain 16

§1303.24 Maintaining records.

Subpart ID — Delegation of Program Operations ... ceiariminiss s nsiosssnnns
§1303.30 Grantee tesponsibility and accountability. ..o,
§1303.31 Determining and establishing delegate agencies. .....ouens

§1303.32 Evaluations and corrective actions for de]egate AZENCIES. .orevoemreee e

§1303.33 Termination of delegate agencies. ... vivvririieren v
——

16

Subpart E — Facilities...
§1303.40 Purpose

§1303.41 Approval of ptevmusly purchased facilities. ......cococoorrier e

§1303.42 Eligibility to purchase, construct, and renovate facillities......ooeeerecennnne,
e 17

§1303.43 Use of granc funds to pay fees. ..

§1303.44 Applications to purchase, construct, and renavate fac:htles ......................
§1303.45 Cost-compatison to purchase, construct, and renovate facilities. ...............

v B0
v 81

§1303.46 Recording and posting notices of federal INtErest . i
§1303.47 Contents of notices of federal Interest. .o

§1303.48 Grantee limitations on federal MELESt. ovmrrneenriericm v e

§1303.49 Protection of federal interest in mortgage agreements. o riremnaneas
e B4

§1303.50 Third party leases and occupancy arrangements. . s

§1303.51 Subordination of the federal Interest. .....iovwvmirevrere e et
§1303.52 Insurance, bonding, and mantenance. ... e e

§1303.53 Copies Of dOCUIMENTS ...t e msess
.85

§1303.54 Recotd LEtention. ...

§1303.55 Procurement procedures. . it it

§1303.56 Inspection of WOLk. ...
36
1

Subpart F — TranspOrtation .. ... ceewisisiieese ssessssinisnssassarsssssrsscrntansans s essssnios
§1303.70 PuipOst. . cvnirsensssssisnsssnrissssans st srnnsstsssstass g so s arast s sses

e 68

69
69
69

71

w7l

74

76
76

77
77

78
79

83
83

84
34
85

85
85




§1303.71 Vehicles. oo anesas s semss e sesse s eessness e sessoraasser S 7
§1303.72 Vehicle OPeration. ... v i e s e s nirens 87
§1303.73 TIIP LOULING.....coiiicmiiiiirics it s asecrsn st ses s tias s rsss s sarss mm s semsssnssrnmsneas sestasssns 30
§1303.74 Safety Procedures. . i s isssas s s snsssssse 20
§1303.75 Children with disabilities... sererven s sner st simenas st nre st srsnies sriessns e s saressere QU
Part 1304 — Federal Administrative Procedutes .. — |
Subpart A — Monitoring, Suspension, Tcn:mnatlon Dcmal of Refund.mg, Rcductlon in
Funding, and their Appeals ...t 92
GL304.1 PULPOSE. cooreevecrcmmimrmeracnnas senrmeeiesmstcte e iss b sea s bssb s b bessn b st absb st s s neene Do
§1304.2 MOTUIOTINE, 1 cvervi e irvisser e st s st st st s s st s s nnssassrasn s sas oo on s s0s T2
§1304.3 Suspension with NOHCE. ... e s s ceeseias 33
§1304.4 Emergency suspension without advance notice........ SO TR 94
§1304.5 Termination and denial of refunding. ........cvvviiiiniinnciniiencenn . 96
§1304.6 Appeal for prospective delegate agencies, . wmmmnmmmmesnnnncenn, 38
§1304.7 Legal £Ees. . vniirmiimcnnsesisenis s sens s srsisississssssasssssssssse s ssasssussanisss 39
Subpart B — Designation Renewal ... 99
§1304.10 Purpose and scope... )
§1304.11 Basis for determmmg whether a Head Start agency WJJJ be sub]ect to an
OPEN COMPEULIONL..viiriirisrsreisirssitmssisssnssraessminrssssmrnsrsoressssasrrnensresssnsssremsssesssses 100
§1304.12 Grantee reporting requirements concerning cestain condjtlons. ceorsrrnnnnn 102
§1304.13 Requirements to be considered for designation for a five-year period when
the existing grantee in 2 community is not determined to be delivering a
high-quality and comprehensive Head Start program and 15 not
automatcally 1enewed. s s s 102
§1304.14 Ttibal government consultation under the Designation Renewal System for
when an Indian Head Start grant is being considered for compctition.... 103
§1304.15 Designation request, review and notification process. .. e 103
§1304.16 Use of CLASS: Pre-K instrument in the Des1gnat10n Renewal System 104
§1304.17 Flexibility for Head Start Designation Renewal determinations in certain
EMCLZENCIES. 1 vvomcrrmmvrerssteremaemtssrassonisis s isssassssssssresssstarsesssasssesssasiarsssssss srnees 104
Subpatt C — Selection of Grantees thtough Competmon ST RSO £1 ).
§1304.20 Selecton among applicants. ... sseee 109
Subpart D — Replacement of American Indian and Alaska Native Grantecs ..ouvimennvianinian, 105
§1304.30 Procedure for identification of alternative agency. ...coenniiiene. 105
§1304.31 Requiremnents of alternative agency......wmeseemsicnrnnmmessiarisssenen.es 100
§1304.32 Alternatve agency—prohibition. ... 100
Subpatt E — Head Statt Fellows Program ....c.oooniiinissennissiscsnsnmronsesssnsnecsnes 107
§1304.40 PUtPOSE....ri e e S s 107
§1304.41 Head Start Fellows Program. ... v rssressomneene. 107
Part 1305 — DefiNTtiONS...c.cevrrrerenrcinsieceer i stissssss sstssss s sssisssisssstss s vessssnsssonesermssnensnssssssrsmansianss 109

iv



G305, T PrrPOSE.isvcurvisiiniarorrirvris s e oo simssm e sees e seas s st bt
§1305.2 Terms... . e —— e —ta—n— 4o et o ettt e memen
Appendix: Statutory References and Web Resources...

A Nete: There are referevices thronghout this compilation of the Head Start Progrom Perfornrante Standards. The references will be cited by
nsmber and are located in the Appendix rtarting on page 119




Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1301.2 — Program Governance

For the reasons sct forth in the preamble, undct the authority at 42 U.S.C. 9801 e seq., subchapter B
of 45 CFR chapter XIII is revised to read as follows:

Subchapter B — The Administration for
Children and Families, Head Start Program

Part 1301 — Program Governance

Part 1302 — Program Operations

Part 1303 — Financial and Administrative Requitements
Part 1304 — Federal Administrative Procedures

Part 1305 — Definitions

Part 1301 — Program Governance

Sectien

1301.1 Puarpose.

1301.2 Governing body.

1301.3  Policy council and policy committee.
1301.4 Parent committees.

1301.5 Training.

1301.6 Impasse procedures.

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 9801 ef seq.

§1301.1 Purpose.

An agency, as defined in part 1305 of this chapter, must establish and maintain a formal structure
for program governance that includes a governing body, a policy council at the agency level and
policy committee at the delegate level, and a parent committee. Governing bodies have a legal and
fiscal responsibility to administer and oversee the agency’s Head Stast and Early Head Start
programs. Policy councils are responsible for the direction of the agency’s Head Start and Early
Head Statt programs.

§1301.2 Governing body.

(a) Composition. The composition of a governing body must be in accotdance with the
requirements specified at section 642(c)(1)(B)’ of the Act, except where specific exceptions are
authorized in the case of public entities at section 642(c)(1)(D)* of the Act. Agencies must ensure
members of the governing body do not have a conflict of interest, pursuant to section 642(c)(1)(C)’
of the Act.

Note; References are located in the Appendix, starting ac page 119



Program Governance—§1301.3 45 CFR Chapter Xil|

(b)Duties and responsibilities.

(1) The governing body is responsible for actvities specified at section 642(c)(1)(E)* of the
Act,

(2) The governing body must use ongoing monitoring results, data on school readiness goals,
other informaton described in §1302.102, and information described at section 642(d) (2)° of
the Act to conduct its responsibilities.

(c) Advisory committees.

(1) A governing body may establish advisoty committees as it deems necessary for effective
governance and improvement of the program.

(2) If a governing body establishes an advisory committee to oversee key responsibilities
related to program governance, it must:

(1) Establish the structure, communication, and oversight in such 2 way that the
governing body continues to maintain its legal and fiscal responsibility for the Head
Start agency; and, .

(i) Notify the responsible HHS official of its intent to establish such an advisory
committee.

§1301.3 Policy council and policy committee.

(a) Establishing policy councils and policy committees. Each agency must establish and maintain a

policy council responsible for the direction of the Head Start program at the agency level, and a
policy committee at the delegate level. If an agency delegates operational responsibility for the
entire Head Start or Early Head Start program to one delegate agency, the policy council and
policy committee may be the same body.

(b)Composition.

(1) A program must establish a policy council in accordance with section 642(c)(2)®B)® of the
Act, or a policy committee at the delegate level in accordance with section 642(c)(3) of the
Act, as carly in the program year as possible. Parents of children currently enrolled in cach
program option must be proportionately represented on the policy council and on the policy
committce at the delegate level,

(2) The program must ensure members of the policy council, and of the policy committee at
the delegate level, do not have a conflict of interest pursuant to sections 642(c)(2)(C)* and
642(c)(3)(B)’ of the Act. Staff may not serve on the policy council ot policy committee at the
delegate level except parents who occasionally substitute as staff. In the case of trbal
grantees, this exclusion applies only to tribal staff who work in areas directly related to or
which directly impact administrative, fiscal, or programmatic issues.

Note: References ace located in the Appendix, smrtiog at page 119



Adminiscration for Children and Families, HHS §1301.4 — Program Governance

{c) Duties and responsibilities.
(1) A policy council is responsible for activities specified at section 642(c)(2)(D)" of the Act.

A policy committee must approve and submit to the delegate agency its decisions in each of
the following areas referenced at section 642(c)(2}(D) (i} through {vii}"* of the Act.

(2) A policy council, and a policy committee at the delegate level, must use ongoing
monitoting results, data on school readiness goals, other information described in §1302.102,
and information described in section 642(d)(2)° of the Act to conduct its responsibilities,

(Y Term.
(1) A member will serve for one yeat.

(2) If the member intends to serve for another year, s/he must stand for re-election.

(3) The policy council, and policy committee at the delegate level, must include in its bylaws
how many one-yeat terms, not to exceed five terms, a person may setve.

(4) A program must seat a successot policy council, or policy committee at the delegate Jevel,
before an existing policy council, or policy committee at the delegate level, may be dissolved.

{¢) Reimbursement. A program must enable low-income members to participate fully in their policy
council or policy committee responsibilities by providing, if necessaty, reimbursements for
reasonable expenses incurred by the low-income members.

§§301.4 Parent committees.

(2) Establishing parent committees. A program rnust establish a parent committee comprised
exclusively of parents of cutrently enrolled children as early in the program yeat as possible. This
committee must be established at the center level for center-based programs and at the local
progeam level for othet program options. When a program operates more than one option, parents
may choose to have a separate committee for cach option or combine membetship. A program must
ensure that patents of currently enzolled children understand the process for elections to the policy
council or policy committee and other leadership opportunities.

{b) Requirements of parent committees. Within the parent committee structure, a program may
determine the best methods to engage families using strategies that ate most effective in their
community, as long as the program ensures the parent committee carries out the following

minitnum responsibilities:
(1) Advise staff in developing and implementing local program policies, acuvities, and services
to ensure they meet the needs of children and families;

(2) Have a process for communication with the policy council and policy committee; and

(3) Within the guidelines established by the governing body, policy council ot policy
committee, patticipate in the recruitment and screening of Early Head Start and Head Start

employees.

Note: References are located in the Appendis, starting at page 119



Program Governance—§1301.6 45 CFR Chapter XIll

§1301.5 Training.

An agency must provide appropriate training and technical assistance or otfentation to the govetning
body, any advisory committee members, and the policy council, includiog training on program
performance standards and training indicated in §1302.12(m) to ensure the members understand the
information they receive and can effectively oversee and participate in the programs in the Head

Start agency.

§1301.6 Impasse procedures.

(a) To facilitate meaningful consultation and collaboration about decisions of the governing body
and the policy council, each agency’s governing body and policy council jointly must establish
written procedures for resolving internal disputes between the governing board and policy council in
a timely manner that include impasse procedures. These procedures must:

(1) Demonstrate that the governing body considers proposed decisions from the policy
council and that the policy council considers proposed decisions from the governing body;

(2) If there is a disagreement, require the governing body and the policy council to notify the
other in writing why it does not accept a decision; and,

(3) Describe a decision-making process and a timeline to resolve disputes and reach decisions
that ate not arbitrary, capricious, or illegal.

(b) If the agency’s decision-making process does not result in a resolution and an impasse continues,
the governing body and policy council must select a2 mutually agreeable third party mediator and
patticipate in a formal process of mediation that leads to a resolution of the dispute.

(c) For all programs except American Indian and Alaska Native programs, if no resolution is reached
with a mediator, the governing body and policy council must select 2 mutually agreeable atbitrator

whose decision is final.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119

1



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302 — Program Governance

Part §1302 — Program Operations

Secton
13021

Overview.

Subpart A — Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enrollment, and Attendance

1302.10
1302.11
130212
1302.13
1302.14
130215
1302.16
130217
1302.18

Purpose.

Determining community strengths, needs, and resources.
Determining, verifying, and documenting eligibility.
Recruitment of children.

Selection process.

Enrollment.

Artendance,

Suspension and expulsion.

Fees.

Subpart B — Program Structure

1302.20
1302.21
1302.22
1302.23
1302.24

Determining program structuge,
Center-based option.

Home-based option.

Family child care opton.

Locally-designed program option vatiations.

Subpart C — Education and Child Development Program Services

1302.30
1302.31
1302.32
1302.33
1302.34
1302.35
1302.36

Purpose.
Teaching and the leatrning environment.

Curricula,
Child screenings and assessments.
Pareat and family engagement in education and child development services,

Education in home-based programs.

- Ttibal language preservation and revitalization.

Subpart D — Health Program Services

1302.40
1302.41
1302.42
1302.43
1362.44
1302.45
1302.46
130247

Purpose.

Collaboration and communication with patents.

Child heaith status and care.

Oral hezlth practices.

Child nuttition.

Child mental health and social and emotional well-being.
Family supportt services for health, nutrition, and mental health.
Safety practices.

Note: References ace located in the Appendiz, starting at page 119



Program Governance—§1302.1 45 CFR Chapter XllI

Subpart E — Family and Community Engagement Progtam Services

1302.50 Family engagement.

1302.51 Parent activities to promote child learning and development.

1302.52 Family partnership services.

1302.53 Community partnerships and coordination with other eatly childhood and
education programs.

Subpart F — Additional Services for Children with Disabilities

1302.60 Full participation in program services and activitics.

130261 Additional services for children.

1302.62 Additional services for parents.

1302.63 Coordination and collaboration with the local agency responsible for implementing
IDEA.

Subpart G — Transition Setvices

130270 Transitons from Eatdy Head Start.

130271 ‘Transitions from Head Statt to kindergarten.

130272 Transitions between programs.

Subpart H — Services to Enrolled Pregnant Women

1302.80 Entolled pregnant women.

1302.81 Prenatal and postpartum infotmation, education, and services.
1302.82 Family partnership services for enrolled pregnant women.

Subpart I — Human Resoutces Management

130290 Personnel policies.

130291 Staff qualification and competency requirements.
1302.92 Training and professional devclopment.

130293  Staff health and wellness.

130294 Volunteers,

Subpart ] — Program Management and Quality Improvemnent

1302.100 Purpose.

1302.101 Management system. 1302.102 Achieving program goals.

1302.103 TImplementation of program performance standards. AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 9801
et feq.

§1302.1 Overview.

This patt implements these statutory requircments in Sections 6414, 645, 645A, and 648A of the
Act by describing all of the program performance standards that are required to operate Head Start,
Early Head Start, American Indian and Alaska Native and Migrant ot Seasenal Head Start programs.
The part covess the full range of operations from enrolling eligible children and providing program

Mote: References are located in the Appendix, staning at page 119



e

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.1| — Program Governance

services to those children and their families, to managing programs to ensure staff are qualified and
supportted to effectively provide services. This patt also focuses on using data through ongoing
program improvement to ensure high-quality service. As required in the Act, these provisions do not
natrow the scope ot quality of services covered in previous regulations, Instead, these regulations
raise the quality standard to reflect science and best practices, and streamline and simplify
requirements so programs can beiter understand what is required for quality services.

Subpart A — Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enroliment,
and Attendance

§1302.10 Purpose.

This subpatt describes requirements of grantees for determining community strengths, needs and
resources as well as recruitment areas. It contains requirements and procedures for the eligibility
determination, recruitment, selection, enrollment and attendance of children and explains the policy

concerning the charging of fees.
§1302.11 Determining community strengths, needs, and resources.

{a) Service area.

(1) A program must propose a service area in the grant application and define the area by
county ot sub-county area, such as a municipality, town or census tract ot jurisdiction of
federally recognized Indian reservation.

(i) A tribal program may propose a service asea that includes areas where members of
Indian tribes or those eligible for such membership reside, including but not limited to
Indian reservation fand, areas designated as near-reservation by the Bureau of Indian
Affairs (BIA) provided that the setvice area is approved by the ttibe’s governing
council, Alaska Native Villages, Alaska Native Regional Corporations with land-based
authorities, Oklahoma Tribal Statistical Areas, and Tribal Designated Statistical Axeas
whete federally recognized Indian ttibes do not have a federally established reservation.

(ii) If the tribe’s service area includes any area specified in patagraph @(1}(@) of this
section, and that area is also sexved by another program, the ttibe may setve children
from families who are members of or eligible to be memberss of such tribe and who
reside in such areas as well as children from families who are not members of the tribe,
but who reside within the tribe’s established setvice area.

(2) If a program decides to change the service area after ACF has apptoved its grant
application, the program must submit to ACF a new sexvice area proposal for approval.

(b) Community wide strategic planning and needs assessment (community assessment).

(1) To design a program that meets community needs, and builds on strengths and resources,
a program must conduct 2 cormunity assessment at least once over the five-year grant

Note: References are located in the Appendiz, starting at page 119



Program Governance—§1302.12 45 CFR Chapter Xl

period. The community assessment must use data that describes community strengths, needs,
and resources and include, at a2 minimuem:

i) The mumber of eligible infants, toddlers, preschool age children, and expectant
mothers, including their geographic location, race, ethnicity, and languages they speak,
mncluding:
(A) Children experiencing homelessness in collaboration with, to the extent
possible, McKinney-Vento Local Education Agency Liatsons (42 U.S.C. 11432

GYANT
(B) Children in foster care; and

{Cy Children with disabilidcs, including types of disabilities and relevant services
and resources provided to these children by community agencies;

(i) The education, health, nutrition and social service needs of eligible childsen and their
families, including prevalent social or economic factors that impact their well-being;

(i) Typical work, school, and training schedules of parents with eligible children;

{iv) Other child development, child care centers, and family child care programs that
serve eligible children, including home visiting, publicly funded state and local
preschools, and the approximate number of eligible children served,;

(v) Resources that are available in the community to address the needs of eligible
children and their famihes; and,

(vi) Strengths of the community.

(2) A program must annuaily review and update the community assessment to reflect any
significant changes including increased availability of publicly-funded pre-kindergarten
(including an assessment of how the pre-kindergarten available in the community meets the
needs of the parents and children served by the program, and whether it is offered for a full
school day), rates of family and child homelessness, and significant shifts in community
demographics and resources.

(3) A program must consider whether the characteristics of the community allow it to include
children from diverse economic backgrounds that would be supported by other funding
sources, including private pay, in addition to the program’s eligible funded enrollment. A
program must ntot enroll children from diverse economic backgrounds if it would zesult in a
program serving less than its eligible funded enrollment.

§1302.12 Determining, verifying, and documenting eligibility.

(a) Process overview.

{1) Program staff must:

Note: References are located in the Appendix, startng at page 119



Administration for Children and Families, HH$ §1302.12 — Program Governance

() Conduct an in-person interview with each family, unless paragraph (a)(2) of this
section applies;

(ii) Verify information as required in patagraphs (h) and (i) of this section; and,

(iii) Create an eligibility determination record for cnrolled participants accotding to
patagraph (k) of this section.
(2) Program staff may interview the family over the telephone if an in-person interview is not

possible or convenient for the famnily.

(3) f 2 program has an alternate method to reasonably determine eligibility based on its
community assessment, geographic and administrative data, or from other reliable data
sources, it may petition the responsible HHS official to waive requirements in paragtaphs
(a)(1){1) and (i) of this section.

(b} Age requirements.
(1) For Early Head Start, except when the child is transitioning to Head Start, a child must be

an infant or a toddler younger than three yeats old.

{2) For Head Start, 2 child must:

@) Be at least three years old or, turn three years old by the date used to determine
eligibility for public school in the community in which the Head Start program is
located; and,

(i) Be no older than the age required to attend school

(3) For Migrant or Seasonal Head Start, a child must be younger than compulsory school age
by the date used to determine public school eligibility for the community in which the

program is located.
(c) Eligibility requirements.
(1) A pregnant woman or a child is eligible if:
(§) The family’s income is equal to ot below the poverty line; o,

(ii) The family is eligible for or, in the absence of child care, would be potentially eligible
for public assistance; including TANF child-only payments; oz,

(iify The child is homeless, as defined in part 13053; or,
(iv) The child is in foster care.

(2) If the family does not meet a criterion under paragraph (c)(1) of this section, a program
may enroll a child who would benefit from services, provided that these parucipants only
make up to 10 petcent of a program’s enrollment in accordance with paragraph (d) of this

section.

Note: References ase located in the Appendix, starting at page 119



Program Governance—§1302.12 45 CFR Chapter Xl

{d) Additional allowances for programs.

(1) A program may enroll an additional 35 percent of participants whose families do not meet
a criterion desctibed in paragraph (c) of this section and whose incomes are below 130

percent of the poverty line, if the program:

(i) Establishes and implements outreach, and enrollment policies and procedures to
ensure it ts meeting the needs of eligible pregnant women, children, and children with
disabilities, before serving pregnant women ot children who do not meet the criteria in

paragraph (c} of this section; and,

(it) Establishes ctiteria that ensure pregnant women and children ehigible under the
criteria histed in paragraph (c) of this section are served first.

(2) If a program chooses to entoll participants who do not meet a criterion in paragraph {(c)
of this section, and whose family incomes are between 100 and 130 percent of the poverty
line, it must be able to report to the Head Start regional program office:

() How it is meeting the needs of low-income families or families potentially eligible for
public assistance, homeless children, and children in foster cate, and include local
demographic data on these populations;

(i} Outreach and enrollment policies and procedures that ensure it is meeting the needs
of eligible children or pregnant women, before serving ovet-income children or

pregnant WOIIEDN,

(i) Efforts, including outreach, to be fully enrolled with eligible pregnant women or
children;

(iv) Policies, procedures, and selection criteria it uses to serve eligible children;
()Its curgent enrollment and its enrollment for the previous year;

(vi) The number of pregnant women and children served, disaggregated by the eligihility
ctiteria in paragraphs (c) and (d}(1) of this section; and,

(vii} The eligibility criteria category of each child on the program’s waiting list.
(¢} Additional allowances for Indsan tribes.

(1} Notwithstanding paragraph (c)(2) of this section, a tribal program may fill more than 10
percent of its enrollment with participants who are not eligible ander the criteria in paragtaph
{c) of this secton, i

(i) The tribal program has served all eligible pregnant women or children who wish to
be enrolled from Indian and non-Indian families living within the approved service area

of the tribal agency;

() The tribe has resources within its grant, without using additional funds from HHS
intended to expand Early Head Start or Head Start services, to enroll pregnant women

Now; References are located in the Appendit, staring at page 119

10

|



Administration for Childrenand Families, HHS §1302.12 — Program Governance

or children whose family incomes exceed low-income guidelines or who are not
otherwise eligible; and,

@iii) At least 51 percent of the program’s participanis meet an eligibility critetion under
paragraph (c)(1) of this section.

(2) If another program does not serve the approved service area, the program must sexve all
eligible Indian and non-Indian pregnant women ot children who wish to enroll before serving

over-income pregnant women or children.

(3) A program that meets the conditons of this paragraph (¢} must annually set criteria that
are approved by the policy council and the tribal council for selecting over-income pregnant
women or children who would benefit from program services.

(4) An Indian ttibe ot tribes that opetates both an Barly Head Start program and a Head Start
program may, at its discretion, at any time during the grant period involved, reallocate funds
between the Barly Head Start program and the Head Start program in order to address
flactuations in client populations, including pregnant women and children from birth to
compulsory school age. The reallocation of such funds between programs by an Indian tribe
ot tribes during a year may not setve as a basis for any reduction of the base grant for either

program in succeeding years.
ant or Seasonal cligibility requirements. A child is eligible for Migrant or Seasonal Head Start,
if the family meets an eligibility criterion in paragraphs (c) and (d) of this section; and the family’s
income comes primarily from agricultural work.

(2) Eligibility requitements for communities with 1,000 or fewer individuals.

(1) A program may establish its own criteria for eligibility provided that it meets the criteria
outlined in section 645(a)(2)* of the Act.

(2) No child residing in such community whose family is eligible vader critetia desctibed in
paragraphs (c) through (f) of this section, may be denied an opportunity to participate in the
program under the eligibility criteria established under this paragraph (g).

(h) Verifving age. Program staff must verify a child’s age according to program policies and
procedures. A program’s policies and proceduzes cannot require families to provide documents that

confirm a child’s age, if doing so cteates a bagrier for the family to entoll the child.

(i) Verifying eligibility.
(1) Ta verify eligibility based on income, program staff must use tax forms, pay stubs, or
other proof of income to determine the family income for the relevant dme period.

(@ If the family cannot provide tax forms, pay stubs, or other proof of income for the
relevant time period, program staff may accept written statements frotn employers,
including individuals who are self-employed, for the relevant time period and use
information provided to calculate total annual income with appropriate multipliers.

Note: References ase located in the Appendix, scartung ae page 119
1



Program Governance —§1302.12 45 CFR Chapter XIll

{i1) If the family repotis no income for the relevant time period, 2 program may accept
the family’s signed declaration to that effect, if program staff describes efforts made to
verify the family’s income, and explains how the family’s total income was calculated or
secks information from third parties about the family’s ¢ligibility, if the family gives
wtitten consent. If a family gives consent to contact third partes, program staff must
adhere to ptogram safety and privacy policies and procedures and ensure the eligibility
determination record adheres to patagraph (k)(2) of this section.

(i1 If the family can demonstrate a significant change in income for the relevant time
period, program staff may consider current income circumstances.

{2) 'T'o verify whether a family is eligible fot, or in the absence of child care, would be
potentially eligible for public assistance, the program must have documentation from either
the state, local, or tribal public assistance agency that shows the family etther recerves public
assistance or that shows the family is potendally eligible to receive public assistance.

(3) To verify whether a family is homeless, 2 program may accept a written statement from a
homeless services provider, school personnel, or other service agency attesting that the child
is homeless or any other documentation that indicates homelessness, including
documentation from a public or private agency, a declaration, information gathered on
enrollment or application forms, or notes from an interview with staff to establish the child is
homeless; or any other document that establishes homelessness.

(i) If a family can provide one of the documents desctibed in this paragraph (H(3),
program staff must describe efforts made to verify the accuracy of the information
provided and state whether the family is eligible because they ate homeless.

(i) If a family cannot provide one of the documents described in this paragraph ©(3) w
prove the child is homeless, a program may accept the family’s signed declaration to
that effect, if, in a written statement, program staff desceibe the child’s living situation
that meets the definition of homeless in part 1305 of this chapter.

(iiiy Program staff may seek information from third parties who have firsthand
knowledge about a family’s living situation, if the family gives written consent. If the
family gives consent to contact third parties, program staff must adhere to program
privacy policies and procedutes and ensure the eligibility determination record adheres
to paragraph {k} of this section.

{4) To verify whether a child is in foster care, program staff must accept eithet a court order
or other legal or government-issucd document, a written statcment from a government child
welfare official that demonstrates the child is in foster care, ot proof of a foster care payment.

(3) Eligibility duration.
(1) If a child is determined eligible under this section and is patticipating in a Head Start

program, he or she will remain eligible through the end of the succeeding program year
except that the Head Start program may choose not to enroll a child when there are

Moie: References ate located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
12



P

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.12 — Program Governance

compelling reasons for the child not to remain in Head Start, such as when there is 2 change
in the child's family income and there is a child with a greater need for Head Srart serwices.

(2) Children who are enrolled in 2 program receiving funds under the authority of section
645A" of the Act remain eligible while they participate in the program.

(3) If a child moves from an Early Head Start program to a Head Start program, ptogram
staff must verify the family’s eligibility again.

(4) If a program operates both an Early Head Start and a Head Start program, and the parents
wish to enroll their child who has been enrolled in the progtam’s Eatly Head Start, the
ptogram must ensure, whenever possible, the child receives Head Start sexvices until enrolled

in school, provided the child is eligible.
(k} Records.

(1) A program must keep eligibility determination records for each pardcipant and ongoing
records of the eligibility training for staff required by paragraph (m) of this section. A
program may keep these records electronically.

(2) Each cligibility detetmination record must include:

(i) Copies of any documents or statements, including declarations, that are deemed
necessary to verify eligibility under paragraphs (h) and (i) of this section;

(i} A statement that program staff has made reasonable efforts to venfy information by:

(A) Conducting either an in-person, or a telephone interview with the family as
desciibed under paragraph (a){(1)(Q) or (a}(2) of this section; and,

(B) Describing efforts made to verify eligibility, as required under paragraphs (h)
through (i) of this section; and, collecting documents required for third party
verification that includes the family’s written consent to contact ¢ach third party,
the third parties’” names, titles, and affiliations, and information from thitd parties
regarding the family’s eligibilicy.

(iiiy A statement that identifies whether:
(A) The family’s income is below income guidelines for its size, and lists the
family’s size;
(B) The family is <ligible for o1, in the absence of child care, potentially eligible for
public assistance;

(C) The child is 2 homeless child or the child is in foster care;

(D) The family was determined to be eligible under the ctitetion in paragraph (¢)(2)
of this secdon; or,

(E) The family was determined to be eligible under the criterion in paragraph
(d)(1) of this section.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, statting at page 119

13



Program Governance-§1302.14 45 CFR Chapter XIli

(3) A program must keep eligibility determination records for those currently enrolled, as long
as they are enrolled, and, for one year after they have cither stopped receiving services; or are
no longer enrolled.

() Program policies and procedures on violating eligibility determination reguladons. A program

must establish written policies and procedures that describe all actions taken against staff who
intentionally violate federal and program eligibility determination regulations and who enroll
pregnant women and chiddren that are not eligible to receive Eatly Head Start or Head Start services.

(m) Training on eligibility.
(1) A program must train all governing body, policy councit, management, and staff who
determine eligibility on applicable federal regulations and program policies and procedures.
Training must, at a minimum;

(i} Include methods on how to collect complete and accurate eligibility information
from families and third party sources;

(i} Incorporate strategies for treating families with dignity and respect and for dealing
with possible 1ssues of domestic violence, stigma, and privacy; and,

(iii) Explain program policies and procedures that describe actions taken against staff,
families, or participants who attempt to provide or intentionally provide false
information.

{2) A program must train management and staff members who make eligibility determinations
within 90 days of hiting new staff.

(3) A program must train all governing body and policy council members within 180 days of
the beginning of the term of a new governing body ot policy council.

(#) A program must develop policies on how often training will be provided after the inital
training,

§1302.13 Recruitment of children.

In order to reach those most in need of services, a program must develop and implement a
recruitment process designed to actively inform all families with eligible children within the
recruitment area of the availability of program services, and encourage and assist them in applying
for admission to the program. A program must inclade specific efforts to actively locate and recruit
children with disabilines and other vulnerable children, including homeless children and children in

foster care.

§1302.14 Selection process.

(a) Selection criteria.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
14

a1



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.15 — Program Governance

(1) A program must annually establish selection criteria that weigh the ptiofitization of
selection of participants, based on community needs identificd in the community needs
assessment as described in §1302.11(b), and including family income, whether the child is
homeless, whether the child is in foster care, the child’s age, whether the child is ehigible for
special education and related services, or eatly intervention services, as appropriate, as
determined under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) (20 US.C. 1400 &

seg.)"” and, other relevant family ot child risk factors.

(2) If a program serves migrant ot seasonal families, it must select patticipants 2ccording to
criteria in paragraph (2)(1) of this section, and give priority to children whose families can
demonstrate they have relocated frequently within the past two-years to pugsue agricultural

work.

(3) If 2 program operates in a service ar¢a where Head Start eligible children can enroll in
high-quality publicly funded pre-kindesgarten for a full school day, the progtam must
ptiotitize younger children as part of the selection ctiteria in paragraph (2)(1) of this section.
If this priotity would disrupt partnerships with local education agencies, then it is not
required. An American Indian and Alaska Native or Migrant or Seasonal Head Start program
must consider whether such ptioritization is appropriate in theix community.

(4) A program must not deny enrollment based on a disabilicy or chronic health condition or
1ts severity.

(b) Children eligible for services under IDEA.
(1) A program must ensure at least 10 percent of its total funded enrollment is filled by
children eligible for services under IDEA, unless the responsible HHS official grants a waivet.

(2) If the requirement in paragraph (b)(1} of this section has been met, children eligible for
services under IDEA should be priotitized for the avzilable slots in accotdance with the
program’s selection criteria described in paragraph (a) of this section.

(c) Waiting lists. A program must develop at the beginning of each enrollment year and maintain
dusing the year a waiting list that ranks children according to the program’s selection criteria,

§1302.15 Enroliment.

(a) Funded enrollment. A progtam must maintain its funded enrollment level and fill any vacaney as
soon as possible. A program must fill any vacancy within 30 days.

{b) Continuity of enrollment.

(1y A program must make efforts to maintain enrollment of eligible children for the following
year.
(2) Under exceptional circumstances, 2 program may maintain a child’s enrollment in Head

Start for a third year, provided that family income is verified again, A program may maintain a
child’s enrollment in Early Head Start as described in §1302.12()(2).

Mote: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 11%
15



Program Governance—§1302.16 45 CFR Chapter Xl

(3) If a program serves homeless children or children in foster care, it must make efforts to
maintain the child’s enrollment regardicss of whether the family or child moves to a different
service atea, or transition the child to a program in a differeat service area, as required in
§1302.72(a), accotding to the family’s needs.

(c) Reserved slots. If a program determines from the community assessment there are families
experiencing homelessness in the area, or children in foster care that could benefit from services, the
program may reserve one or more enrollment slots for pregnant women and children experiencing
homelessness and children in foster care, when a vacancy occurs. No more than three percent of a
program’s funded enrollment slots may be reserved. If the reserved entollment slot is not filled
within 30 days, the enrollment slot becomes vacant and then must be filled in accordance with

paragraph (a) of this section,

(d) Other enrollment. Children from diverse economic backgrounds who are funded with other
sources, including private pay, ate not considered part of a program’s eligible funded enrollment.

(e) State immunization entollment requirements. A program must comply with state immunization
enrollment and attendance requirements, with the exception of homeless children as described in

§1302.16(c)(1).

(f) Voluntary parent participation. Parent participation in any program activity is voluntary, including
consent for data shating, and is not required as a condition of the child’s entollment.

§1302.16 Attendance.

(a) Promoting regulat attendance. A program must track attendance for each child,

(1) A program must implement a process to ensure children are safe when they do not arrive
at school. If a child is unexpectedly absent and a parent has not contacted the prograrn within
one hour of program start time, the program must attempt to contact the parent to ensure the
child’s well-being.
(2) A program must implement strategies to promote attendance. At a minimum, a program
must:

(i Provide information about the benefits of regular attendance;

(i} Support families to promote the child’s regular attendance;

(iti) Conduct a home visit or make other direct contact with a child’s parents if a child
has multiple unexplained absences (such as two consecutive unexplained absences); and,

{iv) Within the first 60 days of program operation, and on an ongoing basis thereafter,
use individual child attendance data to identify children with patterns of absence that
put them ar risk of missing ten percent of program days per year and develop
appropriate strategies to improve individual attendance among identified children, such
as direct contact with parents or Intensive case management, a5 Necessary.

Note: References ace located in the Appendiz, starting at page 119
16



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.17 — Program Governance

(3) If a child ceases to attend, the program must make appropriate efforts to reengage the
family to resume attendance, including as described in paragraph (2){2) of this section, If the
chiid’s attendance does not resume, then the program must consider that slot vacant. This
action 1s not considered expulsion as described in §1302.17.

{(b) Managing systematic program attendance issnes. If a program’s monthly average daily attendance
rate falls below 85 percent, the program must analyze the causes of absenteeism to identify any
systematic issues that contribute to the program’s absentee rate. The program must use this data to
make necessary changes in a timely manner as part of ongoing oversight and correction as described
in §1302.102(b) and inform its continuous improvement efforts as described in §1302.102(c).

{¢) Supporting attendance of homeless children.

(1) If a program determines a child is eligible under §1302.12(c)(1) ({ii}, it must allow the child
to attend for up to 90 days or as long as allowed under state licensing requirements, without
immunization and other records, to give the family reasonable time to present these
documents. A program must work with families to get children immunized as soon as
possible in order to comply with state licensing requirements.

(2) If a child expertencing homelessness is unable to attend classes regularly because the
family does not have transportation to and from the program facility, the program must
utilize community resources, where possible, to provide transportation for the child.

§1302.17 Suspension and expulsion.

(a) Limitations on suspension.

(1) A program must prohibit or severely limit the use of suspension due to a child’s behavior.
Such suspensions may only be temporary in nature,

(2) A temporaty suspension must be used only as a last resore in extraordinary circumstances
where there is a serious safety threat that cannot be reduced or eliminated by the provision of
reasonable modifications.

(3) Before a program determines whether a temporary suspension is necessaty, a program
must engage with a mental health consultant, collaborate with the parents, and utilize
apptoptiate community resources — such as behavior coaches, psychologists, other
approptiate specialists, or other resources — as needed, to determine no other reasonable

option 1s approptiate.

(4) If a temporary suspension is deemed necessary, a program must help the child return to
full participation in all program activitcs as quickly as possible while cnsuting child safeey by:

(i) Continuing to engage with the parents and a mental health consultant, and
continuing to utilize appropriate community tesousrces,;

(ii) Developing a written plan to document the action and supports needed,;

(it)) Providing services that inclade home visits; and,

Note: References are located in the Appendix, stacting at page 119
17



Program Governance—§1302.18 45 CFR Chapter XN

(iv) Determining whether a referral to a local agency responsible for implementing
IDEA is appropriate.

{b) Prohibition on expulsion,

(1) A program cannot expel or unentall 2 child from Head Start because of a child’s behavior.

(2) When a child exhibits persistent and serious challenging behaviors, 2 program must
explore all possible steps and document all steps taken to address such problems, and
facilitate the child’s safe participation in the program. Such steps must include, at 2 minimum,
engaging a mental health consultant, considering the appropriateness of providing
apptopriate setrvices and suppotts under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act to ensure that
the child who satisfies the definition of disability in 29 U.S.C. 705(9)(b)" of the Rehabilitation
Act is not excluded from the program on the basis of disability, and consuiting with the
parents and the child’s reacher and:

(i) If the child has an indtvidualized family service plan {(IFSP) or individualized
education progtam (IEP), the program must consult with the agency responsible for the
IFSP or IEP to ensure the child receives the needed support sexvices; or,

) If the child does not have an IFSP or IEP, the program must collaborate, with
parental consent, with the local agency tesponsible for implementing IDEA" to
determine the child’s eligibility for services.

(3) If, afier a program has explored all possible steps and documented all steps taken as
described in paragraph {(b)(2) of this section, a program, in consultatton with the parents, the
child’s teachet, the agency responsible for implementing IDEA. (if applicable}, and the mental
health consultant, determines that the child’s continued enrollment presents a continued
serious safety threat to the child ot othet enrolled children and determines the program is not
the most appropriate placement for the child, the program must work with such entities to
directly facilitate the transition of the child to a more appropriate placement.

§1302.18 Fees.

(a) Policy on fees. A program must not charge cligible familics a fee to partictpate in Head Starr,
including special events such as field trips, and cannot in any way condition an eligible child’s
enrollment or participation in the program upon the payment of a fee.

(by Allowable fees.

(1) A program must only accept a fee from families of enrolled children for services that are
in addition to services funded by Flead Start, such as child care before or after funded Head
Start hours. A program may not condition a Head Start child’s enrollment on the ability to
pay a fee for additional hours.

(2) In order 10 support programns serving children from diverse economic backgrounds or
using multiple funding sources, a program may charge fees to private pay families and other

Mate: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
18

A



_—

Administration for Childrenand Families, HHS §1302.20 — Program Governance

non-Head Start enrolled families to the extent allowed by any other applicable federal, state or
local funding sources.

Subpart B — Program Structure

§1302.20 Determining program structure,

{(a} Choose a program optio.

(1) A program must choose to operate one or more of the following program options: center-
based, home-based, family child care, or an approved locally-designed vatiation as described
in §1302.24. The program option(s) chosen must meet the needs of children and families
based on the community assessment described in §1302.11(b). A Head Start program setving
preschool-aged children may not provide only the option described in §1302.22(2) and (c)(2).

(2) T'o choose a program option and develop a program calendat, 2 program must considet in
conjunction with the annual review of the community assessment described in §1302.11(b)
(2), whether it would bettet meet child and family needs through conversion of existing slots

to full school day or full working day slots, extending the progtam yeat, conversion of
existing Head Start slots to Eatly Head Start slots as described in paragraph {c) of this section,
and ways to promote continuity of care and services. A program must work to identify
alternate soutces to support full wotking day services. If no additional funding is available,

program tesources may be used.

(b) Comprehensive services. All program options must deliver the full range of services, as described
in subparts C, D, E, F, and G of this part, except that §§1302.30 through 1302.32 and §1302.34 do

not apply to home-based options.

(c} Convetsion.

(1) Consistent with section 645(2)(5)"* of the Head Start Act, grantees may request to convert
Head Start slots to Early Head Statt slots through the re-funding application process or as a
separate grant amendment. ' '

(2) Any grantee proposing a conversion of Head Start services to Early Head Start sexvices
must obtain policy council and governing body approval and submit the request to their

regional office,

(3) With the exception of Ametican Indian and Alaska Native grantees as described in
paragraph (A){4) of this section, the request to the tegional office must include:

@) A grant application budget and a budget narrative that clearly identifies the funding
amount for the Head Start and Barly Head Start programs before and after the
proposed conversion;

(i) The results of the community assessment demonstrating how the proposed vse of
funds would best meet the needs of the community, including a description of how the

Note: References are located in the Appendix, stasting av page 119
19



Program Governance—§1302.21 45 CFR Chapter XIIl

needs of eligible Flead Start children will be met in the community when the conversion
takes places;

(i) A revised program schedule that describes the program option(s) and the number
of funded enrollment slots for Head Start and Early Head Start programs befote and
after the proposed conversion;

{iv) A description of bow the needs of pregnant women, infants, and toddlets will be
addressed;

(v) A discussion of the agency’s capacity to carry out an effecttve Early Head Start
program in accordance with the requirements of section 645A{b) of the Head Start Act

and all applicable regulations;

{v1} Assurances that the agency will participate in training and technical assistance
activitics required of all Farly Head Start grantees;

(vi) A discussion of the qualifications and competencies of the child development staff
propuosed for the Early Head Start program, as well as a description of the facilities and
program infrastructure that will be nsed to support the new or expanded Early Head
Start program,

(vit) A discussion of any one-time funding necessary to implement the proposed
conversion and how the agency intends to secure such funding; and,

(ix) The proposed timetable for implementing this conversion, including updating
school readiness goals as described in subpart | of this part.

(4) Consistent with section 645(d)(3)*® of the Act, any American Indian and Alaska Native
grantee that operates both an Eatly Head Statt progtam and a Head Start program may
reallocate funds between the programs at its discretion and at any tme during the grant
period involved, in order to address fluctuations in client populations. An American Indian
and Alaska Native program that exercises this discreton must notify the regional office,

(d) Source of funding. A program may consider hours of service that meet the Head Statt Program
Performance Standards, regardless of the source of funding, as hours of planned class operations for
the purposes of meeting the Head Start and Eatly Head Start setvice duration requirements in this

subpatt.

§1302.21 Center-based option.

(a) Setting. The center-based option delivers the full range of services, consistent with §1302.20(b).
Education and child development setvices are delivered ptimarily in classroom settings.

(b) Ratios and group size.

(1) Staff-child ratios and group size maximums must be determined by the age of the majority
of children and the needs of children present. A program must determine the age of the

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
20



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.21 — Program Governance

majority of children in a class at the start of the year and may adjust this determination during
the program year, if necessary. Where state or local licensing requirements are more stringent
than the teacher-child ratios and group size specifications in this section, a program must
meet the stricter requirements. A program must maintain appropriate ratios during all hours
of program operation, except:

(i) Fot brief absences of a teaching staff member for no more than five minutes; and,

(i) Duting nap time, one teaching staff metber may be replaced by one staif member
or trained volunteer who does not meet the teaching qualifications required for the age.

(2) An Eatly Head Start or Migrant or Seasonal Head Start class that serves children under 36
months old must have two teachers with no more than eight children, or three teachers with
no more than nine children. Each teacher must be assigned consistent, primary tesponsibility
fot no more than four children to promote continuity of care for individual children. A
program must minimize teacher changes throughout a child’s enrollment, whenever possible,
and consider mixed age group classes to support continuity of care.

(3) A class that serves a majority of children who are three years old must have no more than
17 children with a teacher and teaching assistant or two teachers. A double session class that
setves a majotity of children who are three years old must have no more than 15 children
with a teacher and teaching assistant or two teachers.

(4) A class that sexves a majority of children who are four and five years old must have no
mote than 20 children with a teacher and a teaching assistant or two teachers. A double
session clags that serves a majority of children who are four and five years old must have no
more than 17 children with a teacher and a teaching assistant or two teachers.

Table to §1302.21(b) — Center-based group size

4 and 5 year olds No more than 17 children enrolled in any double session clss.

No more than |7 children enrolled in any class

' No more than 20 children enrolled in any class.
No more than |5 children enrolled in any double session clss. |

3 year olds

No more than 8 or 9 children enrolled in any class, depending on the number |

Under 3 years old of teachers,

(¢) Service duration,

(1) Early Head Start.

() By August 1, 2018, a program must provide 1,380 annual hours of planned class
operations for all enrolled children.

(if) A program that is designed to meet the needs of young parents entolled in school
settings may meet the service duration requirements in paragraph (Q)(1)® of this section
if it operates a centet-based program schedule during the school year aligned with its
local education agency requirements and provides regular home-based scrvices during
the summer break.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, stariing ac page 119

21



Program Governance—§1302.21 45 CFR Chapter XN

(2) Head Start.

(i) Undl a program is operating all of its Head Start center-based funded enrollment at
the standard described in paragraph {c}{2)(iv) ot (v) of this section, 4 program must
provide, at a minimum, at least 160 days per year of planned class operations if it
operates for five days per week, or at least 128 days per year if it operates four days per
week, Classes must operate for a minimum of 3.5 houts per day.

(i) Until a program is operating all of its Head Starr center-based tunded enrollment at
the standard described in paragraph (c}(2)(iv) or (v) of this section, if a program
operates a double session variation, it must provide classes for four days per week for 2
minimum of 128 days per year and 3.5 hours per day. Each double session class staff
member must be provided adequate break time during the course of the day. In
addition, teachers, aides, and volunteers must have appropriate ime to prepare for each
session together, to set up the classroom environment, and 10 give individual attention
to children entering and leaving the center.

(i) By August 1, 2019, a program must provide 1,020 annual hours of planned class
operations over the course of at least eight months per year for at least 50 percent of its
Head Start center-based funded enroliment.

Note: This requivernent bas been effectively eliminated, as the Secretary lowered the Head Siart center-
based service duration requirement in §1302.21(c)(2)(i) from 50 percent to O percent, as anthorized
m §1302.27(c}(3)(3). The notice to thix effect was published on [annary 19, 2018:

https:/ | www. federalregister.oov/ decments/ 2018/ 01/ 19/ 2018-00897 | secretarial-determination-to-
lower-head-start-conter-based-respice-duration-reguivement

{iv) By August 1, 2021, a program must provide 1,020 annual hours of planned class
operations over the course of at least eight months per year for all of tts Head Start

center-based funded enrollment.

Note: Thix requivement has been effectively reduced, as the Secreiary lowered the Head Start center-
based service duration requirement in [1302.21(c)(2)(iv) from 100 percens (all) to 45 pervent, as
authorized in [1302.21(c)(3)(55). The netice to this effect was published on Jannary 30, 2020:

prips:/ [ e, federalregister.ov/ dechmments/ 2020/ 01/ 30/ 2020-00635 / secretarial-deternrination-to-

lower-head-start-center-bused-service-duvation-requirements

(v) A Head Start program providing fewer than 1,020 annual hours of planned class
operations or fewer than eight months of service 1s considered to meet the
requirements desctibed in paragraphs (¢)(2){1i) and (v} of this secton if its program
schedule aligns with the annual hours required by its local education agency for grade
one and such alignment is necessary to support partnerships for service delivery.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
22



e

R

Administration for Childrenand Families, HHS §1302.21 — Program Governance

(3) Secretarial detexmination.

(i) On or before February 1, 2018, the Secretary may lower the required percentage
dscribed in patragraph (c)(2)(i) of this section, based o an assessment of the
availability of sufficient funding to mitigate a substantial reduction in funded

enrollment; and,

Noe: The Secretary exertited this authority, lowering the Head Start conter-based service duration
reguirement in §1302.21(c)(2)(ii) from 50 percent to O percent. The notice fo this effect was published
on January 19, 2018: hitps:/ | www.federalregister gov| documents{ 2018 J01/19/2018-

00897/ serretarial-determination-to-lower-head-stari-center-based-service-duration-reguirement

(i) On or before February 1, 2020, the Secretary may lower the required percentage
desciibed in paragraph (c)(2)(iv) of this section, based on an assessment of the
availability of sufficient funding to mitigate a substantial reduction in funded
entrollment.

Note: The Secretary exercised this authority, lowering the Head Start center-based service duration
requirement iz §1302.21(e)(2)(w) from 100 percest (all} to 45 percent. The uotice to this effect was
published on January 30, 2020: htsps:/ [ wiww federalregister.gov| documents/ 2020/ 01/ 30/ 2020-
00635/ serretarial-determination-to-lower-head-stari-center-based-service-duration-requirentents

(4) Extension. If an extension is fiecessary to ensure children enrolled in the program on
November 7, 2016 are not displaced from the Early Head Start or Head Start program, a
program may request a one-year extension from the responsible HHS official of the

requitements outlined in paragraphs (c)(1) and (¢)(2)(1if) of this section.

(5) Exemption for Migrant or Seasonal Head Start programs. A Migrant or Seasonal program

is not subject to the requitements described in §1302.21(c)(1) or (2), but must make every
effort to provide as many days and hours of service as possible to each child and family.

(6) Calendar planning. A progtam must:

() Plan its year using a reasonable estimate of the number of days during a year that
classes may be closed due to problems such as inclement weather; and,

(i Make every effort to schedule makeup days using existing resources if hours of
planned class operations fall below the number tequited per year.

(d) Licensing and square footage requitements.

(1) The facilities used by a program must meet state, tribal, or local licensing requirements,
even if exempted by the licensing entity. When state, tribal, or local requirements vary from
Head Start requirements, the most stringent provision takes precedence.

(2) A center-based program must have at least 35 square feet of usable indoor space per child
available for the care and use of children (exclusive of bathrooms, halls, kitchen, staff rooms,
and storage places) and at least 75 square feet of usable outdoot play space per child.

Mote: References are located in the Appendix, startng at page 119
23



Program Governance— §1302.22 45 CFR Chapter Xl

(3} A program that operates two of mote groups within an area must ensure cleatly defined,
safe divistons to separate groups. A program must ensure such spaces are learning
environments that facilitate the implementation of the requirements in subpart C of this part.
The divistons must limit noise transfer from one group to another to prevent distuption of an
effective learning environment.

§1302.22 Home-based option.

(a) Setting. The home-based option delivers the full range of services, consistent with §1302.20(b),
through visits with the child's parents, primarily in the child's home and through group socialization
oppotrtunities in a Head Start classroom, communaty facility, home, or on field trips. For Eatly Head
Start programs, the home-based option may be used to deliver services to some ot all of a program’s
enrolled children. For Head Start programs, the home-based option may only be used to deliver
services to a portion of a program’s enrolled children.

(b) Caseload. A program that implements a home-based option must maintain an average caseload
of 10 to 12 families per home visitor with a2 maximum of 12 familics for any individual home visitor,

(c) Service dutation.

(1) Eatly Head Start. By August 1, 2017, an Early Head Start home-based program must:

(i) Provide one home visit per week per family that lasts at least an houor and a half and
provide a minimum of 46 visits per year; and,

(ii) Provide, at a minimum, 22 group socialization activities distributed over the course
of the program yeas.

{2) Head Start. A Head Start home-based program must:

(i) Prowvide one home visit per week per family that lasts at least an hour and a half and
provide a minimum of 32 visits per year; and,

(i) Provide, at a minimum, 16 group socialization activities distributed over the course
of the program year.

(3) Meeting minimum requirements. A program that implements a home-based option must:

(1) Make up planned home visits or scheduled group socialization activities that were
canceled by the program, and to the extent possibie attempt to make up planned home
visits canceled by the family, when this 1s necessary to meet the minimums described in
paragraphs (c}(1) and (2) of this section; and,

(i) Not replace home visits or scheduled group socialization activities for medical or
social service appointments for the purposes of meeting the minimum requirements
described in paragraphs (c)(1) and (2) of this section.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
24



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.23 — Program Governance

(d) Safety requirements. The areas for learning, playing, sleeping, toileting, preparing food, and
eating in facilities used for group socializations in the home-based option must meet the safety
standards desctibed in §1302.47(1)(ii) through (vii).

§1302.23 Family child care option.

(a) Setting. The family child care program option delivers the full range of services, consistent with
§1302.20(b). Education and child development services are primarily delivered by a family child care
provider in their home or other family-like setting, A program may choose to offer the family child
care option if:

(1) The program has a legally binding agreement with one or more family child care
provider(s) that cleatly defines the roles, rights, and responsibilities of each party, or the
ptogram is the employer of the family child care provider, and ensures children and farnilies
enrolled in this option receive the full range of sexvices described in subparts C, D, E, F, and
G of this part; and,

(2) The program ensutes family child care homes are available that can accommodate children
and families with disabilities.

(b) Ratios and group size.

(1) A program that operates the family child care option where Head Stast children are
entolled must easure group size does not exceed the limits specified in this section. If the
farnily child care provider’s own children under the age of six are present, they must be
included in the group size.

{2) When there is one family child cate provider, the maximum group size is six children and
no mote than two of the six may be under 24 months of age. When there is 2 provider and an
assistant, the maximum group size is twelve children with no mote than four of the twelve
children under 24 months of age.

(3) One family child care provider may care for up to four children younger than 36 months
of age with a maximum group size of four children, and no more than two of the four
children may be under 18 months of age.

(4) A program must maintain appropriate ratios during all hours of program operation, A
progtam must ensute providers have systems to ensure the safety of any child not within view
for any period. A progtam must make substirute staff and assistant providers available with
the necessary training and experience to ensure quality services to children are not
interrupted.

() Service duration. Whether family child care option services are provided directly or via
contractual arrangement, a program must ensure family child care providers operate sufficient hours
to meet the child care necds of families and not less than 1,380 houts per year.

Note: References ace located in the Appendis, starting at page 119
25



Program Governance—- §1302.24 45 CFR Chapter Xl

(d) Licensing requirements. A family child-care provider must be licensed by the state, tribal, or local
cntity to provide services in their home or family-like setting. When state, tribal, or local
requirements vary from Head Start requirements, the most stringent provision applies.

() Child development specialist. A program that offers the family child care option must provide a
child development specialist to support family child care providers and ensure the provision of
quality services at each family child care home. Child development specialists must:

(1) Conduct regular visits to each home, some of which are unannounced, not less than once
every two weeks;

(2) Petiodically verity compliance with either contract requirements ot agency policy;

(3) Facilitate ongoing communication between program staff, family child care providers, and
enrolled families; and,

{(4) Provide tecommendations for technical assistance and support the family child care
provider in developing rclationships with other <hild care professionals.

§I302.24 Locally-designed program option variations.

{a) Waiver option. Programs may request to operate a locally-designed program option, including a
combination of program options, to better meet the nnique needs of their communities or to

demonstrate or test alternative approaches for providing program services. In order to operate a

locally-designed program option, progtams must seek a waiver as described in this section and must
deliver the full range of services, consistent with §1302.20(b), and demonstrate how any change to
their program design is consistent with achieving program goals in subpart ] of this part.

(b) Request for approval. A program’s request to operate a locally-designed variation may be
approved by the responsible HHS official through the end of a program’s current grant ot, if the
request is submitted through a grant application for an upcoming project period, for the project
period of the new award. Such approval may be revoked based on progress toward program goals as
described in §1302.102 and monitoring as desctibed in §1304.2.

(c) Waiver requirements.

(1) The responsible HHS official may waive one or more of the requirements contained in
§1302.21(b), (©(1}(D), and (¢)(2)(iii) and (iv}; §1302.22(a) through (¢); and §1302.23(b) and (c),
but may not waive ratios ot group size for children under 24 months. Center-based locally-
designed options must meet the minimums described in section 640(k}{1)17 of the Act for

center-based programs,

{2} If the responsible HHS official determines a waiver of group size for center-based services
would better meet the needs of children and families in 2 community, the group size may not
exceed the limits below:

(i} A group that serves children 24 to 36 months of age must have no more than ten
children; and,

Naote: References are located in the Appendix, starling atpage 119
206



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §§302.30 — Program Governance

(i) A group that serves predominanty three-year-old children must have no more than
twenty children; and,

(ili) A group that serves predominantly four-year-old children must have no more than
twenty-four children.

(3) If the responsible HHS official approves a waiver to allow a program to operate below the
minimums described in §1302.21(<)(2)(i) or (v}, 2 program must meet the requirements
described in §1302.21(c)(2)(@), or in the case of a double session variation, a program must
meet the requirements desctibed in §1302.21(c)(2){w).

{4) In order to receive a waiver under this section, 2 program must provide supporting
evidence that demonstrates the locally-designed variation effectively suppotts appropriate
development and progtess in children’s early learning outcomes.

(5) In order to receive a waiver of service duration, 2 program must meet the requirement in
paragraph (c)(4) of this section, provide supporting evidence that it better meets the needs of
parents than the applicable service duration minimums described in §1302.21(c){1), and
(©(2)(i) and (iv), §1302.22(c), ot §1302.23(c), and assess the effectiveness of the variation in
supporting appropriate development and progress in children’s eatly learning outcomes.

(d) Transition from previously approved program options. If, before November 7, 2016, a program
was approved to operate a program option that is no longer allowable under §§1302.21 through
1302.23, 2 program may continue to operate that model undl July 31, 2018.

Subpart C — Education and Child Development Program
Services

§1302.30 Purpose.

All programs must provide high-quality early education and child development sexrvices, including
for children with disabilities, that promote children’s cognitive, social, and emotional growth for
later success in school. A center-based or family child care program must embed responsive and
effective teacher-child interactions. A home-based program must promote secure parent-child
relationships and belp parents provide high-quality eatly learning expetiences. All programs must
implement a research-hased curriculum, and screening and assessment procedures that support
individualization and growth in the areas of development desctibed in the Head Szart Early 1 2arning
Outcomes Framework: Ages Birth i Five and support family engagemcnt in children’s leatning and
development. A program must deliver developmentally, culturally, and linguistically appropriate
learning experiences in language, literacy, mathematics, social and emotional functioning, approaches
to learning, science, physical skills, and creative arts. To deliver such high-quality early education and
child development services, a center-based or family child care program must implement, ata
minirnum, the elements contained in §§1302.31 through 1302.34, and a home-based program must
itmplement, at 2 minimum, the elements in §§1302.33 and 1302.35.

Nane: References are locaved in the Appendix, startng at page 119
27



Program Governance—§1302.31 45 CFR Chapter Xl

§1302.31 Teaching and the learning environment.

(a) Teaching and the leatning environment. A center-based and family child care program must

ensure teachers and other televant staff provide responsive care, effective teaching, and an organized
learning environment that promotes healthy development and children’s skill growth aligned with
the Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Frameworke: Ager Birth to Five, including for children with
disabilies. A program must also support implementation of such environment with integration of
tegular and ongoing supervision and 2 system of individualized and ongoing professional
development, as appropnate. This includes, at a minimum, the practices described in paragraphs (b)
through (e) of this section.

(b) Effecuve teaching practices.

{1) Teaching practices must:

i) Emphasize nurturing and responsive practices, interactions, and environments that
foster trust and emotional security; are communication and language rich; promote
critical thinking and problem-solving; social, emotonal, behavioral, and language
development; provide supportive feedback for learning; motivate continued effort; and
support all children’s engagement in learning experiences and activities;

{ii) Focus on promoting growth in the developmental progressions desciibed in the
Head Siars Early Learning Outcomes Framework: Ages Birth to Five by aligning with and using
the Framewotk and the curticula as descnibed in §1302.32 to direct planning of
otganized activides, schedules, lesson plans, and the implementation of high-quality
early learning experiences that are responsive to and build upon each child’s individual
pattern of development and leaming;

(iii} Integrate child assessment data in individual and group planning; and,

(iv) Include developmentally appropriate learning experiences in language, literacy,
social and emotional development, math, science, social studies, creative arts, and
physical development that are focused toward achieving progress outlined in the Head
Start Early Learning Outeomes Framework: Ages Birth to Five,

(2) For dual language learners, a program must recognize bilingualism and biliteracy as
strengths and implement reseatch-based teaching practices that support their development.

These practices must:

@ For an infant or toddler dual language learnes, include teaching practices that focns
on the development of the home language, when there is a teacher with appropriate
language competency, and experiences that expose the child to English;

(il For a preschool age dual language learner, include teaching practices that focus on
both English language acquisition and the continued development of the home

language; or,

Note: References aze located in the Appendix, starting at page 119

28



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.31 — Program Governance

(iif) If staff do not speak the home language of all children in the learning environment,
inchude steps to support the development of the home language for dual langnage
leatners such as having culturally and linguistically appropriate matetials available and
other evidence-based strategics. Programs must work to identify volunteers who speak
children’s home language /s who could be trained to work in the classroom to support
children’s continued development of the home language.

(¢) Learning environment. A program must ensute teachers implement well-organized learning
environments with developmentally approptiate schedules, lesson plans, and indoor and outdoor

learning experiences that provide adequate opportunities for choice, play, exploration, and
experimentation among a variety of learning, sensory, and motor experiences and:

(1) For infants and toddlers, promote felational learning and include individualized and small
group activities that integrate appropriate daily routines into a flexible schedule of leasning
experiences; and,

(2) For preschool age children, include teacher-directed and child-initiated activities, active
and quiet learning activities, and oppormnities for individual, small group, and large group
learning activitics,

(d) Materials and space for learning. To support implementation of the cugriculum and the
requirements described in patagraphs (a}, (b}, {c), and (€) of this section a program must provide
age-appropriate equipment, materials, supplies and physical space for indoot and outdoor learning
environments, including functional space. The equipment, materials and supplies must include any
necessaty accommodations and the space must be accessible to children with disabilities. Programs
must change matetials intentionally and periodically to suppost children’s interests, development,

and learning,

() Promoting learning through approaches to rest, meals, routines, and physical activity.

(1) A program must implement an intentional, age apptoptiate approach to accommodate
children’s need to nap or rest, and that, for preschool age children in a program that operates
fot 6 hours o1 longer per day provides a regular time every day at which preschool age
childten ate encouraged but not forced to rest of nap. A program must provide alternative
quiet learning activities for children who do not need or want to rest or nap.

(2) A. program must implement snack and meal times in ways that suppott development and
learning, For bottle-fed infants, this approach must include holding infants duting fecding to
suppott socialization. Snack and meal times must be structured and used as learning
opportunities that support teaching staff-child interactions and foster communication and
conversatons that contribute to a child’s learning, development, and socialization. Programs
are encouraged to meet this requirement with family style meals when developmentally
apptoptiate. A program must also provide sufficient time for children to eat, not use food as
reward or punishment, and not fotce children to finish their food.

(3) A program must approach routines, such 25 hand washing and diapeting, and transitions
between activities, as opportanities for strengthening development, leatning, and skill growth.

Mote: References ase Iocated in the Appendix, starting ar page 119
29



Program Governance—§1302.33 45 CFR Chapter XII!

{4} A program must recognize physical activity as important to learning and integrate
intentional movement and physical activity into curricular activities and daily routines in ways
that support health and learning. A program must not use physical activity as rewatd or
punishment.

§1302.32 Curricula.

{a) Curticula.

(1) Centet-based and family child care programs must itnplement developmentally
appropriate research-based early childhood curticula, including additional cutricular

enhancements, as appropriate that:

(1) Are based on scientifically valid research and have standardized training procedures
and curticulum materials to support implementation;

{ii) Are aligned with the Head Start Early Learning Outiomes Framework: Ages Birth to Five
and, as appropriate, state eatly learning and development standards; and are sufficiently
content-tich to promote measurable progress toward development and learning
outlined in the Framework; and,

{iit) Have an organized developmental scope and sequence that include plans and
materials for learning expeiiences based on developmental progressions and how

children leam.

(2) A program must support staff to effectively implement curricula and at a minjmum
monitor curriculum implementation and fidelity, and provide support, feedback, and
supervision for continuous improvement of its implementation through the system of
training and professional development.

(b) Adaptation. A program that chooses to make significant adaptations to a cutriculum or a
curriculum enhancement described in paragraph (a}(1) of this section to better meet the needs of
one or more specific populations must use an external early childhood education curriculum or

content area expert to develop such significant adaptadons. A program must assess whether the
adaptation adequately facilitates progress toward meeting school readiness geals, consistent with the
process described in §1302.102(b) and (). Programs are encouraged to partner with outside
evaluators in assessing such adaptations,

§1302.33 Child screenings and assessments.

(a) Screening.
(1) In collaboration with each child’s parent and with parental consent, a program must
complete or obtain a current developmental screening to identify concetrns regarding a child’s
developmental, behavioral, motor, language, social, cognitive, and emotional skills within 45
calendar days of when the child farst attends the program or, fotr the home-based program

Noue; Referenices ams located in the Appendix, stardng at page 119
30



s

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.33 — Program Governance

opton, receives 2 home visit. A program that operates for 90 days or less must complete or
obtain a current developmental screening within 30 calendar days of when the child figst

attends the program.

(2) A program must use one or mote research-based developmental standardized screening
tools to complete the screening. A program must use as part of the screening additional
information from family members, teachers, and relevant staff familiar with the child’s typical

hehavior.

(3) If wartanted through screening and additional relevant information and with disect
guidance from 2 mental health or child development professional a program must, with the
parent’s consent, promptly and appropriately address any needs identified through:

(i) Referral to the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA' for a formal
evaluation to assess the child’s eligibility for services under IDEA as soon as possible,
and not to exceed timelines required under IDEA; and,

(ii) Partnership with the child’s parents and the relevant local agency to suppott families
through the formal evaluation process.

(4) If a child is determined to be eligible for services under IDEA, the program must partner
with patents and the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA, as approptiate, and
deliver the services in subpart F of this part,

(5) If, after the formal evaluation described in paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section, the local
agency responsible for implementing IDEA determines the child is not cligible for early
intervention ot special education and related services under IDEA, the program must:

(i) Seek guidance from a mental health or child development professional to determine
if the formal evaluation shows the child has a significant delay in one or more areas of
development that is likely to interfere with the child’s development and school
readiness; and,

(i) If the child has a significant delay, partner with parents to help the family access
services and supports to help address the child’s identified needs,

(A) Such additional services and supports may be available through 2 child’s health
insurance or it may be appropriate for the program to provide nesded services and
supports under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act'® if the child satisfies the
definition of disability in 29 U.S.C. section 705(9)(b) of the Rehabilitation Act", to
ensure that the child who satisfies the definidon of disability in 29 U.S.C. 705(9)(b)
of the Rehabilitation Act is not excluded from the program on the basis of
disability.

(B) A program may use program funds for such services and supports when no
other sovrces of funding are available.

Notz: References are Iocated in the Appendix, stzrting at page 119
31



Program Governance-§1302.33 45 CFR Chapter XIII

(b} Assessment for individualization.

(1) A program must conduct standardized and structured assessments, which may be
observation-based or direct, for each child that provide ongoing information to evaluate the
child’s developmental level and progress in outcomes aligned to the goals described in the
Head Start Early Y earning Child Outcomes Framework: Ages Birth o Five. Such assessments must
result in usable information fot teachers, home visitors, and parents and be conducted with
sufficient frequency w allow for individualizatdon within the program year.

(2} A program must regularly use information from paragraph (b}(1) of this section along with
informal teacher observations and additional information from family and staff, as relevant,

1o determine a child’s strengths and needs, inform and adjust strategies 1o better support
individualized learning and improve teaching practices in center-based and family child care
settings, and improve hotme visit strategies in home-based models.

(3) If warranted from the information gathered from paragraphs (b}(1) and (2} of this section
and with direct guidance from a mental health or child development professional and a
parent’s consent, a program must tefer the child to the local agency responsible for
implementing IDEA for a fotmal evaluation to assess a child’s eligibility for services under
IDEA.

{c) Charactetistics of screenings and assessments.

(1) Screenings and assessments must be valid and reliable for the population and purpose for
which they will be used, inclading by being conducted by qualified and trained personnel, and
being age, developmentally, culturally and linguistically appropriate, and appropriate for
children with disabilities, as needed.

(2) If a program serves a child who speaks a langnage other than English, a program must use
qualificd bilingual staff, contractort, ot consultant to:

(i) Assess language skills in English and in the child’s home language, to assess both the
child’s progress in the home language and in English language acquisition;

(i) Conduct screenings and assessments for domains other than language skills in the
language or languages that best capture the child’s development and skills in the specific
domain; and,

(i) Ensure those conducting the screening or assessment know and understand the
child’s language and culture and have sufficient skill level in the child’s home language
to accurately administer the screening or assessment and to record and understand the
child’s responses, interactions, and communications.

(3) If a program serves a child who speaks a language other than English and qualified
bilingual staff, contractors, or consuliants are not able 1o conduct screenings and assessments,
a4 program must use an interpreter in conjunction with a qualified staff person to conduct
screenings and assessments as described in paragraphs (¢)(2)({) through (iti) of this section.

Dore: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119

32



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.34 — Program Governance

(4) If a program serves a child who speaks 2 language other than English and can demonstrate
that there is not a qualified bilingual staff person or interpreter, then screenings and
assessments may be conducted in English. In such a case, a program must also gather and use
other information, including structured observations over time and information gatheredin a
child’s home language from the family, for use in evaluating the child’s development and

progress.

(d) Prohibitions on use of screening and assessment data. The use of scteening and assessment items

and data on any screening or assessment authorized under this subchapter by any agent of the
federal government is prohibited fot the purposes of ranking, comparing, or otherwise evaluating
individual children for purposes other than research, training, or technical assistance, and is
prohibited for the purposes of providing rewatds or sanctions for individual children or staff. A
program must not use screening or assessments to exclude children from enroliment or

participation,

§1302.34 Parent and family engagement in education and child
development services.

(a) Purpose. Centet-based and family child cate programs must structure education and child
development services to recognize parents’ roles as children’s lifelong educators, and to encourage

parents to engage in their child’s education.

(b) Engaging patents and family members. A program must offer opportunities for patents and

family membets to be involved in the program’s education setvices and implement policies to
(1) The program’s settings are open to parents during all program houts;

(2) Teachets regulatly communicate with parents to ensure they are well-informed about their
child’s routines, activities, and behavior;

(3) Teachers hold parent conferences, as needed, but no less than two fimes per program
year, to enhance the knowledge and understanding of both staff and parents of the child’s
education and developmental progress and activities in the program;

(4y Parents have the opportunity to learn about and to provide feedback on selected curricula
and instructional materials used in the program;

(5) Parents and family members have opportunities to volunteer in the class and during group
activities;

(6) Teachers inform parents, about the purposes of and the results from screenings and
assessments and discuss their child’s progress;

(7) Teachers, except those described in paragraph (b)(8) of this section, conduct at least two
home visits per program year for each family, including one before the program year begins,
if feasible, to engage the patents in the child’s learning and development, except that such
visits may take place at a program site or another safe location that affords ptivacy at the
parent’s request, or if a visit to the home presents significant safety hazards for staff; and,

Note: References are located in the Appendix, stardog at page 119

33



Program Governance—§1302.35 45 CFR Chapter Xl

{8) Teachers that serve migrant or seasonal families make every effort to conduct home visits
to engage the family in the child’s learning and development.

§1302.35 Education in home-based programs.

(2) Purpose. A home-based program must provide home visits and group socialization activities that
protoote secure parent-child relationships and help parents provide high-quality early learning
expetiences in language, literacy, mathematics, social and emotional functioning, approaches to
learning, science, physical skills, and creative arts, A program must implement a research-based
cusriculum that delivers developmentally, linguistically, and cultutally appropriate home visits and
group soclalization activitics that support children’s cognitive, social, and emotional growth fot later
success in school.

(b) Home-based program design. A home-based program must ensure all home visits are:

(1) Planned jointly by the home visitor and parents, and reflect the critical role of parents in
the early learning and development of their children, including that the home visitor is able to
effectively commurnicate with the patent, directly or through an interpreter;

(2) Planned using information from ongoing assessments that individualize learning
CXPELIENCes;

(3) Scheduled with sufficient time to serve all entolled children in the home and conducted
with parents and are not conducted when only babysitters or other temporary caregivers are
present;

(4) Scheduled with sufficient time and appropriate staff to ensure effective delivery of services
desctribed in subparts D, E, F, and G of this part through home visiting, to the extent
possible.

() Home visit experiences. A program that operates the home-based option must ensute all home

visits focus on promoting high-quality early learning experiences in the home and growth towards
the goals desctibed in the Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Framenork: Ages Birth to Five and must

use such goals and the cutdculum to plan home visit activities that implement:

(1) Age and developmentally approptiate, structured child-focused learning experiences;

(2) Strategies and activities that promote parents’ ability to support the child’s cognitive,
social, emotional, language, literacy, and physical development;

(3) Strategies and activities that promote the home as a learning environment that is safe,
nurtuzing, responsive, and language- and communication- rich;

(4} Rescarch-based strategies and activities for childten who are dual language learners that
recognize bilingualism and biliteracy as strengths, and:

{§) For infants and toddlers, focus on the development of the home language, while
providing experiences that expose both parents and children to English; and,

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119

34



e

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.35 — Program Governance

(i) For preschoolets, focus on both English language acquisition and the continued
development of the home language; and,

(5) Follow-up with the familics to discuss learning expetiences provided in the home between
each visit, address concerns, and inform strategies to protmote progress toward school

readiness goals.

(d) Home-based cutriculum. A program that operates the home-based option must:

(1) Ensure home-visiting and group socializations implement a developmentally appropriate
research-based early childhood home-based curriculum that:

(i) Promotes the parent’s role as the child’s teacher through experiences focused on the
parent-child relationship and, as approptiate, the family’s traditons, culture, values, and
bheliefs;

(i) Aligns with the Head Stars Early Learning Outcomes Framework: Ages Birth to Five and, as

apptopriate, state early learning standards, and, is sufficiently content-rich within the
Tramewortk to promote measurable progress toward goals outlined in the Framework;

and,

(iiiy Has an organized developmental scope and sequence that includes plans and
matetials for learning experiences based on developmental progressions and how
children learn.

(2) Support staff in the effective implementation of the curriculum and at 2 minimum

monitor curriculum implementation and fidelity, and provide support, feedback, and
supervision for continuous improvement of its implementation through the system of

training and professional development.

{3) If a program chooses to make significant adaptations to a cutsiculum ot curriculum
enhancement to better meet the needs of one or more specific populations, a program must:

(i) Partner with eatly childhood education cutriculum or content experts; and,

(i) Assess whether the adaptation adequately facilitates progress toward meeting school
readiness goals consistent with the process described in §1302.102¢b) and (c).

(4) Provide parents with an opportunity to teview selected curricula and instructional
materials used in the program.

(&) Group socialization.

(1) A program thar operates the home-based option must ensure group socializations are
planned jointly with families, conducted with both child and parent participation, occur in a
classroom, community facility, home or field trip setting, as approptiate.

(2) Group socializations must be structured to:

Note: References are located in the Appendiz, starting at page 110
35



Program Governance—§1302.41 45 CFR Chapter XIil

(1) Provide age appropriate activities for participating children that are intentionally
aligned to school readiness goals, the Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Framework: Ages
Birth to Five and the home-based curriculum; and,

(i) Encourage parents to share experiences related to their children’s development with
other parents in ordet to strengthen parent-child relationships and to help promote
patents understanding of child development;

(3) For parents with preschoolers, group socializations also must provide opportunities for
parents to participate in activitics that support parenting skill development or family
partnership goals identified in §1302.52(c), as appropriate and must emphasize peer group
interactions designed to promote children’s social, emotional and language development, and
progress towards school readiness goals, while encouraging parents to observe and actively
patticipate in activities, as approptiate.

(f) Screening and assessments. A program that operates the home-based option must implement
provistons in §1302.33 and inform parents about the putposes of and the results from screenings

and assessments and discuss their child's progress.

§1302.36 Tribal language preservation and revitalization.

A program that serves American Indian and Alaska Native children may integrate efforts to
preserve, revitalize, restore, or maintain the tibal language for these children into program services.
Such language preservation and revitalization efforts may inclade full immersion in the tribal
language for the majority of the hours of planned class operations. If children’s home language is
English, exposure to English as described in §1302.31(b)(2)(1) and (ii) is not required.

Subpart D — Health Program Services

§1302.40 Purpose.

(a) A program must provide high-quality health, oral health, mental health, and nutrition services
that are developmentally, culturally, and linguistically appropriate and that will support each child’s
growth and school readiness.

(b} A program must establish and maintain a Health Setvices Advisory Committee that includes
Head Start parents, professionals, and othet volunteets from the community.

§1302.41 Collaboration and communication with parents.

(a) For all activities desctibed in this part, programs must collaborate with parents as partners in the
health and well-being of their children in a linguistically and culturally appropriate manner and
communicate with parents about their child’s health needs and development concerns in a timely

and effective manner.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, scarting ac page 119

36



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.42 — Program Governance

{b) At a minimum, 2 program must:

(1) Obtain advance authorization from the patent or other person with legal authority for all
health and developmental procedures administered through the program or by contract or
agreement, and, maintain written documentation if they refuse to give authotization for

health services; and,

(2) Share with parents the policies for health emergencies that requite rapid response on the
part of staff or immediate medical attention,

§1302.42 Child health status and care.

(a) Source of health care.

(1) A program, within 30 calendar days after the child first attends the program ot, for the
home-based program option, receives 2 home visit, must consult with parents to determine
whether each child has ongoing sources of continuous, accessible health care — provided by a
health cate professional that maintains the child’s ongoing health recotd and is not primarily a
source of emergency or urgent care — and health insurance coverage.

{2) If the child does not have such a soutce of ongoing care and health insurance coverage or
access to care through the Indian Health Service, the program must assist families in
accessing a source of care and health insurance that will meet these ctitetia, as quickly as

possible.

~ (b) Ensuring up-to-date child health status.

(1) Within 90 calendar days after the child first attends the program ot, for the home-based
program option, teceives a home visit, with the exceptions noted in paragraph (b)(3) of this
section, a program must:

() Obtain determinations from health care and oral health cate professionals as to
whether or not the child is up-to-date on a schedule of age appropriate preventive and
primary medical and oral health care, based on: the well-child visits and dental
periodicity schedules as prescribed by the Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnasis, and
Treatment (EPSDT) program of the Medicaid agency of the state in which they operate,
immunizaton recommendations issued by the Centers for Discase Control and
Prevention, and any additional recommendations from the local Health Services
Advisory Committee that are based on ptevalent community heelth problems;

(ii) Assist parents with making artangements to bring the child up-to-date as quickly as
possible; and, if necessary, directly facilitate provision of health services to bring the
child up-to-date with patent consent as described in §1302.41 (b)(1).

(2) Within 45 calendar days after the child first attends the program or, for the home-based
program option, receives a home visit, a program must eithet obtain or petform evidence-

based vision and hearing screenings,

Note: References are locared in the Appendis, starting ar page 119
37



Program Governance—§1302.42 45 CFR Chapter XIll

(3) Tf a program operates for 90 days or less, it has 30 days from the date the child first
attends the program to satisfy paragraphs (b){1} and (2} of this section.

{4) A ptogram must identify each child’s nutritional health needs, taking into account
available health information, including the child’s health records, and family and staff
concerns, including special dietary requitements, food allergies, and community nutrition
issues as identified through the community assessment or by the Health Services Advisory
Committee.

(¢} Ongoing care,
{1} A ptogram must help parents continue to follow recommended schedules of well-child

and oral health care.

(2) A program must implement petiodic observations or other appropriate strategies for
program staff and parents to identify any new ot recurting developmental, medical, oral, or

mental health concerns,

(3) A program must facilitate and monitor necessary oral health preventive care, treatment
and follow-up, including topical fluoride treatments. In communities where there is a lack of
adequate fluoride available through the water supply and for every child with moderate to
severe tooth decay, a progtam must also facilitate fluoride supplements, and other necessary
preventive measurcs, and further oral health treatment as recommended by the ozal health

professional.

{d) Extended follow-up care.
(1) A program must facilitate further diagnostic testing, evaluation, treatrnent, and follow-up
plan, as appropriate, by a licensed or certified professional for each child with a health
problem or developmental delay, such as elevated lead levels or abnormal hearing or vision
results that may affect child’s development, leaming, ot behavior.

{2) A program must develop a system to track referrals and services provided and monitor the
implementation of a follow-up plan to meet any treatment needs associated with a health, oral
health, social and emotional, or developmental problem.

(3) A program must assist parents, as needed, in obtaining any prescribed medications, aids or
equipment for medical and oral health conditions,

(e) Use of funds.

(1) A program must use program funds for the provision of diapers and formula for enrolled
childten during the program day.

(2) A program may use program funds for professional medical and oral health services when
no othet source of funding is available. When program funds are used for such services,
grantee and delegate agencies must have written documentation of their efforts to access
other available sources of funding.

Nowe: References ate located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
38



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.44 — Program Governance

§1302.43 Oral health practices.

A program must promotc cffective oral health hygiene by ensuting all children with teeth are
assisted by appropriate staff, ot volunteers, if available, in brushing their teeth with teothpaste
containing fluoride once daily.

§1302.44 Child nutrition.

(a) Nutrition service requirements.

(1) A program must design and implement nutrition services that are culturally and
developmentally appropriate, meet the nutritional needs of and accommodate the feeding
requirements of each child, including children with special dietary needs and children with
disabilities. Family style meals ate encouraged as described in §1302.31(e)(2).

(2) Specifically, a program must:

(i) Ensure each child in a program that operates for fewer than six hours per day
reccives meals and snacks that provide one third to one half of the child’s daily
nutritional needs;

(ii) Ensure each child in 2 program that operates for six hours or more per day receives
meals and snacks that provide one half to two thirds of the child’s daily outritional

needs, depending upon the lengih of the program day;

(iii) Serve three- to five-year-olds meals and snacks that conform to USDA
requitements in 7 CFR parts 210, 220, and 226%, and are high in nutdents and low in
fat, sugar, and salt;

(iv) Feed infants and toddlers according to their individual developmental readiness and
feeding skills as recommended in USDA requirements outlined in 7 CFR parts 210, 220,
and 226, and ensure infants and young toddlets are fed on demand to the extent
possible;

{(v) Ensure bottle-fed infants are never laid down to sleep with a bottle;

(vi) Serve all children in morning center-based settings who have not received breakfast
upon atrival at the program a noutishing breakfast:

{vii) Provide appropsiate healthy snacks and meals to each child during group
socialization activitics in the home-based option;

(vii) Promote breastfeeding, including providing facilities to propetly store and handle
breast milk and make accommodations, as necessary, for mothers who wish to breast-
feed duting program hours, and if necessary, provide referrals to lactation consultants

or counsclors; and,

(ix) Make safe drinking water available to children during the program day.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
39



Program Governance—§1302.45 45 CFR Chapter Xill

(b) Payment sources. A program must use funds from USDA Food, Nutrition, and Consumer
Services child nutrition programs as the primary source of payment for meal services. Eatly Head
Start and Head Start funds may be used 1o cover those allowable costs not covered by the USDA.

§1302.45 Child mental health and social and emotional well- being.

(a) Wellness promotion. To suppott a program-wide culture that promotes children’s mental health,
social and emotional well-being, and overall health, a program must:

(1) Provide supports for effective classroom management and positve learning environments;
supportive teacher practices; and, strategies for supporting children with challenging
behaviors and other social, emotional, and mental health concerns;

(2) Secure mental health consultation services on a schedule of sufficient and consistent
frequency to ensure a mental health consultant is available to partner with staff and families in

a timely and effective manner;
{3) Obtain patcntal consent for mental health consultation services at entollment; and,

{4) Build community partnerships to facilitate access to additional mental health resources
and services, as needed.

{b) Mental health consultants. A program must ensute mental health consultants assist:

(1) The program to implement strategies to identify and support children with mental health
and social and emotional concerns;

{2) Teachess, including family child care providers, to improve classroom management and
teacher practices through stuategies that include using classtoom observations and
consultations to address teacher and individual child needs and creating physical and cultural
environments that promote positive mental health and social and cmotional functioning;

(3) Other staff, including home visitors, to meet childien’s mental health and social and
emodonal needs through strategies that include observation and consultation;

(4) Staff to address prevalent child mental health concerns, including internalizing problems
such as appearing withdrawn and externalizing problems such as challenging behaviors; and,

(5) In helping both parents and staff to understand mental health and access mental health
interventions, if needed.

{6) In the implementation of the policies to limit suspension and prohibit expulsion as
described in §1302.17.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
40

i



Y

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.46 — Program Governance

§1302.46 Family support services for health, nutrition, and mental
health. ‘

(a) Pasent collaboration. Programs must collaborate with parents to promote childten’s health and
well-being by providing medical, oral, nutrition and mental health education support services that
are understandable to individuals, including individuals with low health literacy.

(b) Opportunities.

(1) Such collaboradon must include opportunities for parents to:

(i) Leatn about preventive medical and oral health care, emergency first aid,
environmental hazards, and health and safety practces for the home including health
and developmental consequences of tobacco products use and exposure to lead, and

safe sleep;

{ii) Discuss theit child’s nutritional status with staff, including the impottance of
physical activity, healthy eating, and the negative health consequences of sugar-
sweetened beverages, and how to select and prepare nutritious foods that meet the
family’s nutrition and food budget needs;

(iii) Learn 2bout healthy pregnancy and postpattum care, as appropriate, including
breastfeeding support and treatment options for patental mental health or substance

abuse problems, including petinatal depression;

(iv) Discuss with staff and identify issues telated to child mental health and social and
emotional well-being, including obsetvations and any concerns about their child’s
mental health, typical and arypical behavior and development, and how to appropriately
respond to their child and promote theit child’s social and emotional development; and,

{v) Learn about appsopriate vehicle and pedestrian safety for keeping children safe.

(2) A program must provide ongoing support to assist parents’ navigation through health
systems to meet the general health and specifically identified needs of their children and must

assist parents:

() In understanding how to access health insurance for themselves and their families,
including information about private and public health insurance and designated
enrollment periods;

(i) In understanding the results of diagnostic and treatment procedures as well as plans
for ongoing care; and,

(iii) In familiarizing their children with services they will receive while enrolled in the
program and to entoll and pasticipate in a system of ongoing family health care.

Note: References are located in the Appendin, starting at page 119
41



—,
N

Program Governance— §1302.47 45 CFR Chapter Xl

§1302.47 Safety practices.

(a} A program must establish, train staff on, implement, and enforce a system of health and safety
practices that ensure children are kept safe at all times. A program should consult Caring for our
Children Basics, available at htip:/ /www.acfhhs.gov/sites/ defaule/files/ecd/caring_for_our_chil-
dren_basics.pdf, for additional information to develop and implement adequate safety policies and
ptactices described in this past.

(b) A program must develop and implement a system of management, including ongoing training,
oversight, correction and continuous improvement it accordance with §1302.102, that includes
policies and practices to ensure all facilities, equipment and materials, background checks, safety
training, safety and hygiene practices and administrative safety procedures are adequate to ensure
child safety. This system must ensurc:

(1) Facilitics. All facilities whete children are served, including areas for leatning, playing,
sleeping, toiletng, and eating are, at a minimum:

{i) Meet licensing requitements in accordance with §§1302.21(d)(1) and 1302.23(d);

(it} Clean and free from pests;

(i} Free from pollutants, hazards and toxins that are accessible to childten and could
endanger children’s safety;

{1v) Designed to prevent child injory and free from hazatds, including choking,
strangulation, electrical, and drowning hazards, hazards posed by appliances and all
other safety hazards;

(v) Well lit, including emergency lighting;

{v1) Equipped with safety supplies that are readily accessible to staff, including, at a
minimum, fully-equipped and up-to-date first aid kits and appropriate fire safety
supplies;

(vif) Free from firearms or other weapons that are accessible to children;

{viti) Designed to separate toileting and diapeting areas from areas for preparing food,
cooking, eating, or children’s activities; and,

(ix) Kept safe through an ongoing system of preventative maintenance.

{2y Equipment and materials. Indoot and outdoor play equipment, ctibs, cots, feeding chairs,
strollers, and other equipment used in the care of enrolled children, and as applicable, other
equipment and materials meet standards set by the Consumer Product Safety Commission
(CPSC) or the American Society for Testing and Materials, International (ASTM). All
equipment and materials must at a minimun:

(i) Be clean and safe for children’s use and are appropriately disinfected;

Note: References are Jocaced in the Appendix, starting at page 119
42



Administration for Childrenand Families, HHS §1302.47 — Program Governance

(i} Be accessible only to children for whom they ate age apptoptiate;
(i) Be designed to ensure appropriate supervision of children at all times;

(iv} Allow for the separation of infants and toddlers from preschoolers during play in
center-based programs; and,

(v} Be kept safe through an ongoing system of preventative maintenance.

(3) Background checks. All staff have complete background checks in accordance with
§1302.90(b).

(4) Safety training.

(i} Staff with regular child contact. All seaff with regular child contact have initial
orientation training within three months of hire and ongoing training in all state, local,
tribal, federal and program-developed health, safety and child cate requirements to
ensure the safety of children in their care; including, at a minimum, and as appropriate
based on staff roles and ages of children they work with, training in:

(A) The prevention: and control of infectious discases;

(B) Prevention of sudden infant death syndrome and use of safe sleeping practices;
(C) Administration of medication, consistent with standards for parental consent;
(D) Prevention and response to emergencies due to food and alletgic reactions;

(E) Building and physical premises safety, including identification of and
protection from hazards, bodies of water, and vehicular traffic;

(F) Prevention of shaken baby syndrome, abusive head trauma, and child
maltreatment;

(G) Emetgency preparedness and response planning for emergencies;

(H) Handling and storage of hazardous materials and the appropriate disposal of
biocontaminants;

(M Appropriate precaudons in transporting children, if applicable;
(T) First aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation; and,

() Recognition and teporting of child abuse and neglect, in accordance wich the
requirement at paragraph {b)(5) of this section.

(i) Staff without regular child contact. All staff with no regular responsibility for or
contact with children have initial orientation training within three months of hire;

ongoing training in all state, local, ttibal, federal and program-developed health and
safety requirements applicable to their work; and training in the program’s emergency
and disaster preparedness procedures.

Note; References are located in the Appendix, stariing ar page 119

43



Program Governance— §1302.47 45 CFR Chapter Xl

(5) Safety practices. All staff and consultants follow appropriate practices to keep children

safe during all activities, inclading, at a minimum:

{f) Reporting of suspected or known child abuse and neglect, including that staff comply
with applicable federal, state, local, and ttibal laws;

(i1y Safe sleep practices, including ensuring that all sleeping 2rrangements for children
under 18 months of age use firm mattresses ot cots, as appropriate, and for children
under 12 months, soft bedding materials or toys must not be used;

{it)) Appropriate indoor and outdoor supervision of children at all times;
(iv) Only releasing children to an authorized adult, and;
(v) All standards of conduct described in §1302.90(c).
(6) Hygiene practices. All staff systematically and routinely implement hygiene practices that

4t 2 MINmum ensute:

(i) Appropriate toileting, hand washing, and diapering procedures are followed;

(1) Safe {ood preparation; and,

{iify Exposure to blood and body fluids are handled consistent with standatds of the
Occupational Safety Health Administration.

(7) Administrative safety procedures. Programs establish, follow, and practice, as appropriate,

procedures for, at a minimum:
{t) Emergencies;
(i) Fire prevention and response;

(i) Protection from contagious disease, including approptiate inclusion and exclusion
policies for when a child is ill, and from an infectious disease outbreak, including
appropnate notifications of any reportable illness;

(iv} The handling, storage, administration, and record of administration of medication;

(v} Maintaining procedures and systems to ensure children are only released to an
authorized adult; and,

(vi) Child specific health cate needs and food allergies that include accessible plans of
action for emergencies, For food allergies, a program must also post individual child
food allergies prominently where staff can view wherever food is served.

(8) Disaster preparedness plan. The program has all-hazards emergency management/disaster
preparedness and response plans for mote and less likely events including natural and man-
made disasters and emergencies, and violence in or neat programs.

(€} A program must report any safety incidents in accordance with §1302.102(d)(1)().

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.51 — Program Governance

Subpart E — Family and Community Engagement Program
Services

§1302.50 Family engagement.

(a) Purpose. A program must intcgrate parent and family engagement strategies into all systems and
program services to support family well-being and promote children’s learning and development.
Programs are encouraged to develop innovative two-generation approaches that address prevalent
needs of families across their program that may leverage community partnerships or other funding
SOULCes.

(b) Family engagement approach. A progtam must:

(1Y Recognize parents as their children’s primary teachers and nurtirers and implement
intentional strategies to engage parents in their children’s learning and development and
support parent-child relationships, including specific strategies for father engagement;

{2)Develop relationships with parents and structure services to encourage trust and
respectful, ongoing two-way communication between staff and parents to create
welcoming program environments that incorporate the unique cultural, ethnic, and
linguistic backgrounds of families in the program and community;

(3)Collaborate with families in a family partership process that identifies needs,
interests, strengths, goals, and services and resources that support family well-being,
including family safety, health, and economic stability;

(4)Provide parents with opportunities to participate in the program as employees or
volunteers;

(5)Conduct family engagement services in the family’s preferred language, ot through
an intetpreter, to the extent possible, and ensure families have the opportunity to share
personal information in an environment in which they feel safe; and,

{6) Implement procedures for teachers, home visitors, and family suppozt staff 1o share
information with each other, as appropriate and consistent with the requitements in
part 1303 subpart C, of this chapter; FERPA; or IDEA®, to ensure coordinated family
engagement strategies with children and families in the classtoom, home, and
COMIMUNItyY.

§1302.51 Parent activities to promote child learning and development.

{a) A program must promote shared responsibility with parents for children’s carly learning and
development, and implement family engagement strategies that are designed to foster parental
confidence and skills in promoting children’s learning and development. These strategies must
include:

MNote: References are located in the Appendiy, starting at page 119
45



Program Governance—§1302.52 45 CFR Chapter XIli

(1) Offering activities that support parent-child relationships and child development including
language, dual language, literacy, and bi-literacy development as appropriate;

(2) Providing parents with information about the importance of their child’s regular
attendance, and partner with them, as necessary, to promote consistent attendance; and,

(3) For dual language learners, information and resources for parents zbout the benefits of
bilingualism and biliteracy.

(b) A program must, at 2 minimum, offer opportunities for patents to partcipate in a research-based
parenting curriculum that builds on patents’ knowledge and offers parents the oppottunity to
practice parenting skills to promote children’s learning and development. A program that chooses to
make significant adaptadons to the patenting curriculum to better meet the needs of one or more
specific populations must work with an expert or experts to develop such adaptations.

§1302.52 Family partnership services.

{a) Family partmership process, A program must implement a family partnership process that
includes a family partnership agreement and the activities described in this section to support family
well-being, including family safety, health, and economic stability, to support child learning and
development, to provide, if applicable, services and supports for children with disabilities, and to
foster parental confidence and skills that promote the early learning and development of their
children. The process must be initiated as early in the program year as possible and continue for as
long as the family participates in the program, based on parent interest and need.

(b} Identification of familv strengths and needs, A program must implement intake and family
assessment procedures to idendfy family strengths and needs related to the family engagement
outcomes as desctibed in the Head Start Parent Family and Community Engagement Framenork, including
family well-being, parent-child relationships, families as hifelong educators, families as learners,
family engagement in transitions, family connections to peers and the local community, and families

as advocates and leaders.

{c) Individualized farnily partnership services. A program must offet individualized family
partnership services that:

(1) Collaborate with families to identify interests, needs, and aspirations related to the family
engagement outcomes described in paragraph (b) of this section;

(2) Help families achieve identified individualized family engagement outcomes;

(3) Establish and implement a family partnership agreement process that is jointly developed
and shared with parents in which staff and families to review individual progress, revise goals,
evaluate and track whether identified needs and goals are met, and adjust strategies on an on-

going basis, as necessaty, and;

(4) Assign staff and resources based on the urgency and intensity of identified farnily needs
and goals.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119

46



& n

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.53 — Program Governance

(d)_Existing plans and community resources. In implementing this section, a progtam must take into
consideration any existing plans for the family made with other community agencies and availability

of other community resources to address family needs, strengths, and goals, in order to avoid
duplication of effort.

§1302.53 Community partnerships and coordination with other early
childhood and education programs.

{a) Community partnerships.

(1) A program must establish ongoing collaborative relationships and partnerships with
community organizations such as establishing joint agreements, procedures, or conttacts and
artanging for onsite delivery of services as appropriate, to facilitate access to community
services that are responsive to children’s and families” needs and family partnership goals, and
community needs and resources, as determined by the community assessment.

(2) A program must establish necessary collaborative relationships and partnerships, with
community organizations that may include:

(i) Health care providers, including child and aduit mental health professionals,
Medicaid managed care networks, dentists, other health professionals, nutritonal
service providers, providers of prenatal and posinatal support, and substance abuse
treatment providers;

(i) Individuals and agencies that provide services to children with disabilities and their
families, elementary schools, state preschool providers, and providers of child care

services;

(iii) Family preservation and support services and child protective services and any other
agency to which child abuse must be reported under state or tribal law;

(iv) Educational and cultural institutions, such as libraries and museums, for both
children and families;

(v) Tempotary Assistance for Needy Families, nutrition assistance agencies, work- force
development and training programs, adult or family literacy, adult education, and post-
secondary education institutions, and agencies or financial institutions that provide
asset-building education, products and services to enhance family financial stability and

savings;

(vi) Housing assistance agencies and providers of support for children and families
experiencing homelessness, including the local educational agency liaison designated
under section 722(g)(1){J)(ii) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42

U.S.C 11437 ct seq)';

(vil) Domestic violénce prevention and support providets; and,

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
47



Program Governance—§1302.60 45 CFR Chapter X

(vili) Other organizations ot businesses that may provide support and resources to
famnilies.

{(b) Coordination with other programs and systems. A program must take an active role in
promoting coordinated systems of comprehensive early childhood services to low-income children
and families in theit community through communication, cooperation, and the sharing of
information among agencics and their community partoers, while protecting the privacy of child
records in accordance with subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter and applicable federal, state, local,
and tribal laws.

(1) Memorandum of understanding. To support coordination between Head Start and
publicly funded preschool programs, a program must enter into a memotandum of
understanding with the appropriate local entity responsible for managing publicly funded
preschool programs in the service area of the progtam, as described in section 642(e)(5)* of

the Act.

(2) Quality Rating and Improvement Systems. A program, with the exception of American
Indian and Alaska Native programs, must participate in its state or local Quality Rating and

Improvement System (QRIS) if:

(@) Tts state or local QRIS accepts Head Start monitoring data to document quality
indicators included in the state’s tiered system;

(i) Participation would not impact 2 program’s ability to comply with the Head Start
Progtam Performance Standards; and,

(iii) The program has not provided the Office of Head Start with a compelling reason
not to comply with this requirement.

(3) Data systems. A program, with the exception of American Indian and Alaska Native
programs unless they would like to and to the extent practicable, should integrate and share
relevant data with state education data systems, to the extent practicable, if the program can
receive similar support and benefits as other participating carly childhood programs.

(4) American Indian and Alagka Native programs. An American Indian and Alaska Native
program should determine whether or not it will participate in the systems described in
paragraphs (b)(2) and (3) of this section.

Subpart F — Additional Services for Children with Disabilities

§1302.60 Full participation in program services and activities.

A program must ensure enrolled children with disabilities, including but not himited to those who axc
eligible for services under IDEA19, and their families receive all applicable program services
delivered in the least restrictive possible environment and that they fully patticipate in all program

activites.

Nets: References axe located in the Appendix, staring at page 119
48



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.61 — Program Governance

§1302.61 Additional services for children.
(a) Additional services for children with disabilities. Programs must ensure the individualized needs

of children with disabilities, including but not limited to those eligible for services under IDEA, are
being met and all children have access to and can fully participate in the full range of activities and
services. Programs must provide any necessaty modifications to the envitonment, muldiple and
vatied formats for instruction, and individualized accommodations and supports as necessary to
support the full participation of children with disabilities. Programs must ensure all individuals with
disabilitics ate protected from discrimination under and provided with all setvices and program
modifications required by section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (29 U.5.C. 794), the Amesicans with
Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12101 ¢ seq.)"®, and their implementing regulations.

(b) Services during IDEA eligibility determination. While the local agency responsible for
implementing IDEA determines 2 child’s eligibility, a program must provide individualized services
and supports, to the maximum extent possible, to meet the child’s needs. Such additional supporis
may be available through a child’s health insurance of it may be appropriate or requited to provide
the needed services and supports under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act if the child satisfies the
definition of disability in section 705(9)(b) of the Rehabilitation Act™. When such supports are not
available through alternate means, pending the evalvation results and eligibility determinaton, a
program must individualize program services based on available information such as parent input
and child observation and assessment data and may use program funds for these purposes.

{¢) Additional services for children with an IFSP or IEP. To ensure the individual needs of children
eligible for services under IDEA are met, a program must;

(1) Wotk closely with the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA, the family, and
other service partners, as appropriate, to ensute:

@) Sexvices for a child with disabilities will be planned and delivered as required by their
IFSP or IEP, as appropriate;

(ii) Children are working towards the goals in their IFSP or 1IEP;

(iii) Elerents of the IFSP or IEP that the program cannot implement are implemented
by other approptiate agencies, related service providers and specialists;

(iv) IFSPs and IGPs are being reviewed and xevised, as required by IDEA; and,

(v)Services are provided in a child’s regular Early Head Start or Head Start classroom or
family child cate home to the greatest extent possible.

(2) Plan and implement the transidon services described in subpart G of this patt, including at
a mHnimon:

(i) For children with an IFSP who are transitioning out of Early Head Start, collaborate
with the patents, and the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA, to ensure

Note: Refetences are locared in the Appendix, starting at page 119
49



Program Governance—§1302.63 45 CFR Chapter Xll}

appropmiate steps are undertaken in a timely and approptiate manner to determine the
child’s eligibility for services under Part B of IDEA; and,

{i)) For children with an TEP who axe transitoning out of Head Start to kindergarten,
collaborate with the parents, and the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA,
to ensure steps ate undertaken in a timely and appropriate manner to support the child
and family as they transition to a new setting.

§1302.62 Additional services for parents.

(a) Parents of all children with disabilities.

(1) A program must collaborate with parents of children with disabilities, including but not
limited to children eligible for services under IDEA®, to ensure the needs of their children
are being met, including suppost to help parents become advocates for services that meet
their children’s needs and mformaton and skills to help parents understand their child’s
disability and how to best support the child’s development;

(2) A program must assist parents to access services and resources for their family, including
securing adaptive equipment and devices and supports available through 2 child’s health
insurance or other entities, creating linkages to family suppott programs, and helping parents
establish eligibility for additional support programs, as needed and practicable.

(b) Parents of children eligible for sexvices under IDEA, For parents of children eligible for services
under IDEA, a program mmust also help parents:

(1) Understand the referral, evaluaton, and service amelines required under IDEA;

{2) Actively participate tn the eligibtlity process and IFSP or IEP development process with
the local agency tesponsible for implementing IDEA, including by informing parents of theit
tight to invite the program to participate in all meetings;

(3) Understand the purposes and results of evaliations and services provided under an TFSP
ot IEP; and,

{4) Epsure their children’s needs are accurately identified in, and addressed through, the IFSP
or IEP.

§1302.63 Coordination and collaboration with the local agency
responsible for implementing IDEA.

(2) A program must coordinate with the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA to identify
children entolled or who intend to enroll in a program that may be eligible for services under IDEA,
including through the process described 1n §1302.33(a)(3) and through patticipation in the local
agency Child Find efforts.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, scarting at page 119
50



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.70 — Program Governance

(b) A program must work to develop interagency agreements with the local agency respon sible for
implementing IDEA to imptove service delivery to children eligible for services under IDEA,
including the referral and evaluation process, service coordination, promotion of service provision in
the least restrictive appropriate community-based setting and reduction in dual enrollment which
causes reduced time in a less restrictive setting, and transition services as children move from
services provided under Part C of IDEA to setvices provided under Part B of IDEA and from

preschool to kindergarten.

{c) A program must participate in the development of the IFSP or IEP if requested by the child’s
parents, and the implementation of the IFSP or IEP. At a minimum, the program must offer:

(1) 'To provide relevant information from its scrcenings, assessments, and observations to the
team developing a child’s IFSP or IEP; and,

(2) To participate in meetings with the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA to
develop or review an IEP or IFSP for a child being con sidered for Head Start enrollment, a
currently enrolled child, or a child transitioning from a program.

(d) A program must retain a copy of the IEP or IFSP for any child enrolled in Head Start for the
time the child is in the program, consistent with the IDEA requirements in 34 CFR parts 300 and
303,

Subpart G — Transition Services

§1302.70 Transitions from Early Head Start.

(2) Implementing transition strategies and practices. An Eaily Head Start program must implement

steategies and practices to support successful transitions for children and their families transitioning
out of Early Head Start.

(b) Timing for transitions. To ensuse the most appropriate placement and service following
participation in Early Head Start, such programs must, at least six months priof to each child’s third
birthday, implement transition planning for each child and family that:

(1) Takes into account the child’s developmental level and health and disability status,
progress made by the child and family while in Early Head Stait, current and changing family
circumstances and, the availability of Head Start, other public pre-kindergarten, and other
early education and child development services in the community that will meet the needs of
the child and family; and,

(2) Transitions the child into Head Start or another program as soon as possible after the
child’s third birthday but permits the child to remain in Early Head Start for a limited number
of additional months following the child’s third birthday if necessary for an approprate
transition.

(c) Family collaborations. A program must collaborate with paxents of Eatly Head Start children to
implement strategies and activities that support successful transitions from Early Head Startand, at a

Note: References ate locared in the Appendix, starung at pags 119
51



Program Governance—§1302.7 | 45 CFR Chapter XNl

minimum, provide information about the child’s progress during the ptogram year and provide
strategies for parents to continue their involvement in and advocacy for the education and
development of their child.

(d) Early Head Start and Head Start collaboration. Early Head Start and Head Start programs must
work together to maximize enrollment transitions from Early Head Start to Head Start, consistent
with the eligibility provisions in subpart A, and promote successful transinons through collaboration
and communication.

(€) Transition services for children with an IESP. A program must provide additional transition
services for children with an IFSP, at 2 minimum, as described in subpart F of this part.

§1302.71 Transitions from Head Start to kindergarten.

(a) Implementing transition strategics and practices. A program that serves children who will enter
kindergarten in the following year must implement transition strategies to support a successful
transition to kindergarten.

(b) Family collaborations fot transitions.

(1) A program must collaborate with parents of enrolled children te implement strategies and
activities that will help parents advocate for and promote successful transitions to
kindergarten for their children, including their continued involvement in the education and
development of their child.

(2) At a minimum, such strategies and activities must:
(1) Help patents understand their child’s progress during Head Start;

(i) Help parents understand practices they use to effectively provide academic and social
support for their children during their transition to kindergarten and foster their
continued involvement in the education of their child,;

(iii} Prepare parents to exercise their rights and responsibilities concerning the educadon
of their children in the elementary school setting, inchuding services and suppotts
available to children with disabilities and various options for their child to participate in
language instruction educational programs; and,

{iv) Assist parents in the ongoing communication with teachers and other school
personnel so that parents can patticipate in decisions related to their children’s

educaton.

(¢) Community collaborations for transitions. (1} A program must collaborate with local education
agencies to support family engagement under section 642(b)(13)23 of the Act and state departments
of education, as appropriate, and kindergarten teachers to implement strategies and activities that

Mote: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
52



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.72 — Program Governance

promote successful transitions to kindergarten for children, their families, and the elementary
school.

(2) At a minimum, such strategies and activities must include:

(i) Cootdination with schools ot other appropriate agencies to ensure children’s relevant
records are transferred to the school or next placement in which a child will enroll,
consistent with privacy tequirements in subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter;

(iiy Communication between appropriate staff and their counterparts in the schools to
facilitate continuity of learning and development, consistent with privacy requirements
ty g P P ¥ 1eq

in subpart C of patt 1303 of this chapter; and,

(ifi) Participation, as possible, for joint training and professional development activities
for Head Start and kindergarten teachers and sraff.

(3) A program that does not operate during the summer must collaborate with school districts
to determine the availability of summer school programming for children who will be
entering kindergarten and work with parents and school districts to enroll children in such

progtams, as appropriate.
(d) Learning environment activities. A program must implement strategies and activities in the
Jearning environment that promote successful transitions to kindetgarten for enrolled children, and
at 2 minimurm, include approaches that familiarize children with the transition to kindergarten and
foster confidence about such transition.

(€) Transition services for children with an IEP. A program must provide additional transition
scrvices for children with an IEP, at a minimum, as described in subpart F of this part.

§1302.72 Transitions between programs.

(a) For families and children who move out of the community in which they are currently served,
including homeless families and foster children, a program must undertake efforts to support
effective transitions to other Barly Head Start or Head Start programs. If Eatly Head Start or Head
Start is not available, the program should assist the family to identify another early childhood

program that meets their nccds,

(b) A program that serves children whose families have decided to transition them to other early
education programs, including public pre-kindergarten, in the year prior to kindetgarten entry must
undertake strategies and activites described in §1302.71(b) and (¢)(1) and (2}, as practicable and
appropriate.

(¢} A migrant ot seasonal Head Start program must undertake efforts to support effective transitions

to other migrant or seasonal Head Start oy, if appropriate, Early Head Start or Head Seart programs
for families and children moving out of the community in which they are cutrently served.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
53



B

Program Governance—§1302.82 45 CFR Chapter XIlI

Subpart H — Services to Enrolled Pregnant Women

§1302.80 Enrolled pregnant women.

(a) Within 30 days of enrollment, a program must determine whether each enrolled pregnant woman
has an ongoing source of continuous, accessible health care — provided by a health care professional
that maintains her ongoing health record and is not primarily a source of emetgency ot urgent care ~
and, as appropriate, health insurance coverage.

(b) If an enrolled pregnant woman does not have a source of ongoing care as described it paragraph
{a) of this section and, as appropriate, health tnsurance coverage, a program must, as quickly as
possible, facilitate her access to such a source of care that will meet het needs.

(c) A program must facilitate the ability of all enrolled pregnant women to access comprehensive
services through referrals that, at a minimum, include nutritional counseling, food assistance, oral
health care, mental health services, substance abuse prevention and treatment, and emergency
shelter or transitional housing in cases of domestic violence.

(d) A program must provide a newborn visit with each mother and baby to offer support and
identify family needs. A program must schedule the newborn visit within two weeks after the
infant's birth.

§1302.81 Prenatal and postpartum information, education, and
services.

(a) A program must provide enrolled pregnant women, fathers, and partners or other relevant family
membets the prenatal and postpartam information, education and services that address, as
appropriate, fetal development, the importance of nutrition, the risks of alcohol, drugs, and
smoking, labor and delivery, postpartum recovery, parental depression, infant care and safe sleep
practices, and the benefirs of breastfeeding.

(b) A program must also address needs for appropriate supports for emotonal well-being, nurturing
and responsive caregiving, and father engagement during pregnancy and early childhood.

§1302.82 Family partnership services for enrolled pregnant women.

{a) A program must engage enrolled pregnant women and other relevant family members, such as
fathers, in the family partnership services as described in §1302.52 and include a specific focus on
factors that influence prenatal and postparmim maternal and infant health.

(b} A program must engage enrolled pregnant women and other relevant family members, such as
tathers, in discussions about program options, plan for the infant’s transition to program entollment,
and support the family during the transiuon process, where appropriate.

Nows: References are located in the Appendiz, starting at page 119

54



Administration for Children and Famifies, HHS §1302.90 — Program Governance

Subpart | — Human Resources Management

§1302.90 Personnel policies.

(a) Establishing personnel policies and procedures. A program must establish wtitten personnel
policies and procedurcs that ate approved by the governing body and policy council or policy
committee and that are available to all staff.

(b Backgtound checks and selection procedures.

{1) Before a person is hired, ditectly or through contract, including transpottation staff and
contractors, a program must conduct an interview, vetify references, conduct a sex offender
registry check and obtain one of the following:

(i) State or tribal criminal history records, including fingerptint checks; os,

(ii) Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, including fingerptint
checks.

(2) A program has 90 days after an employec is hired 1o complete the background check
process by obtaining:

(i) Whichever check listed in paragraph (b)(1) of this section was not obtained prior to
the date of hire; and,

(if) Child abuse and neglect state registry check, if available.

(3) A program must review the information found in each employment applicadon and
complete background check to assess the relevancy of any issue uncovered by the complete
background check including any atrest, pending csiminal charge, ot conviction and must use
Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF) disqualification factors described in 42 U.S.C.
9858£(c) (1){D) and 42 U.S.C. 9858f(h}(1)* or tribal disqualifications factors to detetmine
whether the prospective employee can be hired or the cutrent employee must be texminated.

{4) A program must ensure a newly hired employee, consultant, ot conttactor does not have
unsupervised access to children until the complete background check process described in
paragraphs (b}(1) through (3) of this section is complete.

(5) A program must conduct the complete background check for each employee, consultant,
or contractor at least once every five years which must include each of the four checks listed
in paragraphs (b)(1) and (2) of this section, and review and make employment decisions based
on the infoxmation as described in paragraph (b)(3) of this section, unless the program can
demonstrate to the responsible HHS official that it has a more stringent system in place that
will ensure child safety.

{6) A program must consider current and former program pacents for employment vacanaes
for which such patents apply and are qualified.

Note: References are located in she Appendix, suarting at page 119

55



Program Governance— §1302.90 45 CFR Chapter Xl

{¢) Standards of conduct.

{1} A program must ensure all staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers abide by the
program’s standards of conduct that:

{i) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and voluntcers implement positive strategies
to suppott children’s well-being and prevent and address challenging behavior;

(i) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers do not malueat or endanger
the health or safety of children, inchading, at 2 minimum, that staff must not:

(A} Use corporal punishment;

(B} Use isoladon to discipline a child,;

(C) Bind ot tie a child to restrict movement or tape a child’s mouth;

(D} Use or withhold food as a punishment or reward;

(F) Use toilet learning/training methods that punish, demean, or humiliate a child;

(F) Use any form of emotional abuse, including public or private humiliation,
rejecting, terrorizing, extended ignoting, or corrupting a chiid;

(G) Physically abuse a child;

(H) Use any forrn of verbal abuse, including profane, sarcastic language, threats, or
derogatory remarks about the child or child’s family; or,

(I} Use physical activity or outdoor time as a punishment or reward;

(iily Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers respect and promote the
unique identity of each child and family and do not stereotype on any basis, including
gendet, race, ethnicity, culture, religion, disability, sexual orientation, or family
composition;

{iv) Require staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers to comply with program
confidentiality policies concerning personally identifiable information about children,

families, and other staff members in accordance with subpart C of part 1303 of this
chapter and applicable federal, state, local, and tribal laws; and,

{v}Ensure no child is lefi alone or unsupervised by staff, consultants, contractors, ot
volunteers while under their care.

(2) Personnel policies and procedures must include appropriate penalties for staff,
consultants, and volunteers who violate the standards of conduct.

(d) Communication with dual language learners and their families.

(1) A program must ensure staff and program consultants or conuactors are familiar with the
ethnic backgrounds and heritages of tamilies in the program and are able to serve and

Note; References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
56



=,

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.91 — Program Governance

effectively communicate, either directly or through interpretation and translation, with
children who are dual language learness and to the extent feasible, with families with limited
English proficiency.

(2) If 2 majority of children in a class or home-based program speak the same language, at
least one class staff member or home visitor must speak such langnage.

§1302.91 Staff qualifications and competency requirements.

{a) Purpose. A program must ensure all staff, consultants, and contractors engaged in the delivery of
program services have sufficient knowledge, training and experience, and competencies to fulfill the
roles and responsibilities of their positions and to ensure high-quality sexvice delivery in accordance
with the program performance standards. A program must provide ongoing training and
professional development to support staff in fulfilling theit roles and responsibilides.

(b) Early Head Start or Head Start directot. A program must ensure an Farly Head Starc or Head

Start director hired after November 7, 2016, has, at 2 minimum, a baccalaureate degree and
experience in supervision of staff, fiscal management, and administration.

{c) Fiscal officer. A program must assess staffing needs in consideration of the fiscal complexity of
the organization and applicable financial management requirements and secure the regulatly
scheduled or ongoing setvices of a fiscal officer with sufficient education and experience t0 meet
their needs. A program must ensuge a fiscal officet hired after November 7, 2016, is a certified
public accountant or has, ar a minimum, a baccalaureate degree in accounting, business, fiscal

management, ot a related field.

(d) Child and family services management staff qualification requirements.

(1) Family, health, and disabilities management. A program must ensure staff responsible for
management and oversight of family services, health services, and services to children with
disabilities hired after November 7, 2016 have, at a minimum, a baccalaugeate degrec,
preferably related to one or more of the disciplines they oversee.

(2) Education management. As prescribed in section 648A(a}(2)(B)(i)** of the Act, a progtam
must ensute staff and consultants that setve as education managers or coordinatoss, including

those that serve as curriculum specialists, have a baccalaureate or advanced degree in eatly
childhood education or a baccalaureate or advanced degree and equivalent coursework in
eatly childhood education with early education teaching expetience.

(¢) Child and family services staff.

(1) Batly Head Start center-based teacher qualificadon requirements. As prescribed in secton

645 A(h)* of the Act, a progtam must ensure center-based teachers that provide direct
services to infants and toddlers in Barly Head Start centers have a minimum of a Child
Development Associate (CDA) credential or comparable credential, and have been trained or
have equivalent coursework in eatly childhood development with a focus on infant and

toddler development.

Note: References sre located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
57



Program Governance—§1302.21 45 CFR Chapter XllI

(2) Head Start center-based teacher qualification requirements.

(i) The Secretary must ensure no less than fifty percent of all Head Start teachers,
nationwide, have a baccalaureate degree in child development, early childhood
education, or equivalent coursework.

(i) As prescribed in section 648A()(3)(B)” of the Act, a program must ensure all
center-based teachers have at least an associate’s or bachelor's degree in child
development or carly childhood education, equivalent coursework, or otherwise meet
the requirements of section 648A(a)(3)(B) of the Act.

(3) Head Start assistant teacher qualification requitements. As prescribed in secdon
648A(a)(2) (B)(ii)* of the Act, a program must ensure Head Start assistant teachers, at a

minimum, have a2 CIDA credential or a state-awarded certificate that meets or excecds the
requirements for a CIDA credential, are enrolled in a program that will lead to an associate or
baccalanreate degree o, are enrolled in a CDA credential program to be completed within
two years of the time of hire.

(4) Family child care provider qualification requiremetits.

(i) A program must ensure family child care providers have previous catly child carc
experience and, at a minimum, are entolled in a Family Child Care CDA program or
state equivalent, or an associate’s or baccalaureate degree program in child development
or caily childhood education ptior to beginning sexvice provisicn, and for the credential
acquire it within eighteen months of beginning to provide services.

(ily By August 1, 2018, a child development specialist, as required for family child care in
§1302.23 (e}, must have, at a minimum, a baccalaureate degree in child development,
eatly childhood education, or a related field.

(5) Center-based teachers, assistant teachets, and familv child care provider competencies. A

program must ensure center-based teachers, assistant teachers, and family child care providers
demonstrate competency to provide effective and nurturing teacher-child mnteractions, plan
and implement learning expetiences that ensure effective curriculum implementation and use
of assessment and promote children’s progress across the standatds described in the Head
Start Early Learning Qutcomes Framework: Ager Birth to Five and applicable state early leatning and
development standards, including for children with disabilities and dual language learners, as
appropriate.

{6) Home wisitors. A program must ensure home visitors providing home-based education
services:

{1i) Have a minimum of 2 home-based CIDA credential or comparable credential, or
equivalent coursework as part of an associate’s or bachelor's degree; and,

(if) Demonstrate competency to plan and implement home-based learning expetiences
that ensure effective implementation of the home visiting curniculum and promote

Mote: References are located in the Appendiy, starting at page 113
58



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.92 — Program Governance

childten’s progress across the standards described in the Head Start Early Learning
Outcomes Framework.: Ages Birth to Five, including for children with disabilities and dual
language learnets, as appropriate, and to build respectful, culturally responsive, and
trusting relationships with families,

(7) Family services staff qualification requirements. A program must ensute staff who work
directly with families on the family partnership process hired after November 7, 2016, have

within eighteen months of hire, at a minimum, a credential ot certification in social work,
human services, family services, counseling or 2 related field.

(8) Health professional qualification fequirements.

() A program must ensure health procedures are performed only by a licensed or
certified health professional.

(i) A program must ensure all mental heaith consultants are licensed or certified mental
health professionals. A program must use mental health consultants with knowledge of
and expezience in serving young children and their families, if available i the
COMMUIILY.

(iii) A program must use staff or consultants to support nutrition services who are
registered dieticians or nutritionists with appropriate qualifications.

(f) Coaches. A program must ensute coaches providing the services described in 1302.92(c) have a
minimum of a baccalaureate degree in eatly childhood education or a related field.

§1302.92 Training and professional development.

(a) A program must provide to all new staff, consultants, and volunteers an oricntation that focuses
on, at 2 minimum, the goals and underlying philosophy of the program and on the ways they are
implemented.

(b) A program must establish and implement a systematic approach to staff training and professional
development designed to assist staff in acquiring or increasing the knowledge and skills needed to
provide high-quality, comprehensive services within the scope of their job responsibilities, and
attached to academic credit as appropriate, At a minimum, the system must include:

(1) Staff completing 2 minimum of 15 clock hours of professional development per year. For
teaching staff, such professional development must meet the requirements described in
section 648A(@)(5)” of the Act.

(2) Training on methods to handle suspected or known child abuse and neglect cases, that
comply with applicable federal, state, local, and tribal laws;

(3) Training for child and family services staff on best practices for implementing family
engagement strategies in a systemic way, as described throughout this part;

Note: Refercnces are located in the Appendix, stardogat page 119
59



Program Governance—§1302.92 45 CFR Chapter XIHi

{4) Training for child and family services staff, including staff that work on family services,
health, and disabilitics, that builds their knowledge, experience, and competencies to improve
child and family outcomes; and,

(5) Research-based approaches to professional development for education staff, that are
focused on effective curticula implementation, knowledge of the content in Head Start Early
Learning Qutcontes Framework: Ages Birth o Frve, partnering with families, supporting children
with disabilities and their families, providing effecuve and nurturing adult-child interactions,
supporting dual language learners as appropriate, addressing challenging behaviors, preparing
children and {amilies for transitions (as described in subpart G of this part), and use of data to
individualize learning experiences to improve outcomes for all children,

(c) A program must implement a research-based, coordinated coaching strategy for education staff
that:

(1) Assesses all education staff to identify strengths, areas of needed support, and which staff
would benefit most from mntensive coaching;

(2) At a minimum, provides opportunities for intensive coaching to those education staff
identified through the process in paragraph (c){1) of this sectlon, including opportunities to
be observed and receive feedback and modeling of effective teacher practices direcdy related
to program performance goals;

(3} At a minimum, provides opportunities for education staft not identified for intensive
coaching through the process in paragraph (c)(1) of this section to receive other forms of
research-based professional development aligned with program performance goals;

{4} Ensutes intensive coaching opportunities for the staff identified through the process in
paragraph (c){(1) of this section that:

(i) Align with the program’s school readiness goals, curricula, and other approaches to
professional development;

(i) Udlize a coach with adequate training and experience in adult learning and in using
assessment data to drive coaching strategies aligned with program petformance goals;

(iii) Provide ongoing communication between the coach, program director, education
ditectot, and any other relevant staff; and,

(iv) Include clearly articulated goals informed by the program’s goals, as described in
§1302.102, and a process for achicving those goals; and,

(5) Establishes policies that ensure assessment results are not used to solely determine
punitive actions for staff identified as needing support, without providing dme and resources
for staff to improve.

Note: References acs locaved in the Appendix, starting at page 119

60



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.101 — Program Governance

(d} If a program needs to develop or significantly adapt their approach to research-based
professional development to betier meet the training needs of education staff, such that it does not
include the requirements in paragraph (¢} of this section, the program must parter with external
eatly childhood education professional development experts. A program must assess whether the
adaptation adequately supports staff professional development, consistent with the process laid out

in subpatt | of this part.
§1302.93 Staff health and wellness.

(a) A program must ensure each staff member has an initial health examination and a petiodic
re-examination as recommended by their health care provider in accordance with state, tribal, or
local requirements, that include screeners or tests for communicable diseases, as approptiate. The
program must ensure staff do not, because of communicable diseases, pose a significant nisk to the
health or safety of others in the program that cannot be eliminated or reduced by reasonable
accommodation, in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and section 504 of the

Rehabilitation Actl18.

(b) A program must make mental health and wellness information available to staff regarding health
issues that may affect their job performance, and must provide regularly scheduled opportunitdes to
Jearn about mental health, wellness, and health education.

§1302.94 Volunteers.

(2) A program must ensure regular volunteers have been screened for appropriate communicable
diseases in accordance with state, ttibal or local laws. In the absence of state, tribal or local law, the
Health Services Advisory Committee must be consulted regatding the need for such screenings.

(b} A program must ensure children are never left alone with volunteers.
Subpart ] — Program Management and Quality Improvement

§1302.100 Purpose.

A program must provide management and a process of ongoing monitoting and continuous
improvement for achieving progtam goals that ensures child safety and the delivery of effective,

high-quality program setvices.
§1302.101 Management system.

(a) Implementation. A program must implement a management system that:

(1) Ensures a program, fiscal, and human resource management structure that provides
effective management and oversight of all program areas and fiduciary responsibilities to
enable delivery of high-quality services in all of the program services descyibed in subparts C,
D, E, F, G, and H of this parr;

Noie; References are located in the Appendix, starting a1 page 119
61



Program Governance— §1302.101 45 CFR Chapter XIlI

_ (2) Provides regular and ongoing supervision to support individual staff professional
development and continuous program quality improvement;

{3) Ensures budget and staffing patterns that promote continuity of care for all children
enrolled, allow sufficient time for staff to participate in approptiate training and professional
development, and allow for provision of the full range of services described in subparts C, D,
E, F, G, and H of this part; and,

(4) Maintains an automated accounting and record keeping system adequate for effective
oversight.

(b) Coordinated approaches. At the beginning of each program year, and on an ongoing basis
throughout the year, a program must design and implement program-wide coordinated approaches

that ensute;

(1) The training and professional development system, as described in §1302,92, effectively
supports the delivery and contnuous improvement of high-quality services;

(2) The full and effective pardcipadon of children who are dual language learners and their
families, by

(i) Udlizing information from the program’s community assessment about the languages
spoken throughout the program service area to anticipate child and family needs;

(i) Identifying community resources and establishing ongoing collaborative
relationships and partnerships with community organizations censistent with the
requirements in §1302.53(2); and,

(iii) Systematically and comprchensively addressing child and family needs by facilitating
meaningful access to program services, including, at 2 minimum, curricutum,
instruction, staffing, supetvision, and family partnesships with bilingual staff, oral
language assistance and interpretation, or translation of essential program materials, as
appropriate.

{3) The full and effective participation of all children with disabilities, including but not
limited to children eligible for services under IDEA, by providing services with appropriate
facilitics, program materials, cutriculum, instruction, staffing, supervision, and partnerships, at
a minimum, consistent with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Ameticans with

Disabilites Act™®; and,

{4) The management of program data to effectively support the availability, usability, integrity,
and security of data. A program must establish procedures on data management, and have
them approved by the governing body and policy council, in areas such as quality of data and
cffective use and sharing of data, while protecting the privacy of child records in accordance
with subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter and applicable federal, state, local, and ttibal Jaws.

Note: References arg located in the Appendix, standng at page 119
62



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.102 — Program Governance

§1302.102 Achieving program goals.

(2) Establishing program goals. A program, in collaboration with the governing body and policy
council, must establish gozls and measurable objectives that include:

(1) Strategic long-term goals for ensuring programs are and remain responsive to community
needs as identified in their community assessment as described in subpart A of this paxt;

(2) Goals for the provision of educational, health, nutritional, and family and community
engagement program services as described in the program petformance standatds to further
promote the school readiness of enrolled children;

(3} School readiness goals that are aligned with the Head Start Early Learning Outconses
Framework: Ages Birth io Five, state and tribal eatly learning standards, as apptoptiate, and
requitemnents and expectations of schools Head Start children will attend, per the
tequitements of subpatt B of part 1304 of this part; and,

(4) Effective health and safety practices to ensure children are safe at all times, per the
requirements in §§1302.47, 1302.90(b) and (¢), 1302.92(c)(1), and 1302.94 and part 1303

subpart F, of this chapter.

(b) Monitoring program performance.

(1) Ongoing iance oversight and correction. In order to ensure effective ongoing
oversight and cotrection, a program must establish and implement a system of ongoing
oversight that ensures effective implementation of the program performance standards,
including ensuring child safety, and other applicable federal regulations as desctibed in this
patt, and must:

(i) Collect and use data to inform this process;
(il Correct quality and compliance issues immediately, or as quickly as possible;

(iiiy Work with the governing body and the policy council to addtess issues duting the
ongoing oversight and cotrection process and during federal oversight; and,

(iv) Implement procedures that prevent recurrence of prcvious quality and compliance
issues, including previously identified deficiencies, safety incidents, and audit findings.

(2) Ongoing assessment of program goals. A program must effectively oversee progress
towards program goals on an ongoing basis and annually must:

(i) Conduct a self-assessment that uses program data including aggregated child
assessment data, and professional development and parent and family engagement data
as appropriate, to evaluate the program’s progress towards meeting goals established
under patagtaph (a} of this section, compliance with ptogram performance standards
throughout the program yeat, and the cffectiveness of the professional development
and family engagement systems in promoting school readiness;

Note: References are locared in the Appendix, startiog at page 119

63



Program Governance— §1302.102 45 CFR Chapter X!

(i) Communicate and collaborate with the governing body and policy council, program
staff, and parents of enrolled children when conducting the annual sclf-assessment; and,

(ii1) Submit findings of the self-assessment, including information listed in paragraph (b)
(2)(i) of this secton to the responsible HHS official.

(¢} Using data for continuous improvement.

(1) A program must implement a process for using data to identify program strengths and

needs, develop and implement plans that address program needs, and continually evaluate

compliance with program performance standards and progtess towards achieving program
goals described in paragraph (a) of this section.

(2) This ptocess must:

{© Ensure data is aggregated, analyzed and compared in such a way to assist agencies in
identifying risks and informing strategies for continuous improvement in all program
Service areas;

(i} Ensure child-level assessment data is aggregated and analyzed at least three imes a
year, including for sub-groups, such as dual language learners and children with
disabilities, as approptiate, except in programs operating fewer than 90 days, and used
with other program data desctibed in paragraph (€)(2){iv) of this section to direct
continuons improvement related to curricalum choice and implementation, teaching
practices, professional development, program design and other program decisions,
including changing or targeting scope of services; and,

() For programs operating fewer than 90 days, ensures child assessment data is
aggregated and analyzed at least twice during the program operating period, including
for subgroups, such as dual language learners and children with disabilites, as
apptopriate, and used with other program data described in paragraph (c}(2)(iv) of this
section to direct continuous improvement related to curriculum choice and
impleinentation, teaching practices, professional development, program design and
other program decisions, inclading changing or targeting scope of services;

(iv} Use informaton from ongoing monitoring and the annual seif-assessment, and
program data on teaching practice, staffing and professional development, child-level
asscssments, family needs assessments, and comprehensive services, to identify program
needs, and develop and implement plans for program improvement; and,

(v) Use program improvement plans as needed to either strengthen or adjust content
and strategies for professional development, change program scope and services, refine
school readiness and other program goals, and adapt strategies to better address the
needs of sub-groups.

Note: Referances are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
64



4-..._,\.“ .

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.103 — Program Governance

{d) Reporting.
(1) A program must submit:

() Status reports, determined by ongoing ovetsight data, to the governing body and
policy council, at least semi-annually;

(i) Reports, as appropriate, to the responsible HHS official immediately or 2s soon as
practicable, related to any significant incidents affecting the health and safety of
program patticipants, circumstances affecting the financial viability of the program,
breaches of personally identifiable information, or program involvement in legal
proceedings, any matter for which notification or a report to state, tribal, or local
authorities is required by applicable law, including at a minimum:

(A) Any reports regarding agency staff or volunteer compliance with federal, state,
tribal, or local Jaws addressing child abuse and neglect or laws governing sex
offenders;

(B) Incidents that require classrooms or centers to be closed for any reason;

(C) Legal proceedings by any party that are directly telated to programn operations;
and,

(D) All conditions requited to be reported under §1304.12, including
disqualification from the Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) and

license revocatonn.

(2) Annually, a progtam must publish and disseminate a report that complies with section
644(2)(2y" of the Act and includes a summary of a program’s most 1ecent community
assessment, as described in §1302.11(b), consistent with privacy protections in subpart C of

part 1303 of this chapter.

(3) If a program has had a deficiency identified, it must submit, to the responsible HHS
official, a quality improvement plan as required in section 641A(c}(2 M of the Act.

§1302.103 Implementation of program performance standards.

(a) A current program as of November 7, 2016, must implement a program-wide approach for the
effective and timely implemcntation of the changes to the program performance standards,
including the purchase of matetials and allocation of staff time, as appropriate.

(b) A program’s approach to implement the changes included in pasts 1301 through 1304 of this
chapter must ensure adequate preparation for effective and timely service delivery to children and
their families including, at a minimum, review of community assessment data to determine the most
appropriate strategy for implementing required program changes, including assessing any changes in
the number of children who can be served, as necessary, the purchase of and training on any
curricnlum, assessment, or other materials, 25 needed, assessment of program-wide professional
development needs, assessment of staffing patterns, the development of coordinated approaches

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting ac page 119

65



Program Governance—§1302.103 45 CFR Chapter XIIt

described in §1302.101(b), and the development of approptiate protections for data sharing; and
children enrolled i the program on November 7, 2016 are not displaced during a program year and
that children leaving Early Head Start or Head Start at the end of the program year following
November 7, 2016 as a result of any slot reductions received services described in §§1302.70 and
1302.72 to facilitate successful transitions to other programs.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starding at page 119

66



Administration for Childrenand Famiiies, HHS §1303 — Program Governance

§ 1303 — Financial and Administrative
Requirements

Section
1303.1 QOverview.

Subpart A — Financial Requirements

13032  Purpose.

1303.3  Other requitcments.

13034  Federal financial assistance, non-federal match, and waiver requirements.
1303.5  Limitations on development and administrative costs.

Subpart B — Administrative Requirements
130310 Purpose.

1303.11 Limitations and prohibitions.
1303.12 Insurance and bonding.

Subpart C — Protections for the Privacy of Child Records
1303.20 Establishing procedures.

1303.21 Program procedures ~ applicable confidentiality provisions
1303.22 Disclosures with, and without, parental consent.

130323 Parental nghts.

1303.24 Maintaining records.

Subpart D — Delegation of Program Operations

1303.30 Grantee responsibility and accountabihity.

1303.31 Determining and establishing delegate agencies.

1303.32 Ewvaluations and cortective actons for delegate agencies.
1303.33 Termination of delegate agencies.

Subpart E — Facilities

1303.40 Purpose.

1303.41 Approval of previously purchased facilities.

1303.42 Eligibility to putchase, construct, and rencvate facilities.
130343 Use of grant funds to pay fees.

130344 Applications to purchase, construct, and renovate facilides.
1304.45 Cost-comparison to purchase, construct, and renovate facilities.
1303.46 Recording and posting notices of federal interest.

1303.47 Contents of notices of federal interest.

1303.48 Grantee limitations on federal interest.

130349 Protecdon of federal interest in mortgage agreements.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, siarting at page 11%
67



Program Governance—§1303.2 45 CFR Chapter Xill

1303.50 ‘Third party leases and occupancy arrangements.
1303.51 Subordination of the federal interest.

1303.52 Lnsurance, bonding, and maintenance.

1303.53 Copies of documents,

1303.54 Record retention.

1303.55 Procurement procedures. 1303.56 Inspection of work.

Subpart F — Transportation
1303.70  Purpose.

1303.71 Vehicles.

1303.72  Vehicle operation.
1303.73  Trp routing.

1303.74  Safety procedutes.
1303.75 Children with disabilities.

AUTHORITY: 42 US.C. 9801 et seq.

§1303.1 Overview.

Section 641A of the Act requires that the Secretary modify as necessary program performance
standards including administrative and financial management standards (section 641A(2)(1)(C)). This
part specifies the financial and administrative requirements of agencies. Subpart A of this part
outlines the financial requirements consistent with sections 640(b} and 644(b) and (c} of the Act,
Subpart B of this part specities the administrative requirements consistent with sections 644(a)(1),
644(e), 653, 654, 655, 656, and 657A of the Act. Subpart C of this part implements the statutory
provision at section 641A{(b}{4) of the Act that directs the Secretary to ensure the confidentiality of
any personally identifiable data, information, and tecords collected ot maintained. Subpart D of this
part prescribes regulations for the operation of delegate agencies consistent with Section 641(A){(d).
Subpart E of this part implements the statutory requirements in Section 644(c), (f) and (g) related to
facilities. Subpart F prescribes regulations on transportation consistent with section 640(i) of the
Act.

Subpart A — Financial Requirements

§1303.2 Purpose.

'This subpart establishes regulations applicable o program administration and grants management
for all grants under the Act.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
68



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.5 — Program Governance

§1303.3 Other requirements.

The following chart includes HHS regulations that apply to all grants made under the Act:

Cite Title
45 CFR part 16 Department grant appeals process
45 CFR part 30 HHS Standards and Procedures for Claims collection
| 45 CFR part 46 Protection of human subjects - J
Cite Title |
45 CFR part 75 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards
Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance through the

45 CFR part 80 Department of Health and Human Services- Effectuation of title VI and Vil of |
the Civil Rights Act of 1964 |

45 CFR part 81 Practice and procedure for hearings under part 80 -

45 CFR part 84 Nendiscrimination on the basis of handicap in federally assisted programs

45 CFR part 87 Equa! treatment for faith based organizations

2 CFR part 170 FFATA Sub-aw;ri and executive compensation N

2 CFR25.110 CCR/DUNS requirement B N

§1303.4 Federal financial assistance, non-federal match, and waiver
requirements.

In accordance with section 640(b)*? of the Act, federal financial assistance to a grantee will not
exceed 80 percent of the approved total program costs. A grantee must contribute 20 percent as
non-federal match each budget period. The responsible HHS official may approve a waiver of all or
a portion of the non-federal match requirement on the basis of the grantec’s wyitten application
submitted for the budget period and any supporting evidence the responsible HHS official requires.

In deciding whether to grant a waiver, the responsible HHS official will consider the circumnstances
specified at section 640(b) of the Act and whether the grantee has made a reasonable effort to
comply with the non-federal match requirement.

§1303.5 Limitations on development and administrative costs.

(a) Limitations.

(1) Costs to develop and administet a program cannot be excessive or exceed 15 percent of
the total approved progeam costs. Allowable costs to develop and administer 2 Head Start
program cannot exceed 15 percent of the total approved program costs, which includes both

Naote: References ase located in the Appendix, stardng at page 119
69



Program Governance—§1303.10 45 CFR Chapter Xlil

federal costs and non-federal match, unless the responsible HHS official grants a waiver
under paragraph (b} of this section that apptoves a higher percentage in otdet to catry out the
putposes of the Act.

(2) To assess total program costs and determine whether a grantee meets this requirement,
the grantee must:

(i) Determine the costs to develop and administer its program, including the local costs
of necessaty resources;

(1i) Categorize total costs as development and administrative ot program costs;

(i) Identify and allocate the portion of dual benefits costs that are for development and
administration;

{iv) Identify and allocate the portion of inditect costs that are for development and
administration versus program costs; and,

(v}Delincare all development and administrative costs in the grant application and
calculate the percentage of total approved costs allocated to development and
administration.

(b) Waivers.

(1) The responsible HHS official may grant a waiver for each budget petiod if 2 delay or
disruption to program services is cansed by circumstances beyond the agency’s control, or if
an agency is unable to administer the program within the 15 percent limitation and if the
agency can demonstrate efforts to reduce its development and administrative costs.

(2) If at any time within the grant funding cycle, a grantee estimates development and
administration costs will exceed 15 percent of total approved costs, it must submit a wajver
request to the responsible HHS official that explains why costs exceed the limit, that indicates
the time period the waiver will cover, and that describes what the grantee will do to reduce its
development and administrative costs to comply with the 15 petcent limit after the waiver
period.

Subpart B — Administrative Requirements

§1303.10 Purpose.

A grantee must observe standards of organization, management, and administration that will ensure,
so far as reasonably possible, that all program activities are conducted in 2 manner consistent with
the purposes of the Act and the objective of providing assistance effecuvely, efficiendy, and free of
any taint of partisan political bias or personal or family favoritism.

Naote; References are located in the Appendiz, starting at page 119
70



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.22 — Program Governance

§1303.1 Limitations and prohibitions.

An agency must adhere to sections 644(c)”, 644(2)(3)¥, 653%, 654%, 655%, 656", and 657A™ of the
Act. These sections pertain to union organizing, the Davis-Bacon Act, limitations on compensation,
non-discrimination, unlawful activities, political activities, and obtaining parental consent.

§1303.12 Insurance and bonding.

An agency must have an ongoing process to identify risks and have cost-effective insurance for
those identified risks; a grantee must require the same for its delegates. The agency must specifically
consider the risk of accidental injury to children while participating in the program. The grantee
must submit proof of appropriate coverage in its initial apptlication for funding. The process of
identifying risks must also consider the risk of losses resulting from fraudulent acts by individuals
authorized to disburse Head Start funds. Consistent with 45 CFR part 75%, if the agency lacks
sufficient coverage to protect the federal government’s interest, the agency must maintain adequate

fidelity bond coverage.

Subpart C — Protections for the Privacy of Child Records

§1303.20 Establishing procedures.

A program must establish procedures to protect the confidentiality of any personally identifiable
information (PID) in child records.

§1303.21 Program procedures — applicable confidentiality provisions.

(a) ¥f a program is an educational agency or institution that receives funds under a program
administered by the Department of Education and therefore is subject to the confidentiality
provisions under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), then it must comply with
those confidentiality provisions of FERPA instead of the provisions in this subpart.

(b) If a program serves a child who is referred to, ot found eligible for services under, IDEA, then a
program must comply with the applicable confidentiality provisions in Part B or Part C of IDEA"
to protect the PIT in records of those children, and, therefore, the provisions in this subpart do not
apply to those children.

§1303.22 Disclosures with, and without, parental consent.

(a) Disclosute with parental consent.

(1) Subject to the exceptions in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, the procedures to
protect PIT must requite the program to obtain a parent’s written consent befote the program
may disclose such PII from child records.

HNote: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 112
71



Program Governance—§1303.22 45 CFR Chapter X1l

(2) The procedures to protect PII must require the program to ensure the parent’s written
consent specifies what child records may be disclosed, explains why the records will be
disclosed, and identifies the party or class of parties to whom the records may be disclosed.
The written consent must be signed and dated.

(3) “Signed and dated written consent” under this part may include a record and signature in

electronic form that

(i) Identifies and authenticates a particular person as the source of the electronic
consent; and,

(i} Indicates such person's approval of the information.

(4) The program must explain to the parent that the granting of consent is voluntary on the
part of the parent and may be revoked at any time. If a parent revokes consent, that
revocation is not retroactive and therefore it does not apply to an action that occurred before

the consent was revoked.

(b) Disclosure without parental consent but with parental notice and opportunity to refuse. The

procedures to protect PII must allow the program to disclose such PII from chuld records without
parental consent if the program notifies the parent about the disclosure, provides the parent, upon
the parent’s request, a copy of the PII from child records to be disclosed in advance, and gives the
parent an opportunity to challenge and refuse disclosure of the information in the records, before
the program forwards the records to officials at a program, school, or school district in which the
child secks or intends to enroll or where the child is already enrolled so long as the disclosure is
related to the child's enrollment or transfer.

(¢) Disclosure without parental consent. The procedures to protect PII must allow the program to

disclose such PII from child records without parental consent to

(1) Officials within the program or acting for the program, such as contractors and
subtrecipients, if the official provides setvices for which the program would otherwise use
employees, the program determines it is necessary for Head Start services, and the program
maintains oversight with respect to the use, further disclosure, and mamntenance of child
recotds, such as through a written agrecment;

{2) Officials within the program, acting for the program, or from a federal or state entity, in
connection with an audit or evaluadon of education or child development programs, ot fox
enforcement of or compliance with federal legal requirements of the program; provided the
program maintains oversight with respect to the use, further disclosure, and maintenance of
child records, such as through a written agreement, including the destruction of the PII when
no longer needed for the purpose of the disclosure, except when the disclosure is specifically
authorized by federal law or by the responsible HHS official;

(3) Officials within the program, acting for the program, or from a federal or state entity, to
conduct a study to improve child and family outcomes, including improving the quality of

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
72



P

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.22 — Program Governance

programs, for, or on behalf of, the program, provided the program maintains oversight with
respect to the use, further disclosure, and maintenance of child records, such as through a
written agreement, including the destruction of the PIT when no longer needed for the
purpose of the disclosure;

(4) Appropriate parties in order to address a disaster, health or safety emergency during the
period of the emeigency, or a serous health and safety risk such as a serious food allergy, if
the program determines that disclosing the PII from child records is necessaty 1o protect the
health ot safety of children or other persons;

(5) Comply with a judicial order or lawfully issved subpoena, provided the program makes a
reasonable ¢ffort to notify the patenc about all such subpoenas and coutt orders in advance of
the compliance therewith, unless:

() A court has ordered that neither the subpoena, its contents, nor the information
provided in response be disclosed;

(i) The disclosure is in compliance with an ex parte court order obtained by the United
States Attorney General (or designee not lower than 20 Assistant Attorney General)
concerning investigations or prosecutions of an offense listed in 18 US.C..
2332b(g)(5)(B) or an act of domestic or international terrotism as defined in 18 U.S.C.

2331.

(iii) A parent is a party to a court proceeding directly involving child abuse and neglect
(as defined in section 3 of the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act (42 U.S.C,
5101)" or dependency mattets, and the order is issued in the context of that
proceeding, additional notice to the parent by the program is not required; or,

(iv) A program initiates legal action against a parent or a patent initiates legal action
against a program, then a program may disclose to the coutrt, also without a court order
or subpoena, the child records relevant for the program to act as plaintiff or defendant.

(6) The Secretary of Agriculture or an authorized representative from the Food and Nutsition
Service to conduct program monitoting, evaluations, and performance measurements for the
Child and Adult Care Food Program under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch
Act ot the Child Nutrition Act of 1966, if the results will be reported in an aggregate form
that does not identify any individual: provided, that any data collected must be protected in 2
manner that will not permit the personal identification of students and their parents by other
than the authorized representatives of the Secretary of Agriculture and any PII must be
destroyed when the data are no longer needed fot program monitoring, evaluations, and
performance measurements;

(7} A caseworker or other reptesentative from a state, local, or tribal child welfare agency,
who has the right to access a case plan for a child who is in foster care placement, when such
agency is legally responsible for the child's care and protection, under state or tribal law, if the
agency agrees in writing to protect PIL, to use information from the child’s case plan for

Nore: References aze located in the Appendix, starting at page 119

73



Program Governance~ §1303.23 45 CFR Chapter Xl

specific purposes intended of addressing the child's needs, and to destroy information that is
no longer needed for those purposes; and,
(8) Appropriate parties in order to address suspected or known child malereatment and is
consistent with applicable federal, state, local, and tribal laws on reporting child abuse and
neglect.

(d) Wiritten agreements. When a program establishes a written agreement with a third party, the

procedutes to protect such PIT must require the program to annually review and, if necessaty,
update the agreement, If the third party violates the agreement, then the program may:

(1) Provide the third party an opportunity to self-cortect; o,
(2) Prohibit the third party from access to records for a set period of time as established by
the programs governing body and policy council.

(e) Annual notice. The procedures to protect PII must require the program to annually notify
parents of their rights in writing described in this subpart and applicable definitions in patt 1305 of
this chapter, and include in that notice a description of the types of PII that may be disclosed, to
whom the PII may be disclosed, and what may constitute a necessary reason for the disclosure
without parental consent as described in paragraph (c) of this section.

(fy Limit on disclosing PII. A program must only disclose the information that is deemed necessary
tor the purpose of the disclosure.

§1303.23 Parental rights.

(a) Inspect record,
(1) A parent has the right to inspect child records.

(2) If the parent requests to inspect child records, the program must make the child records
available within a reasonable time, but no mote than 45 days after receipt of request,

(3) If a program muaintains child records that contain information on mote than one child, the
program must ensute the parent only inspects infotmation that pertains to the parent’s child.

(4) The program shall not destroy a child tecord with an outstanding request to inspect and
review the record under this section.

(b) Amend record.
(1) A parent has the right to ask the program to amend information in the child tecord that

the parent believes is inaccurate, misleading, or violates the child’s privacy.

{2} The program must consider the parent’s request and, if the request is denied, tender a
written decision to the parent within a reasonable time that informs the parent of the right to

a hearing,

Note: References ace located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
74



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.24 — Program Governance

(c) Hearing.
(1) If the parent tequests a heating to challenge information in the child record, the program
must schedule a hearing within a reasonable time, notify the parent, in advance, about the
hearing, and ensure the person who conducts the hearing does not have a direct interest in its

outcome.

{2) The program must ensure the hearing affords the parent a full and fair opportunity to
present evidence relevant to the issues.

(3) If the program detcrmines from evidence presented at the hearing that the information in
the child records is inaccurate, misleading, ot violates the child’s privacy, the program must
either amend or remove the information and notify the parent in writing,

(4) If the program determines from evidence presented at the hearing that informadon in the
child records is accurate, does not mislead, or otherwise does not violate the child’s privacy,
the program must inform the parent of the right to place a statement in the child records that
cither comments on the contested information or that states why the parent disagrees with
the program’s decision, or both. i

(d) Right to copy of record. The program must provide a patent, free of charge, an initial copy of
child records disclosed to third parties with parental consent and, upon parent request, an initial
copy of child recotds disclosed to third parties, unless the disclosure was for a court that ordered
neither the subpoena, its contents, nor the information furnished in response be disclosed.

(¢) Right to inspect written agreements. A patent has the right to review any written agreements with
third parties.

§1303.24 Maintaining records.

(@) A program must maintain child records in 2 manner that ensures only parents, and officials
within the program or acting on behalf of the program have access, and such records must be
destroyed within a reasonable timeftame after such records are no longer needed or required to be
maintained.

(b) A program must maintain, with the child records, for as long as the records are maintained,
information on all individuals, agencies, or organizations to whom a disclosure of PII from the child
records was made (except for program officials and parents) and why the disclosute was made. If 2
program uses a web-based data system to maintain child records, the program must ensure such
child records are adequately protected and maintained zccording to cutrent industry security

standards.

(c) If a parent places a statement in the child record, the program must maintain the statement with

the contested part of the child record for as long as the program maintains the record and, disclose
the staternent whenever it discloses the pottion of the child record to which the statement relates.

Note: References arc lorated in the Appendix, starting at page 119
75



Program Governance—§1303.40 45 CFR Chapter Xl

Subpart D — Delegation of Program Operations

§1303.30 Grantee responsibility and accountability.

A grantee is accountable for the services its delegate agencies provide. The grantee supports,
oversees and ensures delegate agencies provide high-quality services to children and families and
meet all applicable Head Start requitements. The grantee can only terminate a delegate agency if the
grantee shows cause why termination is necessary and provides a process for delegate agencies to
appeal termination decisions. The grantee retains legal responsibility and authotity and bears
financial accountability for the program when services are provided by delegate agencies,

§1303.31 Determining and establishing delegate agencies.

(a) If 2 grantee enters into an agreement with another entity to serve children, the grantee must
determine whether the agreement meets the definition of “delegate agency” in section 637(3)42 of

the Act.

b) A grantee must not award a delegate agency federal financial assistance unless there is a written
agreement and the responsible HHS official approves the agreement before the grantee delegates
program operations.

§1303.32 Evaluations and corrective actions for delegate agencies.

A grantee must evaluate and ensure corrective action for dclegate agencies according to section

641A(d)43 of the Act.

§1303.33 Termination of delegate agencies.

(a) If a grantee shows cause why termination is appropriate or demonstrates cost effectiveness, the
grantee may teeminate 2 delegate agency’s contract.

(b) The grantee’s decision to terminate imust not be arbitrary or capricious.

{c) The grantee must establish a process for defunding a delegate agency, including an appeal of a
defunding decision and must ensure the process is fair and timely.

(d) The grantee must notify the responsible HHS official about the appeal and its decision.
Subpart E — Facilities

§1303.40 Purpose.

This subpart prescribes what a grantee must establish to show it is eligible to purchase, construct
and renovate facilities as outlined in section 644(c), (f) and (g)* of the Act. It explains how a

Note: References are located in the Appendix, scarting at page 119
76



an,

e

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.43 — Program Governance

grantee may apply for funds, details what measures a grantee must take to protect federal interestin
facilities purchased, constructed ot tenovated with grant funds, and concludes with other
administrative provisions. This subpart applies to major renovations. It only applies to minor
renovations and repairs, when they ate included with a purchase application and ate part of purchase

COsIs.

§1303.41 Approval of previously purchased facilities.

If a grantee purchased a facility after December 31, 1986, and seeks to nse grant funds to continue
to pay purchase costs for the facility ot to refinance current indebtedness and use grant funds to
service the resulting debt, the grantee may apply for funds to meet those costs. The grantee must
submit an application that conforms to requirements in this part and in the Act to the responsible
HHS official. If the responsible HHS official approves the grantee’s application, Head Start funds
may be used to pay ongoing purchase costs, which include principal and interest on approved loans. -

§1303.42 Eligibility to purchase, construct, and renovate facilities.

(a} Prcliminary eligibility.

(1) Before a grantee can apply for funds to purchase, construct, or renovate a facility under
§1303.44, it must establish that:

{{) The facility will be available to Indian tribes, or rural or other low-income
commutes;

(ii) The proposed purchase, construction ot major renovation is within the grantee’s
designated service area; and,

(iii) The proposed purchase, construction of major renovation is necessary because the
lack of suitable facilities in the grantee’s service area will inhibit the operation of the

program.

(2) If 2 program applies to construet a facility, that the construction of such facility is more
cost-cffective than the purchase of available facilities or renovation,

(b} Proving a lack of suitable facilities. To satisfy paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this section, the grantee
must have a written statement from an independent real estate professional familiar with the

commercial real estate market in the grantee’s service area, that includes factors considered and
supports how the real estate professional determined there are no other suitable facilities in the area.

§1303.43 Use of grant funds to pay fees.

A grantee may submit a written request to the responsible HHS official for reasonable fees and costs
necessary to determine preliminaty eligibility under §1303.42 before it submits an application under
§1303.44. If the responsible HHS official approves the grantee’s application, the grantee may use
federal funds to pay fees and costs.

MNote: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
7



Program Governance—§1303.44 45 CFR Chapter Xl

§1303.44 Applications to purchase, construct, and renovate facilities.

(a) Application requirements. If a grantee is preliminarily eligible under §1303.42 to apply for funds
to purchase, construct, or renovate a facility, it must submit to the responsible HHS official:

(1) A statement that explains the anticipated effect the proposed purchase, construction ot
renovation has had or will have on program enrollment, activitics and services, and how it
determined what the anticipated effect would be;

(2) A deed or other document showing legal ownership of the real property where facilities
activity is proposed, legal description of the facility site, and an explanation why the location
is appropriate for the grantee’s service area;

(3) Plans and specifications for the facility, including square footage, structure type, the
number of rooms the facility will have or has, how the rooms will be used, where the
structure will be positioned or located on the building site, and whether there is space
available for outdoor play and for parking;

{(4) Certification by a licensed engineer or architect that the facility is, or will be upon-
completion, structurally sound and safe for use as a Head Start facility and that the facility
complies, ot will comply upon completion, with local building codes, applicable child care
licensing requirements, the accessibility requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act,
section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973", the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973,
and the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966.%

(5) A description of proposed renovations ot repairs to make the facility suitable for program
activides, and plans and specification that describe the facility after renovation or repair;

(6) A proposed schedule that details when the grantee will acquite, renovate, repair and
occupy the facility;

(7) An estimate by a licensed independent certified appraiser of the facility’s fair market value
after proposed purchase and associated tepairs and renovations construction, ot majot
renovation is completed is required for all facilities activides except for major renovations to
leased property,

(8) The cost comparison described in §1303.45;

(%) A statement that shows what share of the purchase, constction, ot majot renovation will
be paid with grant funds and what the grantee proposes to contribute as a nonfederal match
to the purchase, construction or mMajor LENOVaLon;

(10) A statement from a lender, if a grantee applies to use Head Start funds to continue
purchase on a facility or refinance existing debt on 2 facility that indicates the lender is willing
to comply with §1303.49;

Note: References are located in the Appendix, staring at page 119
78



L

e

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.45 — Program Governance

(1) The terms of any proposed or existing loan(s) related to purchase, construction or major
renovation of the facility, including copies of any funding commitment letters, mortgages,
promissory notes, potential secunty agreements to be entered into, information on all other
soutces of funding, construction or major renovation, and any restrictions ot conditions
imposed by other funding soutces;

(12) A Phase I environmenal site assessment that describes the envitonmental condition of
the proposed facility site and any structures on the site;

(13} A description of the efforts by the grantee to coordinate or collaborate with other
providers in the community to seek assistance, including financial assistance, prior to the use

of funds under this section; and,

(14) Any additional information the tesponsible HHS official may require.

(b) Additional requirements for leased properties.

(1) If a grantee applies to renovate leased property, it must submit to the responsible HHS
official information desctibed in paragraph (a) of this section, a copy of the existing or
proposed lease agreement, and the landlord or lessor’s consent.

(2) If a grantee applies to purchase a modular unit it intends to site on leased property of on
other property the grantee does not own, the grantee must submit to the tesponsible HHS
official information described in paragraph (a) of this section and a copy of the proposed
lease or other occupancy agreement that will allow the grantee access to the modular unit for

at least 15 years.

(c) Non-federal match. Any non-federal match associated with facilides activities becomes part of
the federal share of the facility.

§1303.45 Cost-comparison to purchase, construct, and renovate
facilities.

(a) Cost comparison.

{1) If a grantee proposes to purchase, construct, or renovate a facility, it must submit a
detailed cost estimate of the proposed activity, compare the costs associated with the
proposed activity to other available alternatives in the service area, and provide any additional
information the responsible HHS official requests. The grantee must demonstratc that the
proposed activity will result in savings when compared to the costs that would be incurred to

acquire the use of an alternatve facility t carry out program.
(2) In addition to requirements in paragraph (1) of this section, the grantee must:
(i) Identify who owns the property;

(i) List all costs related to the purchase, construcdon, or renovation;

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting ag page 119
79



—

Program Governance—§1303.46 45 CFR Chapter Xl

{u1) Identify costs over the structure’s useful life, which is at least 20 years for a facility
that the grantee putchased or constructed and at least 15 years for a modular unit the
grantee renovated, and deferred costs, including mortgage balloon payments, as costs
with associated due dates; and,

(iv) Demonstrate how the proposed purchase, construction, or major renovation is
consistent with program management and fiscal goals, community needs, entollment
and program options and how the proposed facility will support the grantee as it
provides quality services to children and families.

(b) Continue purchase or refinance. To use funds to continue purchase on a facility or to refinance
an existing indebtedness, the grantee must compare the costs of continued purchase against the cost
of purchasing a comparable facility in the service area over the remaining years of the facility’s useful
life. The grantee must demonstrate that the proposed activity will result in savings when compared
to the cost that would be incurted to acquire the use of an alternative facility to carty out the

program.
(¢) Muld-purpose use. If the grantee intends to use a facility to operate a Head Start program and for

another purpose, it must disclose what percentage of the facility will be used for non-Head Start
activities, along with costs associated with those actvides, in accordance with applicable cost

principles.
§1303.46 Recording and posting notices of federal interest.

{a) Survival of federal interest. A grantee that receives funds under this subpart must file notices of
federal interest as set forth in paragraph (b) of this section. Federal intexest cannot be defeated by a
grantee’s failure to file a notice of federal interest.

(b) Recording notices of federal interest.

(1) If a grantee uses federal funds to purchase real property or a facility, excluding modular
units, appurtenant to real property, it must recotd a notice of federal interest in the official
teal property records for the jurisdiction where the facility is ox will be Jocated, The grantee
must file the notice of federal interest as soon as it uses Head Start funds to either fully or
pattially purchase a facility or real property where a facility will be constructed or as soon as it
receives permission from the responsible HHS official to use Head Start funds to continue
purchase on a facility.

(2) If a grantee uses federal funds in whole or in part 1o construct a facility, it must record the
notice of federal mterest in the official real property records for the junsdiction in which the
faciliey is located as soon as it receives the notice of award to construct the facility.

(3} If a grantee uses federal funds to renovate a facility that it, or a third party owns, the
grantee must record the notice of federal interest in the official real property records for the
jutisdictton in which the facility 1s located as soon as 1t receives the notice of award to

renovate the facility.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
80



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.47 — Program Governance

(4) If a grantee uses federal funds in whole ot in part to purchase a modular vnit or to
renovate a modular unit, the grantee must post the notice of federal interest, in cleatly visible
locations, on the exterior of the modular unit and inside the modular unit.

§1303.47 Contents of notices of federal interest.

(a) Facility and real property a grantee owns. A notice of federal interest for a facility, other than a
modular unit, and real property the grantee owns ot will own, must include:

(1) The grantee’s cosrect legal name and current mailing address;
(2) A legal description of the real property;

(3) Grant award number, amount and date of inital facilities funding award or initial use of
base grant funds for ongoing purchase or mortgage payments;

(4) A statement that the notice of federal interest includes funds awarded in grant award(s)
and any Head Start funds subsequendy used to purchase, construct ot to make major
renovations to the real property;

(5) A statement that the facility and real property will only be used for purposes consistent
with the Act and applicable Head Start regulations;

(6) A statement that the facility and real property will not be mortgaged or used as collateral,
sold or otherwise transferred to another party, withont the responsible HHS official’s written

permission;

(7) A statement that the federal interest cannot be subordinated, diminished, nullified or

released through encumbrance of the property, transfer of the property to another party ot
any other action the grantee takes without the responsible HHS official’s written permission;

(8) A statement that confirms that the agency’s governing body received a copy of the notice
of federal interest prior to filing and the date the governing body was provided with a copy;

and,

(9) The name, title, and signature of the person who drafted the notice.

{b) Facility leased by a grantee,

(1) A notice of federal interest for a leased facility, excluding a2 modular vnit, on land the
grantee does not own, must be recorded in the official real property records for the
jurisdiction where the facility is located and must include:

(i) The grantee’s correct legal name and cutrent mailing address;
(ii) A legal description of affected real property,

(iii) "The grant award numbet, amount and date of inial funding award or ininal use of
base grant funds for major renovation;

Noie: References are located in the Appendi, staring at page 119
81



.

Program Governance—§1303.47 45 CFR Chapter XIli

(iv) Acknowledgement that the notice of federal interest includes any Head Start funds
subsequently used to make major renovations on the affected xeal property;

(v) A statement the facility and teal property will only be used for purposes consistent
with the Act and applicable 11ead Start regulations; and,

{v1) A lease or occupancy agreement that includes the required information from
paragraphs (b)(1)@) through (v) of this section may be recorded in the official real
property records for the jurisdiction where the facility is located to serve as a notice of

federal interest.

(2) If a grantee cannot file the lease or occupancy agreement described in paragraph (b){1)(vi)
of this section in the official real property records for the jurisdiction where the facility is
located, it may file an abstract. The abstract must include the names and addresses of parties
to the lease or occupancy agreement, terms of the lease or occupancy agreement, and
information described in paragraphs (2)(1) through (9) of this section.

(c) Modular units. A notice of federal interest on a modular unit the grantee purchased or renovated
must be visible and cleatly posted on the exterior of the modular and inside the modular and must

include:
(1) The grantee’s correct legal name and current mailing address;

(2) The grant award number, amount and date of initial funding award or initial use of base
grant funds to purchase or renovate;

(3) A statement that the notice of federal intetest includes any Head Start funds subsequently
used for major renovations to the modular unit;

(4) A statement that the facility and real property will only be used for purposes consistent
with the Act and applicable Head Start regulations;

(5) A statement that the modular unit will not be mortgaged or used as collateral, sold or
otherwise transferred to another party, without the responsible HHS official’s written
permission;

(6) A statement that the federal interest cannot be subordinated, diminished, nllified or
released through encumbrance of the property, transfer to another party, or any other action
the grantee takes without the responsible HHS official’s written permission;

(7} A statement that the modular unit cannot be moved to another location without the
responsible HHS official’s written permission;

(8} A statement that confitms that the agency’s governing body has received a copy of the
filed notice of federal interest and the date the governing body was provided with a copy;
and,

(9} The name, title, and signature of the person who completed the notice for the grantee
agency.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
82



@

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.49 — Program Governance

§1303.48 Grantee limitations on federal interest.

(a) A grantee cannot mortgage, use as collateral for a credit line ot for other loan obligations, or, sell
ot transfer to another patty, a facility, real property, or a modular unit it has purchased, constructed
or renovated with Head Start funds, without the responsible HHS official’s written petmission.

(b) A grantee must have the responsible HHS official’s written permission before it can use real
property, a facility, or a modular unit subject to federal interest for a purpose other than that for
which the grantee’s application was approved.

§1303.49 Protection of federal interest in mortgage agreements.

(a) Any mortgage agteement or other security instrument that is secused by real property or a
modular unit consteucted or purchased in whole or in part with federal funds or subject to
renovation with federal funds must:

(1) Specify that the responsible HHS official can intervenc in case the grantee defaults on,
terminates ot withdraws from the agreement;

(2) Designate the responsible HHS official to receive a copy of any notice of default given to
the grantee undet the terms of the agreement and include the regional grants management
officer’s current address;

(3 Include a clause that tequites any action to foreclose the mottgage agreement or secufity
agreement be suspended for 60 days after the responsible HHS official receives the default
notice to allow the responsible HHS official reasonable time to respond;

(4) Inchade a clause that preserves the notice of federal intexest and the grantee’s obligation
for its federal share if the responsible HHS official fails to respond to any notice of default
provided under this section;

(5} Include 2 statement that tequites the responsible HHS official to be paid the fedetal
interest before foreclosure proceeds are paid to the lender, unless the officials rights under
the notice of federal interest have been subordinated by a written agreement in conformance
with §1303.51;

{6} Include a clause that gives the responsible HHS official the right to cure any default under
the agreement within the designated period to cure the default; and,

(7} Include a clause that gives the responsible HHS official the right to assign ot transfer the
agreement to another intetim or permanent grantee.

(b) A grantee must immediately notify the responsible HHS official of any default undet an
agreement desctibed in paragraph (2) of this section.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, stardng at page 119
83



Program Governance—§1303.52 45 CFR Chapter XIli

§1303.50 Third party leases and occupancy arrangements.

(a} After November 7, 2016, if a grantee receives federal funds to purchase, construct or renovaie a
facility on real property the grantee does not own or to purchase ot renovate a modular unit on real
propetty the grantee does not own, the grantee must have a lease or other occupancy agreement of
at least 30 years for purchase or construction of 2 facility and at least 15 years for a major renovaton
ot placement of a2 modular unit.

{(b) The lease or occupancy agreement must:

(1) Provide for the grantee’s tight of continued use and occupancy of the leased or occupied
premises during the entire term of the lease;

(2) Designate the regional grants management officer to receive a copy of any notice of
default given to the grantee under the terms of the agreement and include the regional grants
management officer’s current address;

(3) Specify that the responsible HHS official has the right to cure any default under the lease
ot occupancy agreement within the designated period to cure default; and,

(4) Specify that the responsible HHS official has the right to transfer the lease to another
interim or replacement grantee.

§1303.51 Subordination of the federal interest.

Only the responsible HHS official can subordinate federal interest to the rights of a lender ot other
third party. Subosdination agreements must be in writing and the mottgage agreement ot secusity
agreement for which subordination is requested must comply with §1303.49. When the amount of
federal funds already contributed to the factlity exceeds the amount to be provided by the lender
secking subordinadon, the federal interest may only be subordinated if the grantee can show that
funding 1s not available without subordination of the federal interest

§1303.52 Insurance, bonding, and maintenance.

(@) Purposc. If a grantee uses federal funds to purchase or continue putchase on a facility, excluding
modular units, the grantee must obtain a title insurance policy for the putchase price that names the
responsible HHS official as an additional loss payee.

{(b) Insurance coverage.

(1) If a grantee uses federal funds to purchase or continue putchase on a facility or modular
unit the grantee must maintain physical damage or destruction insurance at the full
replacement value of the facility, for as long as the grantee owns or occupies the facility,

{2) If a facility is located in an atea the National Flood Insurance Program defines as high
tisk, the grantee must maintain flood insurance for as long as the grantee owns or occupies

the facility.

Note: References ave located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
84



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.56 — Program Governance

(3) A grantee must submit to the responsible HHS official, within 10 days after coverage
begins, proof of insurance coverage required under paragraphs (a) and (b) of this section.

(c) Maintenance. A grantee must keep all facilities purchased ot constructed in whole or in part with
Head Start funds in good repair in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules
and regulations, including Head Start requirements, zoning requirements, building codes, health and
safety regulations and child care licensing standards.

§1303.53 Copies of documents.

A grantec must submit to the responsible HHS official, within 10 days after filing or execution,
copies of deeds, leases, loan instruments, mortgage agreements, notices of {ederal interest, and other
legal documents related to the use of Head Start funds for putchase, construction, major renovation,
or the discharge of any debt secuted by the facility.

§1303.54 Record retention.

A grantee must retain records pertinent to the lease, purchase, construction ot renovation of a
facility funded in whole or in part with Head Start funds, for a5 long as the grantee owns or occapies
the facility, plus three yeats.

§1303.55 Procurement procedures.

(a) A grantee must comply with all grants management regulations, including specific regulations
applicable to transactions in excess of the cutrent simplified acquisition threshold, cost principles,
and its own procurement procedures, and must provide, to the maximum extent practical, open and
full competition.

(b) A grantee must obtain the responsible HHS official’s written approval before it uses Head Start
funds, in whole ot in patt, to contract consttuction or renovation services. The grantee must ensure
these contracts ate paid on a lump sum fixed-price basis.

{¢) A grantee must obtain prior written approval from the responsible IHHS official for contract
modifications that would change the scope or objective of a project or would materially alter the
costs, by increasing the amount of grant funds needed to completc the project.

(d) A grantee must ensute all construction and renovation contracts paid, in whole or in part with
Head Start funds contain a clause that gives the responsible FIHS official or his o1 her designee
access to the facility, at all reasonable times, during construction and inspection.

§1303.56 inspection of work.

The grantce must submit to the responsible HHS official a final facility inspection report by a

licensed engineer ot architect within 30 calendar days after the project is completed. The inspection
report must cettify that the facility complies with local building codes, applicable child care licensing
requirements, is stracturally sound and safe for use as a Fead Start facility, complies with the access

Note: Referances ace located in the Appendis, surdog at page 119

85



Program Governance—§1303.70 45 CFR Chapter Xll|

requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and the
Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, and complies with National Historic Preservation Act of

1966.%
Subpart F — Transportation

§1303.70 Purpose.

{a) Applicability. This rule applies to all agencies, including those that provide transportation
services, with the exceptions and exclusions provided in this section, regardless of whether such
transportation is provided directly on agency owned or leased vehicles or through arrangement with
a private or public transportation providet.

(b) Providing transportation services.

(1) If a program does not provide transportaton services, either for all or a porton of the
children, it must provide reasonable assistance, such as information about public transit
avatlability, to the families of such children to arrange transpottation to and from its activities,
and provide information about these transportation options in recruitment announcements.

(2) A program that provides transportation services must make reasonable efforts to
cootdinate transportation resources with other human services agencies in its community in
ordet to control costs and to improve the quality and the availability of transportaton
services.

(3) A program that provides transportaton services must ensure all accidents involving
vehicles that transport children are reported in accordance with applicable state requirements.

(c) Waiver.

(1) A program that provides transportation services must comply with all provisions in this
subpart. A Head Start program may request to waive a specific requitement in this part, in
writing, to the responstble HHS official, as part of an agency’s annual application for financial
assistance or amendment and must submit any required documentation the responsible HHS
official deems necessary to support the watver. The responsible HHS official is not
authorized 1o waive any requiremnents with regard to children enrolled in an Early Head Start
program. A program may request a waiver when:

(i) Adherence to a requirement in this part would create a safety hazard in the
arcumstances faced by the agency; and,

(i) For preschool children, compliance with requirements related to child restraint
systems at §§1303.71(d) and 1303.72(a)(1} ot bus monitors at §1303.72(2)(4) will result
in a significant distuption to the program and the agency demonstrates that waiving
such requirements is in the best interest of the children involved.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
86



L

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.72 — Program Governance

(2) The responsible HHS official is not authorized to waive any requirements of the Federal
Motot Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS) made applicable to any class of vehicle under 49
CFR patt 571.

§1303.71 Vehicles.

(a) Required use of schools buses or allowable alternative vehicles. A program, with the exception of

transportation services to children setved under 2 home-based option, must ensure all vehicles vsed
o1 purchased with grant funds to provide transportation services to entolled children are school
buses or allowable alternate vehicles that are equipped for use of height- and weight-appropriate
child restraint systems, and that have reverse beepers.

(b) Emergency equipment. A program must ensure each vehicle used in providing such services is
equipped with an emergency communication system clearly labeled and apptoptiate emergency
safety equipment, including a seat belt cutter, charged fire extinguishet, and first aid kit.

{¢) Auxiliary seating. A program must ensure any auxiliary seating, such as temporary or folding
jump seats, used in vehicles of any type providing such services are built into the vehicle by the
manufacturer as part of its standatd design, are maintained in proper working order, and are
inspected as part of the annual inspection required undes paragraph (€)(2)(i) of this section.

(d} Child restraint systems. A program must ensure each vehicle used to transport children receiving
such services is equipped for use of age-, height- and weight-appropriate child safety testraine
systems as defined in part 1305 of this chapter.

{e) Vehicle maintenance.

(1} A program must ensure vehicles used to provide such services ate in safe operating
condition at all times.

(2} The program must:

(i} At a minimum, conduct an annual thorough safety inspection of each vehicle
through an inspection program licensed or operated by the state;

(i) Carry out systematic preventive maintenance on vehicles; and,
(i) Ensure each driver implements daily pre-ttip vehicle inspections.

(f) New vehicle inspection. A program must ensure bid announcements for school buses and
allowable alternate vehicles to transport children in its program include cortect specifications and 2
clear statement of the vehicle’s intended use. The program must ensure vehicles are examined at
delivery to ensure they ate equipped in accordance with the bid specifications and that the
manufacturer’s certification of compliance with the applicable FMVSS is included with the vehicle.

§1303.72 Vehicle operation.

(a) Safety. A program must ensure:

Note: References are located in the Appendiz, stardng at page 119
87



Program Governance—§1303.72 45 CFR Chapter X1l

(1) Each child is seated in a child restraint system apptopriate to the child’s age, height, and
weight;

(2) Baggage and other items transposted in the passenger comparument are propetly stored
and secured, and the aisles remain clear and the doors and emergency exits remain
unobstructed at all times;

(3) Up-to-date child rosters and lists of the adults each child is authotized to be released to,
including akernates in case of emergency, are maintained and no child is left behind, cither at
the classroom or on the vehicle at the end of the route; and,

(4) With the exception of transportation services to children served under a home-based
option, there 1s at least one bus monitor on board at all times, with additional bus monitots

provided as necessary.

(b) Driver qualifications. A program, with the exception of transportation services to children served
under a home-based option, must ensure drivers, at 2 minimum:

(1) In states where such licenses are granted, have a valid Commercial Diiver's License (CDL)
for vehicles in the same class as the vehicle the driver will operating; and,

(2} Meet any physical, mental, and other requirements as necessary to perform job-related
functions with any necessary reasonable accommodations.

(c} Driver application review. In addition to the applicant review process prescribed §1302.90(b) of
this chapter, a program, with the exception of transportation services to children setved under a
home-based opton, must ensure the applicant review process for drivers includes, at minimum:

(1) Disclosure by the applicant of all moving traffic violations, regardless of penalty;

(2) A check of the applicant’s driving record through the appropmate state agency, including 2
check of the applicant's record through the National Driver Register, if available;

(3) A check that drivets qualify under the applicable driver training requitements in the state
or tribal jurisdiction; and,

(4) After a conditional employment offer to the applicant and before the applicant begins
work as a driver, a medical examination, petformed by a licensed doctor of medicine or
osteopathy, establishing that the individual possesses the physical ability to perform any job-
related functions with any necessary accommodations.

(d) Drivet training.

(1) A program must ensure any person employed as a driver recetves training prior to trans-
porting any enrolled child and receives refresher training each year.

(2) Training must include:

(1} Classroom instruction and behind-the-wheel insttuction sufficient to enable the
driver to operate the vehicle in a safe and efficient manner, to safely run a fixed route,

Note: References are Iocated in the Appeadix, stardng at page 119

88



g

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.73 — Program Governance

to administer basic first aid in case of injury, and to handle emergency situations,
including vehicle evacuation, operate any special cquipment, such as wheelchair lifts,
assistance devices ot special occupant restraints, conduct routine maintenance and
safety checls of the vehicle, and maintain accurate records as necessary; and,

(ii) Instruction on the topics listed in §1303.75 related to transportation services for
children with disabilittes.

(3) A program must ensure the annual evaluation of each driver of a vehicle nsed to provide
such services includes an on-board observation of road performance.

(¢) Bus monitor training, A program must train cach bus monitor before the monitor begins work,
on child boarding and exiting procedures, how to use child restraint systems, completng any
required paperwork, how to respond to emergencies and emesgency evacuation procedures, how to
use special equipment, child pick-up and release procedures, how to conduct and pre- and post-tiip
vehicle checks. Bus monitors are also subject to staff safety training requirements in §1302.47 (b)(4)
of this chaptet inclading Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) and first aid.

§1303.73 Trip routing.

(a) A program must consider safety of the children it transports when it plans fixed routes.

{b) A progtam must also ensure:

{1) The time a child is in transit to and from the program must not exceed one hour unless
there is no shorter route available or any alternative shorter route is either unsafe or
mnpractical;

(2) Vehicles are not loaded beyond maximum passenger capacity at any timne;

(3) Drivers do not back up or make U-turns, except when necessary fot safety reasons or
because of physical barriers;

(4) Stops are located to minimize traffic disruptions and to afford the driver a good field of
view in front of and behind the vehicle;

(5) When possible, stops are located to climinate the nced for children to cross the street or
highway to board or leave the vehicle;

(6) Rither 2 bus monitor or another adult escorts children across the street to board or leave
the vehicle if cutbside pick-up ot drop off is impossible; and,

(7) Drivers use alternate routes in the case of hazardous conditions that could affect the safety
of the children who are being transpotted, such as ice or water build up, natural gas line
breaks, or emergency road closing.

Noie: References are Iocated in the Appendix, starang at page 119
89




Program Governance~§1303.75 45 CFR Chapter XIli

§1303.74 Safety procedures.

{a) A program must ensure children who receive transportation services are taught safe riding
practices, safety procedures for boarding and leaving the vehicle and for crossing the street to and
from the vehicle at stops, recognition of the danger zones around the vehicle, and emergency
evacuation procedures, including participating in an emergency evacuation drill conducted on the
vehicle the child will be riding.

(b) A program that provides transportation services must ensure at least two bus evacuation drills in
addition to the one required under paragraph (a) of this section are conducted during the program
yeat.

§1303.75 Children with disabilities.

(a) A program must ensure there are school buses or allowable alternate vehicles adapted or
designed for transportation of children with disabilities available as necessaty to transpott such
children enrolled n the program. This requirement does not apply to the transportation of children
receiving home-based services unless school buses or allowable alternate vehicles are used to
transport the other children served under the home-based option by the grantee. Whenever possible,
children with disabilitics must be transported in the same vehicles used to transport other children
enrolled in the Head Start or Early Head Start program.

(b) A program must ensure special transpottation requirements in a child’s IEP or II'SP are
followed, including special pick-up and drop-off requirements, seating requirements, equipment
needs, any assistance that may be required, and any necessary tramning for bus devers and monitors.

Note: Reterences are located in she Appendix, starting at page 119
90



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304 — Program Governance

Part 1304 — Federal Administrative
Procedures

Section

Subpart A — Monitoring, Suspension, Termination, Denial of Refunding, Reduction
in Funding, and their Appeals

13041
1304.2
1304.3
1304.4
1304.5
1304.6
1304.7

Purpose.

Monitoring.

Suspension with notice.

Emergency suspension without advance notice.
Termination and denial of refunding.

Appeal for prospective delegate agencies.

Legal fees.

Subpart B — Designation Renewal

1304.10
1304.11

1304.12

1304.13

1304.14

1304.15
1304.16
1304.17

Putpose and scope.

Basis fot determining whethet a Head Start agency will be subject to an open
competition.

Grantee reporting requirements concerning certain conditions.

Requirements to be considered for designation for a five-year period when the
existing grantee in a community is hot determined to be delivering a high-quality
and comprehensive Head Start program and is not automatically renewed.
Tribal government consultation under the Designation Renewal System for when an
Indian Head Start grant is being considered for competition,

Designation xequest, teview and notification process.

Use of CLASS: Pre-K instrument in the Designation Renewal System.
Flexibility for Head Start Designation Renewal determinations in certain
emeigencies

Subpart C — Selection of Grantees through Competition

1304.20 Selection among applicants.

Subpart D — Replacement of American Indian and Alaska Native Grantees

1304.30
1304.31
1304.32

Procedure for identification of alternative agency.
Requirements of alternative agency.
Alternative agency—prohibition.

Subpart E -— Head Start Fellows Program

1304.40
1304.41

Purpose.

Fellows Program. AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 9801 &7 seq.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, stardng a1 page 119

91



Program Governance— §1304.2 45 CFR Chapter Xl

Subpart A — Monitoring, Suspension, Termination, Denial of
Refunding, Reduction in Funding, and their Appeals

§1304.1 Purpose.

(a) Section 641A(c) of the Act requires the Secretary to monitor whether a grantee meets program
governance, program operations, and financial and adeministrative standards described in this
regulation and to identify areas for improvements and areas of strength as part of the grantee’s
ongoing self-assessment process. This subpatt focuses on the monitoring process. It discusses areas
of noncompliance, deficiencies, and corrective action through quality improvement plans.

(b) Secdon 646(a) of the Act requires the Secretary to prescribe procedures for notice and appeal for
certain adverse actions. This subpart establishes rules and procedures to suspend financial assistance
to a grantee, deny a grantee’s application for refunding, terminate, ot reduce a grantee’s assistance
under the Act when the grantee improperly uses federal funds or fails to comply with applicable
laws, tegulations, policies, instructions, assurances, terms and conditions or, if the grantee loses its
legal status o financial viability. This subpart does not apply to reductons to a grantee’s financial
assistance based on chronic under-enrollment procedures at section 641A(h) of the Act or to
matters described in subpart B. This subpatt does not apply to any admimstrative action based upon
any violaton, or alleged violation, of title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Except as otherwise
provided for in this subpart, the appeals and processes in this subpart will be governed by the
Departmental Appeals Board regulations at 45 CER part 16,

§1304.2 Monitoring.

(a) Arcas of noncompliance. If a responsible HHS official determines through monitoring, pursuant
to section 641(A)(c)(1) and (2)*° of the Act, that a grantee fails to comply with any of the standards
described in parts 1301, 1302, and 1303 of this chapter, the official will notify the grantee promptly

in writing, identify the area of noncompliance, and specify when the grantee must correct the area of

noncompliance.

{(b) Deficiencies. If the Secretaty determines that a grantee meets one of the criteria for a deficiency,
as defined in section 637(2)(C)" of the Act, the Secretary shall inform the grantee of the deficiency.
The grantee must cotrect the deficiency pursuant to section 641 A(€)(1)(B)* of the Act, as the
responsible HHS official determines.

() Quality improvement plans. If the responsible HHS official does not require the grantee to
correct a deficiency immediately as prescribed uader section 641A(€)(1)(B)({)* of the Act, the
grantee must submit to the official, for approval, a quality improvement plan that adheres to section
641A() (2)(A) of the Act™.

Mote: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
92



Administration for Children and Families, HH$ §1304.3 — Program Governance

§1304.3 Suspension with notice.

(2) Grounds to suspend financial assistance with notice. If a grantee breaches ot threatens to breach
any requirement stated in §§1304.3 through 1304.5, the responsible HHS official may suspend the

grantee’s financial assistance, in whole o in part, after it has given the grantee notice and an
opportunity to show cause why assistance should not be suspended.

(b) Notice requirements.

(1) The responsible HHS official must notify the grantee in writing that ACF intends to
suspend financial assistance, in whole or in part. The notice must:

(i) Specify grounds for the suspension;
(ii) Include the date suspension will become effective;

(iif) Inform the grantee that it has the opportunity to submit to the responsible HHS
official, at least seven days before suspension becomes effective, any written material it
would like the official to considet, and to inform the grantee that it may request, in
writing, no later than seven days after the suspension notice was mailed, to have an
informal meeting with the responsible HHS official,

(iv) Invite the grantee to voluntatily correct the deficiency; and,
{v)Include a copy of this subpart.

(2) The responsible HHS official must promptly transmit the suspension notice to the
grantee, The notice becomes effective when the grantee receives the notice, when the grantee
refuses delivery, or when the suspension notice is retutned to sender unclaimed.

(3) The responsible HHS official must send a copy of the suspension notice to any delegate
agency whose actions ox whose failures to act substantially caused or conttibuted to the
proposed suspension. The responsible HHS official will inform the delegate agency that it is
entided to submit written material to oppose the suspension and to participate in the informal
meeting, if one is held. In addition, the responsible HHS official may give notce to the

grantee’s othet delegate agencies.

(4) After the grantee receives the suspension notice, it has three days to send a copy of the
notice to delegate agencies that would be financially affected by a suspension.

(c) Opportunity to show cause. The grantee may submit to the responsible HHS official any written
material to show why financial assistance should not be suspended. The grantee may also tequest, in
writing, to have an informal meeting with the sesponsible HHS official. If the grantee requests an
informal meetdng, the responsible HHS official must schedule the meeting within seven days after
the grantee receives the suspension notice.

(d) Extensions. If the responsible I1HS official extends the time o the date by which a grantee has
to make requests ot to submit material, it must notify the grantee in writing,

Note: References ate located in the Appendix, startng at page 119
93



Program Governance—§1304.4 45 CFR Chapter XIII

(e} Decision.

(1) The responsible HHS official will consider any written material presented before or duting
the informal meeting, as well as any proof the grantee has adequately corrected what led to
suspension, and will render a decision within five days after the informal meeting. If no
informal meeting is held, the responsible HHS official will render a decision within five days
after it receives written matetial from all concetned parties.

{2) If the responsible HHS official finds the grantee failed to show cause why ACF should
not suspend financial assistance, the official may suspend financial assistance, in whole or in
patt, and under terms and conditions as he ot she deems appropriate.

(3) A suspension must not exceed 30 days, unless the conditions under section 646{2)(5)(B)*
ate applicable or the grantee requests the suspension continue for an additional period of time

and the responsible HHS official agrees.

{4) The responsible HHS official may appoint an agency to serve as an interim grantee to
operate the program until the grantee’s suspension is lifted, or as otherwise provided under

section 646(a)(5)(B)51 of the Act.

{f) Obhgations incurred during suspension. New obligations the grantee incurs while under
suspension are not allowed unless the responsible HHS official expressly authotizes them in the
suspension notice or in an amendment to the suspension notice. Necessary and otherwise allowable
costs which the grantee could not reasonably avoid during the suspension period will be allowed if
they result from obligations the grantee propeily incurred before suspension and not in anticipation
of suspension or termination. The responsible HHS official may allow third-patty n-kind
contributions applicable to the suspension period to satisfy cost shating or matching requirements.

(g) Modify ot rescind suspension. The responsible HHS official may modify or rescind suspension at
any time, if the grantee can satisfactorily show that it has adequately corrected what led to
suspension and that it will not repeat such actions ot inactions. Nothing in this section precludes the
HHS official from imposing suspension again for additional 30 day periods if the cause of the
suspension has not been corrected.

§1304.4 Emergency suspension without advance notice.

{a) Grounds to suspend financial assistance without advance notice. The responsible HHS official

may suspend financial assistance, in whole ot in part, without prior notice and an opportunity to
show cause if there 1s an emetrgency situation, such as a serious risk for substantial injury to property
ot loss of project funds, a federal, state, or local criminal statate vicladon, or harm to staff or
participants’ health and safety.

(b) Emergency suspension notification requirements.

(1) The emergency suspension notification must:

{i) Specify the grounds for the suspension;

Naote: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
94



m—

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.4 — Program Governance

(i) Include terms and conditons of any full or partial suspension;

(iii) Inform that grantee it cannot make or incur any new expenditures or obligations
under suspended portion of the program; and,

(iv) Advise that within five days after the emetgency suspension becomes effective, the
grantee may request, in writing, an informal meeting with the responsible HHS official
to show why the basis for the suspension was not valid and should be rescinded and
that the graniee has corrected any deficiencies.

(2) The responsible HHS official must promptly transmit the emergency suspension
notification to the grantee that shows the date of receipt. The emergency suspension becomes
effective upon delivery of the notification or upon the date the grantee refuses delivery, or
upon returt of the notification unclaimed.

(3} Within two workdays after the grantee receives the emergency suspension notification, the
grantee must send a copy of the notice to delegate agencies affected by the suspension.

(4) The responsible HHS official must infotm affected delegate agencies that they have the
right to participate in the informal meeting.

() Opportunity to show cause. If the grantee requests an informal meeting, the responsible HHS
official must schedule a meeting within five wotkdays after it receives the grantee’s request. The

suspension will continue until the grantee has been afforded such opportunity and until the
responsible HHS official renders a decision. Notwithstanding provisions in this section, the
responsible HHS official may proceed to deny tefunding or to initiate termination proceedings at
any time even though the grantee’s financial assistance has been suspended in whole or in part.

{d) Decision.

(1) The responsible HHS official will consider any written matetial presented before or dusing
the informal meeting, as well as any proof the grantee has adequately corrected what led to
suspension, and render a decision within five work days after the informal meeting,

(2) If the responsible HHS official finds the grantee failed to show cause why suspension
should be rescinded, the responsible HHS official may continue the suspension, in whole or
in part, and under the terms and conditions specified in the emergency suspension

notification.

(3) A suspension must not exceed 30 days, unless the conditions under section 646(2)(5)(B)"
are applicable or the grantee tequests the suspension to continue for an additional period of
time and the responsible HHS official agrees.

{4) The responsible HHS official may appoint an agency to serve as an interim grantee to
operate the program until either the grantee’s emergency suspension is lifted or 2 new grantee

is selected.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
95



Program Governance—§1304.5 45 CFR Chapter Xl

{e) Obligations incurred during suspension. Any new obligations the grantee incurs during the
suspension peried will not be allowed unless the responsible HHS official expressly authorizes them
in the suspension notice or in an amendment to the suspension notice. Necessary and otherwise
allowable costs which the grantee could not reasonably avoid during the suspension period will be
allowed if those costs result from obligations propetly incurted before suspension and not in
anticipation of suspension, denial of refunding ot termination. The tesponsible HHS official may
allow third-party in-kind conuibutions applicable to the suspension period to satisfy cost sharing ot
matching requirements.

(f) Modify or rescind suspension. The responsible HHS official may modify or rescind suspension at
any time, if the grantee can satisfactorily show that is has adequately corrected what led to the
suspension and that it will not repeat such actions or inactions. Nothing in this section precludes the
HHS official from imposing suspension again for additional 30 day periods if the cause of the
suspension has not been corrected.

§1304.5 Termination and denial of refunding.

(1) A responsible HHS official may terminate financial assistance in whole or in patt to a
grantee or deny a grantee’s application for refunding.

(2) 'The responsible HHS official may terminate financial assistance in whole or in part, ot
deny refunding to a grantee for any one or for all of the following reasons:

() The grantee is no longer financially viable;
(i) The grantee has lost the requisite legal status or pexmits;

() The grantee has failed to tumely correct one or more deficiencies as defined in the
Act;

(iv) The grantee has faled to comply with eligibility requirements;

{(v)The grantee has failed to comply with the Head Start grants administration o fiscal
requirements set forth in 45 CFR part 1303;

(vi) The grantee has failed to comply with requirements in the Act;
(vil} The grantee is debarred from receiving federal grants or contracts; or

(viii) The grantee has failed to abide by any other tertns and conditions of its award of
financial assistance, or any other applicable laws, tegulations, or other applicable federal
Or state requirements or policies.

(b} Notige requirements.

(1) The responsible HHS official will notify the grantee and such notice will:

Nore: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
96



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.5 — Program Governance

(1) Inchade the legal basis for termination or adverse action as described in paragraph (a)
of this section;

(ii) Include factual findings on which the action is based o1 reference specific findings in
another document that form the basis for termination or denial of refunding;

(iti) Cite to any statutory provisions, regulations, or policy issuances on which ACF
relies for its determination;

(iv) Inform the grantee that it may appeal the denial or termination within 30 days to
the Departmental Appeals Board, that the appeal will be governed by 45 CFR part 167,
except as otherwise provided in the Head Start appeals regulations, that a copy of the
appeal must sent to the responsible HHS official, and that it has the right to request and
receive a hearing, as mandated under section 646 of the Act;

(v)Inform the grantee that only its board of directors, or an official acting on the
boatrd’s behalf can appeal the decision;

(vi) Name the delegate agency, if the actions of that delegate are the basis, in whole or
in patt, for the proposed action; and,

(vii) Inform the grantee that the appeal must meet requirements in paragraph (¢) of this
section; and, that if the responsible HHS official fails to meet requirements in this
paragraph, the pending action may be dismissed without prejudice or remanded to
reissuc it with corrections.

(2) The responsible HHS official must provide the grantee as much notice as possible, but
must notify the grantee no later than 30 days after ACF reccives the annual application for
refunding, that it has the opportunity for a full and fair hearing on whether refunding should

be denicd.

(¢) Grantee’s appeal.

(1) The grantee must adhere to procedures and requirements for appeals in 45 CFR part 16%,
file the appeal with the Departmental Appeals Board, and serve a copy of the appeal on the
responsible HHS official who issued the termination or denial of refunding notice. The
grantees must also serve a copy of its appeal on any affected delegate.

(2) Unless funding has been suspended, funding will continue while a grantee appeals a
termination decision, unless the responsible HHS official renders an adverse decision, or
unless the current budget period is expired. If the responsible HHS official has not rendered a
decision by the end of the current budget period, the official will award the grantee interim
funding until 2 decision is made or the project period ends.

(d) Funding during suspension. If a grantee’s funding is suspended, the grantee will not receive
funding during the termination proceedings, or at any other time, unless the action is rescinded or

the gramee’s appeal is successful.

MNote: References are locared in the Appendix, starting ar page 11%

97



Program Governance—§1304.6 45 CFR Chapter Xl

(¢} Interim and replacement grantees. The responsible HHS official may appoint ap interim or
replacement grantee as soon as a termination action is affirmed by the Departmental Appeals Board.

(f) Opportunity to show cause.

(1) If the Departmental Appeals Board sets a heaiing for a proposed termination or denial of
refunding action, the grantee has five workdays to send a copy of the notice it receives from
the Departmental Appeals Board, to all delegate agencies that would be financially affected by
termination and to each delegate agency identified in the notice.

(2) The grantee must send to the Departmental Appeals Board and to the responsible HHS
official a list of the delegate agencies it notified and the dates when it notifted them.

(3) If the responsible HHS official initiated proceedings because of a delegate agency’s
activities, the official must inform the delegate agency that it may participate in the hearing, If
the delegate agency chooses to participate in the hearing, it must notify the responsible HHS
official in writing within 30 days of the grantee’s appeal. If any other delegate agency, petson,
agency of organization wishes to participate in the hearing, it may request permission to do so
from the Depattmental Appeals Board.

(4) If the grantee fails to appear at the hearing, without good cause, the grantee will be
deemed to have waived its right to a hearing and consented to have the Departmental
Appeals Board make a decision based on the parties’ writien information and argument.

(5) A grantee may waive the hearing and submit written information and argument for the
record, within a reasonable period of time to be fixed by the Departmental Appeals Board.

(6) The tesponsible HHS official may attempt, either personally ot through a representative,
to resolve the issues in dispute by informal means prior to the heating.

(g} Decision. The Departmental Appeals Board’s decision and any measure the responsible HHS
official takes after the decision is fully binding upon the grantee and its delegate agencies, whether or

not they actually participated in the heanng,
§1304.6 Appeal for prospective delegate agencies.

(a) Appeal. If a grantee denies, or fails to act on, a prospective delegate agency’s funding application,
the prospective delegate may appeal the grantee’s decision or inaction.

(b} Process for prospective delegates. To appeal, a prospective delegate must:

(1) Submits the appeal, including a copy of the funding application, to the responsible HHS
official within 30 days after it receives the grantee’s decision; or within 30 days aftet the
grantee has had 120 days to review but has not notified the applicant of a decision; and,

{2) Provide the grantee with a copy of the appeal at the same time the appeal is filed with the
responsible HHS official

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119

98



Adminiscration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.10 — Program Governance

(c) Process for grantees. When an appeal is filed with the responsible HHS official, the grantee must
respond to the appeal and submit a copy of its response to the responsible HHS official and to the

prospective delegate agency within 30 work days.
(d) Decision.

{1} The responsiblc HHS official will sustain the grantee’s decision, if the official determines
the grantee did not ace arbitrarily, capriciously, or otherwise contrary to Jaw, regulation, or
other applicable requirements.

(2) The responsible HHS official will render a written decision to each party within 2
reasonable timeframe. The official’s decision is final and not subject to further appeal,

(3) If the responsible HHS official finds the grantee did act arbitrarily, capriciously, or
otherwise contrary to law, regulation, ot other applicable requirements, the grantee will be
directed to reevaluate their applications.

§1304.7 Legal fees.

(a) An agency is not authorized to chatge to its grant legal tees or other costs incurred to appeal
terminations, reductions of funding, or denials of applications of refunding decisions.

(b) If a progtam prevails in a termination, reduction, or dental of refunding decision, the responsible
HHS official may reimburse the agency for teasonable and customaty legal fees, incurred during the
appeal, if:

(1) The Departmental Appeals Boatd overturns the responsible HHS official’s decision;
(2) The agency can prove it incutted fees during the appeal; and,

(3) The agency can prove the fees incurred are reasonable and customary.

Subpart B — Designation Renewal

§1304.10 Purpose and scope.

The putpose of this subpart is to set forth policies and procedures for the designation renewal of
Head Start and Eatly Head Statt programs. It is intended that these programs be administered
effectively and responsibly; that applicants to administer programs receive fair and equitable
consideration; and that the legal rights of current Head Start and Early Head Start grantees be fully
protected. The Designation Renewal System is established in this part to determine whether Head
Start and Early Head Start agencies deliver high-quality services to meet the educational, health,
nutritional, and social needs of the children and families they serve; meet the program and financial
requirements and standards described in section 641A(2)(1)* of the Head Start Act; and qualify o
be designated for funding for five years without competing for such funding as requited under
section 641(c) of the Head Start Act with respect to Head Start agencies and pursuant to section
645A(b)(12)  and (d) with respect to Early Head Start agencies. A competition to select a new

MNote: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119

99



Program Governance—§1304.1 | 45 CFR Chapter Xl

Head Start or Early Head Start agency to replace a Head Start or Eatly Head Statt agency that has
been terminated voluntarily ot involuntatily is not part of the Designation Renewal System
established in this Part, and is subject instead to the requitements of §1304.20.

§1304.11 Basis for determining whether a Head Start agency will be
subject to an open competition.

A Head Start or Early Head Start agency will be required to compete for its next five years of
funding whencver the responsible HHS official determines that one ot more of the following seven

conditions existed during the relevant time petiod under §1304.15:

{a) An agency has two or more deficiencies across reviews conducted under section 641A{c)(1)(A),
(C), or (DY of the Act during the relevant time period under §1304.15.

(b) An agency has not, based on a review conducted under section 641 A(c)(1)(A), (C), ox ID)* of the
Act during the relevant time period under §1304.15:

(1) Established program goals for improving the school readiness of children participating in
its program in accordance with the requirements of section 641A(g) (2)55 of the Act and

demonstrated that such goals:
(i) Approptiately reflect the ages of children, birth to five, participating in the program;

(i) Align with the Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Frameworke: Ager Birth to Five, state
carly learning gnidelines, and the requirements and expectations of the schools, to the
extent that they apply to the ages of children, birth to five, participating in the program
and at a minimum address the domains of language and literacy development, cognition
and general knowledge, approaches toward learning, physical well-being and motor
development, and social and emotional development;

{iiiy Were established in consultation with the parents of children participating in the
program.

(2) Taken steps to achieve the school readiness goals described under paragraph (b)(1) of this
section demonstrated by:

(1) Aggregating and analyzing aggregate child-level assessment data at least three times
pet year (except for programs operating less than 90 days, which will be required to do
so at least twice within their operating program petiod) and using that data in
combination with other program data to determine grantees' progress toward meeting its
goals, to inform parents and the community of results, and to direct continuous
improvement related to curticulum, instiuction, professional development, program
design and other program decisions; and,

(i) Analyzing individual ongoing, child-level assessment data for all children birth to age
five participating in the program and using that data in combination with input from
parents and families to determine each child's status and progress with regard to, ata

Note: References are lotated in the Appendix, staring ac page 119
100



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.11 — Program Governance

minitmum, language and literacy development, cognition and general knowledge,
approaches toward learning, physical well-being and motor development, and social and
emotional development and to individualize the experiences, instructional strategics,
and services to best support each child.

(¢} An agency has been determined during the relevant time period covered by the responsible HHS
official's review under §1304.15:

(1) To have an average scote actoss all classrooms observed that is below the following
competitive thresholds on any of the three CLASS: Pre-K domains from the most recent
CLASS: Pre-K observation:

) For the Emotional Support domain, the competitive threshold is 5;
(i) For the Classroom Organization domain, the competitive threshold is 5

(1) For the Instructional Support domain, the competitive threshold is 2.3 through July
31, 2025, and 2.5 on and after August 1, 2025;

(2) If an agency is determined to have an average score across all classrooms obsetved below
the quality threshold on any of the three CLASS: Pre-K domains, the Office of Head Start
will support the progtam to strengthen its coordinated approach to training and professional
development as required in § 1302.92(b) and (c), to help promote improvement in teaching
practices and teacher-child interactions. The quality threshold for each domain is as follows:

@) For the Emotional Support domain, the quality threshold is &;
(i) For the Classroom Organization domain, the quality threshold is 6;
(iii) For the Instructional Support domain, the quality threshold is 3.

(d) An agency has had a revocation of its license to operate 2 Head Start or Early Head Start center
ot program by a state or local licensing agency during the relevant tme petiod under §1304.15, and
the revocation has not been overturned or withdrawn before a competition for funding for the next
five-year petiod is announced. A pending challenge to the license revocation or restoration of the
license after correction of the violation will not affect application of this requiremeant after the
competition fot funding for the next five-year period has been anoounced.

(€) An agency has been suspended from the Head Start or Barly Head Start program by ACF during
the relevant time period covered by the responsible HHS official's review under §1304.15 and the
suspension has not been overturned or withdrawn. If the agency did not have an oppostunity to
show cause as to why the suspension should not have been imposed or why the suspension should
have been lifted if it had aiready been imposed under part 1304, the agency will not be required to
compete based on this condition. If an agency has received an opportunity to show causc and the
suspension remains in place, the condition will be implemented.

(f) An agency has been debarred from receiving federal or state funds from any federal or state
depattment or agency ot has been disqualified from the Child and Adult Cate Food Program

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
101



Program Governance—§1304.13 45 CFR Chapter Xll|

(CACFP) any ttne duting the relevant time period covered by the responsible HHS official's review
under §1304.15 but has not yet been terminated or denied refunding by ACF. (A debarred agency
will only be eligible to compete for Head Start funding if it receives a waiver described in 2 CFR

180.135%)
(z) An agency meets one of two fiscal criveria, if the agency:

(1) Is at risk of failing to continue functoning as a going concern within the current project
petiod. The final determination is made by the responsible HHS official based on a review of
the findings and opinions of an audit conducted in accordance with section 647 of the Act; an
audit, review ot investigation by a state agency; a review by the National External Audit
Review (NEAR) Center; or an audit, investigation or inspection by the Department of Health
and Human Services Office of Inspector General; or

(2) Has a total of two or more audit findings of material weakness or questioned costs
associated with its Head Start funds in audit reports submiited to the Federal Andit
Clearinghouse (in accordance with section 647 of the Act) for a financial period within the
curfent project pexiod.

§1304.12 Grantee reporting requirements concerning certain
conditions.

A Head Start agency must report in writing to the responsible HHS official within 10 working days
of occurtence of any of the following events:

(a) The agency has had a revocation of a license to operate a center by a state of local licensing entity.

(b) The agency has filed for bankruptcy ot agreed t0 a reorganization plan as part of a bankruptcy
settlement.

(¢) The agency has been debarred from receiving federal or state funds from any federal or state
department or agency or has been disqualified from the Child and Adult Care Food Program

(CACFP).

{d) The agency has received an audit, audit review, investigation or inspection report from the
agency's auditor, a state agency, ot the cognizant federal audit agency containing a determination that
the agency is at risk for ceasing to be a going concern.

[304.13 Requirements to be considered for designation for a five-year
period when the existing grantee in a community is not determined to
be delivering a high-quality and comprehensive Head Start program
and is not automatically renewed.

In order to compete for the opportunity to be awarded a five-year grane, an agency must submit an
application to the responsible HHS official that demonstrates that it is the most qualified entity to

New: References are located in the Appendis, starting a1 page 119
102



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.15 — Program Governance

deliver a high-quality and comprehensive Head Start or Eatly Head Start program. The application
must address the criteria for selection listed at section 641(d)(2)*® of the Act for Head Start. Any
agency that has had its Head Start or Early Head Start grant terminated for cause in the preceding
five years is excluded from competing in such competition for the next five yeats. A Head Staxt or
Early Head Srart agency that has had a denial of refunding, as defined in 45 CFR part 1305, in the
preceding five years 1s also excluded from competing.

§1304.14 Tribal government consultation under the Designation
Renewal System for when an Indian Head Start grant is being
considered for competition.

(a) In the case of an Indian Head Start or Eatly Head Start agency determined not to be delivering a
high-quality and comprehensive Head Start or Early Head Start program, the responsible HHS
official will engage in government-to-government consultation with the appropriate tribal
government or governments for the purpose of establishing a plan to improve the quality of the
Head Start program or Early Head Start program operated by the Indian Head Start or Indian Early
Head Start agency.

(1) The plan will be established and implemented within six months after the responsible
HHS official's detexminanon.

(2) Not more than six months after the implementation of that plan, the responsible HHS
official will reevaluate the performance of the Indian Head Start or Early Head Start agency.

{3) If the Indian Head Starc or Early Head Start agency is still not delivering 2 high-quality
and comprehensive Head Start or Early Head Start program, the responsible HHS official will
conduct an open competition to select 2 grantee to provide services for the community
currently being served by the Indian Head Start or Early Head Start agency.

{b) A non-Indian Head Start or Early Head Statt agency will not be eligible to receive a grant to
carey out an Indian Head Start program, unless there is no Indian Head Stast or Eady Head Start
agency available for designation to carry out 2n Indian Head Start or Indian Early Head Start

program.

(c) A non-Indian Head Start ot Eatly Head Start agency may receive a grant to catry out an Indian
Head Start program only until such time as an Indian Head Start or Indian Early Head Start agency
in such community becomes available and is designated pursuant to this patt.

§1304.15 Designation request, review and notification process.

(a) A grantce must apply to be consideted for Designation Renewal. A Head Statt or Early Head
Start agency wishing to be considered to have its designation as a [lead Start or Early Head Start
agency renewed fot another five year period without competition must request that stas from ACF
at least 12 months before the end of their five year grant period or by such time as required by the
Secretary.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, staxtiog at page 11%
103



—

Program Governance—§1304.17 45 CFR Chapter XIii

(b) ACF will review the relevant data to determine if one or more of the conditions
under §1304.11 were met by the Head Start and Early Head Scare agency during the
current project period.

(¢) ACF will give notice to grantees on Designation Renewal System status, except as
provided in §1304.14, at least 12 months befote the expiration date of a Head Start ot

Early Head Start agency's current grant, stating:

(1) The Head Start or Early Head Start agency will be required to compete for funding fot an
additional five-year period because ACF finds that one or more conditions under § 1304.11
were met by the agency’s program duting the relevant time period described in paragraph (b)
of this section, identifying the conditions ACF found, and summarizing the basis for the
finding; or

(2) That such agency has been determined on a preliminary basis to be eligible for renewed
funding for five years without competition because ACF finds that none of the conditions
under § 1304.11 have been met during the relevant time period described in paragraph (b) of
this section. If prior to the award of that grant, ACE determines that the grantee has met one
of the conditions under § 1304.11 during the relevant ime period described in paragraph (b)
of this section, this determination will change and the grantee will receive notice under
paragraph (c)(1) of this section that it will be zequired to compete for funding for an
additional five-year period.

§1304.16 Use of CLASS: Pre-K instrument in the Designation Renewal
System.

Except when all childten are setved in a single classroom, ACF will conduct observations of
multiple classes operated by the grantee based on a random sample of all classes and rate the
conduct of the classes observed using the CLASS: Pre-K instrament. When the grantee serves
children in its program in a single class, that class will be observed and rated using the CLASS: Pre-
K instrument. The domain scores for that class will be the domain scores for the grantee for that
observation. After the observations are completed, ACF will report to the grantee the scores of the
classes observed during the CLASS: Pre-K observations in each of the domains covered by the
CLASS: Pre-K instrument. ACF will average CLASS: Pre-K instrument scores in each domain for
the classes operated by the agency that ACF observed to determine the agency's score in each
domain.

§1304.17 Flexibility for Head Start Designation Renewal
determinations in certain emergencies.

{a) In reviewing the relevant data as described in § 1304.15(b), if ACF determines that one or mote
dara elements described in the conditons in section § 1304.11 is not available due to an emergency
described in paragtaph (b) of this section, ACF may make a designation renewal determination
based on the data elements that are available.

Nate: References are located in the Appendix, sarting at page 119
104



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.30 — Program Governance

(b) The emetgencies atre:

(1) A major disaster declared by the President under section 401 of the Robert T. Stafford
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 5170).

(2) An emergency declared by the President under section 501 of the Robert T. Stafford
Disaster Relief and Emetgency Assistance Act (42 1.5.C. 5191).

(3) A public health emergency declared by the Secretary pursnant to section 319 of the Public
Health Service Act (42 US.C. 247d).

Subpart C — Selection of Grantees through Competition

§1304.20 Selection among applicants.

(a) In selecting an agency to be designated to provide Head Start, Early Head Start, Migrant ot
Seasonal Head Start or tribal Head Start or Early Head Start services, the responsible HHS official
will consider the applicable criteria at Section 641(d) of the Head Start Act and any other criteria
outlined in the funding opporttunity announcement.

(b) In competitions to seplace ot potentially replace a grantee the responsible HHS official will also
consider the extent to which the applicant supposts continuity for participating children, the
community and the continued employment of effective, well qualified personnel.

(c) In competitions to replace or potentially replace a current grantce, the responsible HHS official
will give priority to applicants that have demonstrated capacity in providing effective,
comprehensive, and well-coordinated early childhood education and development services and
ptograms to children and their families.

Subpart D — Replacement of American Indian
and Alaska Native Grantees

§1304.30 Procedure for identification of alternative agency.

(a) An Indian tribe whose Head Start grant has been terminated, relinguished, designated for
competition ot which has been denied refunding as 2 Head Start agency, may identify an alternate
agency and request the responsible HHS official to designate such agency as an alternative agency to
ptovide Head Start services to the tribe if:

(1) The tribe was the only agency that was receiving federal financial assistance to provide
Head Start services to members of the tribe; and,

(2) The tribe would be otherwise precluded from providing such services to its members
because of the termination or denial of refunding,

MNote: References are located in the Appendis, starting at page 119

105



Program Governance— §1304.32 45 CFR Chapter Xl

b)(1) The responsible HHS official, when notifying a tribal grantee of the intent to terminate
financial assistance or deny its application for refunding, or its designation for competition must
notify the grantee that it may identify an agency and request that the agency serve as the alternative
agency in the event that the grant is terminated or refunding denied, or the grant is not renewed
without competition.

(2) The tribe must identify the alternate agency to the responsible HHS official in writing,

(3) The responsible HHS official will notify the tribe, in writing, whether the alternative
agency proposed by the tribe is found to be eligible for Head Start funding and capable of
operating a Head Start program. If the alternative agency identified by the tribe is not an
eligible agency capable of operating a Head Start program, the tribe will have 15 days from
the date of the sending of the notification to that effect from the tesponsible HHS official to
identify another agency and request that the agency be designated. The responsible HHS
official will notify the tribe in writing whether the second proposed alternate agency is found
to be an eligible agency capable of operating the Head Start program.

(4) If the tribe does not identify an eligible, suitable alternative agency, a grantee will be
designated under these regulations.

(c) If the tribe appeals a termination of financial assistance or a dental of refunding, 1t will, consistent
with the terms of §1304.5, contdnue to be funded pending resolution of the appeal. However, the
responsible HHS official and the grantee will proceed with the steps outlined in this regulation
during the appeal process.

(d) If the tribe does not identify an agency and request that the agency be appointed as the
alternative agency, the responsible HHS official will seek a permanent replacement grantee under

these regulations.
§1304.31 Requirements of alternative agency.

The agency identified by the Indian tribe must establish that it meets all requirements established by
the Head Start Act and these requirements for designation as a Head Start grantee and that it is
capable of conducting a Head Start program. The responsible HHS official, in deciding whether to
designate the proposed agency, will analyze the capacity and experience of the agency according to
the criteria found in section 641(d) of the Head Start Act and §1304.20.

§1304.32 Alternative agency—prohibition.

(@) No agency will be designated as the alternative agency pursuant to this subpart if the agency
includes an emplovee who:

(1) Served on the administrative or program staff of the Indian tribal grantee described under
section 646(e)(1}(A) of the Act™; and

{2} Was responsible for a deficiency that:

Nore: References are bocated in the Appendix, statting at page 119
106



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.41 — Program Governance

(i) Relates to the perfotmance standards or financial management standards described in
section 641A(a)(1D* of the Act; and,

{if} Was the basis for the termination of assistance undet section 646(e}(1)(A)” of the
Act or denial of refunding described in §1304.4.

(b} The responsible HHS official shall detcrmine whether an employee was responsible for a
deficiency within the meaning and context of this section.

Subpart E — Head Start Fellows Program

§1304.40 Purpose.

As provided in section 648A(d)® of the Act, the Head Start Fellows Program is designed to enhance
the ability of Head Start Fellows to make significant contributions to Head Start and to other child
development and family services programs.

§1304.41 Head Start Fellows Program.

(2) Selection. An applicant must be working on the date of application in a local Head Start program
ot otherwise working in the field of child development and family services. The qualifications of the
applicants for Head Start Fellowship positions will be competitively reviewed.

(b) Placement. Head Start Fellows may be placfed in the Head Start national and regional offices;
local Head Start agencies and programs; institutions of higher education; public of ptivate entities
and organizations concerned with services to children and families; and other appropriate settings.

(c) Resurictions. A Head Start Pellow who is not an employee of a local Head Start agency or
program may only be placed in the national or regional offices within the Department of Health and
Human Services that administer Head Start or local Head Start agencies, Head Start Fellows shall
not be placed in any agency whose ptimary purpose, ot one of whose major purposes is to influence
federal, state or local legislation.

(d) Dugation. Head Start Fellowships will be for terms of one year, 2nd may be renewed for a term
of one additional yeat.

(¢) Status. For the purposes of compensation for injuties under chapter 81 of title 5, United States
Code, Head Start Fellows shall be considered to be cmployees, or otherwise in the service ot
employment, of the federal government. Head Start Fellows assigned to the national or regional
offices within the Department of Health and Human Services shall be considered employees in the
Executive Branch of the federal government for the purposes of chapter 11 of title 18, United States
Code, and for the purposes of any administrative standards of conduct applicable to the employees
of the agency to which they are assigned.

Mote: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
107



Administratien for Children and Families, HHS §1305.2 — Definitions

Part 1305 — Definitions

Section
1305.1  Purpose.
1305.2  Terms.

AUTHORITY: 42 U.S.C. 9801 ## seq.

§1305.1 Purpose.

The purpose of this part is to define terms for the purposes of this subchapter.

§1305.2 Terms.

For the purposes of this subchaptet, the following definitions apply:

ACF mecans the Administration for Children and Families in the Department of Health and Human

Services.

Act means the Head Start Act, Sec. 635 et seq., Pub. L. 97-35, 95 Stat. 499-511 (codified as amended
at 42 U.5.C. Section 9801, ¢f seq.).

Ageney means the body that receives the Head Start grant.

Aggregate child-fevel arsessment data means the data collected by an agency on the status and progress of
the children it sexrves that have been combined to provide summary information about groups of
children enrolled in specific classes, centers, home-hased or other options, groups ot setings, or
other groups of children such as dual language learners, or to provide summary informaton by
specific domains of development.

Allowable alternate vehicl means a vehicle designed for carrying cleven ot mote people, including the
driver, that meets all the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards applicable to school buses, except

49 CFR 571.108 and 571.131.

Budget period means the interval of time, into which a multi-year petiod of assistance (project period)
is divided for budgctary and funding purposes.

Case plan is defined as presented in 42 U.S.C. 675(1)* which, in summary, is a written document that
must include a number of specified items including, but is not limited to, a plan for safe and proper
care of the child in foster care placement, health records, and a plan for ensuring the educational
stability of the child in foster care.

Child-level assessment data means the data collected by an agency on an individual child from one or
more valid and reliable asscssments of a child's status and progress, including but not limited to
direct assessment, structured observations, checklists, staff ot parent report measures, and portfolio
records or wotk samples.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting a1 page 119
109



Definitions §1305.2

Child vecords means records thar

(1) Are direcdy related o the child;
(2) Are maintained by the program, or by a party acting for the program; and

{(3) Include information tecotded in any way, such as print, electronic, ot digital means,
including media, video, image, or audio format,

Child restraint systern means any device designed to restrain, seat, ot position children that meets the
cutrent requirements of Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard No. 213, Child Restraint Systems, 49
CFR 571.213, for children in the weight category established under the regulation, or any device
designed to restrain, seat, or position children, other than a Type I seat belt as defined at 49 CFR
571.209, for children not in the weight category currently established by 49 CFR 571.213.

Child with a disabifity is defined in the same manner as presented in the Head Start Act, 42 U.S.C.
9801.

CI.ASS: Pre-K means The Classroom Assessment Scoring System (CILASS). The CLASS is an
obsetrvational instrument that assesses classroom quality in preschool through third grade
classrooms. This tool meets the requirements described in 641 (c){(1)(D) and 641A{)(2)(F) of the
Head Start Act (42 U.S.C. 9836(c)(1)(D) and 9836a(c)(2)(F)). The CLASS assesses three domains of
classroom experience: Emotional Support, Classroom Organization, and Instructgonal Support.

(1) Emotional Support measures children’s social and emotional functioning in the classroom,
and includes four dimensions: Positive Climate, Negative Clitate, Teacher Sensitivity and
Regard for Student Perspectives. Positive Climate addresses the emotional connection,
respect, and enjoyment demonstrated between teachers and children and among children.
Negative Climate addresses the level of expressed negativity such as anger, hosdlity, or
aggression exhibited by teachers and/or children in the classroom. Teacher Sensitivity
addresses teachers’ awareness of and responsivity to children’s academic and emotional
concerns. Regard for Student Perspectives addresses the degree to which teachers’
interactions with children and classroom activities place an emphasis on children’s interests,
motvations, and Points of view.

(2) Classroom Organization measures a broad array of classtoom processes related to the
organization and management of children’s behaviot, time, and attention in the classroom. It
includes three dimensions: Behavior Management, Productivity, and Instructional Learning
Formats. Behavior Management addresses how effectively teachers monitor, prevent, and
redirect behavior. Productivity addresses how well the classtoom runs with respect to
routines and the degree to which teachers organize activities and directions so that maximum
time can be spent on learning activities. Instructional Learning Fotmats addresses how
teachers facilitate activities and provide interesting matetials so that children are engaged and
learning oppottunities are maximized.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
110



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1305.2 — Definitions

-

(3) Instructional Support measures the ways in which teachers implement curriculum to
effectively support cognitive and langnage development. It includes three dimensions:
Concept Development, Quality of Feedback, and Language Modeling. Concept Development
addresses how teachers use instructional discussions and activities to promote children’s
higher order thinking skills in contrast to a focus on rote instruction. Quality of Feedback
addresses how teachers extend children’s learning through their responses to children’s ideas,
comments, and work. Language Modeling addresses the extent to which teachers facilitate
and encourage children’s language.

(4) Assessments with the CLASS involve observation-based measurement of each dimension
on 2 seven point scale. A score ranging from 1 {minimally characteristic) to 7 (highly
characteristic) is given for each dimension and represents the extent to which that dimension
is characteristic of that classtoom. Relevant dimension scores are used to calculate each

domain score.

Commercial Driver's License (CDL} means a license issued by a state or other jurisdiction, in accordance
with the standards contained in 49 CFR patt 383%, to an individual which authorizes the individual
to operate a class of commercial motor vehicles.

Construction means new buildings, and excludes renovations, alterations, additons, or work of any
kind to existing buildings.

Continuity of care means Head Start or Eaxly Head Start services provided to children in 2 manner that
promotes primary caregiving and minimizes the number of transitions in teachers and teacher
assistants that children experience over the course of the day, week, program year, and to the extent
possible, during the course of their participation from birth to age three in Early Head Start and in

Head Start.

Defisiency is defined in the same manner as presented in the Head Start Act, 42 U.S.C. 98017,
Delggate agency is defined in the same manner as presented in the Head Start Act, 42 US.C. 9801%

Denial of Refunding means the refusal of a funding agency to fund an application for a continuation of
a Head Start program for a subsequent program year when the decision is based on a determination
that the grantee has imptopetly conducted its program, or is incapable of doing so propetly in the
future, or otherwise is in violaton of applicable law, regulations, or other policies.

Development and adminisiraiive costs mean costs incurred in accordance with an approved Head Start
budget which do not directly relate to the provision of program component services, including
services to children with disabilities, as set forth and described 1n the Head Start program
petformance standards (45 CER part 1304).

Disclosnre means to permit access 1o ot the releasc, transfer, or other communication of PII
contained in child recerds by any means, including oral, written, or electronic means, to any party
except the patty identified as the party that provided or created the recotd.

Double session vaviation means a center-based option that employs a single teacher to work with one
group of children in the morning and a different group of children in the aftetnoon.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, startng at page 119
m



Definitions §1305.2

Dual benefit costs mean costs incurred in accordance with an approved Head Start budget which
directly relate to both development and administrative functions and to the program component
services, including services to children with disabilities, as set forth and described in the Head Start
program performance standards (45 CFR part 1304).

Dual langrage kearner means a child who is acquiring two or more languages at the same time, or a
child who is learning a sccond language while continuing to develop their first language. The term
"dual language learner” may encompass or overlap substantially with other terms frequently used,
such as bilingual, English language leatner (ELL), Limited Enghsh Proficient (LEP), English learner,
and children who speak a Language Other Than English LLOTE),

Early Head Start agency means a public or private non-profit or for-profit entity designated by ACF to
operate an Early Head Start program to serve pregnant women and children from birth to age three,
pursuant to Section 645A(e) of the Head Start Act.

Enrolied (or any variation off means a child has been accepted and attended at least one class for center-
based or family child care option or at least one home visit for the home-based option.

Enroliment year means the period of time, not to exceed twelve months, during which a Head Start
program provides centetr or home-based services to a group of children and their families.

Fuacility means a structure, such as a building ot modular unit, appropriate for use in carrying out a
Head Start program and used primarily to provide Head Start services, including services to children
and their families, or for administrative purposes ot other activities necessary to carty out 2 Head
Start program.,

Family means all persons living in the same household who are supported by the child’s patent(s)’ or
guardian(s)® income; and are related to the child’s parent(s) or guardian(s) by blood, marriage, or
adoption; or are the child’s authotized caregiver or legally responsible patty.

Federal inzerest is a property right which secures the xight of the federal awarding agency to recover
the cutrent fair market value of its percentage of participation in the cost of the facility in the event
the facility is no longer used for Head Start putposes by the grantee or upon the disposition of the
property. Whea a grantee uses Head Start funds to purchase, constmct or renovate a facility, or
make mortgage payments, it creates a federal interest, The federal interest includes any portion of
the cost of purchase, construction, ot renovation contributed by or for the entity, or a related donos
otganization, to satisfy a matching tequirement.

Federal Motor Vebicle Safety Standards (FMI/55) means the National Highway and Traffic Safety
Administration's standatds for motor vehicles and motor vehicle equipment (49 CFR part 571)
established under section 30111 of Title 49, United States Code,

Financial viability means that an organization is able to meet its financial obligations, balance funding
and expenses and maintain sufficient funding to achieve organizational goals and objectives.

Fixed route means the established routes to be traveled on a regular basis by vehicles that transport
childten to and from Head Start or Easly Head Statr program activities, and which include
specifically designated stops where children board or exit the vehicle,

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
112



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1305.2 — Definitions

Foster care means 24-hour substitute care for children placed away from their parents or guardians
and for whom the state agency has placement and cate responsibility. This includes, but is not
limited to, placements in foster family homes, foster homes of relatives, group homes, emergency
shelters, residential facilities, child-cate institutions, and pre-adoptive homes. A child is in foster care
in accordance with this definidon regardless of whether the foster care facility is licensed and
payments are made by the state or local agency for the cate of the child, whether adoption subsidy
payments arc being made prior to the finalizaton of an adoption, ot whether there is federal
matching of any payments that are made.

Full-working-day means not less than 10 houss of Head Start or Early Head Start services per day.

Funded envollment means the number of pattcipants which the Head Start grantee is to serve, as
indicated on the grant award.

Guoing concern means an organization that operates without the threat of ligquidation for the foreseeable
future, a period of at least 12 months.

Grantee means the local public or private non-profit agency or for-profit agency which has been
designated as a Head Start agency under 42 1U.S.C. 9836 and which has been granted financial
assistance by the responsible HHS official to operate a Head Start program.

Hoead Start agency means a local public or private non-profit or for-profit entity designated by ACF to
operate a Head Start program to serve children age three to compulsory school age, pursuant to
secton 641(b) and {d) of the Head Start Act.

Head Start Early 1sarning Outcomes Framework: Ages Birth to Five means the Head Start Eary Learning
Quteomes Framework: Ages Birth to Five, which describes the skills, behaviors, and knowledge that
programs must foster in all children. It includes five central domains: Approaches to Leatning;
Social and Emotional Development; Language and Literacy; Cognition; and Perceptuat, Motor, and
Physical Development. These central domains are broken into five domains for infants and toddlers
and seven domains for preschoolers. Infant and Toddler domains are Approaches to Learning;
Social and Emotional Development; Langnage and Communication; Cognition; and Perceptual,
Motor, and Physical Development. Preschool domains are Approaches to Learning; Social and
Emotional Development; Language and Communication; Literacy; Mathematics Development;
Scientific Reasoning; and Perceptual, Motor, and Physical Development. Domains are divided into
sub-domazins with goals that describe broad skills, behaviors, and concepts that are important for
school success. Developmental progressions describe the skills, behaviors and concepts that children
may demonstrate as they progress. As described in the Head Start Act, the Framework is central to
program operations that promote high-quality early learning environments (42 U.S.C.
983221)(G)(iv)(IT){aa), 42 U.8.C. 9835(0), 42 U.S.C. 9836(dy(2)(C), 42 U.S.C. 9836a(g)(2)(A), 42
1.8.C. 9837(H(3)(E), 42 U.S.C. 9837a(2)(3), 42 U.S.C. 9837a(a)(14), 42 U.S.C. 9837b(a)(2)B)(iii), 42
U.S.C. 9837b(2)}(4)(A){), and 42 U.S.C. 9837b{a)(4)(B)(ii)).

Homeless children means the same as homeless children and youths in Section 725(2)% of the
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act at 42 U.S.C. 11434a (2).

Naote: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
113



Definitions §1305.2

Home visitor means the staff member in the home-based program option assigned to work with
parcnts to provide comprchensive services to children and their families through home visits and
group socialization activities.

Hours of planned class gperations means hours when children are scheduled to attend. Professional
development, training, orientation, teacher planning, data analysis, parent-teacher conferences, home
visits, classroom sanitation, and transportation do not count toward the hours of planned class
operations.

Income means gross cash income and includes earned income, military income (including pay and
allowances, except those described in Section 645(a)(3)(B)* of the Act), veteran’s benefits, Social
Security benefits, unemployment compensation, and public assistance benefits. Additional examples
of gross cash income are listed in the definition of “income’ which appears in U.S. Bureau of the
Census, Current Population Reports, Series P-60-185 (available at

hetps:/ /www2.census.gov/prod2/popscan/p60-185.pdf).

Indian Head Start agency means a program operated by an Indian wibe (as defined by the Act) or
designated by an Indian tribe to operate on its behalf.

Indian tribe is defined in the same manner as presented in the Head Start Act, 42 11.8.C. 9801,

Individualized Edncation Program: is defined in the same manner as presented in the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq.)®.

Individnatized Family Service Plan is defined in the same manner as presented in the Individnals with
Disabilities Education Act (20 U.8.C. 1400 et seq.}?.

Legal statns means the existence of an applicant or grantee as a public agency or organization under
the law of the state in which it is located, or existence as a private nonprofit or for-profit agency or
organization as a legal entity recognized under the law of the state in which it is located. Existence as
a private non-profit agency or organtzation may be established under applicable state or federal law.

Local agency responsible for imiplementing IDE.A means the early intervention service provider under Part
C of IDEA and the local educational agency under Part B of IDEA.

Magor renovatzon means any individual of collection renovation that has a cost equal to or exceeding
$250,000. It excludes minor renovations and repairs except when they are included in a purchase
application.

Migrant family roeans, for purposes of Head Start eligibility, a family with children under the age of
compulsory school attendance who changed their residence by moving from one geographic
location to another, either intrastate or interstate, within the preceding rwo years for the purpose of
engaging in agricultural wotk and whose tamily income comes primarily from this activity.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
114



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1305.2 — Definitions

Migrant or Seasonal Head Start Program means:

(1) With respect to services for migrant farm workers, a Head Start program that serves
families who are engaged in agticultural labot and who have changed theit residence from one

geogiaphic location to another in the preceding 2-year period; and,

(2) With respect to scrvices for seasonal farmworkers, a Head Start program that serves
families who are engaged primarily in seasonal agricultural labor and who have not changed
their residence to another geographic location in the preceding 2-year period.

Minor resopation means improvements to facilities, which do not meet the definition of major
renovation.

Modular nnif means a portable prefabricated structure made at another location and moved to a site
for use by a Head Start grantce to carry out a Head Start program, regardless of the manner or
extent to which the modular unit is attached to uaderlying real property.

National Driver Register means the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration’s automated
system for assisting state driver license officials in obtaining information regarding the driving
records of individuals who have been denied licenses for cause; had their licenses denied for cause,
had their licenses canceled, revoked, or suspended for cause, or have been convicted of certain
setious driving offenses.

Parent means a Head Start child's mother or father, other family member who is a primary caregiver,
foster parent or authorized caregiver, guardian or the person with whom the child has been placed
for purposes of adoption pending a final adoption decree.

Participant means a pregnant woman ot child who is entolled in and receives services from a Head
Start, an Barly Head Start, a Migrant or Seasonal Head Starr, or an American Indian and Alaska

Native Head Start program,

Personally identifiable infornation (PII) means any information that could identify a specific individual,
including but not limited to a child’s name, name of a child’s family member, street address of the
child, social security number, or other information that is linked or linkable to the child.

Program means 2 Head Start, Early Head Start, migrant, scasonal, or tribal program, funded under the
Act and carried out by an agency, or delegate agency, to provide ongoing comprehensive child
development services.

Program costs mean costs incnrred in accordance with an approved Head Start budget which directly
relate to the provision of program component services, including services to children with
disabilities, as set forth and described in the Head Start Program Performance Standards (45 CFR
part 1304},

Purchase means to buy an existing facility, inclading outright purchase, down payment or through
payments made in satisfaction of 2 mortgage or other loan agreement, whether principal, interest or
an allocated portion principal and/or interest. The use of grant funds to make a payment under a
capital lease agreement, as defined in the cost principles, is a purchase subject to these provisions.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, stardng at page 119
115



Definitions §1305.2

Putchase also refers to an approved use of Head Start funds to continue paying the cost of
purchasing facilities or refinance an existing loan ot mortgage beginning in 1987.

Real praperty means land, including land improvements, buildings, structures and all appurtenances
thereto, excluding movable machinery and equipment,

Recruitment area means that geographic locality within which 2 Head Start program seeks to enroll
Head Start children and families. The recruitment area can be the same as the service atea ot it can

be a smaller area or areas within the service area.

Relevant time poriod means.
(1) The 12 months preceding the month in which the application 1s submitted; ot

(2) During the calendar year preceding the calendar vear in which the application is submitted,
whichever more accurately reflects the needs of the family at the time of application.

Rgparr means maintenance that is necessary to keep a Head Start facility in working condition.
Repaits do not add significant value to the property ot extend its useful life.

Regponsible HHLS official means the official of the Depattment of Health and Human Services who has
authority to make grants under the Act.

School readiness goals mean the expectations of children's status and progress across domains of

language and literacy development, cognition and general knowledge, approaches to learning,
physical well-being and motot development, and social and emotional development that will

improve their readiness for kindergarten.

Sechool bus means a motor vehucle designed for carrying 11 or mote persons (including the driver) and
which complies with the Federal Motor Vehicle Safery Standards applicable to school buses.

Service area means the geographic area identified in an approved grant application within which a
grantee may provide Head Start services.

Staff means paid adults who have responsibilities related to children and their families who are
enrolled in programs.

Stateis defined in the same manner as presented in the Head Start Act, 42 U.S.C. 9801%.

Termination of @ grant or delegate agency agreement means permanent withdrawal of the grantee's o1
delegate agency's authority to obligate previously awarded grant funds before that anthority would
otherwise expire. It also means the voluntary relinquishment of that authority by the grantee o
delegate agency. Termination does not include: '

(1) Withdrawal of funds awarded on the basis of the grantee's or delegate agency's
underestimate of the unobligated balance in a prior period;

(2) Refusal by the funding agency to extend 2 grant or award additonal funds (such as refusal
to make a competing or noncompeting continuation renewal, extension or supplemental

award);

Note: References are located in the Appendix, starting at page 119
116



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1305.2 — Deefinitions

(3) Withdrawal of the unobligated balance as of the expiration of a grant; and

(4) Annulment, i.e., voiding of a grant upon determination that the award was obtained
fraudulently or was otherwise illegal or invalid from its inception.

Total approved costs mean the sum of all costs of the Head Start program approved for a given
budget period by the Administration for Children and Families, as indicated on the Financial
Assistance Awatd. Total approved costs consist of the federal share plus any approved non-federal
match, including non-federal match above the statutory minimum.

Transition pesiod means the three-year time period after December 9, 2011, on the Designation
Renewal System during which ACF will convert all of the cutrent continuous Head Start and Early
Head Start grants into five-year grants after reviewing each grantee to determine if it meets any of
the conditions under §1304.12 of this chapter that require recompetition ot if the grantee will receive
its first five-year grant non-competitively.

Transporiation services means the planned transporting of children to and from sites where an agency
provides services funded under the Head Start Act. Transportation services can involve the pick-up
and dischatge of children at regulatly scheduled times and pre-atranged sites, including trips between
children's homes and program settings. The term includes services provided directly by the Head
Statt and Farly Head Start grantee or delegate agency and services which such agencies arrange to be
provided by anothet organization ot an individual. Incidental trips, such as transporting a sick child
home before the end of the day, or such as might be required to transport small groups of children
to and from necessary services, are not inclhuded under the term.

erify or any variance of the word means to check or determine the correctness or truth by
investigation ot by reference.

Note: References are located in the Appendix, startog at page 119
117



»

Administration for Children and Families, HHS Statutory References andVWeb Resources

Appendix: Statutory References and Web Resources

1. Section 642(c)(1)(B) of the Acc:
{1) GOVERNING BODY-
(B) COMPOSITION- The govetning body shall be composed as follows:

(@) Not less than 1 member shall have a background and expertise in fiscal

management or accounting.

(i) Not less than 1 member shall have a background and expertise in early

childhood education and development.

(i) Not less than 1 member shall be a licensed attorney familiar with issues that

come before the governing body.

(iv) Additional members shall—
(I) reflect the community to be served and include parents of children who
are currently, or were formetly, enrolled in Head Statt programs; and
(D) are sclected for their expertise in educaton, business administration, or
community affairs.

(v) Exceptions shall be made to the requirements of clauses (i) through

(iv) for members of a governing body when those members oversee a public

entity and are selected to their positions with the public entity by public election
ot political appointment.

(vi) If a person described in clause (i), (ii), or (iii) is hot available to setve as 2
member of the governing body, the governing body shall use a consultant, or an
other individual with relevant expertise, with the qualifications described in that
clause, who shall wotk ditectly with the governing body.

2. Section 642(c)(1){D) of the Act:
(1) GOVERNING BODY-
(D) EXCEPTION- If an individual holds a position as a result of public election ot
political appointment, and such position carries with it a concurrent appointment to
serve as a member of a Head Start agency governing body, and such individual has any
conflict of interest described in clause (ii) or (iii) of subparagraph (C)—

(i) such individual shall not be prohibited from serving on such body and the
Head Start agency shall report such conflict to the Sectetary; and

Note: This document consists of excerpts from Public Law 110-134 “Improving Head Start for School Readiness Act of
2007 and other statutes. Readers may wish to congult the statutes in full for additional information. Web links and
statatory language were excerpted at the time of compilation on September 15, 2016, but may change over time.

119



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter Xl

{ii) if the position held as a result of public election or political appointment
provides compensation, such individual shall not be prohibited from receiving
such compensation.

3.  Section 642(c)(1){C) of the Act:
(1) GOVERNING BODY-
{C) CONFLICT OF INTEREST- Members of the governing body shall—
(i) not have a financial conflict of interest with the Head Start agency (including
any delegate agency);
(ii) not receive compensation for setving on the goveming body ot fot providing
services to the Head Start agency;

{iii) not be employed, nor shall members of theit immediate family be employed,
by the Head Start agency (including any delegate agency); and

(iv} opcratc as an entity independent of staff employed by the Head Start agency.

4. Section 642(c)(1)(E) of the Act:
(1) GOVERNING BODY-
(E) RESPONSIBILITIES- The governing body shall—

{i) have legal and fiscal responsibility for administeting and overseeing programs
under this subchapter, including the safegnarding of Federal funds;

(i) adopt practices that assure active, independent, and informed governance of
the Head Statt agency, including practices consistent with subsection (d)(1), and
fully participate in the development, planning, and evaluation of the flcad Start
programs involyved;
{iii) be responsible for ensuring compliance with Federal laws (including
regulations) and applicablc State, tribal, and local laws (including regulations); and
{iv) be responsible for other actvides, including-

(D) sclecting delegate agencies and the service areas for such agencies;

(IT) establishing procedures and criteria for trecruitment, selection, and

entollment of children;

(IT1) reviewing all applications for funding and amendments to applications

for funding for programs under this subchapter;

(IV) establishing procedures and guidelines for accessing and collecting
informaton described in subsection (d)(2);

120



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

(V) reviewing and approving all major policies of the agency, including- (aa)
the annual self-assessment and financial audit; (bb) such agency’s progress
in carrying out the programmatc and fiscal provistons in such agency’s
grant application, including implementation of corrective actions; and (cc)
personnel policies of such agencies regarding the hiring, cvaluation,
termination, and compensation of agency employees;

(V1) developing procedures for how members of the policy council are
selected, consistent with paragraph (2)(B);

(VIT} approving financial management, accounting, and reporting policies,
and compliance with laws and regulations related to financial statements,
including the—

(aa) approval of all major financial expendinares of the agency;
(bb) annual approval of the operating budget of the agency;

(cc) selection (except when 2 financial auditor is assigned by the State
under State law or is assigned under local law) of independent
financial auditors who shall report all critical accounting policies and
practices to the governing body; and

(ddy monitoring of the agency’s actions to correct any audit findings
and of other action necessaty to comply with applicable laws
(including regulations) governing financial statement and accounting
practices;

(VIID) reviewing results from monitoring conducted under section 641A(c),
including appropriate followup activities;
(IX) approving petsonnel policies and procedures, including policies and
procedures regarding the hiting, evaluation, compensation, and termination
of the Executive Director, Head Start Directot, Director of Human
Resources, Chief Fiscal Officer, and any other person in an equivalent
position with the agency;
(X) establishing, adopting, and periedically updating written standards of
conduct that establish standards and formal procedures for disclosing,
addressing, and tesclving—
(22) any conflict of interest, and any appearance of a conflict of
interest, by members of the governing body, officers and employees
of the Head Start agency, and consultants and agents who provide
setvices or futnish goods to the Head Start agency; and

(bb) complaints, including investigations, when appropriate; and

(XD) to the extent practicable and appropriate, at the discretion of the
governing body, establishing advisory committees to oversee key

121



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter X/

responsibilides telated to program governance and improvement of the
Head Start program involved.

5. Section 642(d)(2) of the Act;
(d} Program Governance Administration-

(2) CONDUCT OF RESPONSIBILITIES- Each Head Start agency shall ensare the
sharing of accurate and regular informarion for use by the governing body and the policy
council, about program planning, policies, and Head Start agency opetations,
including—

(A) monthly financial statements, including credit card expenditures;

(B) monthly program information summaries;

(C) program enrollment reports, inchading attendance reports for children whose
care 1s partially subsidized by another public agency;

(12) monthly reports of meals and snacks provided through programs of the
Department of Agriculture;

(E) the financial audig;

(F)the annual self-assessment, including any findings related to such assessment;
(G) the communitywide strategic planning and needs assessment of the Head Statt
agency, including any applicable updates;

(H) communication and guidance from the Secretary; and

(1) the program information repotts.

6. Section 642(cH2)(B) of the Act:
(2} POLICY COUNCIL-
(B) COMPOSITTION AND SELECTION-

(i) The policy council shall be elected by the parents of childten who ate currently
enrolled in the Head Start program of the Head Start agency.

(i) The policy council shall be composed of—

(D) parents of children who are cutrently enrolled in the Head Start
program of the Head Start agency (including any delegate agency), who
shall constitute a majority of the members of the policy council; and

(D) members at large of the community served by the Head Start agency
(including any delegate agency), who may include parents of children who
wete formetly enrolled in the Head Start program of the agency.

122



Administration for Children and Famifies, HHS

o3

Section 642(c)(3) of the Act:
(3) POLICY COMMITTEES- Each delegate agency shall create a policy committee, which
shall—
(A) be elected and composed of members, consistent with paragraph (2)(B) (with respect
to delegate agencies);
(B) follow procedutes to prohibit conflict of interest, consistent with clauses (i) and (ii)
of paragraph (Z)(C) (with respect to delegate agencies); and
(C) be responsible for approval and submission of decisions about activities as they
relate to the delegate agency, consistent with paragraph (2)(D) (with respect to delegate
agencies}.

8. Section 642(c){(2)}(C) of the Act:
(2) POLICY COUNCIL-
(C) CONFLICT OF INTEREST- Members of the policy council shall-
(i) not have a conflict of interest with the Head Start agency (including any dele-
gate agency); and
(i} not receive compensation for sexrving on the policy council or for providing
services to the Head Start agency.

9. Section 642(c)(3}(B) of the Act:

(3) POLICY COMMITTEES- Each delegate agency shall create a policy committee, which
shall—
(B) follow procedutes to prohibit conflict of interest, consistent with clauses (i) and (i)
of paragraph (2)(C) {with respect to delegate agencies);

10. Section 642(c)(2)(D) of the Act:
(2) POLICY COUNCIL-

(D) RESPONSIBILITIES- The policy council shall approve and submit to the
governing body decisions about each of the following acuvitics:

(i) Activities to support the active involvement of parcnts in supporting program
operations, inchuding policies to ensure that the Head Start agency is responsive to

community and parent needs.

(ii) Program recruitment, selection, and enrollment priotities.

(i) Applications for funding and amendments to applications for funding for
programs under this subchapter, prior to submission of applications desctibed in

this clause.

123



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter Xl

(iv) Budget planning for program expenditures, including policies for
reimbursement and participation in policy council activites.

{) Bylaws tor the operation of the policy council.

{(vi) Program personnel policies and decisions regarding the employment of
program staff, consistent with paragraph (1)(E}(iv){IX), including standards of

conduct for program staff, contractors, and volunteers and criteria for the
employment and dismissal of program staff.

{vi) Developing procedures for how members of the policy council of the Head
Start agency will be elected.

{vii) Recommendations on the selection of delegate agencies and the service areas
for such agencies.

11. McKinney-Vento Local Education Agency Liaisons (42 U.S.C. 11432 (6)(A)):
(6) LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY LIAISON
(A) Duties - Each local educational agency liatson for homeless chidren and youths,
designated under paragraph (1)(J)(ii), shall ensure that—

(i) homeless children and youths are identified by school personnel and through
coordination activities with other entities and agencies;

(i) homeless children and youths entoll 1n, and have a full and equal opportunity
to succeed in, schools of that local educational agency,

(iii) homeless families, children, and youths receive educational sexrvices for which
such families, children, and youths are eligible, including Head Statt and Even
Start programs and ptreschool programs administered by the local educational
agency, and referrals to health care services, dental services, mental health
services, and other appropriate services;

(1v) the patrents ot guardians of homeless children and youths are informed of the
educational and related opportunities available to their children and are provided
with meaningful opportunities to participate in the education of their children;

{v) public notice of the educational rights of homeless children and youths is
disseminated where such children and youths receive services under this chapeer,
such as schools, family shelters, and soup kitchens;

{vi) enrollment disputes are mediated in accordance with paragraph (3)(B); and

{vit) the parent or guardian of a homeless child or youth, and any unaccompanied
youth, is fully informed of all transportation sexvices, including transportation to
the school of origin, as described in paragraph (1){J)(iif}, and is assisted in
accessing transpottation to the school that is selected under paragraph (3)(A).

124



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

12. Section 645(a)(2) of the Act:

(2) Whenever 2 Head Start program is operated in a community with a population of 1,000 or
less individuals and-
(A) there is no other preschool program in the community;
(B) the community is located in 2 medically underserved arca, as designated by the
Secretary pursuant to section 330(b)(3) of the Public Health Service Act [42 U.S.C.
§254c(b)(3)] and is located in a health professional shortage area, as desighated by the
Secretary pursuant to section 332(2)(1) of such Act [42 U.S.C. §254e(a)(1}};

(C) the community is in 2 location which, by reason of remoteness, does not permit
reasonable access to the types of services described in clauses (A) and (B); and

(D) not less than 50 percent of the families to be served in the community are eligible
under the eligibility criteria established by the Secretary under paragraph (1); the Head
Start program in such locality shall establish the criteria for eligibility, except that no
child residing in such community whose family is cligible under such eligibility criteria
shall, by virtue of such project’s eligibility criteria, be denied an opportunity to parucipate
in such program. During the period beginning on the date of the enactment of the
Human Services Reauthorization Act and ending on October 1, 1994, and unless
specifically authorized in any statute of the United States enacted after such date of
enactment, the Secretary may not make any change in the method, as in effect on April
25, 1984, of caleulating income used to prescribe eligibility for the participadon of
persons in the Head Start programs assisted under this subchapter if such change would
result in any reduction in, ot exclusion from, participation of persons in any of such
programs.

13. Sec. 645A of the Act refers to EARLY HEAD START PROGRAMS.

14. 29 U.S.C. 705(9)(b) of the Rehabilitation Act:

(9) DISABILITY - The term “disability” means—
(B) for purposes of sections 701, 711, and 712 of this title, and subchapters II, IV, V,
and VII, the meaning given it in section 12102 of ttle 42,

Section 12102 of Tide 42:

(1) DISABILITY - The term “disability” means, with tespect to an individual—

(A) a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life
activities of such individual;

(B) a record of such an impairment; ox

(C) being regarded as having such an impaitment (as described in paragraph (3).

125



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XIll

(2) MAJOR LIFE ACTIVITIES
(A) In general - For purposes of paragraph (1}, majot life activities include, but are not
lirnited to, caring for eneself, performing manual tasks, seeing, hearing, eating, sleeping,
walking, standing, lifting, bending, speaking, breathing, learning, reading, concentrating,
thinking, communicating, and working,
(B) Major bodily furictons - For putposes of paragraph (1), a major life activity also
includes the operation of a major bodily function, including but not limited to, fancdons
of the immune system, normal cell growth, digestive, bowel, bladder, neurological, brain,
respiratory, circulatory, endocrine, and reproductive functions.

(3) REGARDED AS HAVING SUCH AN IMPAIRMENT - For purposes of paragraph

(MO
{A) An individual meets the requirement of “being regarded as having such an
impairment” if the individual establishes that he or she has been subjected to an action
prohibited under this chapter becaunse of an actual or perceived physical or mental
impairment whether or not the impairment limits ot is perceived to limit a2 major life
activity.
(B) Paragraph (1)(C} shall not apply to impairments that are transitoty and minor. A
transitory impairment is an impairment with an acwal ot expected duraton of 6 months
ot less.

{4y RULES OF CONSTRUCTION REGARDING THE DEFINTTION OF DISABILITY

- The definition of “disability” in patagraph (1) shall be construed in accordanice with the
following;
(A) The definition of disability in this chapter shall be construed in favor of broad
coverage of individuals under this chapter, to the maximum extent pesmitted by the
texms of this chapter.
(B) The term “substantially limits” shall be interpreted consistently with the findings and
purposes of the ADA Amendments Act of 2008.
(C) An impairment that substantially limits one major life activity need not limit other
major life activities in order to be considered a disability.
(D) An impairment that is episodic or in remission is a disability if it would substantially
limit a2 major life activity when acuive.
(E) The determination of whether an impairment substantially limits a major life
activity shall be made without regard to the ameliorative effects of mitigating measures
such as—
() medicatdon, medical supplies, equipment, or appliances, low-vision devices
(which do not include ordinary eyeglasses o1 contact lenses), prosthedcs including

limbs and devices, hearing aids and cochlear implants or other implantable
hearing devices, mobility devices, or oxygen therapy equipment and supplies;

(I} use of assistive technology;

126



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

(TIT} reasonable accommodations or auxiliary aids or services; or
(IV} learned behavioral or adaptive neurological modifications.
(ii) The ameliorative effects of the mitigating measures of ordinary

eyeglasses or contact lenses shall be considered in determining whethes an

impairment substantially limits a major life activity.

(it} As used in this subparagraph—
D) the term “ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses’” means lenises that
are intended to fully correct visual acuity or eliminate refractive errox;
and

(D) the term “low-vision devices” means devices that magnify,
enhaoce, or otherwise augment a visual image.

(i) The amelioradve effects of the mitigating measures of
ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses shall be considered in
determining whether an impairment substantially limits a
major life activity.

(i) As used in this subparagraph—

(D) the term “ordinary eyeglasses or contact lenses”
means lenses that are intended to fully correct visual
acuity or eliminate refractive errot; and

{IT) the term “low-vision devices” means devices that
magnify, enhance, or otherwise anugment a visual
image.

15, Section 645(a)(5) of the Act:
(5)(A) Upon written request and putsuant to the requirements of this paragraph, a Head Start
agency may use funds that were awarded under this subchapter to serve children age 3 to
compulsoty school age, in ordet to serve infants and toddlers if the agency submits an
application to the Secretary containing, as specified in rules issued by the Secretary, all of the
following information:
(i) The amount of such funds that are proposed to be used in accordance wath section
645A(D).
(i) A communitywide strategic planning and needs assessment demonstrating how the
use of such funds would best meet the needs of the community.

(i) A description of how the needs of pregnant women, and of infants and toddlers, will
be addressed in accotdance with section 645A(b), and with regulations presctibed by the
Secretary pursuant to section 641A in areas including the agency’s approach to child
development and provision of health services, approach to family and community
parterships, and approach to program design and management.

127



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter Xl

16.

17.

(v} A desctiption of how the needs of eligible children will be met in the community.
{v) Assurances that the agency will participate in technical assistance activities (includiog
planning, start-up site visits, and national training activities) in the same manner as
recipients of grants under section 645A.
(vi) Evidence that the agency meets the same eligibility criteria as recipients of grants
under section 645A.
(B) An application that satisfies the requirements specified in subparagraph {(A) shall be
approved by the Secretaty unless the Secretary finds that—
(i) the agency lacks adequate capacity and capability to carry out an effective Early Head
Start program,; of
(i) the informadon provided under subparagraph (A) is inadequate.
(C) In approving such applications, the Secretary shall take into account the costs of serving
persons under section 645A.
(D) Any Head Start agency with an application approved under subparagraph (B) shall be

considered to be an Early Head Start agency and shall be subject to the same rules, regulations,
and conditions as apply to recipients of grants under section 645A, with respect to activities

carried out under this paragraph.

Section 645(d)(3) of the Act:

(3) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Act, an Indian tribe or tribes that operates both
an Early Head Start program under section 645A and a Head Staxt progtam may, at its
discretion, at any time during the grant period involved, reallocate funds between the Early
Head Start program and the Head Start program in order to address fluctuations in client
populations, including pregnant women and children from birth to compulsory school age. The
reallocation of such funds between programs by an Indian tribe or tribes during a year shall not
serve as the basis for the Secretary to reduce a base grant (as defined in section 640(a)(7)) for
either program in succeeding years.

Section 640(k)(1) of the Act:

{(l)(1) The Secretary shall allow center-based Head Start programs the flexibility to satisfy the
total number of hours of service required by the regulations in effect on the date of enactment
of the Human Services Amendments of 1994, to be provided to children in Head Start
progtams so long as such agencies do not-

{A) provide less than 3 hours of setvice per day;
{(B) reduce the number of days of setvice per week; or

{C) reduce the number of days of service per year.

128



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973:
https:/ /www.dol.gov/oasam/regs/statutes /sec504.hem
Americans with Disabilities Act:

hatps:/ /www.ada.gov/2010AD Astandards_index.htm

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)
Part C (ages birth — 2 yeass old) http://idea.ed.gov/part-c/statutes

Part B (ages 3-21) http://idea.ed.gov/explore/view/p/%2Croot%2Cregs%2C. For more
resources visit http:/ /idea.ed.gov

Child and Adult Care Food Program: Meal Pattern Revisions (7 CFR 210, 215, 220 and
226):

https:/ /www.federalregister gov/articles /2016,/04/25 /2016-09412/child-and-adult-care-food-
program-meal-pattern-revisions-related-to-the-healthy-hunger-free-kids-act

IDEA and FERPA Confidentiality provisions — a crosswalk by the Department of
Education:

https:/ /wrww2.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/ptac/pdf/idea-ferpa.pdf

Section 642{c)(5) of the Act:

{€) Collaboration 2nd Coerdination- To be so designated, a Head Start agency shall collaborate
and coordinate with public and private entities, to the maximurm extent practicable, to improve
the availability and quality of services to Head Statt children and famihes, including catrying out
the following activities:
(5) Bnter into a memorandum of understanding, not later than 1 year after the date of
enactment of the Improving Head Start for School Readiness Act of 2007, with the
appropriate local entity responsible for managing publicly funded preschool programs in
the service area of the Head Start agency, that shall—
(A)(i) provide for 2 review of each of the activities described in clause (ii); and (in)
include plans to coordinate, as appropriate, activities regarding—

{I) educational activities, curticular objectives, and instruction;

(IT) public information dissemination and access to programs for
families contacting the Head Start program or any of the preschool
PIOZrams;

(1) selection priorides for eligible children to be served by programs;

(IV) service areas;

129



P Y

Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XIlI

(V) staff training, including opportanities for joint staff training on
topics such as academic content standards, instrucuonal methods,
curricula, and social and emotional development;

(VI) ptogram technical assistance;

(VIL) provision of additional services to meet the needs of working
parents, as applicable;

{VII]} communications and parent outreach for smooth transitions to
kindergarten as required in paragraphs (3) and (6) of section 642A(a);

(IX) provision and use of facilities, transportation, and other program
elements; and

(X) other elements mutnally agreed to by the parties to such
memoranduam;

(B) be submutted to the Secretaty and the State Director of Head Start
Collaboraton not later than 30 days after the parties enter into such
memorandum, except that—
() where there is an'absence of publicly funded preschool programs in
the setvice area of a Head Statt agency, this paragraph shall not apply;
or

(it) where the approprate local enuty responsible for managing the
publicly funded preschool programs is unable or unwilling to enter
into such a memorandum, this paragraph shall not apply and the Head
Start agency shall inform the Secretary and the State Director of Head
Start Collaboration of such inability or unwillingness; and

{C) be revised petiodically and renewed biennially by the parties to such
memotandum, in alignment with the beginning of the school year.

23, Section 642(h){13) of the Act:
(b) Family and Community Involvement; Family Services- Te be so designated, a Head Stare
agency shall, at a minimum:
(13) Promote the continued involvement of the parents (including foster parents,

grandparents, and kinship caregivers, as approprate) of children that participate in Head
Start programs in the education of their children upon transition of their children to

school, by working with the local educational agency—
{A) to prowvide training to the parents—
(i) to inform the patents about their rights and responsibilities concerning
the educatdon of their children; and

(if) to enable the parents—

130



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

(D to understand and work with schools in ordet to comumunicate with
teachers and othet school personnel;

(IT) to support the schoolwork of their children; and

(I) to participate as appropriate in decisions relating to the education
of their children; and

(B) to take other actions, as approptiate and feasible, to suppost the active
involvement of the parents with schools, school personnel, and school-related
organizations.

24. The Child Care and Development Block Grant Act, criminal background checks (42
U.S.C. 9858f (c)(1)(D) and (h)(1))
() PROHIBITIONS

(1) CHILD CARE STAFF MEMBERS - A child cate staff member shall be ineligible
for employment by a child care provider that is receiving assistance under this
subchapter if such individual—

(D) has been convicted of a felony consisting of—
() murder, as described in section 1111 of qtle 15;
(‘x\ﬁ L (i) child abuse or neglect;
(iii) 2 crime against children, including child pornography;
(iv) spousal abuse;
(v) a crie involving rape ot sexual assault;
(v1) kadnapping;
(vii) atson;
(viii) physical assault or battery; or
(ix) subject to subsection (£)(4), a drug-related offense committed during
the preceding 5 years
(h)(1) DISQUALIFICATION FOR OTHER CRIMES - Nothing in this section shall be
construed to prevent a State from disqualifying individuals as child cate staff members based on

their conviction for crimes not specifically listed in this section that bear upon the fitness of an
individual to provide care for and have responsibility for the safety and well-being of children.

25. Section 648A(2)(2)(B)(i) of the Act:
(2) DEGREE REQUIREMENTS-

(B) ADDITIONAL STAFF- The Secretary shall ensure that, not later than September
30, 2013, all—

131



Scatutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter Xt

(1) Head Start education coordinators, including those that serve as curriculum
specialists, nationwide in center-based programs—
(D) have the capacity to offer assistance to other teachers in the
implementation and adaptation of curticula to the group and individual
needs of children in a Head Start classroom; and

{(IL) have—
(aa) a baccalaureate or advanced degree in eatly childhood education;
of

{bb) a baccalautcate or advanced degree and coutsework equivalent to
a major relating to early childhood education, with experience teaching
preschool-age children;

26. Section 645A(h) of the Act:
(h) Center-Based Staff- The Secretary shall—

(1) ensure that, not later than September 30, 2010, all teachers providing direct services
to children and families participating in Eatly Head Start programs located in Easrly Head
Start centers, have a minimum of a child development associate credential, and have
been trained (ot have equivalent coursework) in eatly childhood development; and

(2) cstablish staff qualification goals to ensure that not later than September 30, 2012, all
such teachers have been trained (or have equivalent coursework) in eatly childhood
development with a focus on infant and toddler development.

27. Section 648A(a)(3)(B) of the Act:
(3) ALTERNATIVE CREDENTIALING AND DEGREE REQUIREMENTS- The
Sectetary shall ensure that, for center-based programs, each Head Start classroom that does not
have a teacher who meets the qualifications described in clause (i) or (i) of paragraph (2)(A) is
assigned one teacher whe has the following during the period specified:

(B) As of October 1, 2011—
{1} an associate degree in carly chuldhood education;

(i) an assoctate degree in a related feld and coursework equivalent to a major
relating to early childhood education, with experience teaching preschool-age
childten; ot

(i) a baccalaurcare degiee and has been admitted into the Teach For America
program, passed a rigorous eatly childhood content exam, such as the Praxis I,
participated in 2 Teach For America summer training institute that includes
teaching preschool children, and is receiving ongoing professional development
and support from Teach For America’s professional staff.

132



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

28. Section 648A(a)(2)(B)(ii) of the Act:
(2) DEGREE REQUIREMENTS-

(B) ADDITIONAL STAFF- The Secretary shall ensure that, not later than September
30, 2013, all—

(i) Head Start teaching assistants nationwide in center based programs have—
(T) at least a child development associate credential;

(ID) enrolled in a program leading to an associate or baccalautreate degree;
ot

(ID) enrolled in a child development associate credential program to be
completed within 2 yeats.

29. Section 648A(a)(5) of the Act:

(5) TEACHER IN-SERVICE REQUIREMENT- Each Head Start teacher shall attend not less
than 15 clock houss of professional development per year. Such professional development shall
be high quality, sustained, intensive, and classroom-focused in order to have a positive and
lasting impact oa classroom instruction and the teacher’s performance in the classroom, and
regulatly evaluated by the program for effectiveness.

30. Section 644(a)(2) of the Act:

(2) Bach Head Start agency shall make available to the public a report published at least once in
each fiscal year that discloses the following information from the most recently concluded fiscal
year, except that reporting such information shall not reveal personally idendfiable information

about an individual child ot patent:

(A) The total amount of public and ptivate funds received and the amount from each

source.
(B) An explanation of budgetary cxpenditures and proposcd budget for the fiscal year.

(C) The total number of children and families sexved, the average monthly enrollment (as
a percentage of funded enrollment), and the percentage of eligible children served.

(D) The results of the most recent review by the Secretary and the financial audit.
(E) The percentage of enrolled children that received medical and dental exams.
(F) Informatdion about parent involvement activities.

(G) The agency’s efforts to prepare children for kindergasten.

{H) Any other informadon required by the Secretary.

31. Section 641A(e)(2) of the Act:
{e) Corrective Action for Head Start Agencies-

133



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XIII

(2) QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PLAN.-

(A) AGENCY AND PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES- To retain z designation
as a Head Start agency under this subchapter, ot in the case of 2 Head Start
program to continue to receive funds from such agency, 2 Head Statt agency that
is the subject of a determination described in paragraph (1), or a Head Start
program that is determined to have a deficiency under subsection (d)(2)
(excluding an agency required to correct a deficiency immediately or during a 90-
day period under clause {i) or (ii) of paragraph (1)(B)) shall—

{1) develop in a timely manner, a quality improvement plan that shall be

subject to the approval of the Secretary, ox in the case of a program, the

sponsoring agency, and that shall specify—

(D) the deficiencies to be corrected;

(II) the actions to be taken to correct such deficiencies; and (11} the
timetable for accomplishment of the corrective actions specified; and
(i} correct each deficiency identified, not later than the date for
correction of such deficiency specified in such plan (which shall not
be later than 1 year after the date the agency or Head Start program
that is detesmined to have a deficiency received notice of the
determination and of the specific deficiency to be corrected).

(B) SECRETARIAL RESPONSIBILITY- Not later than 30 days after receiving
from a Head Start agency a proposed quality improvement plan putsuant to sub-
paragraph (A), the Secretary shall cither approve such proposed plan or specify
the reasons why the proposed plan cannot be approved.

(C) AGENCY RESPONSIBILITY- Not later than 30 days after receiving from a
Head Start program a proposed quality improvement plan pursuant to
subpatagraph (A), the Head Start agency involved shall either approve such
proposed plan or specify the reasons why the proposed plan cannot be approved.

32. Section 640(b) of the Act:
{(b) Financial assistance extended under this subchapter for 2 Head Start program shall not
exceed 80 percent of the approved costs of the assisted program of activities, except that the
Secretary may approve assistance in excess of such percentage if the Secretary determines that
such action is required in furtherance of the purposes of this subchapter. For the purpose of
making such determination, the Secretary shall take into consideration with respect to the Head
Start program involved-
(1) the lack of resources available in the community that may preveot the Head Start
agency fromn providing all or a portion of the non-Federal contribution that may be
required under this subsection;

(2) the impact of the cost the Head Start agency may incur io initial years it carries out
such program;

134



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

33.

34.

35.

(3) the impact of an unanticipated increase in the cost the Head Start agency may incur
to carry out such program;

(4) whether the Head Start agency is located in a community adversely affected by a
major disaster; and

(5) the impact on the community that would result if the Head Start agency ceased to
catry out such program. Non-Federal contributions may be in cash or in kind, fairly
evaluated, including plant, equipment, or services. The Secretary shall not require

non-Federal contributions in excess of 20 percent of the approved costs of programs or
activities assisted under this subchapter.

Section 644(e) of the Act:
{e) Funds appropriated to cary out this subchapter shall not be used to assist, promote, or
deter union organizing.

Section 644(g)(3) of the Act:

(3) All laborers and mechanics employed by contractors or subcontractors in the construction
ot renovation of facilities to be used to carry out Head Start programs shall be paid wages at
not less than thosc prevailing on similar construction in the locality, as determined by the
Secretary of Labor in accordance with the Act of March 3, 1931, as amended (40 U.S.C. 2762 &2

s¢q., commonly known as the “Davis-Bacon Act”).

Section 653 of the Act: COMPARABILITY OF WAGES

(2) Comparability of Wages- The Secretary shall take such action as may be necessary to assure
that persons employed in carrying out programs financed under this subchapter shall not
receive compensation at a rate which is (1) in excess of the average rate of compensation paid
in the area where the program is cattied out to a substantial number of persons providing
substantially comparable services, or in excess of the average rate of compensation paid to a
substantial number of the persons providing substantially comparable services in the area of the
person’s immediately preceding employment, whichever is higher; or (2) less than the minimum
wage rate prescribed in section 6(a)(1) of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, The Secretary
shall encourage Head Start agencies to provide compensation according to salaty scales that ate

based on training and experience.

(b} Limitation-
(1) IN GENERAL- Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no Federal funds may
be used to pay any part of the compensation of an individual employed by a Head Start
agency, if such compensation, including non-Federal funds, exceeds an amount equal to
the rate payable for level I1 of the Executive Schedule under secton 5313 of title 5,
United States Code.

135



Statutory References andWeb Resources 45 CFR Chapter Xl

36.

37.

38.

(2) COMPENSATION- In this subsection, the term “compensation’—

{(A) includes salary, bonuses, petiodic payments, severance pay, the value of any
vacation time, the value of a compensatory or paid leave benefit not excluded by
subparagraph (B), and the fair market value of any employee perquisite or benefit
not excluded by subparagraph (B); and

(B) excludes any Head Start agency expenditure for a health, medical, life
insurance, disability, retitement, or any other employee welfare or pension benefit.

Section 654 of the Act: NONDISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS

(a) The Secretary shall not provide financal assistance for any program, project, or activity
under this subchapter unless the grane or contract with respect thereto specifically provides that
no person with responsibilities in the operation thereof will discriminate with respect to any
such program, project, or activity because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, political
affiliation, or heliefs.

{b) No person in the United States shall on the ground of sex be excluded from participation in,
be denied the benefits of, be subjected to discrimination under, or be denied employment in
connection with any program or actvity receiving assistance under this subchapter. The
Secretary shall enforce the provisions of the preceding sentence in accotdance with section 602
of the Civil Righis Act of 1964. Section 603 of such Act shall apply with respect to any action
taken by the Secrerary to enforce such sentence. This section shell not be construed as affecting
any other legal remedy that a person may have if such person is excluded from participation in,
denied the benefit of, subjected to discrimination under, or denied employment in connection
with, any program, project, or activity receiving assistance under this subchapter.

{c) The Secterary shall not provide financial assistance for any program, project, or activity un-
der this subchapter unless the grant or contract relating to the financial assistance specifically
provides that no person with responsibilities in the operation of the program, project, ot
actvity will discriminate against any individual because of a handicapping condition in violation
of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973,

Section 655 of the Act: LIMITATION WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN UNLAWFUL
ACTIVITIES

No individual employed or assigned by or in any Head Start agency or other agency assisted
under this subchapter shall, pursuant to or during the performance of services rendered in
connection with any program or activity conducted or assisted under this subchapter by such
Head Statt agency or such other agency, plan, initiate, participate in, or otherwise aid or assist in
the conduct of any unlawful demonstration, rioting, or civil disturbance.

Section 656 of the Act: POLITICAL ACTIVITIES

() State or Local Agency- For purposes of Chapter 15 of title 5, United States Code, any
agency which assumes responsibility for planning, developing, and coordinating Head Start

136



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

programs and receives assistance under this subchapter shall be deemed to be a State or local
agency. For purposes of clauses (1) and (2) of section 1502(a) of such title, any agency receiving
assistance under this subchapter shall be deemed to be a State or local agency.

(b) Resttictions-
(1) IN GENERAL- A progtam assisted under this subchapter, and any individual
employed by, ot assigned to or in, a program assisted under this subchapter (during the
houts in which such individual is working on behalf of such program), shall not engage
in—
(A) any pattisan or nonpartisan political activity or any other political activity
associated with a candidate, or contending faction or group, in an clection for
public or patty office; or
(B) any activity to ptovide voters or prospective voters with fransporiation to the
polls or similar assistance in connection with any such clection.
(2) REGISTRATION- No funds appropriated under this subchapter may be used to
conduet voter registration activities. Nothing in this subchapter prohibits the availability
of Head Start facilities during houss of operation for the use of any nonpattisan
organization to increase the number of eligible citizens who register to vote in electons
for Federal office.
(3) RULES AND REGULATIONS- The Sectetaty, after consultation with the Director
of the Office of Personnel Management, may issue rules and regulations to provide for
the enforcement of this section, which may include provisions for summary suspension
of assistance ot other action necessary to permit enforcement on an emergency basis,

39. Section 657A of the Act: PARENTAL CONSENT REQUIREMENT FOR
NONEMERGENCY INTRUSIVE PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS.

(z) Definition- The tcrm “nonemergency intrusive physical examination” means, with respect to
a child, a physical examination that-

(1) is not immediately necessary to protect the health or safety of the child involved or

the health or safcty of another individual; and

(2) requires incision oz is otherwise invasive, or involves exposure of private body patts,
(b) Requirement- A Head Start agency shall obtain written parental consent before
administration of any nonemergency intrusive physical examination of a child in connection
with patticipation in a program under this subchaptet.
() Rule of Construction- Nothing in this section shall be construed to prohibit agencies from

using established methods, for handling cases of suspected or known child abuse and neglect,
that are in compliance with applicable Federal, State, ot tribal law.

137



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XliI

40. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS, COST PRINCIPLES, AND
AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR HHS AWARDS (45 CFR part 75)

http:/ /www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idxPnode=pt45.1.75

41. Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act (42 USC 5101):

The term ‘child abuse and neglect’ means, at a minimum, any recent act or failure to act on the
part of a parent or caretaker, which results in death, serious physical or emotional harm, sexual
abuse or exploitation, or an acr or failure to act which presents an imminent risk of setious

harm;

42. Section 637(3) of the Act:

The term “delegate agency” means a public, private nonprofit {including a community based
organization, as defined in section 9101 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of
1965 (20 U.S.C. 7801), or for profit organization or agency to which a grantee has delegated all
or part of the responsibility of the grantee for operating 2 Head Start program.

43. Section 641A(d) of the Act:
(d) Evaluations and Corrective Action for Delegate Agencies-
(1) PROCEDURES- Each Head Start agency shall establish, subject 1o paragraph (4),
procedures relating to its delegate agencies, including—
(A) procedures for evaluating delegate agencies;
(B) procedures for defunding delegate agencies; and
(C) procedures for a delegate agency to appeal a defunding decision.

{2) EVALUATION- Each Head Start agency—
(A) shall evaluate its delegate agencies using the procedures established under this
subsection; and
(B) shall inform the delegate agencies of the deficiencies identified through the
evaluation that are required to be corrected.
(3) REMEDIES TO ENSURE CORRECTIVE ACTIONS- In the event that the Head
Start agency identifies a deficiency for a delegate agency through the evaluation, the
Head Start agency shall take action, which may include—
(A) mitiating procedures to terminate the designation of the agency unless the
agency corrects the deficiency;
{B) conducung monthly monitoring visits to such delegate agency undl all
deficiencies are corrected or the Head Start agency decides to defund such
delegate agency; and

138



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

(C) releasing funds to such delegate agency—

() only as reimbursements except that, upon receiving a request from the
delegate agency accompanied by assurances satisfactory to the Head Start
agency that the funds will be appropriately safeguarded, the Head Start
agency shall provide to the delegate agency a working capital advance in an
amount sufficient to cover the estimated expenses involved during an
agreed upon disbursing cycle; and

(ii) only if there is continuity of services.

(4) TERMINATION- The Head Start agency may not terminate a delegate agency’s
contract or reduce a delegate agency’s service area without showing cause or
demonstrating the cost-effectiveness of such a decision.

(5) RULE OF CONSTRUCTION- Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to
limit the powers, duties, or functions of the Secretary with respect to Head Statt agencies
ot delegate agencies that receive financial assistance under this subchapter.

44. Section 644{c), (f), and (g} of the Act:

{c) The Secretary shall prescribe rules or regulations to supplement subsections (a) and (f) of
this section, which shall be binding on all agencies carrying on Head Start program activities
with financial assistance under this subchapter. The Secretary may, where appropriate, establish
special or simplified requirements for smaller agencies or agencies operating in rural arcas.
Policies and procedures shall be established to ensure that indirect costs atttibutable to the
common ot joint use of facilities and setvices by programs assisted under this subchapter and
other programs shall be fairly allocated among the various programs which utilize such facilities
and scrvices.
(f)(1) The Secretary shall establish uniform procedures for Head Start agencies to request
approval to purchase facilities, or to request approval of the purchase (after December
31, 1986) of facilities, to be used to carry out Head Stast programs. The Secretary shall
suspend any proceedings pending against any Head Start agency to claim costs incurred
in purchasing such facilities until the agency has been afforded an opportunity to apply
for approval of the puxchase and the Secretary has determined whethet the purchase will
be approved. The Secretary shall not be required to repay claims previously satisfied by
Head Statt agencies for costs incurred in the purchase of such facilities.

(2) Financial assistance provided under this subchapter tmay not be used by a Head Start
agency to purchase a facility (including paying the cost of amostizing the ptincipal, and
paying interest on, loans) to be used 1o carry out a Head Start program unless the
Secretaty approves a request that is submitted by such agency and contains—
(A) a description of the efforts by the agency to coordinate or collaborate with
other providers in the community to seek assistance, including financial assistance,
prior to the usc of funds under this section;

Note: References are located in the Appendix, stardng at page 117
139



Stawutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XllI

{B) a desctiption of the site of the facility proposed to be purchased ot that was
previously purchased,;

(C) the plans and specifications of such facility;
(D} information demonstrating that-

(i) the proposed purchase will result, or the previous purchase has resulted,
in savings when compated to the costs that would be incurred to acquire
the use of an alternative facility to carry out such program; or

(i) the lack of alternadve facilities will prevent, or would have prevented,
the operatton of such program;

(E) in the case of a request regarding a previously purchased facility, infotmation
demonstrating that the facility will be used principally as a Head Start center, or a
direct support facility for a Head Start program; and

(F) such other information and assurances as the Secretary may require.

(3) Upon a determination by the Secretary that suitable facihties are not otherwise
available to Indian tribes to carry out Head Start programs, and that the lack of suitable
facilides will inhibit the operation of such programs, the Secretary, in the discretion of
the Secretaty, may authorize the use of financial assistance to make payments for the
purchase of facilities owned by such tribes. The amount of such a payment for such a
facility shall not exceed the fair market value of the facility.

{8)(1) Upon a determination by the Secretary that suitable facilities {including public school
facilities) are not otherwise available to Indian tibes, rural commmunides, and other low-income
communities to carry out Head Start programs, that the lack of suitable facilifies will inhibit the
operation of such programs, and that construction of such facilities is mote cost effective than
purchase of available facilities or renovation, the Secretary, in the discredon of the Secretary,
may authorize the use of financial assistance under this subchapter to make payments for
capital expenditures related to facilices that will be used to carry out such programs. The
Secretary shall establish uniform procedures for Head Start agencies to request approval for
such payments, and shall promote, to the extent practicable, the collocation of Head Start
programs with other programs serving low-income children and fasnilies.

(2) Such payments may be used for capital expenditures (including paying the cost of
amortizing the principal, and paying interest on, loans) such as expenditures for-
(A} construction of facilites that are not in existence on the date of the determination;
(B) major renovation of facilities in existence on such date; and
{(C) puzchase of vehicles used for programs conducted at the Head Start facilities.
(3) All laborers and mechanics employed by contractors or subcontractors in the construction
ot renovation of facilities to be used to carry out Head Start programs shall be paid wages at
not less than those prevailing on similar construction in the locality, as determined by the

Secretary of Labor in accordance with the Act of March 3, 1931, as amended (40 U.S.C. 2762 et
seq., commonly knnown as the “Davis-Bacon Act”).

140



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

45. The Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973: http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-
idx?c=ecfr&SID=4999a4742927654bed5cc9532b0aa93f&rgn=divi&view—=text&node=12:

7.0.2.3.32&idno=12
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966:

http:/ /www.achp.gov/nhpa.pdf

46. Section 641A(c)(1) and (2) of the Act:
{c) Monitoring of Local Agencies and Programs-
(1} IN GENERAL - To determine whether Head Start agencies meet standards
described in subsection (2)(1) established under this subchapter with respect to program,
administeative, financial management, and other requirements, and in order to help the

programs identify areas for improvement and areas of strength as past of their ongoing
self-assessment process, the Secretaty shall conduct the following reviews of Head Start

agencies, including the Head Start programs operated by such agencies:
(A) A full review, including the use of a risk-based assessment approach, of each
such agency at least once during each 3-year petiod.

(B) A review of each newly designated Head Start agency immediately after the
completion of the first year such agency carries out a2 Head Start program.

(C) Follow up reviews, including—

(iy retarn visits to Head Start agencies with 1 or more findings of
deficiencies, not later than 6 months after the Secretary provides
notification of such findings, or not later than 12 months after such
notification if the Secretary determines that additional time 1s necessary for
an agency to address such a deficiency prior to the review; and

(ii) a review of Head Start agencies with significant areas of noncompliance.
(D) Other reviews, including unannounced site inspections of Head Start centers,
as approptiate.
(2) CONDUCT OF REVIEWS- The Secretary shall ensure that reviews described in
subparagraphs (A) through (C) of paragraph (1)—
(A) are conducted by review teams that—

(i) include individuals who are knowledgeable about Head Statt programs
and, to the maximum extent practicable, individuals who are
knowledgeable about—
(T) other early childhood education and development programs,
personnel management, financial accountability, and systems
development and monitoring; and

141



e

Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter Xlil

(I) the diverse (including linguistic and cultural) needs of eligible
children (including children with disabilities, homeless children,
children in foster care, and limited English proficient children) and
their families;

(i) include, to the maximum extent practicable, curtent or former

employees of the Depariment of Health and Human Services who are
knowledgeable about Head Start programs; and

(iit) shall receive periodic training to ensure quality and consistency across
reviews;
(B) include as part of the reviews, a review and assessment of program strengths
and areas in need of improvement;

(©) include as part of the reviews, a review and assessment of whether programs
have adequately addressed population and community nceds (including those of
Iimited English proficient children and children of migrant or seasonal
farmworker families);

(D) include as part of the reviews, an assessment of the extent to which the
programs address the communitywide strategic planning and needs assessment
described in section 640(g)(1)(C);

(E) include information on the innovative and effective efforts of the Head Start
agencies to collaborate with the entities providing eatly childhood and
development sexvices or programs in the community and any barriers to such
collaboration that the agencies encountet;

(P include as part of the reviews, a valid and reliable research-based
observational instrument, implemented by qualified individuals with demonstrated
reliability, that assesses classroom quality, including assessing multiple dimensions
of teacher-child interactions that are linked to positive child development and
later achievement;

(G) are conducted in a manner that evaluates program performance, quality, and
overall operations with consistency and objectivity, are based on a transparent and
reliable system of review, and are conducted in a2 manner that includes petiodic
interrater reliability checks, to ensure quality and consistency, actoss and within
regions, of the reviews and of noncompliance and deficiency determinations;

(H) in the case of reviews of Rarly Head Start agencies and programs, are
conducted by a review team that includes individuals who are knowledgeable
about the development of infants and toddlers;

() include as part of the reviews a protocol for fiscal management that shall be
used to assess compliance with program requirements for—

(1) using Federal funds approptiately;

142



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

{i1) using Federal funds specifically to purchase property (consistent with
section 644(f)) and to compensate petsonnel;

(i) securing and using qualified financial officer support; and

(iv) reporting financial information and implementing appropriate internal

controls to safeguard Federal funds;
(1) include as patt of the reviews of the programs, a teview and assessment of
whether the programs are in conformity with the eligibility requirements under
section 645(2)(1), including regulations promulgated under such section and
whether the programs have met the requirements for the outreach and enrollment
policies procedures, and selection criteria, in such section, for the participation of
children in programs assisted under this subchapter;
() include as part of the reviews, a review and assessment of whether agencies
have adequately addressed the needs of children with disabilities, including
whether the agencies involved have met the 10 percent minimum enrollment
requirement specified in section 640(d) and whether the agencies have made
sufficient cfforts to collaborate with State and local agencies providing services
under section 619 ot part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20

U.S.C. 1419, 1431 et seq.); and

@) include as part of the reviews, a review and assessment of child outcomes
and petformance as they relate to agency-determined school readiness goals
described in subsection (g}(2), consistent with subsection (b)(5).

47. Section 637(2) of the Act:
(2) The term “deficiency” means—

(A) 2 systemic ot substantial material failure of an agency in an area of performance that

the Secretary determines involves—
(i) a threat to the health, safety, ot civil rights of children or statf;
(i} a denial to parents of the exercise of their full roles and responsibilites
related to program operations;
(i) a failute to comply with standards related to early childhood development
and health services, family and community parinerships, or program design and
management;
(iv) the misuse of funds received under this subchapter;
(v) loss of legal status (as determined by the Secretary) ot financial viability, loss of

permits, debarment from receiving Federal grants or contracts, or the improper
use of Federal fands; or

{vi) failure to meet any other Federal or State requirement that the agency has
shown an unwillingness or inability to cortect, after notice from the Secretary,
within the pertod specified;

143



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XIIf

(B) systemic or material failure of the governing body of an agency to fully exercise its
legal and fiduciary responsibilities; or

(C) an unresolved area of noncompliance.

48. Section 641A(e)(1)(B) of the Act:
(e) Cotrrective Action for Head Start Agencies-

(1) DETERMINATION- If the Secretary determines, on the basis of a review pursuant
to subsection (¢), that a Head Start agency designrated pursuant to this subchapter fails to
meet the standards described in subsection {2)(1) ot fails to address the communitywide
strategic planning and needs assessment, the Secretary shall—
(B) with respect to each identified deficiency, require the agency—
() to correct the deficiency immediately, if the Secretary finds that the

deficiency threatens the health or safety of staff or program participants or
poses a threat to the integrity of Federal funds;

(1) to correct the deficiency not later than 90 days after the identification of
the deficiency if the Secretary finds, in the discretion of the Secretary, that
such a 90-day period is reasonable, 1n light of the nature and magnitude of

the deficiency; or

(i) in the discretion of the Secretary (taking into consideration the
seriousness of the deficiency and the time reasonably required to correct
the deficiency), to comply with the requirements of paragraph (2)
concerning 2 quality improvement plan;

49. Section 641A(e)(1)(B)(i) of the Act:
{¢) Cotrective Action for Head Start Agencies-

(1) DETERMINATION- If the Secretary determines, on the basis of a review pursuant
to subsection {c), that 2 Head Start agency designated pursuant to this subchapter fails to
meet the standards described in subsection (a)(1) ot fails to address the communitywide
strategic planning and needs assessrnent, the Secretary shall—

(B) with respect to each identified deficiency, require the agency—

() o correct the deficiency immediately, if the Secretary finds that the
deficiency threatens the health or safety of staff or program participants or
poses a threat to the integrity of Federal funds;

50. Section 641A(e)}(2)(A) of the Act:
(e) Corrective Action for Head Start Agencies-
(2) QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PLAN-

144



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

(4) AGENCY AND PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES- To retain a
designation a5 a2 Head Start agency under this subchapter, ot in the case of a Head
Statt program to continue to receive funds from such agency, a Head Start agency
that is the subject of a determination described in paragraph (1), or 2 Head Start
program that is determined to have a deficiency under subsection (d)(2)

(excluding an agency required to correct a deficiency immediately ot during a 90-

day period under clause (@) or (it} of paragraph (1)(B)) shall—
(i) develop in a timely manner, a quality improvement plan that shall be
subject to the approval of the Secretary, or in the case of a program, the
sponsoting agency, and that shall specify—

(D the deficiencies to be corrected;

(I1) the actions to be taken to cotrect such deficiencies; and (IIT) the
timetable for accomplishment of the corrective actions specified; and

(i) correct each deficiency identified, not later than the date for correction
of such deficiency specified in such plan (which shall not be later than 1
vear after the date the agency or Head Start program that is determined to
have a deficiency received notice of the determination and of the specific

deficiency to be corrected).

51. Section 646(a)(5)(B) of the Act:
(2) The Secretary shall prescribe -
(5) procedures to assure that the Secretary may suspend financial assistance to a recipient
under this subchapter—

{B) in the casc of a recipient under this subchapter that has muluple and recurring
deficiencies for 180 days or more and has not made substandal and significant
progress toward meeting the goals of the grantee’s quality improvement plan or
eliminating all deficiencies identfied by the Secretary, during the heating of an
appeal described in paragraph (3), for any amount of time;

52. PROCEDURES OF THE DEPARTMENTAL GRANT APPEALS BOARD (45 CFR
part 16)
hitps:/ /www.law.cornell. edu/ cfr/text/45/part-16

145



Statutory References and VWeb Resources 45 CFR Chapter XIll

53. Section 641A(a)(1) of the Act:
(2) Standards-
(1) CONTENT OF STANDARDS- The Secretary shall modify, as necessaty, program
performance standards by regulation applicabie to Head Start agencies and programs
under this subchapter, including-
(A} performance standatds with tespect to services required to be provided,
including health, parental involvement, nuttitional, and social services, transition
activities described in section 642A, and othet services;
{B) scientifically based and developmentally appropriate education performance
standards related to school readiness that ate based on the Head Start Child
Outcomes Framewotk to ensure that the children participating in the program, at
a minimum, develop and demonstrate-
(i) language knowledge and skills, including oral language and listening
comprehension,
(i) literacy knowledge and skills, including phonological awareness, print
awareness and skills, and alphabetic knowledge;

(i) mathematics knowledge and skills;
(v) science knowledge and skills;
(v) cognitive abilities related to academic achievement and child
development;
(vi) approaches to learning telated to child development and eatly learning;
(vii) social and emotional development related to eatly learning, school
success, and social problem solving;
(viii) abilities in creative arts;
(ix) physical development; and
(%) in the case of limited English proficient children, progress toward
acquisition of the English language while making meaningful progtess in
attaining the knowledge, skills, abilities, and development described in
clauses (1) through (ix}, including progress made through the use of
culturally and linguistically appropriate instructional services;
{C) administrative and financial management standards,
(D) standards relating to the condition and location of facilities (including indoor
air quality assessment standards, where appropriate) for such agencies, and
progtams, including regulations that require that the facilities used by Head Stact
agencies (including Eatly Head Start agencies and any delegate agencies) for
regularly scheduled center based and combination program option classroom
actvities-

146



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

p (i) shall meet or exceed State and local requirements concerning licensing
for such facilities; and
(1) shall be accessible by State and local authorities for purposes of
monitoring 2nd ensuring compliance, unless State or local laws prohibit
such access; and

(E) such other standards as the Secretary finds to be appropriate.

54, Section 641A(c)(1}(A), (C), and (D) of the Act:
(c) Monitoring of Local Agencies and Programs-

(1) IN GENERAL- To determine whethetr Head Start agencies meet standards described
in subsecdon (a)(1) established under this subchapter with respect to program,
administrative, financial management, and other requirements, and in order to help the
programs identify areas for improvement and areas of strength as patt of their ongoing
self-assessment process, the Secretary shall conduct the following reviews of Head Start
agencies, including the Head Start programs operated by such agencies:

(A) A full review, including the use of a risk-based assessment approach, of each

such agency at least once during each 3-year period.

(C) Follow up reviews, including—

- (i) retuzrn visits to Head Start agencies with 1 or more findings of
(‘\T““ deficiencies, not later than 6 months after the Secretary provides
. notification of suck findings, of not later than 12 months aftet such
netification if the Secretary determines that additional time s necessary for
an agency to address such a deficiency prior to the review; and

(if) a review of Head Start agencies with significant areas of noncompliance.

(D) Othet teviews, including unannounced site inspections of Head Start centers,
as appropuiate.

§5. Section 641A(g)(2) of the Act:
(g) Self-Assessments-
(2) GOALS, REPORTS, AND IMPROVEMENT PLANS-
(A) GOALS- An agency conducting a self-assessment shall establish agency-
determined program goals for improving the school readiness of children
patticipating in a program under this subchapter, including school readiness goals

that are aligned with the Head Start Child Outcomes Framework, State eatly
learning standards as appropriate, and requirements and expectations of the

schools the children will be attending.

(B) IMPROVEMENT PLAN- The agency shall develop, and submit to the
Secretary a report containing, an improvemnent plan approved by the governing

147



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XIII

56.

57.

body of the agency to sirengthen any areas identified in the self-assessment as
wezaknesses or in need of improvement.

2 CFR 180: OMB GUIDELINES TO AGENCIES ON GOVERNMENTWIDE
DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (NONPROCUREMENT)

180.135 May a Federal agency grant an exception to let an excluded pesson participate in a
covered transaction?

(a) A Federal agency head or designee may grant an exception permitting an exchaded
person to participate in a partcular covered transaction. If the agency head ot designee
grants an exception, the exception must be in weiting and state the reason(s) for
deviating from the government wide policy in Executive Order 12549,

{(b) An exception granted by one Federal agency for an excluded person does not extend
to the covered transactions of another Federal agency.

Section 647 of the Act: RECORDS AND AUDITS

{a) Cach recipient of financial assistance under this subchapter shall keep such records as the
Secretary shall prescribe, including records which fully disclose the amount and disposition by
such recipient of the proceeds of such financial assistance, the total cost of the ptoject or
undertaking in connection with which such financial assistance is given or used, the amount of
that portion of the cost of the project or undertaking supplied by other sources, and such other
records as will facilitate an effective audit.

(b) The Secretary and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly
authotized representatives, shall have access for the purpose of audit and examination to any
books, documents, papers, and records of the recipients that are pertinent to the financial
assistance received under this subchapter.

(¢) Each recipient of financial assistance under this subchapter shall—

(1) maintain, and annually submit to the Secretary, a complete accounting of the
reciptent’s administrative expenses (including a detailed statement identifying the amount
of financial assistance provided under this subchapter used to pay expenses for salaties
and compensation and the amount (if any) of other funds used to pay such expenses);

(2) not later than 30 days after the date of completion of an audit conducted in the
manner and to the extent provided in chapter 75 of title 31, United States Code

{commonly known as the Single Audit Act of 1984%), submit to the Secretary a copy of
the audit management letter and of any audit findings as they relate to the Head Starc

program; and

(3) provide such additional documentation as the Sectetary may require.

148



/-'\._--

Administration for Children and Families, HHS

58. Section 641(d)}(2) of the Act:
{2) CONSIDERATIONS FOR DESIGNATION.—In selecting from among qualified
applicants for designation as a Head Start agency, the Secrerary shall consider the effectiveness
of each such applicant to provide Head Start services, based on—
(A) any past performance of such applicant in providing services comparable to Head
Start services, including how effectively such applicant provided such comparable
services;
(B) the plan of such applicant to provide comprehensive health, edncational, nutritional,
social, and other services needed to aid participating children in attaining their full
potential, and to prepare children to succeed in school;
(C) the plan of such applicant to attract and retain qualified staff capable of delivering,
including implementing, a high-quality and comprehensive program, mcluding the ability
to carry out 2 tesearch based curticulum aligned with the Head Start Child Outcomes
Framework and, as approptiate, State eagly learning standards;
(D) the ability of such applicant to maintain child-to-teacher ratios and family service
worker caseloads that reflect best practices and are tied to high-quality service delivery;
(E) the capacity of such applicant 1o serve eligible children with—
@) curticula that are based on scientifically valid research, that are developmentally
appropriate, and that promote the school readiness of children participating in the
program involved; and
(i) teaching practices that are based, as appropitate, on scientifically valid
research, that ate developmentally appropriate, and that promote the school
readiness of children participating in the program involved;
(F) the plan of such applicant to meet standards described in section 641A(2)(1), with
patticular attention to the standards described in subparagraphs (A) and (B) of such
section;
(G) the proposed budget of the applicant and plan of such applicant to maintain strong
fiscal controls and cost effective fiscal management;
(H) the plan of such applicant to coordinate and collaborate with other public or private
entities providing eatly childhood education and development programs and services for
young children in the community involved, including—
(i) progtams implementing grant agreements under the Early Reading First and

Even Start programs under subpazts 2 and 3 of part B of title T of the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 6371 e reg., 6381 ef seq.);

(i) other preschool programs under tide I of that Act (20 U.S.C. 6301 ef reg.);

(iif) programs under section 619 and part C of the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1419, 1431 ¢ req.);

149



—_

Statutory Referencesand Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XIl|

{iv) State pre kindergarten programs;
(v} child cate programs;
(vijthe educatonal programs that the children in the Head Start program involved
will enter at the age of compulsory school attendance; and
(vit) local entities, such as a public or school library, for—
{I) conducting reading readiness programs;
(IT) developing innovative programs to excite children about the world of books,
including providing fresh books in the Head Start classroom;
(I1I) assisdng in literacy training for Head Start teachers; ot
(IV) supporting parents and other caregivers in literacy efforts;

() the plan of such applicant to coordinate the Head Start program that the applicant
proposcs to carry out, with public and private entities that are willing to commit
resources to assist the Head Start program in meeting its program needs;

{J) the plan of such applicant—
{i) to facilitate the involvement of parents (including grandparents and kinship
caregivers, as appropriate) of children participating in the proposed Head Start
program, in activities (at home and, if practicable, at the location of the Head Start
program) designed to help such parents become full partners in the education of
their children;
(1) to afford such parents the opportunity to participate in the development and
overall conduct of the program at the fecal level, including transportation
assistance, as appropriate;
(iii) to offer (directly or through referral to local entities, such as entities cattying
out Even Start programs under subpart 3 of part B of title I of the Elementary
and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 6381 et seq.), public and school
libraries, and entities catrying out family support programs) to such parents——

(I) family literacy services; and
(11) parenting skills training;
{iv) to offer to patents of participating children substance abuse counseling

(either directly or through referral to local entities), if needed, including
information on the effect of drug exposure on infants and fetal alcohol syndtome;

(v) at the option of such applicant, to offer (directly ot through referral to local
entities} to such parents—
(I) training in basic child development (including cognitive, social, and
emotonal development);

(ID) assistance in developing literacy and communication skills;

150



Administration for Childrenand Families, HHS

(I11) opportunities to share experiences with other parents (including
parent-mentor relatonships);

(IV) regular in-home visitation;
(V) health services, including informaton on maternal deptession; or

(V1) any other activity designed to help such parents become full partnets

in the education of their children;
(vi) to provide, with respect to each parucipating family, a family needs
assessment that includes consuleaton with such parents (including foster parents,
grandpatents, and kinship caregivers, where applicable), in 2 manner and language
that such parents can understand, to the extent practicable, about the benefits of
parent involvement and about the activities described in this subparagraph in
which such parents may choose to become involved (taking into consideration
their specific family needs, work schedules, and other responsibilities); and

(vii) to extend outreach to fathers (including father figures), in appropriate cases,
in ordet to strengthen the role of those fathers in families, in the educatton of
young children, and in the Head Start progtam, by wotking directly with the
fathers through activities such as—

() in appropsiate cases, including the fathers in home visits and providing opportunities
for direct father child interactions; and

(D targeting increased male participation in the conduct of the program;

(K) the plan of such applicant to meet the needs of limited English proficient children
and their families, including procedures to identify such children, plans to provide
trained personnel, and plans to provide services to assist the children in making progress
toward the acquisition of the English language, while making meaningful progress in
attaining the knowledge, skills, abilities, and development described in section

641AE DB

(L) the plan of such applicant to meet the diverse needs of the population served;

(M) the plan of such applicant who chooses to assist younger siblings of children who
will patticipate in the Head Stast program to obtain health services from other sources;
(N) the plan of such applicant to meet the needs of children with disabilities, including
procedures to identify such children, procedures for referral of such children for
evaluation to State ot local agencies providing services under section 619 or parr C of the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. 1419, 1431 ¢t seq.), and plans for
collaboration with those State or local agencies;

(O) the plan of such applicant to meet the needs of homeless children, including
transportation needs, and the needs of children in foster care; and

(P) other factors related to the requirements of this subchapter.

151



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter Xl

59.

60.

Section 646{c)(1}(A) of the Act:

(€)(1) The Sccretary shall by regulation specify a process by which an Indian tribe may identify
and establish an alternative agency, and request that the alternative agency be designated under
section 641 as the Head Start agency providing services to the tribe, if—

{A) the Sectetary terminates financial assistance under section 646 to the only agency that
was receiving financial assistance to provide Head Start services to the Indian tribe;

Section 648A(d) of the Act:
{d) HEAD START FELLOWSHIPS.-

{1y AUTHORITY .-The Secretary may establish a program of fellowships, to be kaown
as Head Start Fellowships’, in accordance with this subsection. The Secretary may award
the fellowships to individuals, to be known as Head Start Fellows’, who are staff in local
Tlead Start programs or other individuals working in the field of child develepment and
family services.

(2) PURPOSE.-The fellowship program established under this subsection shall be
designed to cnhance the ability of Head Start Fellows to make significant contributions
to programs authorized under this subchapter, by providing opportunities to expand
their knowledge and experience through exposure to activities, issues, resources, and
new approaches, in the field of child development and family services.

(3) ASSIGNMENTS OF FELLOWS.-
(A) PLACEMENT SITES.-Fellowship positions under the fellowship program
may be located (subject to subparagraphs (B) and (C))-
(1) in agencies of the Department of Health and Human Services
administering programs authorized under this subchapter (in national or
regional offices of such agencies);
(1) in Jocal Head Start agencies and programs;
(111} in institutions of higher education;
(iv) in public ot private entities and organizations concerned with services
to children and families; and
(v) in other appropriate setangs.
(B) LIMITATION FOR FELLOWS OTHER THAN HEAD START
EMPLOYEES.-A Head Start Fellow whao is not an employee of a local Head
Start agency or program may be placed only in a fellowship positon located in an
agency or program specified in clanse (i} or (ii) of subparagraph (A}.
(C) NO PLACEMENT IN LOBBYING ORGANIZATIONS.-Head Start
Fellowship positions may not be located in any agency (including a center) whose
primary purpose, o1 one of whose major purposes, is to influence Federal, State,
ot local legislation.

152



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

(4) SELECTION OF FELLOWS.-Head Start Fellowships shall be awarded on a
competitive basis to individuals {other than Fedetal employees) selected from among
applicants who are working, on the date of application, in local Head Start programs or
otherwise working in the field of child development and children and family services.

(5) DURATION.-Head Start Fellowships shall be for terms of 1 year, and may be
renewed for a term of 1 addidonal year.

(6) AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES.-From amounts made zvailable under section
640(a)(2)(E), the Secretaty is authorized to make expenditures of not te exceed
$1,000,000 for any fiscal year, for stipends and other reasonable expenses of the
fellowship program.

(7) STATUS OF FELLOWS.-Except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, Head
Start Fellows shall not be considered to be employees or otherwise in the service ot
employment of the Federal Government. Head Start Fellows shall be considered to be
employees for purposes of compensation for injuries under chapter 81 of ntle 5, United
States Code. Head Start Fellows assigned to positions located in agencies specified in
patagtaph (3)(A)(j) shall be considered employees in the executive branch of the Federal
Govetnment for the purposes of chapter 11of tite 18, United States Code, and for
putrposes of any administrative standards of conduct applicable to the employees of the

agency to which they are assigned.

(8) REGULATIONS.-The Secretary shall promulgate regulations to catty out this sub-
section,

€1. Casc plan as presented in 42 U.S.C. 675(1)

1} The term “case plan’ means a written document which includes at least the following:
P &

(A) A description of the type of home ot institution in which a child is to be placed,
inchading a discussion of the safety and appropriateness of the placement and how the
agency which is responsible for the child plans to carry out the voluntary placement
agreement entered into or judicial determination made with respect to the child in
accordance with section 672(a)(1) [1] of this atle.

(B) A plan for assuring that the child receives safe and proper care and that services ate
provided to the parents, <hild, and foster parents in order to improve the conditions in
the parents’ home, facilitate return of the child to his own safe home or the permanent
placement of the child, and addtess the needs of the child while in foster care, including
a discussion of the approptiateness of the services that have been provided to the child
under the plan.
(C) The health and education tecords of the child, including the most recent information
available regarding—

(i) the names and addresses of the child’s health and educational providers;

(it} the child’s grade level performance;

153



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XIli

{u1) the child’s school record;

(iv) a record of the child’s immunizations;

(v) the child’s known medical problems;

(v1) the child’s medications; and

{vii) any other relevant health and education information concerning the child

determined to be appropriate by the State agency.
(D) Whete appropriate, for a child age 16 or over, a written description of the programs
and services which will help such child prepare for the transidon from foster care to
independent living.
(E) In the case of a child with respect to whom the permanency plan is adoption or
placement in another permanent home, documentation of the steps the agency is taking
to find an adoptive family or other permanent living arrangement for the child, to place
the child with an adoptive family, a {it and willing relative, a legal guardian, or in another
planned permanent living arrangement, and to finalize the adoption or legal
guardianship. At a minimum, such documentation shall include child specific recruitment
efforts such as the use of State, regional, and national adoption exchanges including
electronic exchange systems to facilitate orderly and timely in-State and interstate
placements.
(F) In the case of a child with respect to whom the permanency plan is placement with a
relative and receipt of kinship guardianship assistance payments under section 673(d} of
this dtle, 2 descriptdon of—

(i) the steps that the agency has taken to determine that it is not appropriate for

the child to be returned home or adopted;

(i1) the reasons for any separation of siblings duting placement;

(iif) the reasons why a permanent placement with a fit and willing relative through
a kinship guardianship assistance atrangement is in the child’s best interests;

{iv) the ways in which the child meets the eligibility requirements for a kinship
guardianship assistance payment;

{v) the efforts the agency has made to discuss adoption by the child’s relative
foster parent as a more permanent alternative to legal guardianship and, in the
case of a relative foster parent who has chosen not to pursue adoption,
documentation of the reasons therefor; and

{vi} the efforts made by the State agency to discuss with the child’s parent or
parents the kinship guardianship assistanee arrangement, or the reasons why the
efforts were not made.

(G) A plan for ensuring the educational stability of the child while in foster care,
including—

154



E—

Administration for Children and Families, HHS

(i) assurances that cach placement of the child in foster care takes into account the
approptiateness of the current educational setting and the proximity to the school
in which the child is enrolled at the time of placement; and
()

(D)  an assurance that the State agency has coordinated with appropriate

local educational agencies (as defined under section 7801 of title 20) to
ensure that the child remains in the school in which the child is enrolled at

the dme of each placement; or

@I} if remaining in such school is not in the best interests of the child,
assurances by the State agency and the local educational agencies to
provide immediate and approptiate entollment in a new school, with all of
the educational tecords of the child provided to the school.

62. Commercial driver’s license standards; requirements and penalties (42 CFR part 383)

htips:/ /www.fmcsa.dot.gov/regulations/title49/part /383

63. Section 725(2) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.5.C. 11434a (2))

(2) The term “homeless children and youths”—

(A} means individuals who lack a fixed, regular, and adequate nighttime residence (within
the meaning of section 11302{a}{1) of this title); and

(B includes—
() children and youths who are shating the housing of other persons due to
loss of housing, economic hardship, or a similar reason; are living in
motels, hotels,

trailer parks, or camping grounds due to the lack of alternative adequate
accommodations; are living in emergency or transitional shelters; are
abandoned in hospitals; or are awaiting foster care placement;

(i) children and youths who have 2 primary nighttime residence that is a
public ot private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a regular
sleeping accommodation for human beings (within the meaning of section
11302()(2)(C) [1] of this ttle);

(iii) children and youths who are living in caxs, patks, public spaces,
abandoned buildings, substandard housing, bus or train stations, or similar
settings; and

(iv}) migratory children (as such term is defined in section 6399 of title 20)
who qualify as homeless for the purposes of this part because the children
are living in circumstances described in clauses (i) through (iii).

155



Statutory References andWeb Resources 45 CFR Chapter XII!

64.

65.

66.

Section 645(a)(3)(B) of the Act:
(B) The following amounts of pay and allowance of a membet of the uniformed services shall
not be considered to be income for purposes of determining the eligibility of a dependent of
such member for programs funded under this subchapter:
(i) The amount of any special pay payable under section 310 of title 37, United States
Code, relating to duty subject to hostile fire or immment danger.
(1) The amount of basic allowance payable under section 403 of such dtle, including any
such amount that is provided on behalf of the member for housing that is acquired or
constructed under the alternative authonty for the acquisition and improvement of
military housing under subchapter IV of chapter 169 of title 10, United States Code, ot
any other related provision of law.

Section 637(12) of the Act:

The term “Indian tribe” means any tribe, band, nation, pueblo, or other organized group or
community of Indians, including any Native village described in section 3(c) of the Alaska
Native Claims Settlement Act (43 U.S.C. 1602(c)) or established pursuant to such Act (43

U.S.C. 1601 et seq.), that is recognized as eligible for the special programs and services provided
by the United States to Indians because of their status as Indians.

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, Sec. 300,320

Definition of individualized education program. (IEP)
(a) General. As used in this part, the term individualized education program or IEP
means a written statement for each child with a disability that is developed, reviewed,
and revised in 2 meeting in accordance with Sec. Sec. 300.320 through 300.324, and that
must include-
(1) A statement of the child’s present levels of academic achievernent and
functonal performance, including-
(1) How the child’s disability atfects the child’s involvement and progress in
the general education curriculum {i.e., the same curriculum as for
nondisabled children); or
(1) For preschool children, as appropriate, how the disability affects the
child’s partcipation in appropriate activities;
(2y() A statement of measurable annual geals, including academic and functional
goals designed to-
{(A) Meet the child’s needs that result from the child’s disability to
enable the child to be involved in and make progress in the general
education curriculum; and

(B) Meet each of the child’s other educational needs that result from
the child’s disability;

156



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

(i) For children with disabilities who take alternate assessments aligned to
alternate achievement standards, a description of benchmatks or short-
term objectives;
(3) A description of-
{i) How the child’s progress toward meeting the annual goals described in
paragraph (2) of this section will be measured; and
(i) When periodic seports on the progress the child is making toward
meeting the annual goals (such as through the use of quartetly or other
periodic repotts, concutrent with the issuance of repoit cards) will be
provided;
(4) A statement of the special education and telated services and supplementary
aids and services, bascd on peer-reviewed research to the extent practicable, to be
provided to the child, or on behalf of the child, and a statement of the program
modificadens or suppoits for school petsonnel that will be provided to enable the
child-
(1) To advance appropriately toward attaining the annual goals;
(ii) To be inveolved in and make progress in the general education
curriculum in accordance with paragraph (a)(1) of this section, and to
participate in extracurricular and other nonacademic activities; and
(iiiy To be educated and participate with other children with disabilities and
nondisabled children in the activities described in this section;
(5) An explanation of the extent, if any, to which the child will not participate with
nondisabled children in the regular class and in the activities described in
patagraph (2)(4) of this section;
(6) (@) A statement of any individual appropriate accommodations that are

necessary to measure the academic achievement and functional performance of
the child on State and districtwide assessments consistent with section 612(a}(16)

of the Act; and
(ii) If the IEP Team determines that the child must take an alternate
assessment instead of a particular regular State or districtwide assessment
of student achievement, a statement of why-

(A} The child cannot patticipatc in the regular assessment; and
{(B) The patticular alternate assessment selected is appropriate for the
child; and

(7) The projected date for the beginning of the services and modifications
described in paragraph (a)(4) of this section, and the anticipated frequency,
location, and dutation of those services and modifications.

157



Statutory References and Web Resources 45 CFR Chapter XIli

(b) Transition setrvices. Beginning not later than the first IEP to be in effect when the
child turns 16, or younger if determined appropriate by the IEP Team, and updated
annually, thereafter, the TEP must include-
(t) Appropriate measurable postsecondary goals based apon age appropriate
transition assessments related to training, education, employment, and, where
appropriate, independent living skills; and
(2) The transition services (including courses of study) needed to assist the child
in reaching those goals.
(c) Transfer of rights at age of majority. Beginning not Jater than one year before the
child reaches the age of majority under State law, the IEP must include a statement that
the child has been informed of the child’s rights under Part B of the Act, if any, that will
transfer to the child on reaching the age of majority under Sec. 300.520.

{d) Construction. Nothing in this section shall be construed to requite-
(1) That additional information be included in a child’s IEP beyond what is
explicitly required in section 614 of the Act; ot

{2) The IEP Team to include information under one component of a child’s JEP
that is already contained under another component of the child’s IEP,

67. Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, Sec. 636
Definition of an Individualized Family Service Plan (JFSP)
{a) Assessment and Program Development.- A statewide system described in section 633 shall
provide, at a minimum, for each infant or toddler with a disability, and the infant’s or toddler’s
family, to receive-
(1) a multidisciplinary assessment of the unique strengths and needs of the infant or
toddler and the identification of services appropriate to meet such needs;
(2) a family-directed assessment of the resoutces, priotities, and concerns of the family
and the identification of the supports and services necessary to enhance the family’s
capacity to meet the developmental needs of the infant or toddler; and
(3) a written individualized family service plan developed by a multidisciplinary team,
including the parents, as required by subsection (), including a description of the
appropriate transition services for the infant or toddler.
(b) Periodic Review.-The individualized family service plan shall be evaluated once a year and
the family shall be provided a review of the plan at 6-month intervals (or more often where
approptiate based on infant or toddler and family needs).
(c) Promptness After Assessment.-The individualized family service plan shall be developed

within a reasonable time after the assessment required by subscction (a)(1} is completed. With
the parents’ consent, eatly intervention services may commence prior to the completion of the

assessment.
(d) Content of Plan.-The individualized family service plan shall be in writing and contam-

158



Administration for Children and Families, HHS

(1) a statement of the infant’s or toddler’s present levels of physical development,
cognitive development, communication development, social or emotional development,
and adaptive development, based on objective criteria;

(2) a statement of the family’s resources, priorities, and concerns relating to enhancing
the development of the family’s infant ot toddler with a disability;

(3) a statement of the measurable results or cutcomes expected to be achieved for the
infant or toddler and the family, including pre-literacy and language skills, as
developmentally approptiate for the child, and the criteria, procedures, and timelines

used to determine the degree to which progress toward achieving the results or
outcomes is being made and whether modifications or revisions of the results or

outcomes or Services are NECEssary,

(4) a statement of specific eatly intcrvention services based on peer-reviewed research, to
the extent practicable, necessary to meet the unique needs of the infant or toddler and
the family, including the frequency, intensity, and method of delivering services;

(5) a statement of the natural environments i which eatly intervention services will
appropriately be provided, including 2 justificadon of the extent, if any, to which the
services will not be provided in 2 natural environment;
(6) the projected dates for initiation of services and the anticipated length, duration, and
frequency of the services;
(7) the identficaton of the service coordinator from the profession most immediately
relevant to the infant’s or toddler’s ot family’s needs {ox who is otherwise qualified to
carry out all applicable responsibilities under this part) who will be responsible for the
implementation of the plan and coordination with other agencies and persons, including
transition setrvices; and
(8) the steps to be taken to suppott the transition of the toddler with a disability to
preschool or other appropriate services.
(e) Parental Consent.-The contents of the individualized family service plan shall be fully
explained to the parents and informed written consent from the parents shall be obtained prior
to the provision of early intervention services described in such plan. If the parents do not
ptovide consent with respect to a particular eatly intervention service, then only the eatly
intervention services to which consent is obtained shall be provided.

159



Statutory References andWeb Resources 45 CFR Chapter X1l

68. Section 637(25) of the Act:

The term “State” means a State, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, the District of Columbia,
Guam, American Samoa, the Vitgin Islands of the United States, and the Commeonwealth of
the Notthern Matiana Islands. The term includes the Republic of Palau for fiscal years 2008
and 2009, and (f the legislation described in section 640(2}(2)(B)(v) has not been enacted by
September 30, 2009) for fiscal years 2010 through 2012,

160



This page intentionally left blank



FCCDI Head Start and Early Head Start
Common Terms Used At A Policy Council Meeting

Abstain - To decide you don’t have enough information to vote,
Adjourn - To end a meeting officially.
Agenda - A list of what will be considered at the meeting,

Aye or Nay - Yes or no in a voice vote; 2 member can request a recount by a show of
hands.

Ballot - A written vole to allow secrecy.
Bylaws - The procedures and basic rules guiding a group
Defer/Table - To wait until 2 Jater meeting to continue discussing an jtem.

Delegate Agency - An agency that contracts with a grantee to run a Head Start or Early
Head Start program.

Grantee - The agency that receives fimds directly from the federal government to run a
Head Start program.

Minutes - The record of a meeting, the record of the business

Motion - A proposal for action to be taken by the group. It should be introduced by the |
words, “T move that...” or “I make a motion that., ”

New Business - Motions or subjects presented for discussion for the first time.

Old Business - Motions or subjects presented for discussion that have been discussed but
no action taken in previons meetings,

Nomination - A proposal of a candidate for office. The nominee has the right to
withdraw his name from the contest.

Performance Standards - The federal rules that all Head Start programs must follow.

Quorum - The number of members needed to make official decisions, The bylaws
indicate the numbers required.



Contents

Part 1301 — Program GOVErnance ..o s oo S|
§1301.2 Goveraing body,. T i s st besness e |
§1301.3 Policy council and policy committee, ............. e s st s reamas s 2
SBOLSTHANING ottt 4
§1301.6 Impasse procedures. B O |

Part 1302 — PIOGIAD OPEIRHONS ..o o 4
§1302.1 Overview ...........co....... et sserssessmmesnres§

Subpart A — Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enroliment, and Attendance SO
$1302:10 PUIPOSE. s 6
§1302.11 Determining community strengths, needs, and TESOUICES.........orirerrrrrmrereonn.s 6
§1302.12 Determining, verifying, and documenting eligibility. ................... g
§1302,13 Recruitment of children. ... e 50t s e 4 e s st 14
§1302.14 Selecrion process. 14
§1302.16 Attcndancc.A 15
§1302.17 Suspension and EXPUISION. 1ot simimse oo s 16
§1302.18 Fees. O

SUBPALE B — PrOGIAmm StUCHILE .crs st 18
§1302.20 Determining O |
§1302.21 Center-based option. st b 1 a1t s mene s s ee oo 19
$1302.22 HOME-DaSEd OPHON. .ot sscrmsmmssems 22
§1302.23 Family child care OPUODL oo .23
§1302.24 Locally-designed Program option vatiations. ... oo 24

Subpatt C — Education and Child Development Progzam Services TS OOY .
S130230 PULPOSE. ottt e 26
§1302.31 Teaching and the learning en‘v:ronmentZﬁ
$1302.32 CUHICU s 28
§1302.33 Child screenings and assessments. et st e v st oo s s 2O
$1302.34 Parent and family engagement in education and child developmeat services.31
§1302.35 Education in home-based PIOZRAUIS ettt e ot oo 32
§1302.36 Tdbal language preservation and sevitalization. ..., 34

Subpart D — Heaith PLOGEAMN SEEVICES rvrimssrmssesossesoses oo 34
D 34

§1302:42 Child health SIS A CAE. s 35
§1302.43 Oral heaith pracun:c&:‘a‘?
$1302.44 CHIld BRLHOD. ottt 37
§1302.45 Child meantal health and social and emotional well-being, ... 38
§1302.46 Family support services for health, nutrition, and mental health. . 38
ST1302.47 SAety PIaCHCes. ..o msssmssmssessooo 3¢
Subpart E — Family and Community Engagement Program Services.........oooonrorovo 42
§1302.50 Fatnily cOGAGEMENL ... 42
§1302.51 Parent activities to promote child learning and development. ... 43
§1302.52 Family PAOCISHD SCIVICES. vt 43




§1302.53 Community partnerships and coordination with other early childhood and
education PIOBTAMS .ottt ssanssesenasssessosns s esonss e s sese oo oo
Subpatt F — Additional Services for Children with Disabilities
§1302.60 Full participation in program services and activities.................oo
§1302.61 Additional services for ChldRen. ..nmwevoseem oo 46
§1302.62 Additional services for OO |
§1302.63 Coordination and collaboration with the local agency tesponsible for
implementing IDEA. ... .
Subpart G — Transition Services
$1302.70 Transitions from Eady Head StIt. oo 48
§1302.71 Transitions from Head Start to kindergatten. ..o 49
§1302.72 Transitions between programs.. - . e B0
Subpart H — Services to Enrolled Pregnant Women.....uuuucurvovcoceree 51
§1302.80 Entolled pregnant WOIDER cevvvtstermmsssn s sssnssssse s s ennssssss s srnsesssssmsesams sssnoon s, 31
§1302.81 Prenatal and postparmm informmation, education, and services. ............... 51
§1302.82 Pamily partnership services for enrolied pregnant women. .................... 51
Subpart I — Human Resources Management e VOO 3
§1302.90 Personnel policies. TS OSSOV D O UTIT. 7.
§1302.91 Staff qualifications and competency requitements. ................ 54
§1302.92 Training and professional development. ....vevcevemmeeennnsrer oo 56
§1302.93 Staff bealth a0d WelNE8S. v 57
§1302.94 VOMIBIEELS. .o 58
Subpart ] — Program Manapement and Quality Imptovement. .o 58
iy e 58

253

§1302.103 Implementation of program performance standards. ... 62

Part 1303 ~ Financial and Administrative Requiremnents ..o 62
H1303.1 OFEATIW, vttt oo 63

Subpart A — Financial REQUITEMENIS .....oesssersmes 64

§1303.2 PUIPOSE. .ottt

§1303.4 Federal financial assistance, non-federal match, and waiver requirements. ....... 64
§1303.5 Limitations on development and administrative (2100 TR OIUI 3.
Subpart B — Administrative REQUILEMENILS -.eorrvreroesvssceren oo 66
$1303.10 PUIPOSE. crtrvsssmetstsisissemstsssesses s 66
§1303.11 Limitations and Prohibiions. ... 66
§1303.12 Insurance and bonding. .................
Subpart C — Protections for the Privacy of Child Records womuuuurnonecooooo 66
§1303.20 Establishing L 66
§1303.21 Program procedures — applicable confidentiality provisions, ........wnn.ns.nn. 66
§1303.22 Disclosures with, and without, pareatal consent....ovumnreeeoens 67
§1303.23 Parental ights. ...ovccvcovemesseesssse oo 69
§1303.24 Maintaining records. .....ooummrmno... . . VU | |
Subpart D — Delegation of Program OPELATONS ..o neecrmsres s er oo
§1303.30 Grantee responsibility and accountability: ... 71
§1303.31 Determining and establishing delegate agencies. ..o 71
§1303.32 Evaluations and cotrective actions for delegate agencies.......oo...vovnsnrn 71

i



§1303.33 Termination of delegate agencies, B T TSR | |

Subpart E — Facilities ............coeeroo . 0SS UOOV & |
§1303.40 Purpose. OISR
§1303.41 Approval of previously purchased facilities. ......... S
§1303.42 Eligibility to purchase, construct, and renovate facilities. ..o 72
§1303.43 Use of gtant funds 1o pay fees. e e o b et et re st en s O )
§1303.44 Applications o purchase, construct, and renovate facilities. ... .......... 73
§1303.45 Cost-comparison to purchase, construct, and tenovate facilides, ........... 74

§1303.46 Recording and posting notices of federal TE 1o 2o O, 1
§1303.47 Contents of notices of federal IODRIESE. oot ererese oo, T6
§1303.48 Grantee limitations on federal interest. VIO ¥
§1303.49 Protection of federal interest in ROrgage agreements. .....vcouvormnecoone.ee..... 78
§1303.50 Thitd party leases and QCCUPANCY ALTANGEMENLS. .........ceovcreers oo essmenne .o T8

§1303.51 Subordination of the federal IMETESE. ... 79
§1303.52 Insurance, bonding, and maintenance. .......... FEt sttt stesosaesenn e oo TO
§1303.53 Copies of dOCUMENTS. vuv.cmwevmmssemmissems oo 80
§1303.54 Record retention, b st st s e .80
§1303.55 Procurcment ProCedures. ... oot 80
§1303.56 Inspection of work. et s et et e sa s s beaseaeeeserassers e B0
SUbpart F — TEaNSPOAHON ccovcsomsimsis s 81
ST303.70 PUIPOSE. sttt et 81
§1303.71 VERICles. oot 82
§1303.72 Vehicle OPELATON. .ot oo B2
§1303.73 THD LOULNG, s csssssisiensesses oo 84
§1303.74 Safety Proceduies. wo.mmmrrecrcrecree e 84
§1303.75 Children with disabilifies. ......oueroooeosso S LY
Part 1304 -— Federal Administrative Procedu.te585
Subpart A — Monitoting, Suspension, Tetmination, Denial of Refunding, Reduction in
Funding, and theit APPEalS...oo.....ocovscvnsroo 86
$1304.0 PAPOSC... o 86
$1304.2 MOMOLING. - ettt 86
§1304.3 SuSpension With BOHCE. oo 87
§1304.4 Emergency suspension without advance nOtCe. ... .. 88
§1304.5 Termination and denial of L LT 90
§1304.6 Appeal for prospective delegate BEENCES, tovvevervvrrensemrereeeerr oo oo 92
§1304.7 Legal f6es.....omrmmvvmmmmrissssoesmoosoooooooo . e e ssaros S 93
Subpart B — Designation REDEWal v 93
§1304.10 Purpose and B O 93
§1304.11 Basis for determining whether 2 Head Start agency will be éubject to an

open competition. ....... tretrereasesana e S B
§1304.12 Graatee reporting requitements concerning certain conditions, serarmsssirrvrnsesias 36
§1304.13 Requirements to be considered for designation for a five-year petiod when

the existing grantee in 2 community is not determined to be delivering 2

high-quality and comprehensive Head Start program and is not

ARCOMALCALY SEOEWED. oo . 96
§1304.14 Tribal government consultation under the Designation Renewal System for

when an Indian Head Start grant is being considered for competition...........97
§1304.15 Designation request, teview and notification PIOCESS oot ecrn e crrere s snsens 97

sen



§1304.16 Use of CLASS: Pre-K instrument in the Designation Rencwal System..........
Subpart C — Selection of Grantees thtough Compettion ..o,
§1304.20 Selection among aPPHCAnLS. w...ooemmsmereocesres oo
Subpatt D — Replacement of Amertican Indian and Alasks Native Grantees....oeremrmrannnna.
§1304.30 Procedure for identification of alternative agency.
§1304.31 Requirements of alternative AZENCY. c.ecvirirnnns b s e setassera st res
§1304.32 Alternative agency—prohibition.....ms.mroeeeoooo
Subpatt E — Head Start Fellows PrOgramm ..o omecosceoeoos oo
§1304.40 Puspose.
§1304.41 Head Start Fellows L T

Part 1305 — Defititions............ooeeevveomeeresessr oo Fesretbennan s e ssto et
§1305.1 Purpose. ....cconnon..
§1305.2 Terms. ...............




For the reasons set forth in the preamble, under the authority at 42 US.C. 9807 o seg., subchapter B
of 45 CFR chapter XJII is revised t0 tead as follows:

Subchapter B — The Administration for
Children and Families, Head Start Program

Part 1301 — Program Governance

Part 1302 — Program Operations

Part 1303 — Financial and Administrative Requirements
Part 1304 — Federal Administrative Procedures

Part 1305 — Definitions

Part 1301 — Program Governance

Sec.

1301.1  Purpose.

1301.2  Governing body.

1301.3 Policy council and policy committee,
13014  Parent committees.

1301.5 Training,

1301.6 Impasse procedures.

AUTHORITY: 42 US.C. 9801 ¢ seq.

§1301.1 Purpose.

An agency, as defined in part 1305 of this chapter, must establish and maintain a formal structure
for program governance that includes a governing body, a policy council at the agency level and
policy commitice at the delegate level, and 2 patent committee. Governing bodies have a legal and
fiscal responsibility to administer and oversee the agency’s Head Start and Early Head Start pro-
grams. Policy councils are responsible for the direction of the agency’s Head Start and Fatly Head

Start programs.

§1301.2 Governing body.

(a) Composition. The composition of a governing body must be in accordance with the require-
ments specificd at section 642(c)(1)(B) of the Act, except where specific exceptions are authorized in
the case of public entities at section 642(c)(1)(D) of the Act. Agencies must ensure members of the
governing body do not have 2 conflict of interest, pursuant to section 642(c)(1)(C) of the Act.

() Duties and responsibilities.
(1) The governing body is tesponsible for activities specified at section G42(c)(1)(E) of the Act.
{2) The governing body must use ongoing monitosing tesults, data on school readiness goals,




§1301.3 45 CFR Chapter Xl

other information described in §1302.1 02, and infotmation described at section 642(d}{2) of
the Act to conduct its responsibilities,

() Advisory comumitiees.

(1) A governing body may establish advisory committees as it deems necessaty for effective
governance and improvement of the pro .

(2) If a governing body establishes an advisory committee to oversee key responsibilities relat-
ed to program governance, it must:

(9) Establish the structure, communication, and oversight in such a way that the gov-
erning body continues to maintain its legal and fiscal responsibility for the Head Start
agency; and,

(i Notify the tesponsible HHS official of its intent to establish such an advisory
comymittee.

§1301.3 Policy council and policy commiittee.

(a) Eﬁl@ﬁhlﬂg_mhqmﬂs_mmmmm Each agency must establish and maintain

2 policy council responsible for the direction of the Head Start program at the agency level, and

a policy committee at the delegate level. If an agency delegates operational responsibility for the
entite Head Start or Early Head Start program to one delegate agency, the policy council and policy
committee may be the same body.

{b) Composition.

(1) A progtam must establish a policy council in accotdance with section 642(c)(2)(B) of the
Act, or a policy committee at the delegate level in accordance with section 642(c)(3) of the
Act, as eatly in the program year as possible. Parents of children currently enrolled in each
program option must be proportionately represented on the policy council and on the policy
committee at the delegate level.

(2) The program must ensure members of the policy council, and of the policy commitiee

at the delegate level, do not have 2 conflict of interest pursuant to sections 642(c)(2)(C) and
642(c)(3)(B) of the Act. Staff may a0t serve on the policy council or policy cormittee at the
delegate Jevel except patents who occasionally substitute as staff. In the case of tribal grantees,
this exclusion applies only to tribal staff who work i1 areas ditectly related to or which directly
impact administrative, fiscal, or programmatic issues.

{c) Duties and responsibilities.

(1) A policy council is responsible for activities specified at section 642(c)(2)(D) of the Act. A
policy committee must approve and submit to the delegate agency its decisions in each of the
following areas referenced at section 642(c)(2)(D)(1) through (vii) of the Act.

(2) A policy council, and a policy committee at the delegate level, must use ongoing moni-
toring results, data on school readiness goals, other information described in §1302.102, and
information described in section 642(d)(2) of the Act to conduct its tesponsibilities,

2



- {‘-

Administration for Children and Families, HHS §13015

(d) Term.
(1) A member will serve for one year.
(2) If the member intends to serve for another year, s/he must stand for re-election,

(3) The policy council, and policy committee at the delegate level, must inchide in its bylaws
how many one-year terms, not to exceed five LELmS, 2 person may serve.

(4) A program must seat a successor policy council, or policy commitiee at the delegate leve],
befote an existing policy coundil, or policy committee at the delegate level, may be dissolved.

(¢) Reimbursement. A program must enable low-income membets to participate fully in their policy
council ot policy committee responsibilities by providing, if necessary, seimbursements for reasor-
able expenses incurred by the low-income members,

§1301.4 Parent committees.

{a) Establishing parent committees. A program must establish a parent committee comprised

exclusively of patents of curtendy enzolled children as eatly in the progtam year as possible. This
committee must be established at the centet level for center-based programs and at the local pro-
gram level for other program options, When 2 program Operates more than one option, patents may
choose to have a separate committce for each option or combine membership. A program must
ensute that parents of curendy enrolled children understand the process for elections to the policy
council or policy committee and other leadership opportunites.

(b) Rﬂm&mmmmm. Within the parent committee structure, a program may

determine the best methods to engage families using strategies that are most effective in their copy.
munity, 2s long as the program ensures the parent committee carties out the following minimum

tesponsibilities:

(1) Advise seaff in developing and implementing Jocal program policies, activities, and services
to ensure they meet the needs of children and farnilies;

(@) Have a process for communication with the policy couneil and policy commitiee; and
(3) Within the guidelines established by the governing body, policy council or policy
committee, participate in the tecruitment and screening of Karly Head Start and Head Start
employces,

§1301.5 Training.

An agency must provide approptiate training 2nd technical assistance or ofientation to the govern-
ing body, any advisoty cornmittee members, and the policy council, including training on program
performance standards and training indicated in §1302.12(m) to ensure the members understand
the information they receive and can effectively oversee and participate in the programs in the Head

Start agency.




§i301.6

§1301.6 Impasse procedures.

(a) To facilitate meaningful consultation and collaboration about decisions of the governing body
and the policy council, each agency’s governing body and policy council jointly must establish writ-
ten procedures for tesolving internal disputes between the governing board and policy council in 2
timely manner that include impasse procedures. These procedures must:

(1) Demonstrate that the governing body considers proposed decisions from the policy coun-
cil and that the policy council considers proposed decisions from the governing body;

(2) If there is a disagreement, require the governing body and the policy council to notify the
other in writing why it does not accept a decision; and,

(3) Describe a decision-making process and a timeline to resolve disputes and reach decisions
that are not arbitrary, capticious, or illegal.

(b) If the agency’s decision-raking process does not result in a resolution and an impasse continues,
the governing body and policy council must select a mutually agreeable thizd party mediator and
participate in a formal process of mediation that leads to 2 resolution of the dispute.

{9) For all programs except American Indian and Alaska Native programs, i no resolution is reached
with a mediator, the governing body and policy council must select a mutually agreeable arbitrator
whose decision is final,

Part 1302 — Program Operations

Sec.
1302.1  Overview

Subpart A — Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enrollment, and Attendance

1302.10 Purpose.

1302.11 Determining community strengths, needs, and resonrees.
1302.12 Determining, verifying, and documenting eligibility.
1302.13 Recruitment of children.

1302.14 Selection process.

1302.15 Entollment,

1302.16 Attendance.

130217 Suspension and expulsion.

130218 Fees.

Subpart B — Program Structure

130220 Determining program structure.

1302.21 Center-based option.

1302.22 Home-based option.

1302.23  Family child care option.

1302.24  Locally-designed program option vatiations.

Subpart C — Education and Child Development Program Services

4



Administration for Children and Families, HMS §1301.6

1302.30 Purpose.

1302.31 Teaching and the learning environment,

130232 Curricula.

1302.33 Child screenings and assessments.

130234 Parent and family engagement in education and child development services.
1302.35 BEducation in home-based programs.

1302.36 Tribal language preservation and tevitalization.

Subpart D — Health Progtam Services

130240 Purpose.

1302.41 Collabotation and communicagon with parenis,

130242 Child health status and care.

130243  Oral health practices.

130244 Child nutrition.

130245 Child mental health and social and emotional well-being,
1302.46 Family support services for health, nutrition, and mental health,

1302.47 Safety practices.
Subpart E — Family and Community Engagement Program Services

1302.50 Family engagement,

1302.51 Parent activities to promote child learning and development.

1302.52 Pamily partnership services.

1302.53  Community partnerships and coordination with other early childhood and education
programs.

Subpart F — Additional Services for Children with Disabilities

1302.60 Tull participation in program services and activities,

1302.61 Additional services for children.

1302.62 Additional services for parenis.

1302.63  Coordination and collaboration with the local agency responsible for implementing
IDEA.

Subpart G — Transition Services

1302.70 Transitions from Early Head Start.
1302.71 Transitions from Head Start to kindergarten,
130272 ‘Transitions berween programs.

Subpart H — Services to Enrolled Pregnant Women:

130280 Enrolled pregnant women.
1302.81 Prenatal and postpartum informartion, education, and services.
1302.82 Family partnership services for enrolied Ppregnant women.

Subpart I — Human Resources Management

1302.90 Personnel policies.

1302.91 Staff qualification and competency requirements,
1302.92 Training and professional development.

1302.93 Staff health and wellness.




§1302.1

1302.94 Volunteers.
Subpart ] — Program Management and Quality Improvement

1302.100 Purpose.

1302.101 Management system.

1302.102 Achieving program goais.

1302.103 Implementation of program performance standards.

AUTHORITY: 42 US.C. 9801 ¢ seg.

§1302.1 Overview.

services to those children and their families, to managing programs to ensure staff are qualified and
suppotted to effectively provide services. This part also focuses on using data thtough ongoing pro-
gram improvement to ensure high-quality service. As tequired in the Act, these provisions do not
narrow the scope ot quality of services covered in previous regulations. I'nstead, these regulations
raise the quality standard 1o reflect science and best practices, and streamline and simplify require-
ments so programs can better understand what s required for quality services.

Subpart A — Eligibility, Recruitment, Selection, Enroliment,
and Attendance

§1302.10 Purpose.

This subpart describes tequirements of grantees for determining community strengths, needs and
resources as well as recruitment areas. It contains requirements and procedures for the eligibility
determination, recruitment, selection, enrollment and attendance of children and explains the policy

concerning the charging of fees.

§1302.11 Determining community strengths, needs, and resources.

(a) Scrvice area.

(1) A program must propose 2 service ares in the grant application and define the area by
county or sub-county area, such as a municipality, town or census tract or jurisdiction of a

federaﬂy recognized Indian reservation.

@) A tribal program may Propose a service area that includes areas where members of
Indian wibes or those eligible for such membership reside, including but not limited ¢o
Indian reservation land, areas designated as near-reservation by the Bureau of Indian
Affairs (BIA) provided that the service area is approved by the tribe’s governing council,
Alaska Native Villages, Alaska Native Regional Corporations with land-based authorities,

6



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.11

Oklahoma Tribal Statistical Areas, and Tribal Designated Statistical Areas where federally
recognized Indian eribes do not have a federally cstablished reservation.

(i) If the iribe’s service atea inchides any area specified in paragraph (a)(1)() of this sec-
tion, and that area is also served by another program, the tribe may serve children from
families who are members of or eligible to be membets of such tribe and who reside in
such areas as well as children from families who are not members of the tribe, but who
reside within the tribe’s established service area.

(2) If a program decides to change the service azea after ACE has approved its grant applica-
tion, the program must submit to ACF 2 new service area proposal for approval.

{1} To design a program that meets commumity needs, and builds on strengths and resources,
a program must conduct a community assessment at least once over the five-year grant peri-
od. The community assessment must use data that describes community strengths, needs, and
resources and include, at a minimum:

() The number of eligible infants, toddlers, preschool age children, and expectant moth-
ers, including their geographic location, race, ethnicity, and languages they spezk, inchid-
ing:
(A) Children experiencing homelessness in collaboration with, to the extent possi-
ble, McKinney-Vento Local Edycation Agency Liaisons (42 US.C. 11432 {6)(A));

(B) Children in foster care; and

(C) Children with disabilities, including types of disabilities and relevant services
and resources provided to these children by community agencies;

(i) The education, health, nutrition and social service needs of eligible children and their
families, including prevalent social or economic factors that impact their well-being;

(iii) Typical work, school, and training schedules of parents with cligible children;

(iv) Other child development, child care centers, 2nd family child care programs that
serve eligible children, including home visiting, publicly funded state and local pre-
schools, and the approximate number of eligible childten served;

{v) Resources that are available in the commamnity to address the needs of eligible chil-
dten and their famnilies; and,

{vi) Strengths of the community.

(2) A program must annually review and update the community assessment to reflect any sig-
nificant changes inchuding increased availability of publicly-funded pre-kindcrgarten (inchud-
ing an assessment of how the pre-kindergarten available in the comuunity meets the needs of
the parents and childten served by the program, and whether it is offered for a full school day),
rates of family and child homelessness, and significant shifts in community demographics and

Le30urces,




§1302.12

{3) A program must consider whether the characteristics of the community allow it to include
children from diverse econormic backgrounds that would be supported by other funding sourc-
es, including private pay, in addition to the program’s eligible funded enrollment. A program
must not enroll children from diverse economic backgrounds if it would result in 2 program
sexving less than its eligible funded eprollment.

§1302.12 Determining, verifying, and documenting eligibility.

(a) Process overview,
(1) Program staff must:
(D) Conduct an in-person interview with cach family, unless Paragraph (2)(2} of this sec-
tHon applies;
(i) Verify information as requited in paragraphs (h) and (i) of this section; end,
(i) Create an eligibility determination record for entolled parricipants accotding to para-

graph (k) of this section,

{2) Program staff may interview the family over the telephone if an In-person intetview is not
possible ot convenient for the family. '

(3) If 2 program has an alternate method to teasonably determine eligibiiity based on its com-
ANty assessment, geographic and administrative data, or from other reliable data sources, it
may petition the responsible HHS official to waive tequisernents in paragraphs @(1){E and i)
of this section.

(b) Age requirements.

(1) For Eary Head Start, except when the child is transitioning to Head Start, a child must be
an infant or a toddler younger than three years old.

(2) For Head Stast, a child must:

(1) Be at least three years old or, tutn three years old by the date used to determine eli-
gibility for public school in the community in which the Head Stazt program is located;
and,

(@) Be no older than the age required to attend school.

(3) For Migrant oz Seasonal Head Start, a child must be younger than compulsory school age
by the date used to determine public schoc! eligibility for the community in which the program
is located.

() Eligibility requirements.

(1) A pregnant woman ot a child is eligible if:
(@) The family’s income is equal to of below the poverty line; of,




Administration for Children and Farnilies, HHS §1302.12

(1} The family is eligible for ot, in the absence of child care, would be potentially eligible
for public assistance; including TANF child-only payments; or,

(i) The child is homeless, as defined in part 1305; or,
(iv) The child is in foster care.

(2) If the family does not meet a criterion under paragraph (c)(1) of this section, 2 program
may earoll a child who would benefit from services, provided that these participants only make
up to 10 pereent of a program’s entollment in accordance with paragtaph (d) of this section.

{d) Mﬂiﬂlﬂ@ﬂb{m@

(1) A progzam may enroll an additional 35 percent of participants whose families do not meet
a criterion described in paragraph (c) of this section and whose Incomes are below 130 petcent
of the poverty line, if the program:

(1) Establishes and implements outreach, and enrollment policies and procedures to
ensure it is meeting the needs of eligible pregnant women, children, and children with
disabilities, before serving pregnant women or children who do not meet the eriteria in
patagraph (¢) of this section; and,

(i) Establishes criteria that ensure prégnant women and children eligible under the crjte.
ria listed in paragraph () of this section are served first.

(2 If 2 program chooses to entoll Participants who do not meet 2 criterion in paragtaph (c} of
this section, and whose family incomes are between 100 and 130 percent of the poverty line, it
must be zble to report to the Head Start regional program office:

public assistance, homeless children, and children in foster care, and inchade local demo-
graphic data on these populations;

(iif) Efforts, including outreach, to be fully enrolled with eligible pregnant women ot
children;

{v) Policies, procedures, and selection etiteria it uses to serve eligible children;
(v) Its current earollment and its enrollment for the previous year;

{vi) The number of pregnant women and children served, disagpregated by the eligibility
ctitetia in paragraphs (c) and (d)(1) of this section; and,

{vil) The eligibility criteria ¢ategory of each child on the program’s waiting list,

(&) Additional allowances for Indian tribes.

(1) Nowwithstanding Paragraph (c)(2) of this section, a ribal Program may fill more than 19

g



§1302.12

percent of its enrollment with participants who ate not eligible under the chitetia in paragtaph
{c) of this section, if

() The tribal prograr has served all eligible pregnant women or children who wish to be
enrolled from Indian and non-Indian families living within the approved service area of
the ttibal agency,

(i) The tribe has resources within its grant, without using additional funds from HHS in-
ended to expand Early Head Start or Head Start setvices, to enroll pregnant women or
children whose family incomes exceed low-tncome guidelines or who are not otherwise

eligible; and,

(i) At least 51 percent of the Progtam’s pardcipants meet an eligibility criterion under
paragraph (¢)(1) of this section,

eligible Tndian and non-Indian pregnant women of children who wish to enrcll before serving
over-income pregnant women- or children,

(3) A program that meets the conditions of this paragtaph (e) must annually set criteria that
are approved by the policy council and the teibal counil for selecting over-income pregnant
women or children who would benefit from Program scrvices.

(4) An Indian tribe or tribes that operates both an Early Head Start program and a Head Start
program may, at its discretion, at any time during the grant period involved, reallocate funds
between the Barly Head Start program and the Head Start brogram in order to address fluct-
ations in client populations, ncluding pregnant women and children from birth to compulsory
school age. The reallocation of such funds between programs by an Indian tribe or tribes
during a year may not serve as 2 basis for any reduction of the base grant for ejther program in

succeeding years.
(f) Mi r Seasonal elipibili i - A child is eligible for Migrant or Seasonal Head
Statt, if the family meets an eligibility criterion in paragraphs (c) and (d) of this section; and the fam-
ily’s income comes primerily from agricultural work.

(1) A program may establish its own ctiteria for eligibility provided that it meets the criteria
outlined in section 645{a)(2) of the Act.

(2) No child residing in such cormnmunity whose family is eligible under criteria described in
paragraphs (c) through (f) of this section, may be denjed an opportunity to participate in the
ptograrn under the eligibility criteria established under this paragraph (2.

(h) Yerifying age. Program staff must verify 2 child’s age according to program policies and pro-
cedutes. A program’s policies and procedures cannot tequire families to provide documents that
confitm a child’s age, if doing so creates a barrier for the family to enroll the child.

(1) Verifying cligibility.

FO



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.12

(1) To vetify eligibility based on income, program staff must use tax forms, pay stubs, or other
proof of income to determine the family income for the relevant time petiod.

() If the family cannot provide tax forms, pay stubs, or other proof of income for the
relevant time period, program staff nay accept written statements from employers,
including individuals who are self-etnployed, for the relevant time petiod and use infor-
mation provided to calculate total anaual income with appropriate multipliets.

(i) If the family reports no income for the relevant time pedod, 2 program toay accept
the family’s signed dedlaration to that effect, if program staff describes efforts made
to verify the family’s income, and explains how the family’s total income was calculated
of seeks information from third parties about the family’s eligibility, if the family pives
wiitten consent. If a family gives consent to contact third parties, program staff must
adhere to program safety and privacy policies and procedures and ensure the eligibility
determination record adheres to paragraph (k)(2) of this section.

(it} If the family can demonstrate 2 significant change in income for the relevant time
peziod, program staff may consider current income circumstances,

(2) To verify whether 2 family is eligible for, or in the absence of child care, would be poten-
tially eligible for public assistance, the program must have documentation from either the state,
local, or tbal pubtic assistance agency that shows the family either receives public assistance
ot that shows the family is potentially eligible to recejve public assistance,

is homeless or any other docomentation that indicates homelessness, including documentation
from a public or private agency, a declaration, mformaton gathered on enrollment os appli-
cation forms, ot notes from an interview with staff to establish the child is bomeless; or any
other document that establishes homelessnegs.

@ If a family can provide one of the documents described in this paragraph (i}(3), pro-
gram staff must describe efforts made to verify the aceuracy of the information provid-
¢d and state whether the family is eligibie because they are homeless.

@) If a family cannot provide one of the documents described in this paragraph (i)(3) to
prove the child is homeless, a brogram may accept the family’s signed declaration to that
effect, if, in a written statement, program staff describe the child’s living situation that
meets the definition of homeless in part 1305 of this chapter,

(iii} Program staff may seek infottnation from third parties who have firsthand knowl-

* edge about a family’s living situation, if the family gives written consent. If the family
gives consent to contact third parties, program staff must adhere to program privacy
policies and procedures and ensure the eligibility determination record adheres to pata-
graph (k) of this section.

(1) To verify whether a child is in foster cate, program staff must accept either a court order
or other legal or government-issued docurnent, a wiitten statement from a government child
welfare official that demonstrates the child is in foster care, ot proof of a foster care Ppayment.

/]



§1302.12

(1) Bligibility duration.
(1) If a child is determined eligible under this section and is participating in a Head Start
program, he or she will rermain eligible through the end of the succeeding program year ex-
cept that the Head Start propram may choose not to earoll a child when there are compelling
teasons for the child not to remain in Head Start, such 25 when there is a’change in the child's
family income and there is a child with a greater need for Head Start services.

(2) Childten who are enrclled in a program receiving funds under the authority of section
645A of the Act remain eligible while they participate in the program.

{3) 1f a child moves from an Barly Head Start program to a Head Start program, program
staff must verify the family’s eligibility again.

(4) If a program operates both an Early Head Start and a2 Head Start progtam, and the parents
wish to entoll their child who has been entolled in the program’s Early Head Start, the pro-
gram must ensure, whenever possible, the child receives Head Start services until enrolled in
school, provided the child is digjble.

(k) Records.

(1) A program must keep eligibility determination recotds fot each patticipant and ongoing re-
cords of the eligibility training for staff requited by paragraph (m) of this section. A program
tnay keep these records electronically,

(2) Each eligibility determination record must include:

(i) Copies of any documents or statements, including declarations, that are deemed nec.
essary to verify eligibility under paragraphs (h) and (i) of this section;

(i) A statement that program staff has made reasonable efforts to verify information by:

() Conducting either an in-person, or a telephone interview with the family as
described under paragraph (a) (D@ or (a)(2) of this section; and,

(B) Describing efforts made to verify eligibility, as required under paragraphs (h)
through (i) of this section; and, collecting documents requited for third party
verification that includes the family’s written consent to contact each third party,
the third parties” names, titles, and affliations, and information from third parties

tegarding the family’s eligibility,

(i} A staternent that identifies whether:
(A) The family’s income is below income guidelines for its size, and lists the fami-
ks size;
(B) The family is eligible for or, in the absence of child cate, potentially eligible for
public assistance;

(C) The child is a homeless child ot the child is in foster care;




Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.13

(D) The family was determined to be eligible under the criterion in paragraph (c)(2)
of this section; or,

(E) The family was determined to be cligible under the critetion in paragraph (d)(1)
of this section.

(3) A program must keep eligibility determination tecords for those currently enrolled, as Jong
as they are entolled, and, for one year after they have either scopped receiving services; or are
no longer enrolled.

Derarn policies 2 i ating o1 gulations. A program
must establish written policies and procedures that desctibe all actions taken against staff who in-
tentionally violate federal and program eligibility determination regulations and who entoll pregnant
women and children that are not cligible to receive Early Head Start or Head Start services.

(i) Teaici leibilice

(1) A program must train 4l governing body, policy council, management, and staff who
determine eligibility on applicable federal regulations and program policies and procedures.

Training must, at a minimum:

@ Include methods on how to collect complete and accurate eligibility information from
families and third party sources;

(i) Incorporate strategies for treating families with dignity and respect and for dealing
with possible issues of domestic violence, stigma, and ptivacy; and,

(iif) Explain program policies and proceduses that describe actions taken against staff,

families, or participants who attempt to provide ot intentionally provide false informa-
ton.

{2) A program must train management and staff members who make eligibility determinations
within 90 days of hiring new staff.

(3) A program must train all governing body and policy covncil members within 180 days of
the beginning of the term of a newr governing body or policy couneil.

(4) A program must develop policies on how often training will be provided after the initial

§1302.13 Recruitment of children.

In order to reach those most in need of setvices, a program must develop and implement a recruit-
ment process designed to actively inform all families with efigible children within the recruitment
area of the availability of program services, and encoutage and assist them in applying for admission
to the program. A program must inciude specific efforts to actively locate and recruit children with
disabilities and other vulnerable children, including homeless children and children in foster care.




§1302.14

§1302.14 Selection process.

(a) Selection criteria.
(1) A program must annually establish selection criteria that weigh the priotitization of selec.
tion of participants, based on community needs identified in the community needs assess-
ment as described in §1302.11(b), and including family income, whethex the child is homeless,
whether the child is in fosier carc, the child’s age, whether the child js cligible for special educa-
tion and related services, or early intervention services, as appropriate, as determined under the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) (20 US.C. 1400 ¢7 seq.) and, other relevant
family ot child sisk factors.

(2) If a progtam serves migrant or seasonal families, it must select participants according to
ctiteria in patagraph (a)(1) of this section, and give priotity to children whose farnilies can
demonstrate they have relocated frequently within the past two-years to pursue agricultural
work.

(3} If a program operates in a service area where Head Start eligible children can enzoll in
high-quality publicly funded pre-kindergarten for a full school day, the program must priori-
tize younger children as patt of the selection ctiteriz in Pparagraph (a)(1) of this section. If this
priotity would disrupt partnerships with local education agendies, then it is not required. An
American Indian and Alaska Native or Migrant or Seasonal Head Start program must consider
whether such priositization is appropuate in thejr community.

(4) A program must not deny entollment based on a disability or chronic health condition or
its severity.

®) gﬂdﬁ@—ﬂlgﬂimwde_rm

(1) A program must ensure ar least 10 petcent of its total fanded enrollment is filled by chil-
dren eligible for setvices under IDEA, unless the tesponsible HHS official grants a waiver

(2) If the requitement in paragraph (b)(1) of this section has been miet, children eligible for
services under IDEA should be prioritized for the available slots in accordance with the pro-
gram’s selection ctitetia described in Paragraph (a) of this section.

(c) Waiting Bists A program must develop at the beginning of each enrollment year and maintain
during the year a waiting list that ranks children according to the program’s selection criteria,

§1302.15 Enroliment.

(a) Fupded eprollimens A program must maintain its fanded enrollment level and £l any vacancy as
soon as possible, A program must fill any vacancy within 30 days,

(&) Continuity of entallment,
(1) A program must make efforts to mainain entollment of eligible children for the following
year.

(&) Under exceptional circumstances, 2 program may maintain a childs entollment in Head

14




Administration for Chitdren and Families, HHS §1302.16

Start for a third year, provided that family income is verified again. A program may maintain a
child’s ensollment in Barly Head Start as desctibed mn §1302.12G)(2).

(3) If a program serves homeless children of children in foster care, it must make efforts to
maintain the child’s enroliment regardiess of whether the family or child moves to a differ-
ent setvice atea, or transition the child to a program in a different service area, 25 required in
§1302.72(a), according to the family’s needs,

(¢) Reserved slots. If a program determines from the community assessment there are families ex-
periencing homelessness in the area, or children in foster care that could benefit from services, the
Program may réserve one ot more enrollment slots for pregnant women and children experiencing
homelessness and children in foster care, when a vacancy occurs, No more than three percent of

a program’s funded enrollment slots may be reserved. If the reserved enrollment slot is not filled
within 30 days, the enrollment slot becomes vacant and then must be filled in accordance with para-
graph (z) of this section.

(d) Other enroliment. Children from diverse economic backgrounds who are funded with other
sources, inclading private pay, ate not considered part of a program’s eligible fanded enroltment.

(e) State i nizati ollmen irements. A program must comply with state immunization
enroliment and attendance requirements, with the exception of homeless children as described in
§1302.16(c)(1).

# mwzwmmw Parent participation in a0y ptogram activity is voluntary, includ-

ing consent for data sharing, and is not required as a condition of the child’s entollment.
§1302.16 Attendance.

(2) Promoting regular attendance. A program must track attendance for each child.

(1) A program must implement a process to ensure children are safe when they do not arrive
at school. Tf 4 child is unexpectedly absent and 2 parent has not contacted the progtam within
one hour of program start time, the Program must attempt to contact the parent to ensute the
child’s well-being,

(2) A program must implement strategies to promote attendance. At a minimum, 2 program
must:
(1) Provide information about the benefits of regular attendance;

(i) Support families to promote the child’s regular artendance;

(i) Conduct a home visit or make other direct contact with a child’s parents if a child
has multiple unexplained absences (such as two consecutive unexplained absences); and,

(iv) Within the first 60 days of progam operation, and on an ongoing basis thereafter,
use individual child attendance data to identify children with patterns of absence that
put them at risk of missing ten percent of program days per year and develop appropi-
ate strategies to improve individual attendance among identified children, such as direct
contact with parents or intensive case managermnent, as necessary,

15



§1302.17

{3) If a child ceascs to attend, the program must make approprate efforts 10 reengage the
family to resume attendance, including as described in patagraph (a)(2) of this section. If the
child’s attendance does not tesume, then the program must consider that slot vacant. This
action is not considered expulsion as described in §1302.17.

() Managi tic ce issues. If a program’s monthly average daily attendance
tate falls below 85 percent, the program must analyze the causes of absenteeism to identify any
systematic issues that contribute to the program’s absentec rate. The program must use this data to
make necessary changes in a timely manner as part of ongoing oversight and correction as described
in §1302.102(b} and inform its continuous improvement efforts as described in §1302.102(c).

(c) Supperting attendance of homeless children,

(1) If a program determines 2 child is cligible under §2302.12(c) (1)), it must allow the child
to attend {for vp to 90 days or as long as allowed under state licensing requirements, without
immunization and other records, to give the family reasonable time to present these docu-
ments. A program must work with families 1o get children immunized as soon as possible in
order to comply with state licensing requirements,

(2) If a child experiencing homelessness is unable to attend classes regularly because the family
does not have transportation to and from the program facility, the program must utlize com-
munity resources, where possible, to provide transportation for the child.

§1302.17 Suspension and expulsion.

(®) Limitations on suspensjon.

(1) A program must prohibit or severely limit the use of suspension due to a child’ behavior.
Such suspensions may only be temporary in natuze.

(2) A temporary suspension must be used only as a last resort in extraordinary circumstances
where there is 2 serious safety threat that cannot be teduced or eliminated by the provision of
teasonable modifications.

(3} Befote a program determines whether a temporary suspension is necessaty, a program
must engage with a meatal health consultant, collaborate with the parents, and udlize appropri-
ate community resources — such as behavior coaches, psychologists, other appropnate special-
ists, or other resources — as needed, to determine no other reasonable option is appropriate.

(4) If a temporary suspension is deemed necessary, 2 program must help the child return to
full participation in all program activities as quickly as possible while ensuring child safety by:

(1) Continuing to engage with the parents and a meatal health consultant, and continuing
to utlize appropriate cotnmunity resources;

(if) Developing a written plan to document the action and supports needed;

(ii1) Providing services that include home visits; and,




Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.18

(iv) Determining whether a referral to 2 local agency responsible for implernenting
IDEA is appropriate. '

(b) Prohibition on expulsion.

(1) A program cannot expel or unenroll a child from Head Start because of a child’s behavior.

{2) When a child exhibits persistent and serious challenging behaviors, a program must explore
all possible steps and document all steps taken to address such problems, and facilitate the
child’s safe participation in the program. Such steps must include, at a minimum, engaging a
mental health consultant, considering the appropriateness of providing apptopriate services
and supports under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 1o ensute that the child who saris-
fics the definition of disability in 29 US.C, 705(9)(b) of the Rehabilitation Act is not excladed
from the program on the basis of disability, and consulting with the parents and the child’s
teachet, and:

(@) If the child has an individualized family service plan (IFSP) or individuakized educa-
tion progtam (IEP), the program must consult with the agency responsible for the IFSP
ot IEP to ensure the child receives the needed support services; or,

(i) If the child does not have an IFSP of IEF, the program must collaborate, with paren-
tal consent, with the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA to detetmine the
child’s eligibility for services.

(3) If, after a program has explored all possible steps and documented all steps taken as de-
scribed in paragraph (b)(2) of this section, 2 program, in consultation with the patents, the
<hild’s teacher, the agency responsible for implementing IDEA (if applicable), and the mental
health consultant, determines thar the child’s continued enrollment presents a continued seri-
ous safety threat to the child or other enrolled children and determines the program is not the
most appropriate placement for the child, the program must work with such entities to directly
facilitate the transition of the child to a mote appropriate placement.

§1302.18 Fees.

(a} Policy on fees A program must not charpe eligible families a fee to patticipate in Head Start,
including special events such as Geld trips, and cannot in any way condition an eligible child’s enroll-
ment or participation in the program upon the payment of a fee,

(b) Allowable feeg

(1) A program must only accept a fee from families of enrolied children for services that ate in
addition to services funded by Head Stast, such 2s child care befote or after funded Head Start
hours. A program may not condition a Head Start child’s entollment on the ability 10 pay a fee
for additonal hours.

(2) In order to support programs serving childten from diverse economic backgrounds ot
wsing multiple funding sources, 2 program may charge fees to private pay families and other
non-Head Start enrolled families to the extent allowed by any other applicable federal, state or
local funding souzces.

17



SPAFEII 302 T

§130220

Subpart B — Program Structure

§1302.20 Determining pragram structure.

(2) Choose a proptam option,

{1) A program must choose to opéraie one or more of the following progtam options: cen-
ter-based, home-based, family child care, of an approved locally-designed variation as de-
scribed in §1302.24. The program option(s) chosen must meet the needs of children and
families based on the community assessment descrbed in §1302.11(b). A Head Start program
serving preschool-aged children tnay not provide only the option described in §1302.22(a) and
0@

(2) To choose 2 program option and develop a program calendar, a program must consider in
conjunction with the annual review of the community assessment described in §1302.11(b)
(2}, whether it would better meet child and family aeeds through conversion of existing slots
to full school day or full working day slots, extending the program year, conversion of existing
Head Start slots to Early Head Start slots as described in patagraph (c) of this section, and
Ways 1o promote continuity of care and services, A program must work to identify alternate
sources 10 support full working day services. If no additional funding is svailable, program

resoutces may be used,

b) @npmbgnsw Afl program options must deliver the full range of services, as de-

sctibed in subparts C, D, E,F and G of this part, except that §§1302.30 through 1302.32 and
§1302.34 do not apply to home-based options.

(c) Conversion.
(1) Consistent with secion 645(a)(5) of the Head Start Act, grantees may request to convert
Head Start slots to Early Head Start slots through the te-funding application process or as a
scparate grant amendment.

(2) Any grantee proposing a conversion of Head Start services to Early Head Start services
must obtain policy council and governinp body approval and submit the request to their re-
gional office. '

(3) With the exception of American Indian and Alaskz Native grantees as described in pata-
graph (€)@ of this section, the request to the regional office must include:

(i} A grant application budget and 2 budget narrative that clearly identifies the funding
amount for the Head Start and Barly Head Start programs before and after the proposed

conversion;

(i) The results of the cominunity assessment demonsirating how the ptoposed use of
funds would best meet the needs of the community, incliding a description of how the
aceds of eligible Head Start children will be met in the community when the conversion

takes places;




Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.21

(ii1) A revised program schedule that describes the progtam option(s} and the number of
funded enraliment slots for Head Statt and Early Head Start programs before and after

the proposed conversion;

(iv) A description of how the needs of pregnant women, infants, and toddlers will be
addressed;

(v) A discussion of the agency’s capacity to catry out an effective Eatly Head Start pro-
gtam in accordance with the requirements of section 645A(b) of the Head Start Act and

all applicable regulations;

(vi) Assurances that the agency will participate in training and technical assistance activi-
ties required of all Early Head Start grantees;

(vi) A discassion of the qualifications and competencies of the child development staff
proposed for the Barly Head Start progtam, as well as a description of the facilities and
program infrastructure that will be used to suppoit the new or expanded Easly Head

Start program;

{viii) A discussion of any one-time funding necessary to implement the proposed con-
version and how the agency intends to secure such funding; and,

() The proposed timetable for implementing this convession, including updating school
readiness goals as described in subpart | of this part.

(4) Consistent with section 645(d)(3) of the Act, any Ametican Indian and Alaska Natve
grantec that operates both an Farly Head Start progtam and a Head Start program may real-
locate funds berween the programs at its discretion and at any time duting the grant period in-
volved, in order to address fluctuations in client populations. An Ametican Indian and Alaska
Native program that exercises this discretion must notify the regional office,

(d) Source of funding A program may consider hours of service that meet the Head Start Program
Performance Standards, regardless of the source of funding, as houts of planned class operatons
for the purposes of meeting the Head Start and Early Head Start service durarion requirements in

this subpazrt.

§1302.21 Center-based option.

(1) Setting The centet-based option delivers the full range of services, consistent with §13062.20(b).
Education and child development services are delivered primarily in classroom settings.

(b) Ratios and group size.
(1) Staff-child ratios and group size mazimums must be determined by the age of the major-
ity of children and the needs of children present. A program must determine the age of the
tajority of children in 2 class at the start of the year and may adjust this determination during
the program year, if necessary. Whete state or local licensing requirements are more stringent
than the teacher-child ratios and group size specifications in this section, a program must meet

19



§130221

the stricter requirements. A program must maintain appropriate ratios during all hours of pro-
£ram Operation, except:

() For brief absences of 2 teaching staff member for no more than five minutes; and,

{1} Duting nap time, one teaching staff member may be replaced by one staff member
or trained volunteer who does not meet the teaching qualifications required for the age,

(2) An Early Head Start or Migrant or Seasonal Head Start class that serves children under 36
raonths old must have two teachers with no more than eight children, ot three teachers with
00 more than nine children. Each teacher must be assigned consistent, primary responsibility
for ne more thaa four children ro promote continuity of care for individual children. A pro-
gram must minimize teacher changes throughout a child’s enrollment, whenever possible, and
consider mixed age group classes to support continuity of care.

(3) A class that serves a majotity of children who are three years old must have no mote than
17 children with a teacher and teaching assistant or two teachers, A double session class that
serves a majozity of children who are three years old must bave no more than 15 children with
a teacher and teaching assistant or two teachers,

‘Table to §1302.21 (b) — Center-based group size

No more than 20 children enrolted in any class.
No more than 17 children enrolied in any double session class,

No more than 17 children enrolied in any class
No more than 15 children enrolled in any double session class.
Ne more than 8 or 9 children enrolled in any class, depending on the number
of teachers.

4 and 5 year olds

3 year oids

Under 3 years oid

(©) Service duration.
(1) Eatly Head Stert.

(1) By August 1, 2018, a program must provide 1,380 annual hours of planned class oper-
ations for all enrolled children.

_——

(@) A program that is designed to meet the needs of young parents enrolled in school
settings, may meet the setvice duration requiremnents in paragraph (@©(1){0) of this section
if it operates a center-based program schedule during the school year aligned with its
local education agency requirements and provides regular home-based services during
the sumrmer break.

(2) Head Start.

() Until a program is opezating all of its Head Start center-based funded enrollment

20



Administration for Children and Farnilies, HHS §130221

at the standard described in paragraph (c)(2)(iv) ot (v) of this section, a Program must
provide, at a minimurn, at least 160 days per year of planned class operations if it oper-
ates for five days per week, or at least 128 days per year if it opetates four days per week,
Classes must operate for a minimum of 3.5 hours per day,

(i) Until 2 program is operating all of its Head Start center-based funded enrollment at
the standard described in paragtaph (€)(2)(iv) or (v} of this section, if 2 program op-
crates a double session varation, it must provide classes for four days per week for a
minirmum of 128 days per year and 3.5 hours per day. Each double session class staff
member must be provided adequate break time during the course of the day. Inad-
dition, teachers, aides, and volunteers must have appropiiate time to prepare for each
session together, to set up the classroom environment, and to give individual attention to
children entering and leaving the center.

(i) By August 1, 2019, a program must provide 1,020 annual hours of planned class
operations over the course of at least eight months per year for at least 50 percent of its
Head Start center-based funded entollment,

(tv) By August 1, 2021, a program must provide 1,020 anoual hours of planned class
operations over the course of at least eight months per year for all of its Head Start cen-
ter-based funded enrollment.

(v) A Head Start program providing fewes than 1,020 annual hours of planned class
operations or fewer than eight months of service is considered to mect the requircments
desciibed in paragraphs {©)(2) (i) and (iv) of this section if its program schedule aligns
with the anoual hours requited by its local education agency for grade one and such
alignment is necessary to support parinerships for service delivery.

(3) Secretarial determination.

(1 On or before February 1, 2018, the Secretary may lower the required percentage de-
scribed in paragraph (c)(2)(iil) of this section, based on an assessment of the availability
of sufficient funding to mitigate a substantial reduction in funded enroliment; and,

(i) On or before February 1, 2020, the Secretary may lower the required percentage de-
sctibed in paragraph (c)(2)(iv) of this section, based on an assessment of the availability
of sufficient fanding to raitigate a substantal reduction in fanded enrollment.

(#) Extepsion. If an extension is necessary to ensure children enrolled in the program on
Novembez 7, 2016 are not displaced from the Early Head Statt or FHead Start program, a pro-
gram miay request a one-year extension from the responsible HHS official of the fequirements

outlined in paragraphs (c)(1} and (c){(2)(iii) of this section.

(5) Exg r Migra -as0na’ Hi¢ad otart programs. A Migrant or Seasonal program
Is not subject to the requirements desceibed in §1302.21 (©(1) or (2), but must make every ef-
tott to provide as many days and houts of service as possible to each child and family.

(6) Calendar planning. A program must:

TR w

2]



§130222

(i) Plan its year using a reasonable estimate of the number of days during 2 year that
classes may be closed due to problems such as inclement weather; and,

() Make every effort to schedule tnakeup days using existing resources if hours of
planned dass operations fall below the number required per yeay.

(d) L!C—%ﬂﬂngﬂdmxs_mmm

(1) The facilities used by a program must meet state, tribal, or local Licensing requirements,
even if exempted by the licensing entity. When state, tribal, or local requirements vary from
Head Start requirements, the most stringent provision takes precedence,

{2} A center-based program must have at least 35 squaze feet of usable indoor space pet child
available for the care and use of children (exclusive of bathrooms, halls, kitchen, staff rooms,
and storage places) and at least 75 square feet of usable outdoor play space per child.

(3) A program that operates two or more groups within an area must ensute cleatly defined,
safe divisions to separate groups. A program must ensure such spaces are learning environ-
ments that facilitate the implementation of the tequirements in subpart C of this patt. The
divisions must limit noise transfer from one group 1o another to prevent disruption of an

effective fearning environment.

§1302.22 Home-based option.

(2) Setting. The home-based option delivers the full tange of services, consistent with §1302.20(b),
through visits with the child's patents, ptimarily in the child's home and through group socialization
opportunities in 2 Head Start classtoom, community facility, home, ot on field trips. For Early Head
Start programs, the home-based option may be used to deliver services to some or all of a program’s
entolled children, For Head Start Pprograms, the home-based option may only be used to deliver
sexvices to a portion of a program’ entolled children,

{b) Caseload. A program that implerments 2 home-based option rmust maintain an average caseload
of 10 to 12 families per home visitor with a maximum of 12 families for any individual home visitor.

(c) Service durtion.
(1) Early Head Stast. By August 1, 2017, an Early Head Start home-based program must;

(i) Provide one home wvisit per week per family that lasts at least an hour and a half and
provide a mininmurm of 46 visits per year; and,

(i) Provide, at a mininum, 22 gtroup socialization activities distributed over the course of
the program year.
(2) Head Start. A Head Start home-based program must:

{f) Provide one home visit pet week per family that lasts at least an hour and a half and
provide a minimum of 32 visits pet year; and,

22



Adrministration for Children and Families, HHS 130223

(1} Provide, at a mintmum, 16 gtoup socialization activities disttibuted over the course of
the program year.

(3) Meeting minimum requirernents. A program that implements a home-based option must

(9 Make up planned home visits or scheduled group socialization activities that were
caniceled by the program, and to the extent possible attempt to make up planned home
visits canceled by the family, when this is necessary to meet the minimums described in
paragraphs (c)(1) and (2) of this section; and,

(i) Not replace home visits or scheduled group socialization activites for medical or
social service appointments for the purposes of meeting the minimum Tequirements
described in paragraphs (c}(1) and (2) of this section.

(d) Safety requiremcnts. The areas for learning, playing, sleeping, toileting, preparing food, and eat-
ing in facilities used for group socializations in the home-based option must meet the safety stan-

dards described in §1302.47(1)(i) through (viii).

§1302.23 Family child care option.

(a) Setting. The family child care program option delivets the full range of services, consistent with
§1302.20(b). Education and child development services are primarily delivered by a family child care
provider in their home ot other family-like setting A Program may choose to offer the family child
care option if:

(1) The program has a legally binding agreement with one or mote family child care provid-
ex(s) that clearly defines the roles, rights, and responsibilities of each party, ot the program is
the employer of the family child care provider, and ensures childgen and families entolled in
this option receive the full range of services described in subparts C, D, E, F, and G of this

part; and,

{2) The program ensures farnily child care homes are available that can accommeodate children
and families with disabilities,

(b) Ratios ang group size.

(1) A program that operates the family child care option where Head Start children ate en-
rolled must ensure group size does not exceed the limits specified in this section. If the family
child cate provider’s own children under the age of six are present, they must be included in
the group size,

(2) When therte is one family child care provides, the maximum &roup size is six children and
10 moze than two of the six may be under 24 months of age. When there is a provider and

an assistant, the maximum group size is twelve children with no more than four of the twelve

children under 24 months of age.

(3} One family child care provider may care for up to four children younger than 36 months of
age with 2 maximum group size of four children, and no more than two of the four children

may be under 18 months of age.

23



§1302.24

(4) A program must maintain apptoptiate ratios during all hours of program operation, A pro-
£HAID ust ensure providers have systems to ensure the safety of any child not within view for
any period. A program must make substitute staff and assistant providers available with the
necessary training and experience to ensute quality services to children are not intertupted.

al atrangement, a program must ensure family child care providers Operate sufficient hours to meet
the child care needs of families and not Jess than 1,380 hours per year.

(d) Llsglamgggqgmm A family child-care provider must be licensed by the state, tribal, or local
entity to provide services in their home or family-like setting. When state, tribal, o1 local require-
ments vary from Head Start requirements, the most sttingent provision applies.

(1} Conduct regular visits to each home, some of which are unannounced, not less than once
every two weeks;

{2) Petiodically verify compliance with either contract fequirements or agency policy,

(3) Facilitate ongoing communication between program staff, family child care providers, and
entolled families; and,

(4) Provide recommendations for techrical assistance and support the family child care provid-
er in developing relationships with other child care professionals.

§1302.24 Locally-designed program option variations.

(a) Waiver option, Programs may tequest to opetate a locally-designed program option, including
a combination of program options, to better meet the unique needs of their communities or to

deliver the full range of services, consistent with §1302.20(b), and demonstrate how any change to
their program design is consistent with achieving program goals in subpart J of this parr.

3

tequest is submitted through a grant application for an upcoming project period, for the project
period of the new award. Such apptoval may be revoked based on progress toward program goals
as described in §1302.102 and monitoring as described in §1304.2.

(c) Waiver requirements.
(1) The tesponsible HHS official may waive one or more of the Iequirements contained in
§1302.21(b), ()(1)(0), 2nd (D)) and (i) §1302.22(a) through (c); and §1302.23(1)
and (c), but may not waive ratios or group size for children under 24 months, Center-based

24



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.30

locally-designed options mmust meet the minimums desctibed in secrion 640(k)(1) of the Act
for center-based programs.

(2) If the responsible HHS official determines a waiver of group size for center-based services
would better meet the needs of children and families in 2 community, the group size may not
exceed the limits below:

@ A group that serves children 24 1o 36 months of age must have no more than ten
children; and,

(i) A group that serves predominantly three-year-old children must have no more than
twenty children; and,

(i) A group that serves predominantly four-year-old children must have 0o more than
twenty-four children,

(3) If the responsible HHS official APproves 4 waiver to allow a program to operate below the
minimums described in §1302.21 (©{2)ii) ot (iv), a program must meet the requiretnents de-
scribed in §1302.21(c)(2) (1), or in the case of a double session variation, a program must meet
the requirements described in §1302.21(c)(2)(ii).

(4 In order to receive a waiver undet this section, a program mmust provide supporting evi-
dence that detnonstrates the locally-designed variation effectively supports approprate devel-
opment and progress in children’s early learning outcomes.

(5) In otder to receive a waiver of service duration, a program must meet the requirernent in
paragraph (c)(4) of this section, provide supporting evidence that it better meets the needs of
parents than the applicable service duration minimums described in §1302.21(c)(1), and (¢)(2)
{ii}) and (iv), §1 302.22(c), or §1302.23(c), and assess the effectiveness of the variation in sup-
porting appropriate development and proggess in children’ early learning outcomes.

(d) ito; evious] v ions. If, before November 7,2016, 2 program
was approved to opexate a program option that is no longer allowable under §§1302.21 through
1302.23, a program may continue to operate that mode! watil July 31, 2018,

Subpart C — Education and Child Development Program
Services

§1302.30 Purpose.

All programs must provide high-quality early education and child development services, including
for children with disabilities, that promote children’s cognitive, social, and emotional growth for later
success in school. A center-based or family child care program must embed responsive and effective
teacher-child interactions. A home-based PIogram must promote secure parent-child telationships
and help parents provide high-quality early learning experiences. All programs must implement a
tesearch-based curticulum, and screening and assessment procedures that suppott individualiza-
tion and growth in the areas of development described in the Hegd i i e

25



§1302.3)

Eramework: Ages Birth to Five and support family engagement in children’s learning and develop-

ment. A program must deliver developmentally, culturally, and linguistically appropriate learning ex-
perences in language, literacy, mathematics, social and emotional functioning, approaches to learn-
ing, science, physical skills, and creative arts, To deliver such high-quality early education and child
development services, 2 center-based of farnily child care program must implement, at a minimum,
the elements contained in §51302.31 through 1302.34, and a bome-based program must implement,
at a minimum, the elements in §§1302.33 and 1302,35.

§1302.31 Teaching and the learning environment,

(a) i tng envi . A center-based and family child care program must
ensure teachers and other relevant staff provide responsive care, effective teaching, 2nd an organized
learning environment that promotes healthy development and children’s skill growth aligried with
the Head Sia v Learni pes Birth to Five, inchuding for children with

Hes art Ba carning Oufcome o
disabilities. A program

CALC WO k: £

must also support implemeatation of such environment with fntegration of
tegular and ongoing supervision and a system of individualized and ongoing professional develop-
ment, as appropriate. This includes, at minimum, the practices described in paragraphs (b) through
(€) of this section.

{b) Effective teaching practices.
(1) Teaching practices rmust:

() Emphasize nurturing and responsive practices, interactions, and environments that
foster trust and emotional secutity; ate communication and language rich; promote crit-
ical thinking and problem-solving; social, emotional, behavioral, and language develop-
ment; provide supportive feedback for learning; motivate continued effort; and support
all children’s engagement in learning experiences and activities;

(ii) Focus on promoting growth in the developmental progressions described in the Head

' e the: irth to Five by aligning with and
using the Framework and the curticuls as described in §1302.32 to direct planning of
organized activities, schedules, lesson plans, and the implementation of high-quality eatly
learning experiences that are responsive to and build upon each child’s individual pattern
of development and learning;

(iti) Integrate child asscssment data in individual and group planning; and,

{iv) Include developmentally appropriate learning experiences in language, literacy, social
and emotional development, math, science, social studies, creative arts, and physical

development that are focused toward achieving progress outlined in the H;ad_Stag_Egﬂl

{2) For dual language learners, a program must recognize bilinpualism and biliteracy as
strengths and implement research-based teaching practices that support their development,
These practices must:

(i) Por an infant or toddler dual language learner, include teaching practices that focus on

26



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.3)

the development of the home language, when there is a teacher with apptopriate lan-
guage cotnpetency, and experiences that expose the child to English;

(ii) For a preschool age dual language learner, include teaching practices that focus on
both English language acquisition and the contimed development of the home lan-

guage; or,

(1) If staff do not speak the home language of all childten in the learning environ-
meat, include steps to support the development of the home language for dual language
learners such as having culturaly and linguisticaily appropriate materials available and
other evidence-based strategies. Programs must work to identify volunteers who speak
children’s home language/s who could be trained to work in the classroom 1o support
childten’s condnued development of the home langnage, '

() Leatning environment. A program must ensute teachers implement well-organized learning

environments with developmentally appropriate schedules, lesson plans, and indoor and outdoor
learning experiences that provide adequate opportunities for choice, play, exploration, and experi-
mentation among a variety of learning, sensory, and motor experiences and:

(1) For infants and toddlers, promote relational learning and include individualized and small
group activities that integratc apptopriate daily routines into a Aexible schedule of learning
eXpencnces; and,

(2} For preschool age children, include teacher-directed and child-initiated activities, active and
quiet learning activities, and oppottunities fot individual, small group, and large group leatning
activities.

(d) Materi ce for learping. To support implementation of the catriculum and the re-
quirements described in paragraphs (a), (b), (c), and () of this section a program must provide
age-appropriate equipment, materals, supplies and physical space for indoos and outdoor learning
environments, including funcrional space. The equipment, matedals and supplies must include any
necessary accommodations 2nd the space must be accessibie to children with disabilites. Programs
must change matetials intentionally and periodically to support childres’s interests, development, and
learning.

(¢) Promoting learning through approaches to rest, meals routines, and physical activity,

(1) A program must implement an Intentional, age appropriate apptoach to accommodate chil-
dren’s need to nap or test, and that, for preschool age childten in 2 program that operates for
6 hours or longer per day provides a regular time every day at which preschool age children are
encouraged but not forced to rest or tap. A program must provide alternative quict learning
activities for children who do not need or wanr t rest or nap.

(2) A program must implement snack and meal times in ways that suppott development and
learning. For bottle-fed infants, this approach must include holding infants duting feeding

to support socialization. Snack and meal times must be structured and used as learning op-
portunities that support teaching staff-child interactions and foster communication and con-
versatons that contribute to a child’s leatning, development, and socialization. Programs are
encouraged to meet this requirement with family style meals when developmentally appropri-

27



§1302.32

ate. A program must also provide sufficient time for children to eat, not use food as rewazd or
punishment, and net force chiidren to finish their food.

{3) A program must approach routines, such as hand washing and diapering, and transitions
between activities, as opportunities for strengthening development, learning, and skill growth.

(4) A program must recognize physical activity as important to learning and integrate inten-
tional movement and physical activity into cardcular activiies and daily routines in ways that
support health and learning, A program must not use Pphysical activity as reward or punish-
ment.

§§302.32 Curricula,

{x) Curricula.
(1) Center-based and family child care progtrams must implement developmentally appropei-
ate research-based eady childhood curricula, including additional evrricular enhancements, as
appropriate that;

(D) Are based on scientifically valid research and have standatdized training procedures
and cutriculum materials to support implementation;

(i) Are alipned with the arl i ) tk: Ages Birth
Five and, as appropriate, state early learning and development standards; and are suffi-
ciently content-rich to ptomote measurable progress toward development and learning
outlined in the Framework; and,

(i) Have an organized developmental scope and sequence that include plans and ma-
terials for leatning experiences based on developmental progressions and how children

learn.

(2) A program must support staff to effectively implement curricula and at 2 minimum mon-
itor curriculum implementation and fidelity, and provide support, feedback, and supervision
for continuous improvement of its implementation through the system of training and profes-

sional development.

(b) Adaptation. A program that chooses to make significant adaptations 1o a currculum or a cur-
ticulum enhancement described in paragraph (a)(1) of this section to better meet the needs of one
or more specific populations must use an external early childhood education curticulum or content
area expert to develop such significant adaptations. A program must assess whether the adaptation
adequately facilitates progress toward meeting school readiness goals, consistent with the process
described in §1302.102(b) and (c). Programs are encouraged to partnet with outside evaluators in

assessing such adaptations.

§1302.33 Child screenings and assessments.

(2) Scxeening.

(1) In collaboration with each child’s parent and with patental consent, 2 program must com-

28



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.33

plete or obtain a current developmental screening to identify concerns regarding a child’s
developmental, behavioral, motor, language, social, cognitive, and emotional skills within 45
calendar days of when the child fiest attends the program oz, for the home-based progtam
option, receives a home visit. A program that operates for 90 days or less must complete
or obtain a cutrent developmental screening within 30 calendar days of when the child first

attends the program.

(2) A program must use one or more research-based developmental standardized screening
tools to complete the screening, A program must use as part of the screening additonal
information from family membets, teachers, and relevant staff familiar with the child’s typical
behavior. ‘

(3) If warranted through screening and additional relevant information and with direct guid-
ance from z mental health or child development professional a program toust, with the par-
ent’s consent, promptly and apptoptiately address any needs identificd through:

{) Referral to the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA for a formal evalua-
tion to assess the child’s eligibility for services under IDEA as soon as possible, and not
to exceed timelines requited under IDEA; and,

(1) Partnership with the child’s patents and the relevant local agency to support families
through the formal evaluation process.

(4) If a child is determined to be eligible for services under IDEA, the Program must partner
with patents and the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA, a5 appropiiate, and
deliver the services in subpart F of this part.

(3) If, after the formal evaluation described in Pparagraph (a}(3)(i) of this section, the local
agency responsible for implementing IDEA determines the child is not eligible for early inter-
vention or special education and related services under IDEA, the program must:

(@) Seek guidance from a mental health or child development professional to determine
If the formal evaluation shows the child has a significant delay in one or mote areas of
development that is likely to interfere with the child’s development and school readiness;
and,

(i) If the child has a significant delay, partner with parents to help the family access ser-
vices and supports to help address the child’s identified needs.

(4) Such additonal services and supports may be available through a child’s health
insurance ot it may be appropriate for the program to provide needed services
and supports under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act if the child satisfies the
definition of disability in 29 US.C, section 705(9)(b) of the Rehabilitation Act, to
ensure that the child who satisfics the definition of disability in 29 U.S.C. 705(9)(b)
of the Rehabilitation Act is not excluded from the program on the basis of
disability.

(B) A program may use program funds for such services and supports when no
other sources of funding are available.

29



§1302.33

(b) Assessment for jndividualization.

(1)} A program must conduct standardized and structured assesstuents, which may be obser-
vation-based ot ditect, for each child that provide ongoing information to evaluate the child’s

ental level and progress in outcomes aligned to the goals described in the Head Star{
ly T earni i i smework; Ages Birt Five. Such assessments must resnlt
in vsable information for teachers, home visitors, and parents and be conducted with safficient
frequency to allow for individualization within the program year.

developm

(2) A program must regularly use information from paragraph (b)(1) of this section along with
informal teacher observations 2nd additional information from family and staff, a5 relevant, to
determine a child’s strengths and needs, inform and adjust strategies to better support individ-
ualized learning and improve teaching practices in center-based and family child care settings,

and improve home visit strategies in home-based models.

(3) If warranted from the information gathered from paragraphs (b)(1) and (2) of this section
and with direct guidance from 2 mental health or child development professional and a par-
ent’s consent, a program must zefer the child to the Jocal agency responsible for implementing
IDEA for a formal evaluation to assess a child’s eligibility fot services under IDEA.

(¢) Characteristics of screenings and assessmepts.

(1) Screenings and assessments must be valid and reliable for the population and putpose for
which they will be used, including by being conducted by qualified and trained personnel, and
being age, developmentally, culturally and linguistically appropriate, and apptopriate for chil-
dren with disabilities, as needed.

(2) If a program serves a child who speaks a language other than English, a program must vse
qualifted bilingual staff, contractot, or consultant to:

(1) Assess language skills in English and in the child’s home language, to assess both the
child’s progress in the home Ianguage and in English language acquisition;

(i) Conduct screenings znd assessments for domains other than language skills in the
language or languages that best capture the child’s development and skills in the specific

domain; and,

(iti) Ensure those conducting the screening or assessment know and understand the
child’s language and culture and have sufficient skill level in the child’s home language
to accurately administer the screening or assessment and to record and understand the
child’s responses, interactions, and communications,

{3) If a program serves a child who speaks 2 language other than English and qualified bi-
linpuial staff, contractors, or consultants are not able to conduct screenings and assessments,
4 program must use an interpreter in conjunction with 2 qualified staff petson to conduct
screenings and assessments as described in paragraphs (¢)(2)(i) through (iii) of this section.

{4) If a progtam serves a child who speaks a language other than English and can demonstrate
that there is not a qualified bilingual staff petson of interpreter, then screenings and assess-
ments may be conducted in English. In such a case, a program must also gather and use other

30



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.34

information, including structured observations over time and information gathered in a child’s
home language from the family, for use in evaluating the child’s development and progress.

(d) Prohibitions on f i m - The use of screening and assessment
items and data on any screening or assessment authorized under this subchapter by any agent of the
fedetal government is prohibited for the purposes of ranking, comparing, or otherwise evaluating
individual children for purposes other than reseatch, training, or technical assistance, and is prohib-
ited for the purposes of providing rewards o1 sanctions for individual children or staff. A program
ust 00t use screening or assessments to exclude childten from entollment or participation.

§1302.34 Parent and family engagement in education and child
development services.

(a) Purpose. Center-based and family child care programs must struchare education and child devel-
opment services {0 recognize parents’ roles as children’s lifelong educators, and to €ncourage patents

to engage in their child’s education.

(b) i i - A program must offer opportunities for parents and
family members to be involved in the program’s education services and Implement policies to en-
sure:

(1) The program’s sertings are Open to patents during all program hours;

(2) Teachers regularly communicate with parents 1o ensute they ate well-informed about thejr
child’s routines, activities, and behavior;

(3) Teachers hold parent conferences, as needed, but no less than two times per prograrm year,
to enhance the knowledge and understanding of both staff and parents of the child’s educa-
tion and developmental progress and activitics in the program;

(4) Parents have the opportunity to learn about and to provide feedback on selected curricula
and instructional matetals used in the program;

(5) Parents and family members have opportunities to volunteer in the class and during group
activities;

(6) Teachets inform parents, about the purposes of and the results from screenings and assess-
ments and discuss their child’s progress;

(7) Teachers, except those described in paragraph (b)(8) of this section, conduct at least two
home visits per program year for each family, including one before the program year begins, if
feasible, to engage the parents in the child’s learning and development, except that such visits
may take place at a program site or another safe location that affords privacy at the parent’s
request, ot if a visit to the home presents significant safety hazards for staff; and,

(8) Teachers that serve migrant or scasonal families make every effort to conduct home visits
to engage the family in the child’s learning and development.

31



§1302.35

§1302.35 Education in home-based programs.

(2) Purpose. A home-based program must provide home visits and group socialization activities that
promote secure parent-child telationships and help parents provide high-quality early learning expe-
tiences in language, litetacy, mathematics, sodial and emotional fanctioning, approaches to learning,
sclence, physical skills, and creative arts. A Program must implement a rescarch-based curriculum
that delivers developmentally linguistically, and culturally appropriate home visits and group social-
ization activities that support children’s cogritive, social, and emotional growth for later success in
school.

(b) Home-based program design. A home-based program must ensure all home visits are:

(1) Planned jointly by the home visitor and pareats, and reflect the critical role of parents in
the eatly learning and development of their children, including that the home visitor is able o
effectively communicate with the parent, ditectly or through an interpreter;

{2) Planned using information from ongoing assessments that individualize learning experienc-
es;

{3) Scheduled with sufficient time to serve all entolled children in the home and conducted
with parents and are not conducted when only babysitters or other temporary caregivers are

present;

(4) Scheduled with sufficient time 2nd appropiiate staff to ensure effective delivery of services
desctibed in subparts D, B, F, and G of this part through home visiting, to the extent possible.

() Hgmc_ﬁmmm. A program that operates the home-based option tnust ensure all hote
visits focus on prometing bigh-quality early leatning experiences in the home and growth towards

the goals desetibed in the Head S il k: Age t and
must use such goals and the curtculum to plan home visit activities that implement

{1) Age and developmentally appropriate, structured child-focused learning experiences;

(2) Strategies and activities that promote parents’ ability to support the child’s cognitive, social,
emotional, languape, literacy, and physical developtment;

(3) Strategies and activities that promote the home as a learning environment that is safe, mur-
turing, responsive, and language- and communication- rich;

(4) Research-based strategies and activities for children who are dual language learners that
recogaize bilingualism and biliteracy as strengths, and:

@ For infants and toddlers, focus on the development of the home language, while pro-
viding experiences that expose both patents and children to English; and,

(i) For preschoolers, focus on both English language acquisition and the continged de-
velopment of the home language; and,

{5 Follow-up with the families to discuss learning experiences provided in the home between

32



Adrministration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.35

each visit, address concerns, and inform strategies to promote progress toward school readi-
ness goals.

(d) Home based curriculum. A program that operates the home-based option must:

(1) Ensure home-visiting and group socializations implement a developmentally appropriate
research-based early childhood home-based curticuhum that:

() Promotes the parent’s role as the child’s teacher through expetiences focused on the
parent-child relationship and, as apptoptiate, the family’s traditions, culture, vahues, and
beliefs;

(i) Aligns with the Head Start Barly Lea ning Outcomes Framework: Ages Birth to Five
and, as appropriate, state catly leatning standards, and, is sufficienily content-rich within
the Framework to promote measurable progress toward goals outlined in the Frame-

work; and,

(1) Has an otganized developmental scope and sequence that includes plans and ma-
terials for learning expetiences based on developrnental progressions and how children
learn.

(2) Support staff in the effective implementation of the curticulum and at 2 minimum monitor
cnrriculim implementation and fidelity, and provide support, feedback, and supervision for
continuous improvement of its implementation through the system of training and profes-
sional development.

(3) If a program chooses 10 make significant adaptations to a curriculum or curriculum en-
hancement 1o better meet the needs of one or mote specific populations, a program must:

(@) Partner with eardy childhood education curriculum or content experts; and,

(i) Assess whether the adaptation adequately facilitates progress toward meeting school
readiness goals consistent with the process desctibed in §1302.102(b) and (c).

(4) Provide parents with an opportunity to review selected cutricula and instructional materials
vsed in the program.

(e) Group sodalization.

(1) A program that operates the home-based option must ensure group socializations are
planned jointly with families, conducted with both child and patent participation, occur in 2
classroom, community facility, home or field ttip setting, as appropriate,

(2) Group socializations must be structured to:

(i) Provide age appropiate activities for participating children that are mtentionally

aligned to school readiness goals, the Head Start m rl

Ages Bitth to Five and the home-based cutticulum,; and,

(i) Encourage patents to share experiences related to theit children’s development with

33



§1302.36

othet patents in order to strengthen parent-child relationships and to help promote pat-
ents understanding of child development;

(3) For parents with preschoolers, group socializations also must provide opportunities for
parents to participate in activities that support patentiag skill development or family partner-
ship goals identified in §1 302.52(c), as appropriate and must emphasize peer group interactions
designed to promote children’s social, emotional and language development, and progress
towards school readiness goals, while encoutaging parents to observe and actively participate
in activities, 25 appropriate.

(£} Screening and assessments. A program that operates the home-based optton must implement

provisions in §1302.33 and inform parents about the putposes of and the results from scteenings
and assessments and discuss their child's progress,

§1302.36 Tribal language preservation and revitalization.

A program that serves American Indian and Alaska Native children may integrate efforts to pre-
setve, revitalize, restore, or maintzin the tribal language for these childzen into prograrn services.
Such language preservation and revitalization efforts may include full immersion in the tribal lan-
guage fot the majority of the hours of planned class opezations. If children’s home language is
English, exposute to English as described in §1302.31(b)(2)(D and (if) is not required.

Subpart D — Health Program Services

§1302.40 Purpose.

(3) A program must provide high-quality health, oral health, mental health, and nutrition services
that ate developmentally, colturally, and linguistically appropriate and that will support each child’s
growth and school readiness.

(b) A program must establish and maintain a Health Services Advisory Committee that includes
Head Start parents, professionals, and other volunteers from the community.

§1302.41 Collaboration and communication with parents.

(a) For all activities described in this part, programs must collaborate with parents as partners in
the health and well-being of their children in a linguistically and culturally appropriate manner and
communicate with parents about their child’s health needs and development concerns in 2 titely

and effective manner.
{b) At 2 minimum, 2 program must:

(1) Obtain advance authorization from the patent or other person with legal authority for all
health and developmental procedures 2dministered through the program or by contract or
agreement, and, maintain written documentation if they refuse to give authorization for health

services; and,

34



Administration for Children and Families, I-HS §1302.42

(2) Share with parents the policies for health emetgencies that rcquire rapid response on the
part of staff or immediate medical attention.

§1302.42 Child health status and care.

(2) Seurce of heaith care.

(1) A program, within 30 calendar days after the child first attends the program or, for the
home-based program option, receives 2 home visit, must consult with parents to determine
whether each child has ongoing sources of continuous, accessible health care . provided by a
health care professional that maintains the child’s ongoing health record and is not primarily a
source of emergency or urgent care — and health Insurance coverage.

(2) If the child does not have such a source of ongoing care and health insurance cOverage or
access to care through the Indian Health Service, the program must assist families in accessing
a source of care and health insurance that will meect these critera, as quickly as possible.

(b} Ensuring up-to-date child health status.

(1) Within 90 calendar days after the child first attends the program o, for the home-based
program option, receives a home visit, with the exceptions noted in paragraph (B)(3) of this
secion, a program must:

(i) Obtain determinations from health care and oral health care professionals as to
whether or not the child is up-to-date on a schedule of age approptiate preventive and
primary medical and oral health care, based on: the well-child visits and dental periodicity
schedules as prescribed by the Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis, and Treatment
{(EPSDT) program of the Medicaid agency of the state in which they opetate, immuni-
zation recommendations issued by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and
any additional recommendations from the local Health Services Advisory Committee
that are based on prevalent community health problems;

(if) Assist parents with making arrangements to bring the child up-to-date as quickly as
possible; and, if necessary, dizectly facilitate provision of health services to bring the
child up-to-date with patent consent as described in §1302.41(b)(1).

{2) Within 45 calendar days after the child first attends the program or, for the home-
based program option, teceives-a home visit, a program must either obtain o perform evi-

dence-based vision and hearing screenings.

(3} If a program opetates for 90 days or less, it has 30 days from the date the child first attends
the program to satisfy patagraphs (b)(1) and (2) of this section.

(4) A program must identify each child’s nutritional health needs, taking into account available
health information, including the child’s health records, and family and staff concerns, includ-
ing special dictary requirements, food alletgies, and community nutrition issues as identified
through the community assessment or by the Health Services Advisory Committee.

(€) Ongoing care.

35



§1302.43

(1) A program must help parents continue to follow recommended schedules of well-child and
otral health care.

(2) A program must implement petiodic observations or other appropiiate strategies for
progam staff and patents to identify a0y new or recurring developmental, medical, oral, or

mental health concerns.

{3) A program must facilitate and monitor necessary oral health preventive care, teeatment
and follow-up, including topical fluoride treatments. In communities where there is a lack
of adequate fluoride available thtough the watet supply and for every child with moderate to
severe tooth decay, a program must also facilitate flucride supplements, and other necessary
preventive measures, and further oral health treatment as recommended by the oral health

professional,

{d) Extended follow-up care.
(1) A progtam must facilitate further diagnostic testing, evaluation, treatment, and follow-up
plan, as appropriate, by a licensed or certified professional for each child with a health problem
or developmental delay, such as elevated lead levels or zbnormal heating of vision results that
may affect child’s development, learning, or behavior.

(2) A program must develop a system to track referrals and services provided and monitor the
implementation of 2 follow-up plan to meet any treatment needs associated with a health, ozal

health, social and emotional, or developmental problem.

(3) A program must assist parents, as needed, in obtaining any prescribed medications, aids or
equipment for medical and oral health conditions.

(¢} Use of funds.
(1) A program must use program funds for the provision of diapers and formula for engolled

childten during the program day.

(2) A program may use program funds for professional medical and oral health services when
no other source of funding is available. When program funds are used for such services,
grantee and delegate agencies must have written documentation of their efforts to access other

available sources of funding.

§1302.43 Oral health practices.

A program must promote effective oral health hygiene by ensuring all children with teeth are assisted
by appropriate staff, ot volunteers, if available, in brushing their teeth with toothpaste containing

fluoride once daily.
§1302.44 Child nutrition.

(2) Nutrition service requiremenpts.

(1) A program must design and implement nutrition services that are culturally and develop-

36



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §130245

mentally appropriate, meet the nutritional needs of and accommodate the feeding require-
ments of each child, inchiding children with special dietary needs and children with disabilities,
Farnily style meals are encouraged as described in §1302.31 (e)(2).

(2) Specifically, 2 program must:

(1) Ensure each child in a progtam that opetates for fewer than six hours per day receives
meals and snacks that provide one third to one half of the child’s daily nutritional needs;

(i) Ensure cach childin a program that opetates for six hours or more per day receives
raeals and snacks that provide one half 1o two thirds of the child’s daily nuttitional

needs, depending upon the length of the program day;

(i) Serve three- to five-year-olds meals and snacks that conform to USDA requirements
in 7 CFR parts 210, 220, and 226, and are high in nuttients and low in fat, sugar, and salt;

(iv) Feed infants and toddlers according to their individual developmental readiness and
feeding skills as recommended in USDA requirements outlined in 7 CFR. parts 210, 220,
and 226, and ensure infants and young toddlets ate fed on demand to the extent possi-

ble;

(v) Ensure bottle-fed infants are never laid down to sleep with a bottle;

(v)) Serve all children in morning center-based settings who have not received breakfast
upon azrival at the program a nourishing breakfast;

(vii) Provide appropriate healthy snacks and meals to each child during group socializa-
tion activities in the home-based option;

(viit) Promote breastfeeding, including providing facilities to properly store and handle
breast milk and make accommodations, as necessary, for mothers who wish to breast-
feed during program hours, and if necessary, provide referrals to Jactation consultants or

counselors; and,
(ix) Make safe drinking water available to children during the program day.

(b) Paytnent sources. A program must use funds from USDA Food, Nutrition, and Consumer Ser-
vices child nutrition programs as the primary source of payment for meal services. Haily Head Start
and Head Start funds may be used to cover those allowable costs not covered by the USDA.

§1302.45 Child mental health and social and emotional well-being.
(2) Wellness promotion. To support a program-wide culture that promotes childsen’s mental health,
social and emotional well-being, and overall health, 2 program must;

(1) Provide supports for effective classroom management and positive learning environmeats;
suppottive teacher practices; and, strategies for supporting childten with challenging behaviors
and other social, emotional, and mental health concerns;

(2) Secure mental health consultation services on a schedule of sufficient and consistent fre-

37



§130246

quency to ensure a mental health consultant is available to partner with staff and families in a
timely and effective manner:;

{3) Obtain patental consent for mental health consultation services at entollment; and,

{4) Build community partierships to facilitate access to additional mental health resources and
services, as needed.

(b} Mental health consultants. A program must ensure mental health consultants assist:

(1) The program to implement strategies to identify and support children with mental health
and social and emotional concerns;

(2) Teachers, including family child care providers, to improve classroom mmanagement and
teacher practices through strategies that include using classroom observations and consulta-
tions to address teacher and individual child needs and creating physical and cultural eviron-
ments that ptomote positive mental health and social and emotional functioning ;

(3) Other staff, including home visitors, to meet children’s mental health and social and emo-
tional needs through strategies that include observation and consultation;

(4) Staff 1o address prevalent child mental health concerns, including internalizing problems
such as appearing withdrawn and externalizing problems such as challenging behaviors; and,

(5) In helping both parents and staff to understand mental health and access mental health
interventions, if needed.

(6) In the implementation of the policies to limit suspension and prohibit expulsion as de-
scribed in §1302.17.

§1302.46 Family support services for health, nutrition, and mental
health.

(a) Parent collaboration. Programs must collaborate with parents to promote children’s health and
well-being by providing medical, oral, nutrition and mental health education support services that

ate understandable to individuals, mcluding individuals with low health literacy.

(b) Oppostunities.

(1) Such collaboration must include Opportunities for parents to:

() Learn about preventive medical and oral health care, emetgency first aid, environmen-
tal hazards, and health and safety practices for the home including health and develop-
meatal consequences of tobaceo products use and exposure to lead, and safe sleep;

() Discuss their child’s nutritional status with staff, including the importance of physical
activity, bealthy eating_ and the negative health consequences of sugar-sweetened bever-
ages, and how to select and prepare nutritious foods that meet the farnily’s nutrition and

food budget needs;
L (iif) Learn about healthy pregnancy and postpartum cate, as appropriate, including
38




Administration for Children and Families, HHS §130247

breastfeeding support and treament options for parental mental health or substance
abuse problerns, including pennatal depression;

(iv) Discuss with staff and identify issues related to child mental health and social and
emotional well-being, including observations and any concerns about their child’s menta
health, typical and atypical befavior and development, and how to appropriately respond
to their child and promote their child’s socjal and emotional development; and,

(v) Learn about appropriate vehicle and pedestrian safety for keeping children safe.

(2 A program must provide ongoing suppott to assist parents’ navigation through health
Systems to meet the general health and specifically identified necds of their children and must
assist parents:

() In understanding how to access health insurance for themselves and their farmilies, in-
cluding information about private and public health insurance and designated enrollment

(ii) In understanding the results of diagnostic and treatment procedures as well as plans
for ongoing care; and,

(iit) In familiarizing their children with services they will receive while enrolled in the
program and to enroll and participate in a system of ongoing family health care.

§1302.47 Safety practices.

cies and practices to ensure all facilities, equipment and materials, background checks, safety training,
safety and hygiene practices and administrative safety procedures are adequate to ensute child safety.
This system must ensure:

(1) Facilifies. Al facilities whete children are setved, including areas for learning, playing,
sleeping, toileting, and cating are, at a minimum:

(i) Meet licensing requirements in accordance with §§1302.21(d)(1) and 1302.23(d);
() Clean and free from pests;

(iif) Free from pollutants, hazards and toxins that are accessible to children and could
cndanger children’s safety,

(iv) Designed to prevent child injury and free from hazards, including cheking, strangu-

39



§130247

Iation, electrical, and drowning hazards, hazards posed by appliances and all other safety
hazards;

(v) Well lit, including emergency lighting;

(vi) Equipped with safety supplies that are readily accessible to staff, including, at 2 mini-
mum, fully-equipped and up-to-date first aid kits and apptopriate fire safety supplies;

(vii) Free from fireazms or other weapons that are accessible to children;

(vif) Designed to separate toileting and diapering areas from areas for preparing food,
cooking, cating, or children’s activities; and,

(ix) Kept safe through an ongoing system of preventative maintenance.

(2) Equipment and materals, Indoor and outdoor play equipment, cribs, cots, feeding chairs,

strollers, and other equipment used in the care of entolled children, and as applicable, other
equipment and materials meet standards set by the Consumer Product Safety Commission
(CPSC) or the American Socicty for Testing and Materials, International {ASTM). All equip-
ment and tratetials must at a minimum:

() Be clean and safe for children’s use and are appropriately disinfected;
(i) Be zccessible only to childten for whom they are age appropriate;
(iif) Be designed to ensure approptiate supervision of children at all times;

(tv) Allow for the separation of infants and toddlers from preschoolers during play in
center-based programs; and,

(v) Be kept safe through an ongoing system of preventative maintenance.

(3) Background checks. All staff have complete background checks in accordance with
§1302.90(b).

(4) Safety training.
i} Staff with regular child contact. All staff with tegular child contact have initial orien-

tation training within three months of hire and ongoing training in all state, local, tribal,
federal and program-developed health, safety and child care tequirements to ensure the
safety of children in their care; including, at 2 minimum, and as approptiate based on
staff roles and ages of children they work with, training in:

(&) The prevention and control of infectious diseases;

{B} Prevention of sudden infant death syndrome and use of safe sleeping practic-
es;

(C) Administration of medication, consistent with standards for parental consent;

(D) Prevention and response to emergencies due to food and allergic reactions;

40



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.47

(E) Building and physical premises safety, including identification of and protec-
tion from hazards, bodies of wates, and vehicular traffic;

(F) Prevention of shaken baby syndrome, abusive head trauma, and child maltreat-
ment;

(G) Emergency preparedness and tesponse planning for emergencies;

(H) Handling and storage of hazardous materials and the appropriate disposal of
biocontaminants;

() Appropriate precautions in wransporting children, if applicable;
(J) First aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation; and,

(K) Recoguition and reporting of child zbnse and neglect, in accordance with the
fequirement at paragraph (b) (5) of this section.

() Staff without regular ¢hild congact. Al staff with no regular responsibility for or con-

tact with children have initial orientation training within three months of hire; ongoing
training in all state, Jocal, tribal, federal and program-developed health and safety require-
ments applicable to their work; and training in the program’s emetgency and disaster
preparedness procedures.

() Safety practices. All staff and consultants follow appropriate practices to keep children safe
during all activities, including, at a minimum:

(1) Reporting of suspected or known child abuse and neglect, including that staff comply
with applicable federal, state, local, and tribal laws;

(i) Safe sleep practices, including easuring that all sleeping arrangements for children un-
der 18 months of age use firm mattresses of cots, as appropriate, and for children undet
12 months, soft bedding matetials or toys must not be used;

(1i3) Appropriate indoor and ourdoor supervision of children at all tmes;
(tv) Only releasing children to an authorized adult, and;
(v) All standards of conduct described in §1302.90(c).

6) Hygiene practices. All staff systematically and routinely implement hygiene practices that at
@ minimurm ensure:

(i} Appropriate toileting, hand washing, and diapering procedures are followed;
(ii) Safe food preparation; and, _

(i) Exposute to blood and body fluids are handled consistent with standards of the
Oceupational Safety Health Administration.

(7) Adminisirative safety procedures. Programs establish, follow, and practice, as appropriate,

procedures for, at a minimum:

41



§1302.50

() Emergencies;
(11) Fire prevention and response;

(iif) Protection from contagious discase, including appropriate inclusion and exclusion
policies for when a child is ill, and from an infectious disease outbreak, including appro-
priate notifications of any reportable illness;

(v) The handling, storage, administration, and record of administration of medication;

(v) Maintaining procedures and Systems to ensute children are only released to an autho-
rzed aduli; and,

(vi) Child specific heaith cate needs and food allergies that include accessible plans of
action for emergencies. For food allergies, a program must also post individual child food
allergies prominently where staff can view wherever food is served.

(8) Disaster preparedaess plan. ‘The prograro has all-hazards emergency management/disaster

preparedness and response plans for more and less likely events including natural and man-
made disasters and emergencics, and violence in or neat programs.

(¢) A program must repott any safety incidents in accordance with §1302.102(d)(1) i).

Subpart E — Family and Community Engagement Program
Services

§1302.50 Family engagement.

(3) Purpose. A program must integrate patent and family engagement strategies into all systems and
program services to support family well-being and promote children’s learning and development.
Programs ate encouraged to develop innovative two-generation approaches that address prevalent
needs of families across their program that may leverage community partnerships or othet funding
sources.

(b) Family engapement approach. A program must:

(1) Recognize parents as theit children’s ptitnary teachers and nurturers and implement inten-
tiona] strategies 1o engage parents in their children’s learning and development and support
patent-child relationships, including specific strategies for father engagement;

{2) Develop relationships with parents and structure services o encourage trust and respectful,
ongoing two-way communication between staff and parents to create welcoming program en-
vironments that incorporate the unique cultural, ethnic, and linguistic backgrounds of families
in the program and community;

(3) Collaborate with families in 2 family partnership process that identifies needs, interests,
strengths, goals, and services and resources that support family well-being, including family
safety, health, and economic stability;

42



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §130252

(4) Provide parents with opportunities to participate in the program as employees or volun-
tecrs,

(5) Conduct family engagement services in the family’s preferred language, or through an
interpreter, to the extent possible, and ensure families have the opportnity to share petsonal
information in an environment in which they feel safe; and,

(6) Implement procedures for teachers, home visitors, and family support staff to share infor
mation with each other, as approptiate and consistent with the tequirements in part 1303 sub-
pact C, of this chapter; FERPA: or IDEA, to ensure coordinated family engagement strategies
with children and families in the classtoom, home, and community.

§1302.51 Parent activities to promote child learning and development.

(a) A program must promote shared responsibility with parents for children’s early learning and de-
velopment, and implement family engagement strategies that ate designed to foster parental confi-
dence and skills in promoting children’s learning and development. These strategies must include:

(1) Offering activities that support parent-child relationships and child development including
language, dual language, literacy, and bi-literacy development as approptiate;

(2) Providing parents with information about the importance of their child’s regular atten-
dance, and partner with them, as necessary, to promote consistent attendance; and,

(3) For dual language leatners, information and resoutces for parents abour the benefits of
bilingualism and biliteracy.

{b) A program must, at a minimum, offer Oppottunities for parents to participate in 2 research-based
parenting curticufum that builds on parents’ knowledge and offers patents the Oppottunity to prac-
tice parenting skills to promote children’s leatning and development. A program that chooses to
make significant adaptations to the parenting curriculum to better meet the needs of one of more
specific populations must wotk with an EXpert or experts to develop such adaptations.

§1302.52 Family partnership services.

(a) ] i - A program must implement 2 family partnership process that in-
cludes a family partnership agreement and the activities described in this section to support family
well-being, including famity safety, health, and economic stability, to supportt child learning and de-
velopment, to provide, if applicable, scrvices and suppotts for children with disabilities, and to fos-
tér parental confidence and skills that promote the eatly learning and development of their children.
The process must be initiated as eatly in the program year as possible and continue for as long as the
family participates in the program, based on parent interest and need.

(b) mmnﬁu&m%ﬂﬂﬂmm; A program must implement intake and family

assessment procedures to identify family strengths and needs related to the family engagement
outcomes as described in the Head Start Parent Family and Community Engagement Framework,
including family well-being, parent-child relationships, families as lifelong educators, families as

43



§1302.53

learners, family engagement in transitions, family connections to peers and the local con'imunity, and
familics 2s advocates and Jeaders.
(&) Imd—“"-hﬂdiwmm A program must offer individualized family partnes-
ship services that:
{1} Collaborate with families 1o identify interests, needs, and aspirations related to the famnily
engagement outcomes desceibed in patagraph (b)of this section;
(2) Help families achieve identified individualized family engagement outcomes;

(3) Establish and implement a family partnership agreement process that is jointy developed
and shated with parents in which staff and familj to review individual progress, revise goals,
evaluate and track whether identified needs and goals ate met, and adjust strategies on an on-

going basis, as necessary, and;

""]

A e SR

o e

(4) Assign staff and resources based on the uzgency and intensity of identified family needs
and goals.
(d) Existing plans and community resources. In implementing this section, a program must tzke into
ty agencies and availability

consideration any existing plans for the family tade with other communi

of other community resoutces to address y needs, strengths, 20d goals, in otder to avoid dupli-
cation of effort.

W

§§302.53 Community partnerships and coordination with other early
childhood and education programs,

{a) QQmLﬂDm[y_paLm:J_rs_mps

(1} A program must establish ongoing collaborative relationships and partnerships with com-
munity organizations such as establishing joint agreements, procedures, ot contracts and ar-
ranging for onsite delivery of services as appropriate, to facilitate access to community services
that are responsive to children’s and families® needs and family partnership goals, and commu-
nity needs nd resources, as determined by the community assessment,

(2) A program must establish necessary collaborative relationships and partnerships, with com-
munity ciganizations that may include:

(1) Health care providers, inchuding child and aduit mental health professionals, Medicaid

managed cate networks, deatists, other health professionals, nuttitional service providers,
providers of prenatal and postnatal support, and substance abuse treatment providers;

(i}) Individuals and agencies that provide services to children with disabilities and their
families, elernentary schools, state preschool providers, and providers of child care ser-
vices;

(i) Family preservation and support services and child protective services and any other
agency to which child abuse must be reported under state ot tribal law;

44



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §130253

(iv) Educational and cultural institutions, suck as libtaries and musewns, for both chil-
dren and families;

(v) Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, nutrition assistance agencics, work-

force development and training programs, adult or family literacy, adult education, and
post-secondary education institutions, and agencies or financial institutions that provide
assct-building education, products and services to enhance family financial stability and
SAvings;

(vi) Housing assistance agencies and providets of support for children and families ex.-
petiencing homelessness, including the local educational agency lizison designated undex
section 722(g)(1)(){H) of the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 US.C.
11431 e# seq.);

{vii) Domestic violeace prevention and suppott providers; and,

(vii) Other otganizations or businesses that may provide suppott and tesouzces to fami-
lies.
(b) tdinati i . A program must take an active role in promoting
coordinated systems of comprehensive early childhood services to low-income children and families
in their community through communication, coopetation, and the sharing of information among
agencies and their community partners, while protecting the privacy of child tecords in accordance
with subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter and applicable federal, state, local, and tibal laws,

(1) Me dum of rstanding: To support coordination between Head Start and publicly
funded preschool programs, a program must enter into a memorandum of understanding with
the appropriate local entity tesponsible for managing publicly funded preschool programs in
the service area of the progtam, as desctibed in secton 642(e)(5) of the Act.

(2) Quali ting and Impr t - A program, with the exception of American
Indian and Alaska Native programs, must participate in its state or local Quality Rating and
Imptovement System (QRIS) if:

() Its state ot local QRIS accepts Head Start momnitoring data to document quality indica-

tors included in the state’s tiered system;

(if) Participation would not impact a program’s ability to comply with the Head Start
Program Performance Standards; and,

(ifi) The program has not provided the Office of Head Statt with 2 compelling reason
not to comply with this requirement.

(3) Data eystems. A program, with the exception of American Indian and Alaska Native
programs unless they would like to and to the extent practicable, should integrate and share
relevant data with state education data systems, to the extent practicable, if the progtam can
receive similar support and benefits as other patticipating eatly childhood programs.

4 American Tndian and Alaska Native programs. An Amedcan Indian and Alaska Native

45




§1302.60

program should determine whether or not it will participate in the systems described in para-
graphs (b)(2) and (3) of this section.

Subpart F — Additional Services for Children with Disabilities

§1302.60 Full participation in pProgram services and activities.

A program must ensure enrolled children with disabilities, including but not lirnited to those who are
cligible for services under IDEA, and their families receive all applicable program services delivered
in the least testrictive possible environment and that they fully participate in all program activities.

§1302.61 Additional services for children.

and varied formats for instruction, and individualized accommodations and SUppoIts as necessary
to support the full participation of children with disabilities, Programs must ensure all individuals
with disabilities are protected from disctirnination under and provided with 2ll services and program
modifications required by section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (29 US.C. 794), the Americans with
Disabilities Act (42 US.C. 12101 seq.), and their implementing regulations.

(b) ic ring IDEA elipibility detexmination. While the local agency responsible for tmple-
menting IDEA determines a child’s eligibility, a program must provide individualized services and
Supports, to the maximum extent possible, to meet the child’s needs. Such additional suppoxrts may
be avaitable through a child’s health insurance or it may be appropriate ot required to provide the
needed services and supports under section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act if the child satisfies the
definition of disability in section 705(9)(b) of the Rehabilitation Act. When such suppotts are not
available through alternate means, pending the evaluation results and eligibility determination, a pro-
gram must individnalize propram services based on available information such as parent input and
child observation and assessment data and may use program funds for these purposes.

(©) it ervices for childten with ap IF I To ensure the individual needs of children
eligible for services under IDEA are met, 4 program must:

(1) Work closely with the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA, the family, and
other service partners, as appropriate, (o ensure:

(i) Services for a child with disabilities will be planned and delivered as tequired by their
IESP or IED, as appropriate;

() Children are working towards the goals in their IFSP or TEP,

(i) Elements of the 1FSP oz IEP that the program cannot implement are implemented
by other appropriate agencies, related service providers and specialists;

46



Adrninistration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.62

(v) IFSPs and IEPs are being reviewed and revised, as requited by IDEA; and,

(v} Services are provided in a child’s regular Early Head Start or Head Start classroom or
family child care home to the greatest extent possible.

(2) Plan and implement the transition services described in subpart G of this part, including at
2 mintmum;
(1) For children with an IFSP who are transitioning out of Early Head Start, collaborate
with the parents, and the local ageacy respoasible for implementing TDEA, to ensure

approptiate steps ate undertaken in a timely and approptiate manner to determine the
child’s eligibility for services under Part B of IDEA; and,

(if) For childten with an IEP who are trangitioning out of Head Start to kindetgarten,
collaborate with the parents, and the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA,
to ensure steps are undertaken in a timely and appropriate mannet to support the child
and family as they transition to a new setting.

§1302.62 Additional services for parents.

(a) Pazents of all children with disabilities.

(1) A progtam must collaborate with parents of children with disabilities, including but not
limited to children eligible for services under IDEA, to ensure the needs of their children are
being met, including suppott to help parents become advocates for services that meet their
children’s needs and information and skills to help patents understand their child’s disabiliey
and how to best support the child’s development;

(2) A program must assist patents to access services and resources for their family, includ-
ing securing adaptive equipment and devices and suppozts available through a child’s health
insurance or other entities, creating linkages to family support programs, and helping parents
establish eligibility for additonal Suppott programs, as needed and practicable,

(b) f chi igible fo ices u . Fot parents of children eligible for ser-
vices under IDEA, 2 program must also help parents:

(1) Understand the referral, evaluation, and service timelines tequired under IDEA;

(2} Actively participate in the eligibility process and IFSP or IRP development process with the
local agency 1esponsible for implementing IDEA, including by informing parents of their tght
to invite the program to participate in all meetings;

(3) Understand the purposes and resuits of evaluations and services provided under an RSP
or IEP; and,

(4) Ensute their children’s needs are accurately identified in, and addressed through, the IFSP
or IEP

47



i

§130263

§1302.63 Coordination and collaboration with the local agency
responsible for implementing IDEA,

(2) A progtam must coordinate with the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA to identify
children enrolled or who intend to enroll in 2 program that may be eligible for services under IDEA,
including through the process described in §1302.33(2)(3) and through participation in the local
agency Child Find efforts. -

(b) A program must work to develop interagency agreements with the local agency responsible

for implementing IDEA to improve service delivery to children eligible for services under IDEA,
including the referral and evalmation process, service coordination, promotion of service provision
in the least restrictive appropriate community-based setting and reduction in dual enrollment which
causes reduced titne in a less restrictive setting, and transition services as children move from ser-
vices provided under Part C of IDEA to services provided under Part B of IDEA and from pre-

school to kindergarten.

(¢) A program must participate in the development of the IFSP or IEP if requested by the child’s
parents, and the implementation of the IFSP or IEP. Ata minimum, the program must offer:

(1) To provide relevant information from its scteenings, assessments, and observations to the
team developing a child’s IFSP or IEP; and,

(2) To partcipate in meetings with the local agency responsible for implementing IDEA to
develop or review an IEP or IFSP for a child being considered for Head Start entollment, a
curtently enrolled child, or a child transitioning from a program.

(d) A program must retain a copy of the IEP or IFSP for any child enrolled in Head Start for the
time the child is in the program, consistent with the IDEA requirements in 34 CFR parts 300 and

303.

Subpart G — Transition Services

§1302.70 Transitions from Early Head Start.

(a) mmmmmm‘ An Early Head Start program must implement
r children and their families transitioning

strategies and practices to suppott successful transitions fo.
out of Early Head Start,

(b) Timing for ransitions. To ensure the most appropriate placement and service following par-
ticipation in Barly Head Start, such progtams must, at least six months priot to each childs third

birthday, implement transition planning for each child and family that:

(1) Takes into account the child’s developmental level and health and disability status, progress
made by the child and family while in Early Head Start, current and changing family circum-
stances and, the availability of Head Start, other public pre-kindergarten, and other early edu-

cation and child development services in the comm ty that will meet the needs of the child
and famnily; and,

48



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §130271

(2) Transitions the child into Head Start or anothet program as soon as possible after the
child’s third birthday but permits the child to remain in Early Head Start for a limited sumber
of additional months following the childs third birthday if necessary for an approptiate transi-
tion,

() Eamily collaborations. A program must collaborate with parents of Farly Head Start children
to implement strategies and activities that support suceessful transitions from Eardly Head Start and,

at 2 minimum, provide information about the child’s progress during the program vear and provide
strategies for parents to continue their involvernent in and advocacy for the education and develop-

ment of their child,

(d Barly Head Start and Head Start collaboration. Early Head Start and Head Start programs must
wotk together to maximize enrollment transitions from Early Head Start to Head Start, consistent
with the eligibility provisions in subpatt A, and promote successful transitions through collaboration
and communication.

(e) Transit i t children with gn * A program must provide additional transition ser-
vices for childten with an IFSP, at a minimum, as described in subpatt F of this part.

§1302.71 Transitions from Head Start to kindergarten.

{(a} Imple i it ategies ices. A program that serves children who will enter
kindergarten in the following year must implement transition strategies to support a successful tran-
sition to kindetgarten.

(b) Family collaborations for fransitions.

(1) A program must collaborate with patents of enrolled children 1o implement strategies and
activities that will help parents advocate for and promote successful transitions to kindergarten
for theit children, including their continued involvement in the education and development of

their chiid,
(2) At a miniovom, such stratepies and activities must:

(1) Help parents understand their child’s progress during Head Start;

(i) Help parents understand practices they use to effectively provide academic and social
support for their childten during their transition to kindergarten and foster their contin-
ued involvernent in the education of their child;

{ii)) Prepate parents to exercise their tights and responsibilities concerning the educa-
tion of their children in the elementary school setting, including services and supports
available to children with disabilities and various options for their child to participate in
language instruction educational programs; and,

(iv) Assist parents in the ongoing comrrunication with teachers and other school petson-
nel 5o that parents can participate in decisions related to their children’s education.

(c) CMIMMLMIQQ&MM (1) A progtam must collaborate with local education

agencies to suppott family engagement under section 642(b)(13) of the Act and state departments

49



§1302.72

of education, as appropriate, and kindergarten teachers to implement strategies and activities that
promote successful transitions to kindergarten for children, their families, and the elementary
school.

(2) At 2 minimum, such sitategies and activities must include:

(1 Coordination with schools or other approptiate agencies to ensure children’s relevant
records are transferred to the school or next placement in which a child will enroll, con-
sistent with privacy requitements in subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter;

(i) Communication between appropriate staff and their countetparts in the schools to
facilitate continuity of leatning and development, consistent with privacy requirements in
subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter; and,

(i11) Participation, as possible, for joint training and professional development activities
for Head Start and kindergarten teachers and staff

(3) A program that does not operate duting the summer must collaborate with school districts
to determine the availability of summer school programming for children who will be entering
kindergarten and work with parents and school distticts to enroll children in such programs, as
approptiate.

(d Lﬁammg_emmug A program must implement strategies and activities in the

learning environment that promote successful transitions to kindergarten for entolled children, and
at a minimurm, include approaches that famikiarize children with the transition to kindergarten and
foster confidence about such transition,

(¢) Transion services fi i i : A program must provide additional ttansition set-
vices fot children with an IEP, aca minimuin, as described in subpart F of this part.

§1302.72 Tiransitions between programs.

(a} For fatnilies and children who move out of the community in which they are currently served, in-
cluding homeless families and foster children, a program must undertake efforts to suppott effective
transitions to other Early Head Start or Head Start programs. If Farly Head Start or Head Start is
not available, the program should assist the family to identify another carly childhood program that
meets their needs,

(b) A program that serves children whose families have decided to transition them to other early
education programs, including public pre-kindergarten, in the year prior to kindergarten entry must
undertake strategies and activities deseribed in §1302.71(b) and (c)(1) and (2), as practicable and
approprate.

(¢) A migrant ot seasonal Head Start program must uadertake efforts to supporr effective transitions
to other migrant or seasonal Head Start or, if appropriate, Early Head Start or Head Start programs
for families and childrea moving out of the community in which they are cutrently served.

50



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.82

Subpart H - Services to Enrolled Pregnant Women

§1302.80 Enrolled pregnant women.

(8) Within 30 days of enrollment, 2 program must determine whether each enrolled pregnant woman
has an ongoing source of continuous, accessible health care ~ provided by a health care professional
that maintains her ongoing health record and is not primarily 2 source of Emergency or urgent care
—and, 2s appropriate, health insurance coverage,

(9) A program must facilitate the ability of ali enrolled pregnant women to access comprchensive
services through refertals that, aca minimum, inclade nutritional counseling, food assistance, oral
health care, mental health services, substance abuse prevention and treatment, and emetgency shelter

o1 transitional housing in cases of domestic violence.

(d) A program must provide a newhorn visit with each mother and baby to offer support and iden-
tify family needs. A program must schedule the newborn visit within two weeks after the infant's

birth.
§1302.81 Prenatal and postpartum information, education, and services.

(a) A program must provide entolled pregnant wornen, fathers, and pattocrs or other relevant famity
metnbers the prenatal and posipartum infotmation, education and services that address, as appropri-
ate, fetal development, the impottance of nutrition, the risks of alcohol, drugs, and smoking, labor
and delivery, postpattum recovety, parental depression, infant care and safe sleep practces, and the
benefits of breastfceding,

(b} A program must also address needs for appropriate supports for emotional well-being, nurturing
and responsive caregiving, and father engagement during pregnancy and early childhood.

§1302.82 Family partnership services for enrolled pregnant women.

(a) A program must engage enrolled pregnant women and other relevant family members, such as
fathers, in the family Ppartnership services as described in §1302.52 2nd include a specific focus on
factors that influence prenatal and postpartum maternal and infant health,

(b} A program must engage enrolled pregnant women and other relevant family members, such as
fathers, in discussions about program options, plan for the infanf’s transition to program enrollment,
and suppozt the family during the transition process, whete approptiate.

5]



e
i

dPEL302 B

P

SRR S s

i

§1302.90

Subpart | — Human Resources Management

§1302.90 Personnel policies.

(@)

blighi S0 ici es. A program must establish written petsonnel pol-

icies and procedutes that are approved by the governing body and policy council or policy commit-
tee and that are available to all staff

(b) Background checks and selection procedures.

(1) Before a person is hited, directly or through contract, incleding transportation staff and
CODUACtors, 2 program must conduct an jaterview, verify references, conduct a sex offender
registry check and obtain one of the following:

{t) State of tribal criminal history tecosds, including fingerprint checks; or,
(if) Federal Bureau of Investigation criminal history records, including fingerprint checks.

(2) A progtarn has 90 days after an employee is hired to complete the background check pro-
cess by obtaining:

(i) Whichever check listed in paragraph (b)(1) of this section was not obtained prior to
the date of hire; and,

(i) Child abuse and neglect state registry check, if available,

(3) A ptogram must review the information found in each employment application and com-
plete backgtound check to assess the relevancy of any issue uncovered by the complete back-
ground check including any arrest, pending criminal charge, or conviction and must use Child
Care and Drevelopment Fund (CCDF) disqualification factors described in 42 US.C. 9858f(c)
(1D} and 42 US.C. 9858f(h) (1) or uibal disqualifications factors to determine whether the
prospective employee can be hired or the current employee must be terminated,

(4) A program must ensure a newly hired employee, consultant, or contractor does not have
unsupervised access to children until the complete background check process described in
patagraphis (b)(1) through (3) of this section is complete.

(5) A program must conduct the complete background check for each employee, copsultant,
0t contractor at least once every five years which must include each of the four checks listed
in paragraphs (b)(1) and (2) of this section, and review and make employment decisions based
on the information as descrbed in paragraph (b)(3) of this section, unless the program can
demonstrate to the responsible HHS official that it has 2 more sttingent system in place that
will ensure child safety.

(6) A program must consider current and former program patents for employment vacancies
for which such parents apply and ate qualified.

() Standards of conduct.

52



Administration for Children and Farnilies, HHS

§1302.90

(1} A program must ensure all staff, consultants, contrac
gram’s standards of conduct that:

tors, aad volunteers abide by the pto-

(@ Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and voluntcers implement positive strategies to
support children’s well-being and prevent and addsess challenging behavior;

(i) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers do not maltreat or endanger the
health or safety of children, including, at a minimum, that staff must not:

() Use cotporal punishment;
(B} Use isolation to discipline a child;
(C) Bind or tie a child to restrict movement of tape a child’s mouth;

(D) Use ot withhold food as a punishment or reward,
{(E} Use toilet leatning/ training methods that punish, demnean, or humiliate 2 child;

(F) Use any form of emotional abuse, including public or paivate humiliation, re-
jecting, terrorizing, extended ignoting, or corrupting a child;

(G) Physically abuse a child;

(F) Use any form of verbal abuse, including
detogatory remarks about the child or child’s

(1) Use physical activity or outdoor time as a

profane, sarcastic language, threats, or
family; or,

punishment or reward;

(iii) Ensure staff, consultants, contractors, and volunteers respect and promote the
unique identity of each child and family and do not Stereotype on any basis, including
gender, race, ethnicity, culture, religion, disability, sexual odentation, or family composi-

tion;

{tv) Require staff, consuliants, Contractors, and volunteers to comply with program confi-

dentality policies concerning personally identifiabl

¢ information about children, families,

and other staff members in accordance with subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter and

applicable federal, state, local, and tribal laws; and,

(v) Ensure no child is left alone or unsupervised by staff, consultants, contractors, ot

volunteers while under their care.

(2 Personnel policies and procedures must include appr
and volunteers who violate the standards of conduct.

(d} OnUnINi

opriate penalties for staff, consuliants,

(1) A program must ensure staff and Program consultants ox contractors are familiat with the
ethnic backgrounds and hetitages of families in the progtam and are able to serve and effec- -

fively communicate, either dircctly ot through interpreta

tion and translation, with children who

are dual language learners and 1o the extent teasible, with families with limited English profi-

ciency.

53



§13029]

(2} If a majotity of children in a class or home-based prograrn speak the same language, at
least one class staff member or home visitor must speak such language.

§1302.91 Staff qualifications and competency requirements.

(2) Purpose. A program must ensure all staff, consultants, and contractors engaged in the delivery
of program setvices have sufficient knowledge, training and experience, and competencies to fulfill
the roles and responsibilities of their positions and 1o ensure high-quality service delivery in ac-
cordance with the program performance standards. A program must provide ongoing Lraining and
professional development to support staff in fulfilling theit roles and responsibilities.

(b) Eadly Head Stast or Head Start director. A program must ensure an Eardy Head Start or Head

Start director hired after November 7, 2016, has, at 2 miniroum, a baccalaureate degree and experi-
ence in supervision of staff, fiscal management, and administration.

(c) Fiscal officer. A program must assess staffing needs in consideration of the fiscal complexity of
the organization and applicable financial management requirements and secure the regulatly sched-
uled or ongoing services of a fiscal officer with sufficient education and experience to meet their
needs. A program must ensute a fiscal officer hired after November 7,2016, is a certified public
accountant ot has, at a minimum, 4 baccalaureate degree in accounting, business, fiscal management,

or a related feld.
(d)

! (} ﬁ l.

cquirements

'(" - dDCITIC)

(1) Fami alth, any i agement. A program must ensure staff responsible for
management and oversight of family services, health services, and services to children with
disabilities hired after November 7, 2016 have, at a mirimum, a baccalaureate degree, prefeta-
bly related to one or more of the disciplines they oversee,

(2) Education management. As prescibed in section 648 A@}2YB) () of the Act, a program

must ensure staff and consultants that serve as education managers or coordinators, includ-
ing those that serve as curriculum specialists, have 2 baccalauteate of advanced degree in early
childhood education or 2 baccalaureate or advanced degree and equivalent coursework in early

childhood education with carly education teaching cxperience.

(¢} Child and family services staff.

(1) Eady He a ~based tea ification f . As prescribed in section
645A(h} of the Act, a program must ensute centei-based teachers that provide direct services
to infants and toddlers in Batly Head Start centers have a minimum of 2 Child Development
Associate (CDA) credential or compatable credential, and have been trained or have equivalent
coursework in early childhood development with a focus on infant aad toddler development.

(2) Head Start center-based teacher qualification regnirements.

(® The Secrerary must ensure no less than fifty percent of all Head Start teachers, nation-
wide, have a baccalauteate degree in child development, early childhood education, or

equivalent coursework.

>4



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.9i

(i} As prescribed in section 648A(2)(3)(B) of the Act, a program must ensure all cen-
ter-based teachers have at least an associate’s of bachelor's degree in child development
oz eatly childhood educaton, equivalent coursework, or otherwise meet the requiternents
of section 648A(2)(3)(B) of the Act.

(3) i ification requj - As prescribed in section 648A(2)
(2)(B)(i) of the Act, a program must ensure Head Start assistant teachers, at 2 minimum, have
a CDA credential or a state-awarded cestificate that meets or exceeds the requirements for a
CDA credential, are enrolled in a program that will lead to an associate or baccalaureate degree
or, are entolled in a CDA credential progtam to be completed within two years of the time of
hire :

(4) Family child cate provider qualification requirements,

(i} A program must ensure family child care providers have previous eatly child care
experience and, at a minimum, are enrolled iy a Family Child Care CDA progtam or
state equivalent, or an associate’s or baccalanreate degtee program in child development
ot eatly childhood education prior to beginning service provision, and for the credential
acquire it within eighteen months of beginaing to provide services.

(i) By August 1, 2018, a child development specialist, as required for family child cate in
§1302.23(¢), must have, ar a minirmum, 2 baccalaureate degree in child development, early
childhood education, or a related field,

(5} Center-based teachers, assistant teachers d fami ' rovider co cies, A
Program must ensure center-based teachers, assistant teachers, and family child care providers
demonsteate competency to provide effective and nuttaring teacher-child interactions, plan
and implement leatning experiences that ensure effective curriculum implementation and use

of assessment and promote children’s progress across the standards described in the Head
1t i uf rk: Ages Birth to Five and applicable state early

learning and development standards, including fot children with disabilities and dual language
learners, as appropriate.

(6) Horpe visitors. A program must ensure home visitors providing home-based education
services:

() Have a minimum of a home-based CDA ctedential or comparable credential, or
equivalent coursework as part of an associate’s or bachelor's degree; and,

(i) Demonstrate competency to plan and implement home-based learning experienc-
es that ensure effective implementation of the home visiting curricutum and promote
children’s progress across the standards described in the Head i

t 3 i ive, including for children with disabilities and
dual language learners, as approptiate, and 1o build respectful, culturally responsive, and
trusting relationships with families.

@) ily seryj f ification_requi - A program must ensure staff who work
directly with families on the tamily partnership process hired afier November 7, 2016, have

55



§1302.92

within cighteen months of hire, at a minimum, a credential or certification in social work, hu-
man services, family services, counseling or a related field.

(8) Health professional qualification requitements.

(1} A program must ensure health procedutes are performed only by a licensed or certi-
fied health professional.

() A program must ensure all mental health consultants are licensed or certified mental
health professionals. A program must use memnial health consultants with knowledge of
and experience in serving young children and their families, if available in the commun;-

ty.

(i) A program must use staff or consulants to support nutrition services who are regis-
tered dieticians or nutritionists with appropriate qualifications.

(D) Coaches. A program must ensute coaches providing the services described in 1302.92(c) have a
mitimum of a baccalaureate degree in eatly childhood education or g telated field.

§1302.92 Training and professional development.

() A program must provide to all new staff, consultants, and volunteers an orientation that focuses
0n, at a2 minimum, the goals and underlying philosophy of the program and on the ways they are
implemented,

(b) A program must establish and implement 2 systematic approach to staff ttaining and profession-
al development designed to assist staff in acquiring or increasing the knowledge and skills needed

to provide high-quality, comprehensive services within the scope of theit job responsibilities, and
attached to academic credit s appropriate. At a minimum, the systern must include:

(1) Staff completing a minimum of 15 dock houss of professional development per year, For
teaching staff, such professional development must meet the requirements described in section
648A(a)(5) of the Act.

(2) Training on methods to handle suspected or known child abuse and neglect cases, that
comply with applicable federal, state, local, and tribal laws;

(3) Training for child and family services staff on best practices for iaplementing family en-
gagement strategics in a systemic way, as described throughout this part;

(4) Training for child and family services staff, including staff that work on family services,
health, and disabilitics, that builds their knowledge, experience, and competencies to improve
child 2nd family outcomes; and,

(5) Research-based approaches to professional development for education staff, that are
focused on effective curricula imp]ementaﬁon, knowlcdgc of the content in Head Styri Bar-

ing Qutco e LA irth 1o Five, partnering with families, supporting
children with disabilities and their families, providing effective and nurtuting adult-child inter-
actions, supporting dual language learners as appropriate, addressing challenging behaviors,

56



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302,93

prepating children and families for transitions (as described in subpart G of this part), and use
of data to individualize learning experiences to improve outcomes for all children.

(c) A program must implement a research-based, coordinated coaching strategy for education staff
that:

(1) Assesses all education staff to identify strengths, areas of needed suppett, and which staff
would benefit most from intensive coaching;

(2) At a minimum, provides oppertunitics for intensive coaching to those education staff
identified through the process in Paragraph (c)(1) of this section, including opportunities to be
observed and receive feedback and modeling of effective teacher practices directly related to
program performance goals;

(3) At 2 minimum, provides Opportunities for education staff not identified for intensive
coaching through the process in paragraph (c)(1) of this section to receive other forms of
research-based professional development aligned with program pesformance goals;

{4) Ensutes intensive coaching opportunities for the staff identified through the process in
patagraph (c}(1) of this section that:

() Align with the program’s school readiness goals, curricula, and other approaches to
professional development;

(i) Utilize a coach with adequate training and experience in adult learning and in using
assessment data to dove coaching strategies aligned with program performance goals;

(if) Provide ongoing communication berween the coach, program director, education
director, and any other relevant saff; and,

(iv) Include clearly articulated goals informed by the program’s goals, as described in
§1302.102,.and a process for achieving those goals; and,

(5) Establishes policies that epsure assessment results are not used to solely determine punitive
actions for staff identificd as needing support, without providing time and resources for staff
to improve.

(d) If a program needs to develop or significantly adapt their approach to tesearch-based profession-
al development to better meet the training needs of edycation staff, such that it does not include the
tequirements in paragraph (9) of this section, the program must pattner with external early child-
hood education professional development experts. A Program must assess whether the adaptation
adequately supports staff professional development, consistent with the process lid out in subpart J

(@) A program must ensure each staff member has an initial health examination and a periodic re-ex-
amination as recommended by their health care provider in accordance with state, tribal, or local re-
quitements, that include screeners ot tests for communicable diseases, as appropriate. The program
must ensure staff do not, becawse of communicable discases, pose a significant risk to the health or

57



§1302.94

safety of others in the program that cannot be eliminated or reduced by teasonable accommodation,
in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act.

(b) A ptogram must make mental health and wellness information available 1o staff tegarding health
issues that may affect their job performance, and must provide regulatly scheduled opportunities to
learn about mental health, wellness, and health education.

§1302.94 Volunteers.

(a) A program must ensure regular vohnteers have been screened for appropriate communicable
diseases in accordance with state, trbal ot local laws. In the absence of state, trabal or local law; the
Health Services Advisory Commitiee must be consulted regarding the need for such screenings,

(b} A program must ensure children are never left alone with volunteers.

Subpart } — Program Management and Quality Improvement

§1302.100 Purpose.

A program must provide management and a process of ongoing monitoring and continuous im-
provement for achieving program goals that ensures child safety and the delivery of effective,

high-quality program services.
§1302.101 Management system.

(2) Linplemenration. A program toust implement a management system that:

(2) Provides regular and ongoing supervision to support individual staff professional develop-
ment and continuous program quality improvernent;

(3) Ensutes budget and staffing patterns that promote continuity of care for all children
enrolled, allow sufficient time for staff to patticipate in appropriate training and professional
developrent, and allow for provision of the full tange of services described in subparts C, D,
E,E G, and H of this part; and,

{(4) Maintains an automated accounting and record keeping system adequate for effective over-
sight.
{b) Coordinated approaches. At the beginning of each program year, and on an ongoing basis

throughout the year, a program must design and implement program-wide coordinated approaches
that ensure:

58



Admiristration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.102

(1) The training and professional development system, as described in §1302.92, effectively
supports the delivery and continucus improvement of high-quality services;

(2) The full and effective participation of children who are dual language learners and their
families, by

(@) Utilizing information from the ptogram’s community assessment about the languages
spoken throughout the program service atea to anticipate child and family needs;

(1)) Xdentifying community resources and establishing ongoing collaborative relationships
and partnerships with community organizations consistent with the requitements in
§1302.53(z); and,

(tii} Systematically and comprehensively addressing child and family needs by facilitating
meaningful access to program services, including, 2t a minimum, curticulum, instruction,
staffing, supervision, and family partmerships with bilingual staff, oral language assistance
and interpremation, or translation of essential program matetials, as appropriate.

(3) The full and effective participation of all children with disabilities, including but not limited
to children eligible for services under IDEA, by providing services with appropriate facilities,
Program materials, curticulum, instyuction, staffing, supervision, and partnerships, at a mini-
mum, consistent with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and the Americans with Disabili-
tes Act; and,

(4) The management of program data to effectively support the availability, usabdity, Integrity,
and security of data. A program must establish procedutes on data management, and have
them approved by the governing body and pelicy council, in areas such as quality of data and
etfective use and sharing of data, while protecting the ptivacy of child records in accordance
with subpart C of part 1303 of this chapter and applicable federal, state, local, and tribal laws.

§1302.102 Achieving program goals.

(2) Establishing program goals. A program, in collaboration with the governing body and policy

council, must establish goals and measurable objectives that inchude:

(1) Strategic long-term goals for ensuring programs are and remain responsive to comrrunity
needs as identified in their community assessment as desceibed in subpart A of this part;

(2} Goals for the provision of educational, health, nutritional, and family and community
engagement program setvices as descdbed in the program performance standards to further
promote the school readiness of entolled children;

(3) School readiness goals that are aligned with the Head Start Farly Tearning Qutcomes

ﬂamm;iggs_ﬂgﬂb_tq_@, state and tribal eatly learning standards, as approprate, and

requirements and expectations of schools Head Start children will attend, per the tequirements
of subpart B of part 1304 of this patt; and,

(4) Effective health and safety practices 1o ensure children are safe at all times, per the require-

59



7
]

7
"._F.E
o
(=]
S
L5
%
z
!l.
=

§1302.102

ments in §§130247, 130290(b) and (), 130292(c)(1), and 1302.94 and part 1303 subpart E, of
this chapter.

(b} Monitoring program performagpce.
(1) Ihgﬁmgmphawmanmmm In order to ensute effective ongoing over-

sight and correction, a program must establish and implement a system of ongoing oversight
that ensures effective implementation of the program performance standards, including ensur-
ing child safety, and other applicable federal regulations as described in this part, and must:

(i) Collect and use data to inform this process;
(ii) Correct quality and compliance issues immediately, or as quickly as possible;

(iii) Work with the governing body and the policy council to address issues during the
ongoing oversight and correction process and during federal oversight; and,

(iv) Implement procedures that prevent tecurrence of previous quality and compliance
issues, including previously identified deficiencies, safety incidents, and audit findings,

{2) Ongoing assessment of program goals A Pprogram moust effectively oversee progress to-

wards progtam goals on an ongoing basis and annually must:

{)) Conduct 1 seif-assessment that uses program data including aggregated child assess-
ment data, and professional development and pareat and family engagement data as
appropriate, to evaluate the program’s progress towards meeting goals established under
patagraph (a) of this section, compliance with program performance standards through-
out the program year, and the effectiveness of the professional development and farily
engagement systems in promoting schoo] readiness;

(i) Communicate and collaborate with the governing body and policy council, program
staff, and parents of enrolled children when conducting the annual self-assessment; and,

(ii)) Submit findings of the self-assessment, including information listed in paragraph ey
(2)(D) of this section to the responsible HHS official.

(c) Using data for continuous Improvement.

(1) A program must implement a process for using data to identify program strengths and
needs, develop and implement plans that address program needs, and continually evaluate
compliatice with program performance standards and ptogress towatds achieving program
goals described in paragraph (a) of this section.

(2) This process must:

() Ensute data is aggregated, analyzed and compared in such a way to assist agencies in
identifying rsks and informing strategies for continuous improverent in all program
service areas;

() Ensure child-level assessment dara is agpregated and analyzed at least thtee times 2
year, including for sub-groups, such as duval language learners and children with disabil-

&0



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1302.102

ities, as appropriate, except in programs operating fewer than 90 days, and used with
3 other program data described in patagraph (c)(2)(iv) of this section to direct continuous
Improvement related to curriculum choice and implementztion, teaching practices, pro-
fessional development, program design and other program decisions, including changing
Or targeting scope of services; and,

(i) For programs operating fewer than 90 days, ensures child assessment data is aggre-
gated and analyzed at least twice during the program operating period, inchding for
subgtoups, such as dual language leatners and children with disabilities, as appropdate,
and used with other program data described in patagraph (c)(2)(iv) of this section to
direct continuous improverment related to curricalum choice and implementation, teach-
ing practices, professional development, program design and other program decisions,
inclading changing or targeting scope of services;

(tv} Use information from ongoing monitoring and the annual self-assessment, and pro-
gram data on teaching practice, staffing and professional devclopment, child-level assess-

ments, family needs assessments, and comprehensive services, to identd fy progtam needs,
and develop and implemeat plans for program improvement; and,

(v} Use program improvement plags as needed to either strengthen ot adjust content
and strategies for professional development, change program scope and setvices, 1efine
school readiness and other program goals, and adapt strategies to better address the

needs of sub-groups.

: (d) Reporting.

(1} A program must submit;

(i) Status reports, determined by ongoing oversight data, to the governing body and poli-
<y council, at lcast semi-annually;

(i) Reports, as appropriate, 1o the responsible HHS official immediately or as soon as
practicable, related to any significant incidents affecting the health and safety of program
participants, citcumstances affecting the financial viability of the program, breaches of

personally identifiable information, or program involvement in legal proceedings, any
matter for which notification or 2 report to state, tribal, or local authorities js required by

applicable law; including at a minimum:

(A} Any reports regarding agency stff or volunteer compliance with federal,
state, tribal, ot local laws addressing child abuse and neglect or laws governing sex
offenders;

(B) Incidents that requite classrooms ot centers to be closed for any reason;
{C) Legal proceedings by any party that are directly related to program operations,
and,

(D) All conditions required to be reported under §1304.12, including
disqualification from the Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) and

l\._ license tevocation.

6l



§1302.103

(2) Annually, a program must publish and disseminate a report that complies with section
644(2)(2) of the Act and includes a summary of 2 program’s most recent community assess-
ment, as described in §1302.11(b), consistent with privacy protections in subpart C of part
1303 of this chapter.

() If a program has had a deficiency identified, it must submit, to the responsible HHS offi-
cial, 4 quality improvement plan as required in section 641A(e)(2) of the Act.

§1302.103 Implementation of program performance standards.

(2} A current program at of Novembet 7,2016, must implement 4 program-wide apptoach for the
effective and timely implementation of the changes to the program petformance standards, includ-
ing the purchase of materials and allocation of staff titne, a5 appropriate.

(b) A program’s approach to implement the changes included in patts 1301 through 1304 of this
chapter must ensure adequate preparation for effective and timely service delivery to children and
their families including, at a minimum, review of community assessment data to determine the most
approptiate strategy for implementing required program changes, including assessing any changes in
the number of children who can be served, as necessary, the purchase of and training on any curric-
ulum, assessment, or other materials, as needed, assessment of program-wide professional develop-
ment needs, assessment of staffing patterns, the development of coordinated approaches described
in §1302.101(b}, and the development of appropriate protections for data sharing; and children
enrolled in the program on November 7, 2016 are not displaced during a program year and that
children leaving Ezrly Head Start or Head Start at the end of the program year following November
7, 2016 as a result of any slot reductions received services desctibed in §§1302.70 and 1302.72 to

facilitate successful transitions to other programs,

Part 1303 — Financial and Administrative
Requirements

Sec.
1303.1  Overview
Subpart A — Financial Requirements

1303.2 Purpose.
1303.3  Other requirernents.
1303.4  Federal financial assistance, non-federal match, and wajver requirements.

13035 Limitations on development and administrative COsts,
Subpart B — Administrative Requirements

1303.10 Purpose.
1303.11 Limitatons and prohibitions.
1303.12 TInsurance and bonding,

Subpart C — Protections for the Privacy of Child Records
1303.20 Establishing procedures.

62



Adminisiration for Children and Families, HHS

§1303.1

1303.21
1303.22
1303.23
1303.24

Program procedutes — applicable confidentiality provisions
Disclosures with, and without, parental consent.

Parental rights,

Maintaining records.

Subpart D — Delegation of Program Operations

1303.30
1303.31
1303.32
1303.33

Grantee responsibility and accountability.

Determining and establishing delegate agencies.
Evaluations and corrective actions for delegate agencies.
Termination of delegate agencies.

Subpart E — Facilities

1303.40
1303.41
1303.42
1303.43
1303.44
1304.45
1303.46
1303 47
1303.48
1303.49
1303.50
130351
1303.52
1303.53
1303 .54
130355
1303.56

Purpose.
Approval of previously putchased facilities,

Eligibility to purchase, consttuct, and renovate faciliies.
Use of graat funds to pay fees.
Applications to purchase, construct, and renovate facilities,

Cost-comparison to purchase, construct, and renovate facilities,

Recording and posting notices of federal interest.
Contents of notices of federal interest.

Grantee limitations on federal interest.
Protection of federal interest in mottgage agreements.
Third party leases and occupancy arrangements.
Subordinaton of the federal interest.

Insurance, bonding, and maintenance.

Copies of documents.

Record retention.

Procurement procedures.

Inspection of work.

Subpart F — Transportation

1303.70
1303.71
1303.72
1303.73
1303.74
1303.75

Purpose.

Vehicles.

Vehicle operation.

Trip routing.

Safety procedures.
Children with disabilities.

AUTHORITY: 42 US.C. 9801 ¢ segq.

§1303.1 Overview.

Section 6414 of the Act requires that

the Secretary modify as necessary program performance

standards including administrative and financial management standards (section 641A()(1)(C)).
This part specifies the financial and administrative reguirements of agencies, Subpart A of this part

outlines the financial requitemnents consistent with s
Subpart B of this part specifies the administrative ¢

ections 640(b) and 644(b) and (c) of the Act
equirements consistent with sections 644(a)(1),

63



§13032

644(e), 653, 654, 655, 656, and 657A of the Act. Subpart C of this part implements the statutory
provision at section 641A (L)) of the Act that directs the Secietary to ensure the confidentiality of
any personally identifizble data, information, and records collected of maintained. Subpart D of this
part presctibes regulations for the operation of delegate agencies consistent with Section 641(A)(d).
Subpart E of this part implements the statutory tequitements in Section 644(c), (f) and (&) related

to faciliies. Subpart F prescribes regulations on transportation consistent with section 640() of the

Act

Subpart A — Financial Requirements

§1303.2 Purpose.

This subpart establishes regulations applicable to program administration and grants management
for all grants under the Act.

§1303.3 Other requirements.

The following chart includes HHS regulations that apply to all grants made under the Act:

" Cite Title 4/
45 CFR part 16 Department grant appeals process ) }
45 CFR part 30 HHS Standards and Procedures for Claims collection -
45 CFR part 46 , Protection of human subjects
45 CFR part 75 ;]::zgmﬁ;:zi?;sg::r:i::;n:enu, Cost Principles’, and Audit
Nondiscrimination under programs receiving federal assistance through the
45 CFR part 80 Department of Health and Human Services- Effectuation of title Vl and VIl of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964
45 CFR part 8] Practice and procedure for hearings under part 80
45 CFR part 84 Nondiscrimination on the basis of handicap in federally assisted programs 4{
45 CFR part 87 Equal treatment for faith based organizations '
2 CFR part 170 FFATA Sub-award and executive compensation
|2CRR25.110 CCRIDUNS requirement ]

§1303.4 Federal financial assistance, non-federal match, and waiver
requirements.

In accordance with section 640(b) of the Act, federal financial assistance to a grantee will not exceed
80 percent of the apptoved total programn costs. A grantee must contribute 20 petcent as non-feder-
al match each budget period. The responsible HHS official may approve 2 waiver of all or a portion

of the non-federal match requitement on the basis of the grantec’s written application submitted for
the budget petiod and any supporting evidence the tesponsible HHS official tequires. In deciding

64



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §13035

whether to grant a waiver, the responsible HHS official will consider the circumstances specified at
section 640(b) of the Act and whether the grantee has made a reasonable effort to comply with the

non-federal match tequirement.

§1303.5 Limitations on development and administrative costs.

(2) Licnitations.
(1) Costs to develop and administer 2 program cannot be excessive or exceed 15 percent of
the total approved program costs. Allowable costs to develop and administer a Head Start
program cannot exceed 15 percent of the total approved progtam costs, which includes hoth
federal costs and non-federal match, unless the responsible HHS official g1ants a waiver under
patagraph (b) of this section that approves a higher percentage in order to catry out the pur-
poses of the Act.

(2) To assess total program costs and determine whether a grantee meets this tequirement, the
grantee must

(i) Determine the costs to develop and administer its program, including the Jocal costs
of necessary resources;

(ti) Categorize total costs as development and administrative or program costs;

{ii1} Identify and allocate the portion of dual benefits costs that are for development and
administration;

(iv) Identify and allocate the portion of indirect costs that are for development and ad-
ministration versus program costs; and,

(v) Delineate all development and administrative costs in the grant application and caleu-
late the percentage of total approved costs allocated to development 2nd administration.

(b) Waivers.

(1) The responsible HHS official may grant a waiver for each budget period if a delay or dis-
ruption to program services is caused by circumstances beyond the agency’s control, or if an
agency is unable to administer the program within the 15 percent limitation and if the agency
can demonstrate efforts to reduce its development and administrative costs,

(2) If at any time within the grant funding cycle, a grantee estimates development and admin-
istration costs will exceed 15 percent of total approved costs, it must submit a waives request
1o the responsible HHS official that explains why costs exceed the limit, that indicates the fime
petiod the waiver will cover, and that describes what the grantee will do to reduce its develop-
ment and administrative costs to comply with the 15 percent limit after the waiver petiod.

65



Y

§1303.10

Subpart B — Administrative Requirements

§1303.10 Purpose.

A grantee must obsetve standards of otganization, management, and administration that <will ensure,
50 far as reasonably possible, that all prograrn activities are conducted in 2 manner consistent with
the putposes of the Act and the objective of providing assistance etfectively, efficiently, and free of
any taint of partisan political bias ot personal or family favoritism.

§1303.11 Limitations and prohibitions.

An agency must adhere to sections 644(c), 644(g)(3), 653, 654, 655, 656, and 657A of the Act.
These sections pertain to union otganizing, the Davis-Bacon Act, limitations on compensation, non-
discrimination, unlawful activities, political activitics, and obtaining parental consent.

§1303.12 Insurance and bonding.

An agency must have an ongoing process to identify risks and have cost-effective insurance for
those identified risks; z grantee must require the same for its delegates. The agency tnust specifically
consider the risk of accidental injuty to children while participating in the program. The granice
must submit proof of appropriate coverage in its initial application for funding. The process of
identifying risks must also consider the risk of losses tesulting from fraudulent 2cts by individu-

als authorized to disburse Head Start funds. Consistent with 45 CFR pazt 75, if the agency lacks
sufficient coverage to protect the federal government’s interest, the agency must maintain adcquate
fidelity bond coverage.

Subpart C — Protections for the Privacy of Child Records

§1303.20 Establishing procedures.

A program must ¢stablish procedures to protect the confidentiality of any personally identifiable
information (PII) in child records.

§1303.21 Program procedures - applicable confidentiality provisions.

{a) If a program is an educational agency or institution that receives funds under a program admin-
istered by the Depattment of Education and therefore is subject to the confidentiality provisions
under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), then it must comply with those
confidentality provisions of FERPA instead of the provisions in this subpart.

(b} If a program serves a child who is referred 1o, or found eligible for services undet, IDEA, then
3 program must comply with the applicable confidendality provisions in Part B or Part C of TDEA
to protect the P11 in records of those children, and, therefore, the provisions in this subpart do not
apply to those children.

66



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.22

§1303.22 Disclosures with, and without, parental consent.

(a) Disclosure with parental copsent,

(1) Subject to the exceptions in paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, the procedures to pro-
tect PII must require the program to obtain a parent’s written consent before the program tnay
disclose such PII from child fecords.

(2) The procedures to protect P11 must require the program to ensure the parent’s wtitten con-
sent specifies what child records may be disclosed, explains why the records will be disclosed,
and identifies the party or class of parties to whom the records may be disclosed. The written
consent must be signed and dated.

(3) “Signed and dated written consent” under this patt may include a tecord and signature in
electronic form that:

(1) Identfics and authenticates 2 particular person as the source of the clectronic cone
sent; and,

(1) Indicates such person's approval of the informaton.

(4) The program must explain to the parent that the granting of consent is voluntary on the
part of the parent and may be revoked at any tirne. If a parent revokes consent, that revo-
cation is not retroactive and therefore it does not apply to an action that occurred before the
consent was revoked,

; e BALROY 1113 s LU WL Parental pnotice 2 1 _
procedutes to protect PIT must allow the program to disclose such PII from child records without
parental consent if the program notifies the patent about the disclosure, provides the pareat, upon
the parent’s request, a copy of the PII from child records to be disclosed in advance, and gives the
parent an opportunity to challenge and refuse disclosure of the information in the records, before
the program forwards the records to officials at a program, school, or school district in which the
child seeks or intends to enroll o where the child Is alteady entolled so long as the disclosure is
related to the child's enrollment of transfer,

(¢) Di ithout pare - The procedures to protect PIT muost allow the program to
disclose such PIT from child recotds without parental consent to:

{1) Officials within the program or acting for the program, such as contractors and subrecip-
ients, if the official provides services for which the program would otherwise use employees,
the program determines it is necessary for Head Start services, and the program maintains
oversight with respect to the use, further disclosure, and maintenance of child records, such as

through a written agreement;

(2) Officials within the program, acting for the program, or from 2 federal or state entity, in
connection with an audit or evaluation of education of child development programs, or for
enforcement of or compliance with federal legal requirements of the program; provided the
program maintains oversight with respect to the use, further disclosure, 2nd maintenance of
child records, such as through a written agreement, including the destruction of the PIf when

67



§1303.22

no longer needed for the purpose of the disclosure, except when the disclosure is specifically
authorized by federal law or by the respensible HHS official;

(3) Officials within the program, acting for the program, oz from 2 federal or state entity, to
conduct a study to improve child and family outcomes, including improving the quality of
progtams, for, ot on behalf of, the program, provided the program maintains oversight with
respect to the use, further disclosure, and mzintenance of child records, such as through a
written agreement, including the destruction of the FIT when no longer needed for the put-
pose of the disclosure;

{4) Appropriate parties in order to addzess a disaster, health ot safety emetgency during the
petiod of the emetgency, or a serious health 2nd safety tisk such as a serfous food allergy, if
the program determines that disclosing the PII from child records is DEcessary to protect the
health or safety of children or other persons;

(5) Comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued subpoena, provided the program makes a
reasonable effort to notify the parent about all such subpoenas and coutt ordets in advance of
the compliance therewith, unless; .

() A court has ordered that neither the subpoena, its contents, nor the information pro-
vided in response be disclosed;

(it) The disclosure is in compliance with an ex parte court order obtained by the United
States Attorney General (or designee not lower than an Assistant Attorney General) con-
cerning investigations or prosecutions of 20 offense listed in 18 US.C. 2332b(g)(5)(B) o
an act of domestic of international terrorism as defined in 18 US.C. 2331,

(iii}) A parent is a party 10 a court proceeding directly involving child abuse and neglect
(as defined in section 3 of the Child Abuse Prevention and Treatment Act (42 US.C.
5101)) ot dependency matters, and the order is issued in the context of that proceeding,
additional notice to the parent by the progtam is not requited; or,

(iv) A program initiates legal action against a parent of a parent initiates legal action
against a program, then a program may disclose to the court, also without 2 court order
o1 subpoena, the child records relevant for the program to act as plaintiff or defendant.

(6) The Secretary of Agticulture or an authotized representative from the Food and Nutrition
Service to conduct program monitoring, evaluations, and performance measurements for the
Child and Adult Care Food Program under the Richard B. Russell National School Lunch Act
or the Child Nutdition Act of 1966, if the results will be reported in: an aggregate form that
does not identify any individual: provided, that any data collected must be protected in a man-
ner that will not permit the personal identification of students and theit patents by other than
the authotized representatives of the Secretary of Agtriculture and any PIT must be destroyed
when the data are no longer needed for program monitoring, evaluations, and petformance

Imeasurernents;
(7) A caseworker or other tepresentative from a state, local, or tribal child welfare agency, who

has the right to 2ccess a case plan for a child who is in foster care Placement, when such agen-
<y is legally responsible for the child's care and protection, under state or tribal law; if the agen-

68



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.23

Cy agtees in writing to protect PII, to use information from the child’s case plan for specific
purposes intended of addressing the child's needs, and to destroy information that is no longer
needed for those purposes; and,

(8) Apptoptiate parties in otder to address suspected ot known child maltreatment and is con-
sistent with applicable fedeial, state, local, and tribal laws on reporting child abuse and neglect.

(d) Wiitten agreements When a program establishes a written agreement with a third patty, the pro-
cedutes to protect such PIT must tequire the progtam to annually review and, if necessary, update
the agreement. If the third patty violates the agreement, then the program may:

(1) Provide the third party an Opportunity to self-correct; of,
(2) Prohibit the third party from access to records for a set petiod of time as established by the
programs governing body and policy council.

{e) Annual notice. The procedures to protect P11 must require the program to annually notify par-
ents of their rights in writing described in this subpart and applicable definitions in part 1305 of this
chapter, and include in that notice 2 deseription of the types of PII that raay be disclosed, to whom
the PII may be disclosed, and what may constitute 2 necessary reason for the disclosure without
parental consent as described in paragraph (c) of this section.

6] hmc&dmg&ng_m A ptrogram must only disclose the information that is deemed necessary

fot the purposc of the disclosure.
§1303.23 Parental rights.
(a) laspect record.

(1) A parent has the right to inspect child records.

{2) If the patent requests to inspect child records, the Program must make the child records
available within a reasonable time, but no more than 45 days after receipt of request.

(3) If a program maintains child records that contain information on more than one child, the
program must ensure the parent only inspects information that pertains to the parent’s child,

(4) The program shall not destroy 2 child tecord with an outstanding request to inspect and
review the record under this section.

(b) Amend record.
(1) A parent has the right to ask the program to amend information in the child record thar the
parent believes is inaccurate, misleading, or violates the child’s privacy.

(2) The program must consider the patent’s request and, if the request is denied, render a
written decision to the parent within a reasonable time that informs the parent of the right to

a hearing,

() Hearing

69



§1303.24

(1) If the parent requests a heating to challenge information in the child record, the program
must schedule a hearing within a reasonable time, notify the parént, in advance, about the
hearing, and ensure the person who conducts the hearing does not have a direct intetest in its

outcome,

(2) The program must ensure the hearing affords the patent a full and fair opportunity to pres-
ent evidence relevant to the issues.

(3} If the program determines from evidence presented at the hearing that the information
in the child records is inaccurate, misleading, or violates the child’s privacy, the program must
either amend or remove the information and notify the parent in wiiting.

{4) If the program determines from evidence presented at the hearing that information in the
child recosds is accurate, does not mislead, or otherwise does not violate the child’s Pprivacy,
the program must inform the parent of the right to place a statement in the child records that
cither comments on the contested information or that states why the parent disagrees with the

program’s decision, ot both.

(d) Right to copy of record. The program must provide a parent, free of charge, an initial copy of
child records disclosed to third parties with parcnial consent and, upon patent request, an initial

copy of child records disclosed to third parties, unless the disclosure was for 2 court that ordered
neither the subpoena, its contents, nor the information furnished in response be disclosed.

(¢) Right to inspect written agreements. A parent has the right to teview any written agreements with

third parties,
§1303.24 Maintaining records.

(a) A program must maintain child records in a manner that ensures only parents, and officials with-
in the program or acting on behalf of the program have access, and such records must be destroyed
within 2 reasonable timeframe after such records aze no longer needed or required to be maintained.

(b) A program must maintzin, with the child records, for as long as the tecords are maintained,
information on all individuals, agencies, or organizations to whom a disclosure of PIT from the child
records was made (except for program officials and parents) and why the disclosure was made, If

a program uses a web-based data system to maintain child records, the program must ensure such
child records are adequately protected and maintained according to current industry securty stan-
dards.

() If 2 parent places a statement in the child record, the program must maintain the statement with
the coatested part of the child record for as long as the program maintains the record and, disciose
the statement whenever it discloses the portion of the child record to which the statement relates.

70



p—

Administration for Children and Families, HIHS §1303.40

Subpart D — Delegation of Program Operations

§1303.30 Grantee responsibility and accountability.

A grantee is accountable for the services its delegate agencies provide. The grantee supports, over-
sees and ensures delegate agencies provide high-quality services to children and families and meet all
applicable Head Start requitements. The grantee can only terminate a delegate agency if the grantee
shows cause why termination is uecessary and provides a process for delegate agencies to appeal ter-
mination decisions. The grantee retains legal responsibility and authority and bears financial account-
ability for the program when services are provided by delegate agencies,

§1303.31 Determining and establishing delegate agencies.

(2) If a grantee enters into an agreement with another entity to serve childten, the grantee must
determine whether the agteement mects the definition of “delegate agency” in section 637(3) of the
Act.

(b) A grantee must not award 2 delegate agency federal financial assistance unless there is 2 written
agreement 2nd the responsible HHS official approves the agreement before the grantee delegates
program operations.

§1303.32 Evaluations and corrective actions for delegate agencies.

A grantee must evaluate and ensure correciive action for delegate agencies according to section
641A(d} of the Act

§1303.33 Termination of delegate agencies.

(8) If a grantee shows cause why termination is appropriate or demonstrates cost effectiveness, the
grantec may terminate 2 delegate agency’s contract.

(b) The grantee’s decision to terminate must not be arbitrary or capricious.

(c) The grantee must establish a process for defunding a delegate agency, including an appeal of a
defunding decision and must engure the process is fair and timely.

d) The grantec must notify the responsible HHS official about the a eal and its decision.
gr P PP

Subpart E ~— Facilities

§1303.40 Purpose.

This subpart prescribes what a grantee must establish to show it is eligible to putchase, construct
and renovate facilities as outlined in section 644(c), (f) and (g) of the Act. It explains how a grantce
may apply for funds, details what measures a grantec must take to protect federal interest in facilites

71



§1303.41

putchased, constructed or renovated with grant funds, and concludes with other administrative pro-
visions, This subpart applies to major renovations, It only applies to minor renovations and repairs,
when they are included with a purchase application and are part of purchase costs,

§1303.41 Approval of previously purchased facilities.

If a grantee purchased a facility after December 31, 1986, and seeks to use grant funds to continue
to pay purchase costs for the facility ot to refinance current indebtedness and use grant funds to
service the resulting debt, the grantce may apply for funds to meet those costs. The grantee must
submit an application that conforms 1o requirements in this part and in the Act to the responsible
HHS official. If the responsible HHS official approves the grantee’s applicaton, Head Start funds
may be used to pay ongoing purchase costs, which include principal and interest on approved Joans.

§1303.42 Eligibility to purchase, construct, and renovate facilities.

(a) Prelimipary eligibi lity.

(1) Befote a grantee can apply for funds o purchase, construct, or rencvate a facility under
§1303.44, it must establish thar:

() The facility will be available to Indian tribes, or rural ot other low-income communi-
ties;

(i} The proposed purchase, construction or major fenovation is within the grantee’s
designated service area; 2nd,

{iit) The proposed purchase, construction or major tenovation is necessary because the
lack of suitable facilities in the grantee’s service area will inhibit the operation of the
program.

(2) If 2 program applies to construct a facility, that the construction of such facility is more
cost-cffective than the purchase of available facilities or renovation.

(b) Proving 2 lack of suitable facilities. To satisfy paragraph (aj(1) (iii) of this section, the grantee

must have a written statement from an independent real estate professional familiar with the com-
mercial] real estate market in the grantee’s service area, that includes factors considered and supports
how the real estate professional determined there are no other suitable facilities in the area.

§1303.43 Use of grant funds to pay fees.

A grantee may submit a written request to the responsible HHS official for reasonable fees and costs
necessary to determine prelininary igibility under §1303.42 before it submits an application under
§1303.44. If the responsible HHS official approves the grantee’s application, the grantee may use
federal funds to pay fees and costs.

72



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.44

§1303.44 Applications to purchase, construct, and renovate facilities.

(a) Application requirements. If a grantee is preliminarily eligible under §1303.42 to apply for funds

to purchase, construct, or renovate a facility, it must submit to the responsible HHS official:

(1) A statement that explains the anticipated effect the proposed purchase, construction or
renovation has had or will have on program entollment, activities and services, znd how it
determined what the anticipated effect would be;

(2) A deed ot other document showing legal ownership of the real property where facilities
activity is proposed, legal description of the facility site, and an explanation why the location is
apptopriate for the grantee’s service area:

(3) Plans and specifications for the facility, including square footage, structure type, the num-
ber of rooms the facility will have or has, how the rooms will be used, where the structuze will
be pasitioned or located on the building site, and whether there is space available for outdoor
play and for patking;

(4) Certification by a licensed engineer ot architect that the facility is, or will be upon comple-
tion, structurally sound and safe for use as a Head Stare facility and that the faclity complies,
ot will cornply upon completion, with local building codes, applicable child care licensing re-
quirements, the accessibility tequirements of the Americaps with Disabilities Act, section 504
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, and the Nation-
al Historic Preservatdon Act of 1966:

(3) A description of proposed renovations or 1epairs to make the facility suitable for program
activities, and plans and specification that describe the facility after renovaton or tepair;

(6) A proposed schedule that details when the grantee will acquire, renovate, repair and occupy
the facility;

{7) An estimate by a licensed independent certified appraiser of the facility’s fair market value
after proposed purchase and associated repairs and renovations construction, or major reno-
vation is completed is required for all facilities activites except for major renovations to leased

property;
(8) The cost comparison deseribed in §1303.45;

(9} A statement that shows what share of the purchase, construction, or major renovation will
be paid with grant funds and what the grantee proposes to contribute as a nonfederal match to
the purchase, construction or major renovation;

(10) A statement from a lender, if a grantee applies to use Head Start funds to continue put-
chase on a facility or refinance existing debt on  facility that indicates the lender is willing to
comply with §1303.49;

(11) The tetms of any proposed ot existing loan(s) related to purchase, construction or major
tenovation of the facility, including copies of any funding commitment letters, mortgages,
promissory notes, potential secutity agreements to be entered into, information on all other

73



§1303.45

soutces of funding, construction or major renovation, and any restrictions or conditions im-
posed by other funding sources;

(12) A Phase I eavironmental site assessment that describes the eavitonmental condition of
the proposed facility site and any structures on the site;

(13) A description of the efforts by the grantee to coordinate o collaborate with other pro-
viders in the community to seek assistance, including financial assistance, ptiot to the use of
funds under this secton; and,

(14) Any additional information the responsible HHS official may require.

(b) Additional requirements for leased properties.

(1} If a grantee applics to renovate leased propetty, it must submit to the responsible HHS of-
ficial information described in paragtaph (a) of this section, a copy of the existing ot proposed
lease agreement, and the landlord or lessor’s consent.

(2) If a grantee applies to purchase a modular unit it intends to site on Jeased property or on
other property the grantee does not own, the grantee must submit to the responsible HHS of-
ficial tnformation described in paragraph (2) of this section and 2 copy of the proposed lease
or other occupancy agreement that will allow the grantee access to the modular unit for at least

15 years.
<) Non-fe atch. Any non-federal match associated with facilities activities becomes art of
Non-federa] match. Any P

the federal share of the facility.

§1303.45 Cost-comparison to purchase, construct, and renovate
facilities.

(a) Cost comparison,

(1) If a grantee proposes to purchase, consteuct, or renovate 2 facility, it must submit a detailed
cost estimate of the proposed activity, compare the costs associated with the proposed activity
to other available alternatives in the service atea, and provide any additional information the
responsible HHS official requests. The grantee must demonstrate that the proposed activity
will result in savings when compared to the costs that would be Incurred to acquire the use of
an alternative facility to carry out program.

(2) In addition to tequirements in paragraph (1) of this section, the grantee must:
(i) Identify who owns the property;
(1) List all costs related to the purchase, construction, or renovation;

(iit) Identify costs over the structure’s useful life, which is at least 20 years for a facility
that the grantee purchased or constructed and at least 15 veats for a modular unit the
grantee renovated, and deferred costs, including mortgage balloon payments, as costs
with associated due dates; and,

74



Administration for Children and Farnilies, HHS §13034¢

(iv) Demonstrate how the proposed putchase, construction, or major renovation is
consistent with program management and fiscal goals, community needs, enrollment and
program options and how the proposed facility will support the grantee as it provides
quality services to children and farilies,

{©) Multi-purpose use. If the grantee intends to use a facility to operate 2 Head Start program and
for another purpose, it must disclose what percentage of the facility will be used for non-Head Start
activities, along with costs associated with those activities, in accordance with applicable cost princi-

ples.

§1303.46 Recording and posting notices of federal interest.

(a) Survival of federal interesr. A gtantee that receives funds under this subpart must file notices of

federal interest as set forth in paragraph (b) of this section. Federal interest cannot be defeated by a
grantee’s failure to file a notice of federal incerest.

) Recording notices of federal inteest.

(1)} If a grantee uses federal funds 1o purchase real property or 2 facility, excluding modular
units, appurtenant to real Pproperty, it must record a notice of federal interest in the official eal
Property records for the jurisdiction where the facility is ot will be located. The grantee must
file the notice of federal interest as soon as it uses Head Start funds to either fully or partially
purchase a facility ot real propezty where a facility will be constructed ot as $001 as it receives
permission from the responsible HHS official to use Head Start funds to continue purchase

on a facility,

(2 If a grantee uses federal funds in whole or jn part to construct a facility, it must record the
notice of fedezal intezest in the official teal property records for the jurisdiction in which the
facility is located as soon as it receives the notice of award to construct the facility.

(3) If a grantee uses federal funds to renovate a facility that it, or a third party owns, the grant-
ce must record the notice of federal interest in the official real propetty records for the jurs-
diction in which the facility is located as soon as it receives the notice of award to renovate the

facility.

(4) If a grantee uses federal funds in whole or in part to purchase a rnodular unit or to ren-
ovate a modular unit, the grantee must post the notice of federal interest, in clearly visible
locations, on the exterior of the modulat unit and inside the modular unit,

75



§1303.47

§1303.47 Contents of notices of federa] interest.

(a) Facili d o t . A notice of federal interest for 2 facility, other than a
modular unit, and real property the grantee owns or will own, must include:

(1) The grantec’s correct legal name and current mailing address;
(2} A legal desctiption of the real property;

(3) Grant award numbez, amount and date of initial facilites funding award ot initial use of
base grant funds for ongoing purchase or mortgage payments;

(4) A statement that the notice of federal interest includes funds awarded in gtant award(s) and
any Head Start funds subsequently used to purchase, construct or to make major rencvations

to the real property,

(3) A statement that the facility and real property will only be used for purposes consistent
with the Act and applicable Head Start regulations;

(6) A statement that the facility and real property will not be mortgaged or used as collateral,
sold or otherwise transferred to another party, without the responsible HHS officiaPs written

permission;
(7) A statement that the federal interest cannot be subordinated, diminished, nullified o re-

leased through encumbrance of the property, transfer of the property to another party or any
other action the grantee takes without the responsible HHS official’s written permission:

(8) A statement that confitms that the agency’s governing body received a copy of the notice
of federal interest prior to filing and the date the governing body was provided with a copy;

and,

(%) The name, dtle, and signature of the person who drafted the notice,

(b) Facility leased by & grantec.

(1) A notice of federal interest for 2 leased facility, excluding a modular unit, on land the grant-
ee docs not own, must be recorded in the official real property tecords for the jurisdiction
where the facility is located and must include:

(&} The grantec’s correct legal name and current mailing address;
(i) A legal description of affected real property;

(ii) The grant award number, amount and date of initial funding award or initial use of
base grant funds for major renovation;

(iv) Acknowledgement that the notice of federal interest includes any Head Start funds
subsequently used to make major renovations on the affected real propezty;

(v) A statement the facility and real property will only be used for purposes consistent
with the Act and applicable Head Start regulations; and,

76



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §130348

{vi) A lease or occupancy agreernent that includes the required information from para-
graphs (b)(1)() through (v) of this section may be recorded in the official teal property
records for the jurisdiction where the facility is Jocated to serve as 2 notice of federal
interest,

(2) If a grantee cannot file the lease or occupancy agreement described in paragraph (D)
(vi) of this section in the official real propetty recotds for the jurisdiction where the facility is
located, it may file an abstract. The abstract must include the names and addresses of parties
to the lease or occupancy agreement, terms of the lease or occupancy agreement, and infor-
mation described in paragraphs (a)(1) through (9) of this scction,

(¢) Modular ugits. A notice of federal interest on a modular unit the grantee purchased or renovated
must be visible and cleady posted on the exterior of the modular and inside the modular and must

include:
(1) The grantee’s correct legal name and cusrent mailing address;

(2) The grant award number, amount and date of initial funding award or initial use of base
grant funds to purchase or renovate;

(3) A statement that the notce of federal interest includes any Head Start funds subsequently
used for mazjot renovations to the modular unit;

(4) A statement that the facility and real property will only be used for purposes consistent
with the Act and applicable Head Start regulations;

(%) A statement that the modular wnit will not be mottgaged or used as collateral, sold or oth-
erwise transferred to another party, without the responsible HHS official's written permission;

(6) A statement that the federal interest cannot be subordinated, diminished, nullified or re-
leased through encumbrance of the propetty, transfer to another party, or any other action the
grantee takes without the responsible HHS official’s wtitten permission;

(7) A statement that the modular unit cannot be moved to another location without the re-
sponsible HHS official’s written permission;

(8) A statement that confirms that the agency’s govetning body has received a copy of the filed
notice of federal interest and the date the governing body was provided with a copy; and,

(9) The name, tide, and signature of the person who completed the notice for the grantee
agency.

§1303.48 Grantee limitations on federal interest.

{a) A grantee cannot mortgage, use as collateral for a credit line or for othet loan obligations, or, sell
or transfer to another party, a facility, real property, or 2 modular unit it has purchased, constructed
ot renovated with Head Start funds, without the responsible HHS official’s written permission.

(b) A grantee must have the responsible HHS official’s written permission before it can use real

77



§130349

propetty, a facility, or 2 modular unit subject to federal interest for 2 putpose other than that for
which the grantee’s application was approved.

§1303.49 Protection of federal interest in mortgage agreements.

{2) Any mortgage agreement ot othet security instrument that is secured by teal property ot a mod-
ular unit constructed or purchased in whole or in part with federal funds or subject to renovation

with federal funds must:

(1) Specify that the responsible HHS official can intervene in case the grantee defaults on,
terminates or withdraws from the agreement;

(2) Designate the responsible HHS official to receive a copy of any notice of default given to
the grantee under the terms of the agreement and include the regional grants management

officer’s current address:
Hl

(3) Include a clause that requires any action to foreclose the mori{gage agreement or security
agreement be suspended for 60 days after the responsible HHS official receives the default
notice to allow the responsible HHS official reasonable time to respond;

{4) Include a clause that preserves the notice of federal interest and the grantee’s obligation
for its federal share if the responsible HHS official fails to respond to any notice of default

provided under this section;
(3) Inclnde a statement that requires the tesponsible HHS official to be paid the federal in-

terest before foreclosute proceeds are paid to the lender, unless the officiaPs rights under the
notice of federa] interest have been subordinated by a wiitten agreement in conformance with

§1303.51;

(6) Include a clause that gives the responsible HHS official the tight to cure any default under
the agreement within the designated period to cure the default; and,

(7) Include a clause that gives the responsible HHS official the tight to 4ssign or transfer the
agreement to another interim or permanent grantee.

(b} A grantee must immediately notify the fesponsible HHS official of any default under an agree-
ment desctibed in paragraph (a) of this section.

§1303.50 Third party leases and occupancy arrangements.

(a) Aftet November 7, 2016, if a grantee receives federal funds to purchase, construct or renovate a
facility on real property the grantee does not own ot to putchase or renovate a modular unit on real
property the grantee does not own, the grantee must have a lease or other occupancy agreement of
at least 30 years for purchase or construction of a facility and at least 15 yeats for a major renovation

ot placement of a modular unit.

{b) The lease or oCcupancy agreement must:

78



Administration for Chitdren and Families, HHS §1303.52

(1) Provide for the grantee’s right of continued use and occupancy of the leased or occupied
premises during the entire term of the lease;

(2) Designate the regional grants management officer to seceive a copy of any notice of
default given to the grantee undet the terms of the agreement and include the regional grants
management officer’s current address;

(3) Specify that the responsible HHS official has the tight to cure any default under the lease
or occupancy agreement within the designated period to cure default; and,

(4) Specify that the responsible HHS official has the tight to transfer the lease to another inter-
im or replacement grantee.

§1303.5] Subordination of the federal interest.

Only the responsible HHS official can subordinate federal interest to the rights of a lender or other
thitd party. Subordination agreemerits must be in writing and the mottgage agreement or security
agrecment for which subordination is requested must comply with §1303.49. When the amount
of federal funds already contributed to the facility exceeds the amount to be provided by the lender
seeking subordination, the federal interest may only be subordinated if the gtantee can show that
funding is not available without subordinaton of the federal interest

§1303.52 Insurance, bonding, and maintenance.

(a) Purpose. If a grantee uses federal funds to purchase or continue purchase on a facility, excluding
modular units, the grantee must obtain a title insurance policy for the purchase price that narnes the
responsible HHS official as an additional loss payee.

(b) Insurance COverage.

(1) If a grantee uses federal funds to purchase or continue purchase on 2 facility or modular
unit the grantee must maintain physical damage or destruction insurance at the full teplace-
ment value of the facility, for as long as the grantee owns or occupies the facility.

(2) If a facility is located in an area the National Flood Insurance Program defincs as high risk,
the grantee must maintain flood insurance for as long as the grantee owns or occupies the
facility.

(3) A grantee must submit to the responsible HHS official, within 10 days after coverage be-
gins, proof of insurance coverage tequited under paragraphs (2) and (b) of this section.

() Maintenance. A grantee must keep all facilities purchased or constructed in whole or in part with
Head Statt funds in good tepait in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules
and regulations, including Head Start requirements, zoning requirements, building codes, health and
safety regulations and child care licensing standards.

79



§1303.53

§1303.53 Copies of documents,

A grantee must submit to the 1esponsible HHS official, within 10 days after filing or execution, cop-
ies of deeds, leases, loan instruments, mottgage agreements, notices of federal interest, and other
legal documents related to the use of Head Start funds for purchase, construction, major renovation,
ot the discharge of any debt secured by the facility.

§1303.54 Record retention.

A grantee must retain records pertinent to the lease, purchase, construction or renovation of a facil-
ity funded in whole ot in part with Head Start funds, for as long as the grantee owns or occupies the
facility, plus three years.

§1303.55 Procurement procedures.

(@) A grantee must comply with all grants management regulations, including specific tegulations
applicable to transactions in excess of the current simplified acquisition threshold, cost principles,
and its own procuternent procedutes, and must provide, to the maxirmum extent practical, open and

full competition.

(b) A grantee must obtain the responsible HHS oficial’s written 2pproval before it uses Head Start
funds, in whole or in patt, to contract construction or renovation services. The grantee must ensure
these contracts ate paid on a famp sum fixed-price basis,

{c) A grantee must obtain priot written approval from the responsible HHS official for contract
modifications that would change the scope or objective of a project or would materally alter the
costs, by increasing the amount of grant funds needed to complete the project.

{d) A grantee must ensure all construction and renovation contracts paid, in whole or in part with
Head Start funds contain a clause that gives the responsible HHS official o1 his ot her designee ac-
cess to the facility, at all reasonable times, during construction and mspection.

§1303.56 Inspection of work.

The grantee must submit to the responsible HHS official 2 final facility inspection report by a Ii-
censed engineer or architect within 30 calendar days after the project is completed. The inspection
report must certify that the facility complies with local building codes, applicable child care Heensing
requirements, is structurally sound 2nd safe for use as & Head Start fadility, complies with the access
requitements of the Americans with Disabilities Act, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and the
Hood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, and complies with National Historic Preservation Act of

1966.

80



Administration for Children and Famifies, HHS §1303.70

Subpart F —Transportation

§1303.70 Purpose.

(2) Applicability. This rule applies to all agencies, including those that provide transportation ser-
vices, with the exceptions and exclusions provided in this section, regardless of whether such trans-
portation is provided directly on agency owned ot legsed vehicles or through arrangement with a
ptivate or public transportation provider.

®) Providi , -

(1) If a program does not provide transportation services, either for alt or 4 portion of the
children, it must provide reasonable assistance, such as infotmation about public transit avail-
ability, to the families of such children to atrange transportation to and from its activities, and
provide information about these transportation options in rectuitment announcements,

(2} A program that provides transportation services must make reasonable efforts to coordi-
nate transportation resoutces with other human services agencies in its community in order to
contro] costs and to improve the quality and the availability of transpottation services.

(3) A program that provides transpottation services must ensure all accidents Involving vehi-
cles that transport childten are reported in accordance with applicable state requirements,

(c) Whaiver.

(1) A progtam that provides transportation services must comply with all provisions in this
subpart, A Head Start program may request to waive a specific Tequirement in this part, in
writing, to the responsible [IHS official, as patt of an agency’s annual application for financial
assistance or amendment and must submit any required documentation the responsible HHS
official deems necessary to support the waiver. The responsible HHS official is not authorized
to waive any requirements with regard to children enrolled in an Early Head Start progeam. A
program may request a waiver when:

(1) Adherence 10 a requirement in this patt would create a safety hazard in the circum-
stances faced by the agency; and,

(it} For preschool children, compliance with requirements related to chiid restraint sys-
terns at §§1303.71(d) and 1303.72(a)(1} or bus monitars at §1303.72(a)(4) will result in
a significant disruption to the program and the agency demonstrates that watving such
requirements is in the best interest of the children involved,

(2) The responsible HHS official is not authorized 10 waive any requirements of the Federal
Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS) made applicable to any class of vehicle under 49
CFR part 571,

81



§1303.71

§1303.71 Vehicles.

{a) ired u h ternati icles. A program, with the exception of
transportation services to children served under 2 home-based option, must ensuze all vehicles used
or purchased with grant funds to provide transportation services to enrolled childten ate school bus-
es or allowable alternate vehicles that are equipped for use of height- and weight-appropriate child
testraint systems, and that have reverse beepers.

(b) Emergency equipment. A program must ensure each vehicle used in providing such services is

equipped with an emergency communication system clearly labeled and appropriate emergency safe-
ty equipment, including 2 seat belt cutter, charged fire extnguisher, and first aid kit.

() Auxiliary seating A program must ensure any auxiliary seating, such as temporary or folding
jamp seats, used in vehicles of any type providing such services ate built into the vehicle by the man-
ufacturer as part of its standard design, are maintained in proper working order, and are inspected as

part of the annual inspection required under paragraph (€)(2}() of this section.

d Child restraing systerns. A program must ensure each vehicle used to ttansport childten receiving
such services is equipped for use of age-, height- and weight-approprate child safety restraint sys-
tems as defined in part 1305 of this chapter.

(¢) Yehicle maintenance.

(1) A program must ensute vehicles used to provide such scrvices are in safe operating condi-
ton at all imes.

{2) The program must:

(1) At a minimum, conduct an annual thorough safety inspection of each vehicle through
an inspection program licensed or operated by the state;

(ii} Carry out systematic preventive maintenance on vehicles; and,

(1) Ensure each driver implements daily pre-trip vehicle inspections.

() New vehicle jnspection. A program must ensure bid announcements for schoal buses and allow-

able alternate vehicles to transport children in its program include correct specifications and z clear
staternent of the vehicle’s intended use. The program must ensute vehicles are examined at delivery
to ensure they are equipped in accordance with the bid specifications and that the manufacturer’s
certification of compliance with the applicable FMVSS is included with the vehicle,

§1303.72 Vehicle operation.

(a) Safety A program must ensure:

(1) Each child is seated in a child restraint system appropriate to the child’s age, height, and
weight;

{2) Baggage and other items transported in the passenger compartment are propetly stored

82



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.72

and secured, and the aisles remain clear and the doors and emesgency exits remain unobstruct-
ed at all dmes;

(3) Up-to-date child rosters and lists of the adults each child is authorized to be released to,
including alternates in case of efmergency, ate maintained and no child is left behind, either at
the classroom or on the vehicle at the end of the route; and,

(4) With the exception of transportation services to children served under a home-based
option, there is at least one bus monitor on boatrd at all imes, with additional bus monitotrs

provided as necessary.

(b) Driver qualifications. A program, with the exception of transportation services to children

setved undet a hotne-based option, must ensure drivers, at a minismum:

(1) In states where such licenses are granted, have a valid Commercial Driver's License ({CDL)
for vehicles in the same class as the vehicle the diver will operating: and,

(2) Meer any physical, mental, and other tequirements as necessary 1o petform job-related
functions with any necessary reasonable accommodations,

{c} Dirver application review In addition to the applicant review process prescribed §13[)2.90(b) of

this chapter, a progtam, with the exception of transportation services to children served under ]
home-based option, must ensure the applicant teview process for drives includes, at minimumm;

(1) Disclosure by the zpplicant of alt moving traffic violations, regatdless of penalty;

(2) A check of the applicant’s driving recotd through the appropriate state agency, inclnding a
check of the applicant's record through the National Driver Register, if available,

(3} A check that drivers qualify under the applicable driver training requitements in the state or
tribal judsdiction; and,

(4) After a conditional employment offer to the applicant and before the applicant begins work
as a driver, 2 medical examination, petformed by a licensed doctor of medicine or ostecpathy,
establishing that the individual possesses the physical ability to perform any job-related func-
tions with any necessary accommodations.

(d) Driver training

(1) A program must ensuze any person employed as a driver receives training prior o trans-
porting any enrolled child and receives refreshes training each year.

(2) Training must include:

® Classroom instruction and behind- the-wheel instruction sufficient to enable the
driver to operate the vehicle in a safe and efficient manner, to safely run a fixed route, o
administer basic first aid in case of injuty, and to handle emergency situations, including
vehicle evacuation, operate any special equipment, such as wheelchair lifts, assistance
devices or special occupant trestraints, conduct routine maintenance and safety checks of
the vehicle, and maintain accurate records as necessary; and,

83



§1303.73

(i} Insteuction on the topics listed in §1303.75 related to transportation services for chil-
dren with disabilities.

(3) A program must ensure the annual evaluation of each driver of a vehicle used to provide
such services includes 2n on-board observation of road performance,

(e) Bus monitor training, A program must train each bus monitor before the monitor begins work,
on child boarding and exiting procedures, how to use child testraint systems, completing any re-

quired paperwork, how to respond to emergencies and emergency evacmation procedures, how to
use special equipment, child pick-up and release procedutes, how to conduct and pre- and post-trip
vehicle checks. Bus monitors are also subject to staff safety training requitements in §1302.47(b)(4)
of this chaptet including Cardio Pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) and #irst aid.

§1303.73 Trip routing,

() A program must consider safety of the children it transpotts when it plans fixed routes.

(b) A program must also ensure:

(1) The time a child is in transit to and from the program must not exceed one hour unless
there is no shotter route available or any alternative shorter route is either unsafe or impracti-

cal;
{2) Vehicles are pot loaded beyond maximum passenger capacity at any time;

{3) Drivers do not back up ot make U-turns, except when necessary for safety reasons or he-
cause of physical barriers;

(4) Stops are located to minimize traffic disruptions and to afford the driver a good field of
view in front of and behind the vehicle:

(5) When possible, stops arc located to eliminate the need for childten to cross the street or
highway to board or leave the vehicle;

(6) Either a bus monitor ot another adult escorts children across the street to board or leave
the vehicle if curbside pick-up or dtop off is impossible; and,

(7) Dtivers use alternate routes in the case of hazardous conditions that could affect the
safety of the children who are being transported, such as icc or water build up, natural gas line
breaks, or emergency road closing.

§1303.74 Safety procedures.

(&) A progtam must ensute children who receive tansportation services are taught safe riding prac-
tices, safety procedures for boarding and leaving the vehicle and for crossing the sixeet to and from
the vehicle at stops, recognition of the danger zones atound the vehicle, and €INErgency evacuation
procedures, including participating in an emergency evacuation drill condueted on the vehicle the
child will be riding,

(b) A program that provides transportation services must ensure at least two bus evacuation drills in

84



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1303.75

addition to the one required under patagraph (a) of this section are conducted during the program
yeat.

§1303.75 Children with disabilities.

(a) A program must ensure thete are school buses ot allowable alternate vehicles adapted o designed
for transportation of children with disabilifies available as necessary o transpott such childten en-
rolled in the program. This tequitement does not apply to the uanspottation of children receiving
home-based services unless school buses or allowable alternate vehicles are used to transport the
other children served under the home-based option by the grantee. Whenever possible, children with
disabilities must be transported in the same vehidles used to transport other children enrolled in the
Head Start or Early Head Stast program.

(b) A program must ensure special transportation requirements in a child’s IEP ot IFSP are fol-
lowed, including special pick-up and drop-off tequirements, seating requitements, equiprnent needs,
any assistance that may be required, and any necessary training for bus drivers and monitors

Part 1304 — Federal Administrative Procedures

Sec.
Subpart A — Monitoring, Suspension, Termination, Denial of Refunding,
Reduction in Funding, and their Appeals

13041  Purpose.

13042 Monitoring,

1304.3  Suspension with notice.

1304.4  Emergency suspension without advance notice.
1304.5 Termination and denial of tefunding.

1304.6  Appeal for prospective delegate agencies,
1304.7 Legal fees,

Subpart B — Designation Renewal

1304.10 Purpose and scope.

1304.11  Besis for determiring whether 2 Head Stast agency will be subject to an
open competition.

130412 Grantee teporting requirements concerning certain conditions,

1304.13 Requirements to be considered for designation for a five-year period when the exist
ing grantee in a community is not determined to be delivering a high-quality and
comprehensive Head Start program and is not automatically renevred,

1304.14 Tribal government consuliation under the Designation Renewal System for when an
Indian Head Start grant is being considered for competition.

1304.15 Designation request, review and notification process.

130416 Use of CLASS: Pre-K instrument in the Designation Renewal System.

Subpart C ~— Selection of Grantees through Competition
130420 Selection among applicants.

85



§1304,]

Subpart D — Replacement of American Indian and Alaska Native Grantees

1304.30 Procedure for identification of alternative agency,
1304.31 Requitements of alternative agency.
1304.32  Alterpative agency—prohibition.

Subpart E — Head Start Fellows Program

1304.40 Purpose.
130441 Fellows Program.

AUTHORITY: 42 US.C. 9801 o7 sey.

Subpart A — Monitoring, Suspension,Termination, Denial of
Refunding, Reduction in Funding, and their Appeals

§1304.1 Purpose.

(2) Section 641A(c) of the Act requites the Secretary to monitor whether g grantee meets program
governance, program operations, and financial and administrative standards described in this regu-
lation and to identify areas for improvements and areas of strength as part of the grantee’s ongoing
self-assessment process. This subpart focuses on the monitoring process. Tt discusses areas of
noncompliance, deficiencies, and cotrective action through quality improvement plans.

(b) Section 646(a) of the Act requires the Secretary to prescribe Procedures for notice and appeal for
certain adverse actions. This subpart establishes rules and procedures to suspend financial assistance
10 2 grantee, deny a grantec’s application for refonding, tetminate, oz reduce a grantee’s assistance
under the Act when the grantee improperly uses federal fands or fails to comply with applicable
laws, regulations, policies, insttuctions, assurances, terms and conditions og, if the grantee loses

provided for in this subpart, the appeals and processes in this subpart will be governed by the De-
partmental Appeals Board regulations at 45 CER part 16,

§1304.2 Monitoring,

(a) &M@mmm It a tesponsible HHS official determines thtough monitoring, pursu-

ant to section 641(A)(c)(1) and (2) of the Act, that a grantee fails to comply with any of the stan-
dards described in parts 1301, 1302, and 1303 of this chapter, the official will notify the grantee
promptly in writing, identify the area of noncompliance, and specify when the grantee must correct
the area of noncompliance.

{b) Reficiencies. If the Secretary determines that a grantee meets one of the criteria for a deficiency,
as defined in section 637(2}(C) of the Act, the Secretary shall inform the gtantee of the deficiency,

86



Administration for Children and Famities, HHS §1304.3

The grantee must correct the deficiency pursuant to section 641A(€)(1)(B) of the Act, as the respon-
sible HHS official determines,

(c) Quality improvement plans. If the responsible HHS official does not require the grantee to

cotrect a deficiency immediately as prescribed under section 641A(e)(1)(B)(i) of the Act, the grantee
must submit to the official, for approval, a quality improvement plan that adheres to section 641A(e)

(2)(A) of the Act.

§1304.3 Suspension with notice.

(2) i i ' ice. If 2 grantee breaches or threatens to breach
any requirement stated in §§1304.3 through 1304.5, the responsible HHS official may suspend the
grantee’s financial assistance, in whole or in part, after it has given the grantee notice 2nd an oppot-
tunity to show cause why assistance should not be suspended.

(b} Notice requireinents.

(1) The responsible HHS official must notify the graatec in writing that ACF intends to sus-
pend financial assistance, in whole or in part. The notice must:

() Specify grounds for the suspengion;
(1) Include the date suspension will become effective;

(i) Inform the grantee that it has the Opportunity to submit to the tesponsible FHHS
official, at least seven days before suspension becomes effective, any wrrtten material it
would like the official to consider, and to inform the grantee thar ir may request, in writ-
ing, no later than seven days after the suspension notice was matled, to have an informal
meeting with the responsible HHS official;

(iv) Invite the grantee to voluntarily correct the deficiency; and,
(v) Include a copy of this subpart.

(2} The responsible HHS official must prompitly transmit the suspension notice to the prantee,
The notice becomes effective when the grantee receives the notice, when the grantee tefuses
delivery, or when the suspension notice s returned to sender unclaimed.

(3) The responsible HHS official must send a copy of the suspension notice to any dele-

gate agency whose actions or whoese failuzes to act substantially caused ot conttibuted 1o the
proposed suspension. The tesponsible HHS offcial will inform the delegate agency that it is
entitled to submit written material to Oppose the suspension and to participate in the informal
meeting, if one is held. In addition, the responsible HHS official may give notice to the grant-
ec’s other delegate agencies.

(4) Aftet the grantee receives the suspension notice, it has three days to send a copy of the
notice o delegate agencies that would be financially affected by » suspension,

(©) Qpp.czgm;;m_s_hmu&c_ The grantee may submit to the responsible HHS offeial any written

material to show why financial assistance should not be suspended. The grantee may also request,

87




§1304.4

in writing, to have an informal meeting with the responsible HHS official. 1f the grantee requests
an informal meeting, the responsible HHS official must schedule the meeting within seven days after
the grantee receives the suspension notice,

{d} Extensions. If the tesponsible HHS official extends the time or the date by which 2 grantee has
to make requests or to submit material, it must notify the grantee in writing,

(e) Decision.

(1) The responsible HHS official will consider any written material presented before or during
the informal meeting, as well as any proof the grantee has adequately corrected what led to
suspension, and will render 2 decision within fve days after the informal meeting If no infor-
mal meeting is held, the tesponsible HHS official will render 2 decision within five days after it
receives written matetial from all concerned parties.

(2) If the responsible HHS official finds the grantee failed to show cause why ACF should not
suspend financial assistance, the official may suspend financial assistance, in whole or in part,
and under terms and conditions as he or she deems appropriate.

(3) A suspension must not exceed 30 days, unless the conditions under section 646(a)(5)(B)
are applicable or the grantee requests the suspension continue for an additional period of time
and the responsible HHS official agrees.

(4) The responsible HHS official may appoint an agency to serve as an interim grantee to
opetate the program until the grantec’s suspension is lifted, or as otherwise provided under

section 646(2)(5)(B) of the Act.

pension or termination, The responsible HHS official may allow third-pasty in-kind contributions
applicable to the suspension period to satisfy cost shating or matching requirements,

@ memmm The responsible HHS official may modify or rescind suspension

at any time, if the grantee can satisfactozily show that it has adequately corrected what led to suspen-
sion and that it will not repeat such actions or inactions. Nothing in this section precludes the HHS
official from imposing suspension again for additional 30 day periods if the canse of the suspension
has not been corrected.

§1304.4 Emergency suspension without advance notice,

88



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.4

(b) Emﬂgﬁﬂﬂmip.mmg_mmﬁmmw

(1) The emergency suspension notification muse:

() Specify the grounds for the suspension;
(i}) Include terms and conditions of any full or partial suspension;

(i) Inform that grantee it cannot make of incur 2ny new expenditures or obligations
under suspended portion of the program; and,

(tv) Advise that within frve days after the emergency suspension becomes effective, the
grantee may request, in writing, an informal meeting with the responsible HHS official
to show why the basis for the suspension was not valid and should be rescinded and that
the grantee has cortected any deficiencies,

(2) The responsible HHS official must promptly transmit the emetgency suspension notifica-
ton to the grantee that shows the date of receipt. ‘The emergency suspension becomes effec.
tve upon delivery of the notification or vpon the date the grantee refuses delivery, or upon
teturn of the notification unclaimed.

(3) Within two wotkdays after the grantee 1eceives the emergency suspension notification, the
grantee must send a copy of the notice to delegate apencies affected by the suspension.

(4) The responsible HHS official must inform affected delegate agencies that they have the
right to participate in the informal meeting.

(c) Opportunity to show cause. If the grantee requests an informal meeting, the responsible HHS

official must schedule a meeting within five workdays after it receives the grantec’s request. The
suspension will continue unti! the grantee has been afforded such oppormunity and until the respon-
sible HHS official renders a decision. Notwithstanding provisions in this section, the responsible
HHS official may proceed to deny refunding ot to initiate termination Ptoceedings at any time even
though the grantee’s financial assistance has been suspended in whole or in part.

{(d} Decision.

(1) The responsible HHS official will consider any written material presented before or during
the informal meeting, as well as any ptoof the grantee has adequately corrected what led to
suspension, and render a decision within five work days afier the informal meeting.

{2) If the responsible HHS official finds the grantee failed to show cause why suspension
showld be rescinded, the tesponsible HHS official may continue the suspension, in whole or in
part, and under the terms and conditions specified in the emergency suspension notification.

(3} A suspension must not exceed 30 days, unless the conditions under séction 646(a)(5)(B) are
applicable or the grantee requests the suspension to continue for an additional petiod of time
and the responsible HHS official agrees.

{4) The responsible HHS official may 2ppoint an agency to serve as an interim granice to
Operate the program until cither the grantee’s emergency suspension is lifted or 2 new grantee
is selected.

89




§13045

(e} Obligations incuzzed during suspension. Any new obligations the grantee incurs duting the sus-
HHS

pension period will not be allowed unless the stesponsible official expressly authotizes them in
the suspension notice or in an amendment to the suspension notice. Necessary and otherwise allow-
able costs which the grantee could not reasonably avoid during the suspension period will be aliowed
if those costs result from obligations properly incutred before suspension and not in anticipation of
suspension, denial of refunding or termination, The responsible HHS official may allow third-party
in-kind contributions applicable to the suspension period to satisfy cost shating or matching require-
ments.

(f) Modify or rescingd suspension. The responsible HHS official may medify or rescind suspension

at any time, if the grantee can satisfactorily show that is has adequately corrected what led to the
suspension and that it will not repeat such actions or inactions, Nothing in this section precludes
the HHS official from imposing suspension again for additional 30 day periods if the cause of the
suspension has not been corrected,

§1304.5 Termination and denial of refunding,

(1) A responsible HHS official may terminate financial assistance in whole ot in partto a
grantee or deny a grantee’s application for refunding,

(2) The responsible HHS official fmay terminate financial assisrance in whole or in part, or
deny refunding to a grantee for any one or for all of the following teasons:

(D The grantee is no longer financially viable;

(@) The grantee has lost the requisite legal status or permits;

(itf) The grantee has failed 1o tmely correct one or more deficiencies as defined in the
Act;

(iv) The grantee has failed to comply with eligibility requirements;

(v} The grantee has failed to comply with the Head Start grants administration of fiscal
tequirements set forth in 45 CFR part 1303;

(i) The grantee has failed to comply with requirements in the Act;
[(vii) The grantee is debarred from teceiving federal grants or contracts; or

{vii2) The grantee has failed to abide by any other terms and conditions of its award of
financial assistance, ot any other applicable laws, regulations, or other applicable federal
Or state requirements or policies.

(b) Notice requirements.
(1) The responsible HHS official will notify the grantee and such notice will:

(f) Include the legal basis for termination or adverse action as described in paragraph (a)
of this section;

90



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.5

(i) Cite to any statutory provisions, regulations, or policy issuances on which ACF relies
for its determinaton;

(%) Inform the grantee that only its board of ditectors, or an official acting on the
board’s behalf can appeal the decision;

(vi) Name the delegate agency, if the actions of that delegate are the basis, in whole or in
patt, for the proposed action; and,

(vii) Inforrm the grantee that the appeal must meet requirements in paragraph (c) of this
section; and, that if the responsible HHS official fails to meet tequitements in this para-
gtaph, the pending action may be dismissed withont prejudice or remanded (o reissue i
with corrections,

ees must also serve a copy of its appeal on any affected delegate.

(2) Unless funding has beeq suspended, funding will continue while a grantee appeals 2 termi-
nation decision, unless the responsible HHS official tenders an adverse decision, ot unless the
cucrent budget period is expited. If the responsible HHS official has not rendered 2 decision
by the end of the current budget period, the official will award the grantee interim funding
until 2 decision is made o the Project petiod ends.

() i Ing suspegsion, if 2 grantee’s funding i suspended, the grantee will not receive
funding during the termination proceedings, or at any other time, unless the action js rescinded or
the grantee’s appeal is successf; .

(e) Interi tees. The responsible HHS official may appoint an interim or re-
placement grantee as soon as 2 termination action is affirmed by the Departmental Appeals Boatd.

() Qﬂpﬂmmgmw

o1



§1304.6

(1) If the Departmental Appeals Board sets 2 hearing for a proposed termination of denal of
refunding action, the grantee has five workdays to send a Ccopy of the notice it receives from
the Departmental Appeals Board, to all delegate agencies that would be financially affected by

termination and to each delegate agency identificd in the notice.

(2) The grantee must send to the Departmental Appeals Board and to the responsible HHS
official a list of the delegate agencies it notified and the dates when it notified them.

() If the responsible HHS official initiated proceedings because of a delegate agency’s ac-
tivities, the official must inform the delegate agency that it may participate in the hearing, If
the delegate agency chooses to participate in the hearing, it must notify the responsible HHS
official in writing within 30 days of the grantee’s appeal. If any other delegate agency, person,
agency or otganization wishes to participate in the hearing, it may request permission to do so
from the Departmental Appeals Board,

{(4) If the grantee fails to appear at the hearing, without good cause, the grantee will be deemed
to have waived its fight to 2 heating and consented to have the Departmental Appeals Board
make a decision based on the parties’ written information and atgument,

(3) A grantee may waive the hearing and submit written information and arpument for the
recotd, within a reasonable period of time to be fixed by the Departmental Appeals Board.

(6) The responsible HHS official may attempt, either personally or through a representative, to
resolve the issues in dispute by informal means prior to the hearing

(@ Decision. The Departmental Appeals Boatd's decision and any measure the responsible HHS
official takes after the decision is fully binding upon the grantee and its delegate agencies, whether or

not they actually participated in the hearing.
§1304.6 Appeal for Prospective delegate agencies.

(@) Appeal. If a grantee denies, or fails to act ©n, a prospective delegate agency’s funding applica-
tion, the prospectve delegate may appeal the grantee’s decision or inaction.

() Em&&ftipnggmmm. To appeal, a prospective delegate mmust:

(1) Submits the appeal, including a copy of the funding application, to the responsible HHS
official within 30 days after it teccives the grantee’s decision; or within 30 days after the grantee
has had 120 days to review but has not notified the applicant of 2 decision; and,

(Z) Provide the grantee with a copy of the appeal at the same time the appeal is filed with the
responsible HHS official.

respond to the appeal and submit a copy of its tesponse to the responsible HHS official and to the
prospeciive delegate agency within 30 work days.

{d) Decision.
(1) The responsible HHS official will sustain the grantee’s decision, if the official derermines

92



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.10

the grantee did not act arbitrarily, capticiously, or otherwise contrary to law, regulation, or oth-
er applicable requirements,

(2) The responsible HHS official will rendet 2 wtitten decision to each patty within a reason-
able imeframe. The official’s decision js final and not subject to further appeal.

(3} If the responsible HHS official finds the grantee did act arbitrarily, caprsiciously, ot other-
Wise contrary to law, regulation, ot other applicable requirements, the grantee will be directed
to reevaluate their applications.

§1304.7 Legal fees.

(&) An agency is not authorized to charge to its grant legal fees or other costs Incurred to appeal
terminations, reductions of funding, or denials of applications of tefunding decisions.

(b) If a program prevails in 2 termination, reduction, or denial of refunding decision, the responsi-
ble HHS official may reimbutse the agency for reasonable and customary legal fees, incarred during
the appeal, if:

(1) The Departmental Appeals Board overmrns the responsible HHS official’s decision;
(2) The agency can prove it incutred fees duting the appeal; and,

(3) The agency can prove the fees incurred ate reasonable and customary,

Subpart B — Designation Renewal

§1304.10 Purpose and scope.

The purpose of this subpart is to set forth policies and procedures for the designation renewal
of Head Start and Early Head Stast programs. It is intended that these progtams be administered
effectively and responsibly; that applicants to administer programs recefve fair and equitable con-

nuttitional, and social needs of the children and families they serve; meet the Program and financial
requirements and standards described in section 641A(2)(1) of the Head Start Act: and quakify to be
designated for funding for five years without competing for such funding as required under section
641(c) of the Head Start Act with respect to Head Start agencies and putsuant to section 645A(b)
(12) and (d) with respect to Early Head Start agencies. A competition to select a new Head Start or
Early Head Start agency 1o teplace a Head Start or Easdy Head Start agency that has been terminated
voluntarily or involuntarily is not part of the Designation Renewal System established in this Part,
and is subject instead to the requirements of §1304.20.

93



§1304.11

§1304.11 Basis for determining whether a Head Start agency will be
subject to an open competition.

A Head Start or Eazly Head Start agency shall be required to compete for its next five years of
funding whenever the responsible HHS official determines that one ot more of the following seven
conditions existed during the relevant time petiod covered by the responsible HHS official's review
under §1304.15:

(2) An agency has been determined by the responsible HHS official to have one or more deficiencies
on a single review conducted under section 641A((1)(A), (O), ot (D) of the Actin the relevant time
petiod covered by the responsible HHS official's review under §1304.15,

(b) An agency has been determined by the responsible HHS official based on a review conducted
under section 641A(c) (1)(A), (O), of (D) of the Act during the relevant time petiod covered by the
tesponsible HHS official's review under §1304.15 not to have;

(1) After December 9, 2011, established pbrogram goals for improving the school readiness of
children participating in its program in accordance with the requirements of section 641A(g)
(2) of the Act and demonstrated that such goals:

) Appropriately teflect the ages of children, birth to five, participating in the program;
(1) Align with the Bisth to Five Head Stagt Child Outcomes Framework, state early

(iii) Were established in consultation with the parents of children participating in the
progtam.

(2) After December 9, 2011, taken steps to achieve the school readiness goals desctibed under
paragraph (b)(1) of this section demonstrated by:

() Aggregating and analyzing aggtegate child-level assessment data at least three times
pet year (except for programs operating less than 90 days, which will be required to do
$0 at least twice within their opetating program period) and using that data in combina-
tion with other program data to determine grantees' progress toward meeting its goals,
to inform patents and the community of results, and to ditect continuous Improvement
related to currculum, instruction, professional developmeat, program design and other
program decisions; and,

{}) Analyzing individual ongoing, child-level assessment data for all children birth to age
five participating in the program and using that data in combination with input from par-
ents and families to determine each child's status and progress with regard to, at a mini-
mum, language and literacy development, cognition and general knowledge, approaches
toward learning, physical well-being 2nd motor development, and social and emotional

94



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.11

development and to individualize the experiences, instructional strategies, and services to
best support each child.

(¢) An agency has been determined during the relevant time period covered by the responsible HHS
official's review under §1304.15:

(1) After December 9, 2011, to bave an average score actoss all classrooms observed below
the following minimum thresholds on any of the three CLASS: Pre-K domains from the most
recent CLASS: Pre-K observation:

(1) For the Emotional Support domain the minimum threshold is 4;
(if) For the Classtoom Organization domain, the minimum threshold is 3;
(itf) For the Instructional Support domain, the minimum threshold is 2;

(2) After December 9, 2011, to have an average score actoss all cdlassrooms observed that is
in the Jowest 10 percent o0 any of the three CLASS: Pre-K domuains frorn the most recent
CLASS: Pre-K observation among those currently being teviewed unless the average scote
across all classrooms observed for that CLASS: Pre-K domain is equal to or above the stan-
dard of excellence that detnonstrates that the classtoom interactions are above an exceptional
level of quality. For all three domains, the “standard of excellence” is 4 6.

(d) An agency has had a revocation of its license to operate a Head Start or Barly Head Start cen-
tet or program by a state or local licensing agency duting the relevant time period covered by the
responsible HHS official's review under §1304.15, and the revocation has niot been overturned or
withdrawn befote 2 competition for fundi ng for the next five-year period is announced. A pending
challenge to the license revocation or restoration of the license after correcton of the violation shall
not affect application of this requirement after the compettion for funding for the next five-year

period has been announced.

(€) An agency has been suspended from the Head Start or Early Head Start progtam by ACF during
the relevant time period covered by the responsible HHS official’s review under §1304.16 and the
suspension has not been overturned or withdrawn. If there is a pending appeal and the agency did
not have an opportunity to show cause as to why the suspension should not have been imposed or
why the suspension should have been lifted if it had already been imposed under this patt, the agen-
cy will not be requited to compete based on this condition. If an agency has received an opportunity
to show cause, the condition will be implemented regardless of appeal status.

() An agency has been debarred from receiving federal or state funds from any federal or state de-
pattment or agency or has been disqualified from the Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP)
any time during the relevanr rime period covered by the responsible HHS official's review under
§1304.15 but has not yet been terminated or denied refunding by ACE (A debarred agency will only
be eligible to compete for Head Start funding if it receives a waiver described in 2 CFR 180.135.)

(8) An agency has been deretmined within the twelve meonths preceding the responsible HHS

official's teview under §1304.15 to be at risk of failing to continue functioning as a going concern.
The final determination is made by the responsible HHS official based op a teview of the findings
and opinions of an audit conducted in accordance with section 647 of the Act; an audit, review or

95



§1304.12

Investigation by a state agency; a teview by the National External Audit Review (NEAR) Center; or
an audit, investigation or inspection by the Department of Health and Human Services Office of

Inspector General.

§1304.12 Grantee reporting requirements concerning certain
conditions.

(a) Head Statt agencies must report in writing to the tesponsible HHS official within 30 wotking
days of December 9, 2011, if the agency has had a tevocation of 4 license to operate a center by a
state of local licensing entity during the period between June 12, 2009, and December 9, 2011,

(b) Head Start agencies must report in writing to the zesponsible HHS official within 10 working
days of occurrence any of the following events following December 9, 2011:

{1) The agency has had a revocation of a license to operate a center by a state or local licensing
entity.

{2) The agency has filed for bankruptcy or agreed to a Teotganization plan as part of a bank-
ruptcy settlement.

(3) The agency has been debatred from teceiving federal or state funds from any federal or
state department or agency or has been disqualified from the Child and Adult Care Food Pro-

gram (CACFP).
(4) The agency has recetved an audit, audit review, investigation or inspection report from the

agency's auditor, a state agency, or the cognizant federal audit agency containing 2 determina-
tion that the agency is at risk for ceasing 10 be a going concern.

§1304.13 Requirements to be considered for designation for a five-year
period when the existing grantee in a community is not determined to
be delivering a high-quality and comprehensive Head Start program

and is not automatically renewed.

In order to compete for the opportunity to be awarded a five-year grant, an agency must submit zn
application to the responsible HHS official that demonstrates that it is the most qualified entity to
deliver a high-quality and compiehensive Head Statt or Early Head Start program. The application
must address the ctitetia for selection listed at section 641(d}(2) of the Act for Head Start. Any
agency that has had its Head Start or Early Head Start grant terminated fog cause in the preceding
five years is excluded from competing in such competition for the next five years. A Head Start or
Eazly Head Start agency that has had a denial of refunding, as defined in 45 CFR part 1305, in the

preceding five yeats is also excluded from competing,

96



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.15

§1304.14 Tribal government consultation under the Designation
Renewal System for when an Indian Head Start grant is being

considered for competition.

(2} In the case of an Indian Head Stast or Easly Head Start agency determined not to be delivering a
high-quality and comptehensive Head Stat or Eatly Head Start program, the responsible HHS offi-
cial will engage in government-to-government consultation with the appropriate tribal government
or governments for the purpose of establishing a plan to improve the quality of the Head Stagt
program or Early Head Seart program operated by the Indian Head Start or Indian Early Head Start

(1) The plan will be established 2nd implernented within six months after the responsible HHS
official’s determination,

(2) Not more than six months after the implementation of that plan, the responsible HHHS
official will reevaluate the performance of the Indian Head Start or Early Head Start agency.

(3) If the Indian Head Statt or Early Head Start agency is still not deliveting a high-quality and
comprehensive Head Start or Early Head Start progtam, the responsible HHS official will con-
duct an open competition to select a grantee to provide services for the community curtently

being served by the Indian Head Start or Early Head Start agency.

§1304.15 Designation request, review and notification process,

() Grantees must apply to be considered for Designation Renewnal.

(1) For the transition petiod, each Head Start or Eatly Head Start agency wishing to be con-
sidered to have their designation as a Head Start or Early Head Start agency renewed for a
five year period without competition shall request that status from ACF within six months of

December 9, 2011.

(2) After the transition period, each Head Start ot Barly Head Start agency wishing to be
considered to have their designation as a Head Start or Early Head Start agency renewed for
another five year period without competition shall tequest that statns from ACFE a¢ least 12
months before the end of theit five year grant pertod or by such ome as required by the Secre-

tary.
(b) ACF will review the relevant data to determine if one or more of the conditions under §1304.11
were met by the Head Start and Farly Head Start agency's program;

97




§1304.15

(2) During the remainder of the trapsition petiod, ACF shall review the data on each Head
Start and Early Head Start agency still under grants with indefinite project petriods and for
whom ACF has relevant datz on ali of the conditions in §1304.11(a) through (2) to determine
if any of the conditions undex §1304.11 @) or (d) through (g} were met by the agency's pto-
gram since June 12, 2009, or if the conditions under §1304.11(b) or (c) existed in the agency's
program since December 9, 2011.

(3) Following the transition period, ACF shall revicw the data on each Head Start and Early

Head Start agency in the fourth year of the grant to determine if any of the conditons under
§1304.11 existed in the agency’s program duting the petiod of that grant,

¢} ACF will give notice 1o prantees on Designation Renewal System status, except as provided in
& g ign ¥ Ptas p
§1304.14:

(1) During the first year of the transition petiod, ACF shall give wtitten notice to all grant-
ces meeting any of the conditions under §1304.11(2) or (d) through () since June 12, 2009,
by certified mail rerurn Teceipt requested or other system that establishes the date of receipt
of the notice by the addressee, stating that the Head Start or Barly Head Start agency will be
required to compete for funding for an additional five-yeat period, identifying the conditions

(D) The Head Start or Eatly Head Start agency will be required to compete for funding
for an additional five-year period because ACF finds that one or more conditions under
§51304.11(a) through (g) has been met during the relevant time period described in para-
graph (b) of this section, identifying the conditions ACF found, and summatizing the
basis for the finding; or

{iiy That such agency has been determined on a preliminary basis to be eligible for
renewed funding for five years without competition because ACF finds that none of

the conditions under §1304.11 have been met during the relevant time perod described
in paragraph (b) of this section. If ptior to the award of that grant, ACF determines
that the grantee has met one of the conditions under §1304.11 during the relevant time
period descrbed in patagraph (b) of this section, this determination will change and the
grantee will receive notice under patagraph (c)(2)() of this section that it will be required
to compete for funding for an additional five-year period.

(3) Following the transition petiod, ACF shall give written notice to all grantees at least 12
months before the expiration date of a Head Start or Early Head Start agency's then current

98



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.20

gtant by certified mail return receipt requested ot other system that establishes the date of
receipt of the notice by the addressee, stating:

() The Head Start or Eatly Head Start agency will be required to compete for funding
for an additional five-year period because ACF finds that one oy more conditions under
§1304.11 were met by the agency's program during the relcvant time period described in
Paragraph (b} of this section, identifying the conditions ACF found, and Sumrnarizing
the basis for the finding; or,

() That such agency has been determined op a preliminary basis to be eligible for
renewed funding for five vears without competition because ACF finds that none of

the conditions under §1304.11 have been met during the relevant rime period described
in paragraph (b) of this section. If prior to the award of that grant, ACF determines
that the grantee has met one of the conditions under §1304.11 during the relevant time
period described in patagraph (b) of this section, this determination will change and the
grantee will receive notice under patagraph (c)(3)(i) of this section that it will be required
1o compete for funding for an additional five-year petiod.

§1304.16 Use of CLASS: Pre-K instrument in the Designation Renewal
System.

Except when all children are served in a single classroom, ACF will conduct observations of mul-
tiple classes operated by the grantee based on a random sample of all classes and rate the conduct
of the classes observed using the CLASS: Pre-K instrument. When the grantee serves children in
its program in z single class, that class will be observed and rated using the CLASS: Pre K instru-

observed during the CLASS: Pre.kC observations in each of the domains covered by the CILASS:
Pre-K instroment. ACF will average CLASS: Pre-K instrument scores in each domain for the classes
operated by the agency that ACF ohserved to determine the agency's score in each domain.

Subpart C — Selection of Grantees through Competition

§1304.20 Selection among applicants,

(4} In selecting an agency to be designated (o provide Head Start, Early Head Start, Migrant or Sea- .
sonal Head Start or tribal Head Start or Early Head Start services, the responsible HHS official will :
consider the applicable criteriz at Section 641 (d) of the Head Start Act and any othet criteria out-

lined in the funding opportunity announcement.

(b) In competitions to replace or potentially replace a grantee the responsible HHS official will also
consider the extent to which the applicant supports continnity for participating children, the com-
munity and the continued employment of effective, well qualified personnel, |

(©) In compeiitions to replace or potentially replace a current grantee, the responsible HHS official
will give priority to applicants that have demonstrated capacity in providing effective, comprehen-

99



§1304.30

Subpart D — Replacement of American Indian and Alaska
Native Grantees

§1304.30 Procedure for identification of aiternative agency.

(@) An Indian tribe whose Head Start grant has been terminated, relinquished, designated for com-
petition ot which has been denied refunding as a Head Start agency, may identify an alternate agency
and request the responsible HHS official to designate such agency as an alternative agency to pro-
vide Head Start setvices to the tribe if:

(1) The tribe was the only agency that was recetving federal financial assistance o provide
Head Statt services to members of the tribe; and,

(2) The tribe would be otherwise ptecluded from Providing such services to its members be..
cause of the termination or denial of refunding,

(®)

not renewed without competition,
() The tribe must identify the alternate agency to the responsible HHS official in writing,

(3) The responsible HHS official will notify the tribe, in wiiting, whethet the alternative agency
Proposed by the tribe is found to be eligible for Head Start funding and capable of operating

2 Head Start program. If the alternative agency identified by the tribe is not an cligible agency
capable of operating a Head Start program, the ttibe will have 15 days from the date of the
sending of the notification to that effect from the responsible HHS official to identify another

(4) If the tibe does not identify an eligible, suitable alternative agency, a grantee will be desig-
nated under these tegulations.

() If the tribe appeals a termination of financial assistance or a denial of tefonding, it will, consis-
tent with the terms of §1304.5, continue o be funded pending resolution of the appeal. Howevet,
the tesponsible HHS official and the grantee will proceed with the steps outlined in this regulation
duting the appeal process. |

(d) If the tribe does not identify an agency and tequest that the agency be appointed as the alteg-

100



Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1304.41

native agency, the responsible HHS official will seek a permanent replacement grantec under these
tegulations.

§1304.31 Requirements of alternative agency.

The agency identified by the Indian tribe must establish that it meets ali requitements established
by the Head Starr Act and these requirements for designation as a Head Start graatee and that jtis
capable of conducting a Head Start program. The responsible HHS official, in deciding whether to
designate the proposed agency, will analyze the capacity and experience of the agency according to
the criterda found in section 641 (d) of the Head Start Act and §1304.20.

§1304.32 Alternative agency-——prohibition.
(a) No agency will be designated as the alternative agency pursuant to this subpart if the agency
includes an employee who:

(1) Served on the administrative or program staff of the Indian tribal grantee described under
section 646(e)(1)(A) of the Act; and

(2) Was responsible for a deficiency that:

(1) Relates to the performance standards or financial management standards described in
section 641A(2)(1) of the Act; and,

() Was the basis for the termination of assistance under section 646(e){1)(A) of the Act
or denial of tefinding desctibed in §1304.4,

(b) The responsible HHS official shall determine whether an cmployee was responsible for a defi-
clency within the meaning and context of this section.

Subpart E — Head Start Fellows Program

§1304.40 Purpose.

As provided in section 648A(d) of the Act, the Head Start Fellows Program is designed to enhance
the ability of Head Start Fellows to make significant contributions to Head Start and to other child

development and family services progtams.

§1304.41 Head Start Fellows Program.

(a) Selection. An applicant must be working on the date of application in a local Head Start program
or otherwise working in the field of child development and tamily services. The qualifications of the
applicants for Head Start Fellowship positions will be competitively reviewed,

(b} Placement. Head Start Fellows may be placed in the Head Start national and regional offices; lo-
cal Head Start agencies and programs; institutions of higher education; public or private entities and
organizations concerned with services to children and families; and other approptate settings.

[o]!



§1305.1

(c) Restrictions. A Head Start Fellow who is not an employee of a local Head Start agency or pro-
gram may only be placed in the national or regional offices within the Department of Health and
Human Services that administer Head Start or local Head Start agencies. Head Start Fellows shall
not be placed in any agency whose ptimary purpose, or one of whose major purposes is to influence
federal, state or local legislation. '

(d) Dutation. Head Start Fellowships will be for tetrus of one year, and may be renewed for a term
of one additonal yeat.

() Status. For the purposes of compensation for injuties under chapter 81 of title 3, United States
Code, Head Statt Fellows shall be considered to be cmployees, ot otherwise in the service or em-
ployment, of the federal government. Head Start Fellows assigned to the national or regional offices
within the Department of Health and Human Services shall be considered employees in the Exec-
utive Branch of the federa! government for the putposes of chapter 11 of fitle 18, United States
Code, and for the purposes of any administrative standards of conduct applicable to the employees

of the agency to which they are assigned.

Part 1305 — Definitions

Sec.
13051  Purpose
13052  Terms.

AUTHORITY: 42 US.C. 9801 o seq.

§1305.) Purpose.

The purpose of this part is to define terms for the putposes of this subchapter.

§1305.2 Terms.

For the purposes of this subchaptet, the following definitions apply:

“ACF means the Administration for Children and Families in the Department of Health and Human
Services.

Act means the Head Start Act, Sec. 635 ¢ seg., Pub. 1. 97-35, 95 Stat, 499.511 (codified as amended
at 42 US.C. Section 9801, ef seq.).

~Agency means the body that receives the Head Stast grant.

~Ageregate child-lovel assessment data means the data collected by an agency on the status and progress
of the childten it serves that have been combined to provide summary information about groups of
children enrolled in specific classes, centers, home-based or other options, groups or settings, or oth-
et groups of children such as dual language learnets, or to provide summary information by specific

domains of development.

Aloswabie alternate vebice means a vehicle designed for carrying eleven or more people, including the

102




Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1305.2

driver, that tneets all the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards applicable to schoal buses, except
49 CFR 571.108 and 571.131.

Bruajget period means the interval of time, into which 2 mult-year period of assistance (project peri-
od) is divided for budgetary and funding putposes.

Case plar is defined as presented in 42 US.C. 675(1) which, in summary, is a written document that
must include a number of specified items including, but is not limited to, a plan for safe and proper
care of the child in foster care placement, health records, and 2 plan for ensuring the educational

stability of the child in foster care.

Child-leved assessment data means the data collected by an agency on an individual child from one
or more valid and reliable assessments of a child's status and progress, including but not limited to
direct assessment, structured observations, checklists, staff or patent report measures, and portfolio

records or work samples.
Cbild records means rccords that:
(1) Are directly related to the child;
(2) Are maintained by the program, or by a party acting for the program; and

(3) Include information recorded in any way, such as print, electronic, or digital means, includ-
ing media, video, image, or audio format.

Child restraint system means any device designed to restrain, seat, ot position children that meets the
carrent tequirements of Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standard No. 213, Child Restraint Systerns,
49 CFR 571.213, for children in the weight category established under the regulation, ot any device
designed to restrain, seat, or position children, other than 4 Type I seat belt as defined 2t 49 CFR
571.209, for children not in the weight category currently established by 40 CFR 571.213.

Child with 2 disabikty is defined in the same manner as presented in the Head Start Act, 42 US.C.
9801.

CL.ASS: Pre-K means The Classtoom Assessment Scoring System (CLASS). The CLASS is an ob-
servational instrument that assesses classroom quality in preschool through third grade classrooms.
This tool meets the requirements described in 641 @(MD) and 641A(Q)(2)(F) of the Head Start Act
(42 US.C. 9836(c)(1}(D) and 9836a(c)(2)(F)). The CLASS assesses three domains of classtoom expe-
rence: Emotional Suppott, Classroom Organization, and Inseructional Support.

(1) Emotional Support measures children’s social and emotional functioning in the classroom,
and includes four dimensions: Positive Climate, Negative Climate, Teacher Sensitivity and
Regard for Student Perspectives. Positive Climate addresses the emotional connection, respect,
and enjoyment demonstrated berween teachers and children and among children. Negative Cli-
mate addresses the level of expressed negativity such as anger, hostility, or apgression exhibit-
ed by teachers and/or children in the classroom. Teacher Sensitivity addresses teachers’ aware-
ness of and responsivity to children’s academic and emotional concetns, Regard for Student
Perspectives addresses the degree to which reachers’ interactions with children and classroom
activities place an emphasis on children’s interests, motivations, and points of view.

103



§1305.2

organization and management of children’s behaviot, time, and attention in the classroom. It
inciudes three dirmensions; Behavior Management, Productivity, and Instructional Leatning
Formats. Behavior Management addresses how effectively teachers monitor, prevent, and redi-
tect behavior, Productivity addresses how well the classroom runs with respect to toutines and
the degree to which teachers organize activities and directions 5o that masimum time can be
spent on learning activities. Instructional Leatning Formats addresses how teachers facilitate
activities and provide interesting matetials so that children are engaged and Jearning opportu-

nities are maximized,

(3) Instructional Support measures the ways in which teachers implement cursiculum to ef-
fectively support copnitive and language development. Itincludes three dimensions: Concept
Development, Quality of Feedback, and Language Modeling. Concept Development address-
es how teachets use instructional diseussions and activitics to promote children’s higher otrder
thinking skills in contrast to a focus on rote instruction. Quality of Feedback addtesses how
teachers extend children’s learning through their responses to children’s ideas, comments, and
work. Language Modeling addresses the extent to which teachers facilitate and encourage
children’s language.

{4) Assessments with the CLASS involve observation-based measurement of each dimension

on a seven point scale. A score ranging from 1 (migimally characteristic) to 7 (highly char-
actefistic) is given for each dimension and reptesents the extent to which that dimension is
characteristic of that classtoom. Relevant dimension scores are used to calculate each domain

SCOre.

Commeeriial Driver's I icense (CDL) means 2 license issued by a state or other jurisdiction, in ac-
cordance with the standards contained in 49 CFR part 383, to an individual which authorizes the
indvidual to opetate a class of commercial motor vehicles,

Construction means new buildings, and excludes renovations, alterations, additions, ot work of any

kind to existing buildings.

Continnity of care means Head Start or Early Head Start services provided to children in a manaer
that ptomotes primary caregiving and minimizes the number of transitions in teachers and teacher

assistants that children experience over the coutse of the day, week, program yeat, and to the extent
possible, during the course of their participation from birth 10 age thtee in Early Head Start and in

Head Start.
Deficiency is defined in the seme manner as presented in the Head Start Act, 42 US.C. 9801.

Delogate agency is defined in the same manner as presented in the Head Start Act, 42 US.C, 9801.

Development and administrative sosts mean costs incurred in accordance with an approved Head Srart
budget which do not directly relate to the provision of program component services, including ser-
vices to children with disabilities, as set forth and desctibed in the Head Start program petformance

standards (45 CFR part 1304).

Disclosure means to permit access to or the release, wransfer, or other communication of PII con-

104



Administration for Children and Famnilies, [HIHS §1305.2

tained in child records by any means, including oral, written, or electronic means, to any patty except
the party identified as the party that provided or created the record,

Double session variation means a centes-based option that employs a single teacher to wotk with one
group of children in the motning and a diffezent group of children in the afternoon.

Dsal benefit costs mean costs incurred in accordance with an approved Head Start budget which
directly relate to both developtnent and administeative functions and to the progtam component
services, including services to children with disabilities, as set forth and described in the Head Start

program performance standards (45 CFR, part 1304).

Diwal langnage learner means a child who is acquiting two or more languages at the same time, or a
child who is learning 2 second language while continuing to develop their first language. The term
"dual language learner” May encompass or overap substantially with other terms frequently used,
such as bilingual, English language learner (ELL), Limited English Proficient (LEP), English learner,
and children who speak a Langnage Othet Than English (LOTE).

EBarly Head Start agency means a public or private non-profit or for-profit entity designated by ACF
to operate an Eadly Head Statt program to serve pregnant women and children from birth to age
three, pursuant to Section 645A(e) of the Head Start Act

Enrolled (or any variation 9f) means a child has been accepted and attended at least one class for cen.
ter-based ot family child care optton or at least one home visit for the home-based option.

Enrollmens year means the petiod of time, not to excecd twelve months, during which a Head Start
program provides center or home-based services to 2 group of children and their familics.

Faclity means a structure, such as a building or modular unit, appropriate for use in cartying out a
Head Statt program and used primarily to provide Head Start services, including services to children
and their families, or for administrative purposes or other activities necessary to carry out a Head
Start program.

Famify means all persons living in the same household who are supported by the child’s parent(s)’
ot guardian(s)® income; and ate related to the child’s parent(s) or guardian(s) by blood, mattiage, or
adoption; or are the child’s authorized caregiver or legally responsible party.

Federal interestis a property right which secures the right of the federal awarding agency to tecover
the current fair market value of its petcentage of participation in the cost of the facility in the event
facility is no longer used for Head Stazt purposes by the grantee or upon the disposition of the
property. When a grantee uses Head Start funds to purchase, construct or renovate a facility, or
make mortgage payments, it creates a federal intcrest. The federal interest includes any portion of
the cost of purchase, construction, or rencvation contributed by or for the entity, or a related donor

otganization, to satisfy a matching requirement.

Federal Motor Vebicie S, afety Standards (FMV’SS) means the National Highway and Traffic Safety
Administration's standards for motor vehicles and motot vehicle equipment (49 CFR part 571) es-
tablished under section 30111 of Title 49, Untted States Code.

Financial viabslity means that an oIganization is able to meet its financial obligations, balance funding
and expenses and maintain sufficient funding to achieve otganizational goals and objectives.

105



§1305.2

Fexed route means the established routes to be traveled on a regular basis by vehicles that transport
children to and from Head Start or Easly Head Start program activities, and which include specifical-
ly designated stops where children board of exit the vehicle.

Fosier care means 24-hour substitute cage for children placed away from their parents or guardians
and for whom the state agency has placement and care responsibility. This includes, but is not Jimit-
ed to, placements in foster family homes, foster homes of relatives, group homes, etergency shel-
ters, residential facilities, child-care institutions, and pre-adoptive homes. A child is in foster care in

Payments that are made.

Fullworking-day toeans not less than 10 hours of Head Start or Eatly Head Start services per day.

Fanded enrolizeent means the number of participants which the Head Start gtantee is to serve, as
indicated on the gtant award.

Going concern means an organization that operates without the threat of liquidation for the foresee-
able future, 2 period of at least 12 monhs,

Grantee means the local public or private non-profit agency or for-profit agency which has been des-
ignated as 2 Head Start agency under 42 US.C. 9836 and which has been granted financial assistance

by the responsible HHS official to Operate a Head Start program,

Head Start agenry means a local public or private non-profit or for-profit entity designated by ACF

10 operate a Head Start program to serve children age three to compulsory school age, pursuant to
section 641(b} and (d) of the Head Start Act.

Head Start Early Learning Outcomes Framework: 4 \ges Birth to Fipe means the Head Start Eay.

i u 5 work: s Bi Five, which describes the skills, behaviors, and
knowledge that programs must foster in all children, It includes five centsal domains: Approaches to
Learning; Social and Emeotional Development; Language and Literacy; Cognition; and Perceptual,
Motor, and Physical Development. These central domains atc broken into five domains for infants
and toddlers and seven domains for preschoolers. Infant and Toddler domains are Approaches to
Learning; Social and Emotional Development; Language and Communication; Cognition; and Per-
ceptual, Motot, and Physical Development. Preschool domains aze Approaches to Leatning; Social
and Emotional Development: Language and Communication; Literacy; Mathematics Development;
Scientific Reasoning; and Petceptual, Motor, and Physical Development. Domains age divided
into sub-domains with goals that desctibe broad skills, behaviors, and concepts that are important
for school success. Developmental progressions describe the skills, behaviors and concepts that
children may demonstrate as they progress. As described in the Head Start Act, the Framework
is central to program operations that promote high-quality early leatning eavitonments (42 US.C.
9832(21)(G)(v) (1) (as), 42 US.C. 9835(c), 42 LIS.C. 9836(d)(2)(C), 42 US.C. 9836a(g)(2)(A), 42
US.C. 9837(f)(3)(E), 42 US.C. 9837a(a)(3), 42 US.C. 9837a(a)(14), 42 US.C. 9837b(a)(2)(B) (it), 42
US.C. 9837b(a)(4)(A)(), and 42 US.C. 9837b(a)(4)(B)(ii)).

Flonreless children means the same as homeless children and youths in Section 725(2) of the McKin-
ney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act at 42 US.C. 11434a (2).

106




Administration for Children and Families, HHS §1305.2

Honmre visstor means the staff member in the hote-based Program opton assigned to work with par-
eats to provide comptehensive services to chiidren and their families through home visits and group
socialization activities.

Houwrs of planned ciass gperations means houts when children age scheduled to attend. Professional

development, ttaining, otientation, teacher planning, data analysis, Parent-teacher conferences, home
visits, classtoom sanitation, and transportation do not count toward the hours of Planned class oper-

Security benefits, unemployment compensation, and public assistance benefits. Additional examples
of gross cash income are listed in the definition of “income” which appeats in U.S. Bureau of the
Census, Cutrent Population Reports, Serdes P-60-185 (available at https:/ /orww2.census.gov/ prodz/

popscan/p60-185.pdf).

ludian Head Start 4Lércy means a program operated by an Indian tribe (as defined by the Act) or
designated by an Indian tribe to operate on its hehalf,

Indian tribe is defined in the same mannex as presented in the Head Start Act, 42 US.C. 2801.

Individualized B ducation Program is defined in the same manner as presented in the Individuals with
Disabilities Edncation Act (20 US.C. 1400 et seq.).

Disabilities Education Act (20 US.C. 1400 ¢ seq.).

Legal starus means the existence of an applicant or grantee as a public 4gency or organization under
the law of the state in which it is located, ot existence as a private nonprofit or for-profit agency os
Otganization as a legal eatity tecognized under the law of the state in which it Is Iocated. Existence as
a ptivate non-profit agency or organization may be established under applicable state or federal law,

Local agency responsibie Jor implementing TIDEA means the early interventon service provider under
Part C of IDEA and the Iocal educational agency under Part B of IDEA.

Migrant or Seasonal Head Stars Program means:

(1) With respect to services for migrant farm workers, a Head Stazt program that serves
families who are engaged in agricultural labor and who have changed their residence from one
geographic location to another in the preceding 2-year period; and,

107




§1305.2

{2) With respect to services for seasonal fartmworkets, a Head Start program that serves fam-
ilies who are engaged pomarily in seasonal agricultural Iabor and who have not changed their
residence to another geographic location in the preceding 2-year period.

Minor renovation means improvements to facilities, which do not meet the definition of major reno-
vation.

offenses.

Parent meacs a Head Start child's mother or father, other family member who is primary caregivet,
foster parent or authorized caregiver, guardian or the petson with whomn the child has been placed
for purposes of adoption pending a final adopton decree.

Participani means 2 pregnant woman or child who is earolled in and receives services from a Head
Start, an Barly Head Start, a Migrant or Seasonal Head Start, or an American Indizg and Alaska
Native Head Start program.

Personally identifiable information (PI) means any information that could identify a specific individu-
al, including but not limited to a child’s name, name of 2 child’s family member, street address of the
child, social security number, or other information that is linked or linkable to the child.

Progras means a Head Start, Early Head Start, migrant, seasonal, oz tribal program, funded under
the Act and carried out by an agency, ot delegate agency, to provide ongoing comptehensive child

development services.

Program costs mean costs incurred in accordance with an approved Head Start budget which directy
relate to the provision of program component services, including services to children with disabil-
ities, as set forth and described in the Head Start Program Performance Standards (45 CFR part

1304).

Purchase means to buy an existing facility, including outright purchase, down payment or through
Payments made in satisfaction of 2 martgage or other loan agreement, whether principal, interest

or aa allocated portion principal 2nd/or interest, The use of grant funds to make 2 payment under
4 capital lease agreement, as defined in the cost principles, is 2 purchase subject 1o these provisions.
Purchase also refets to an approved use of Head Statt funds to continue paying the cost of purchas-
ing facilities or refinance an existing loan or mortgage beginning in 1987,

Real property means land, including land improvements, buildings, structures and all appurtenances
thereto, excluding movable machinery and equipment.

Reevustmont area means that geographic locality within which a Head Start program seeks to enroll

108



Administration for Children and Famnilies, HHS §1305.2

Head Start children and fatnilies. The recruitment area can be the $ame as the setvice area or it can
be a smaller area or areas within the service area,

Retevant tige period means:
(1) The 12 months preceding the month in which the application is submitted; or

(2) During the calendar year preceding the calendar year in which the application is submitted,
whichever mote accurately teflects the needs of the family at the time of application,

Repair means maintenance that is necessary to keep a Head Start facility in working condition. Re-
pairs do not add significant value to the Property or extend its useful life,

Responsible HILS offcial means the official of the Department of Health and Human Services who
has authority to make grants under the Act.

grantee may provide Head Start services,

Siaff means paid adults who have responsibilities related to children and their families who are en-
rolled in programs.

State is defined in the same manger a5 presented in the Head Start Act, 42 US.C. 9801,

Tormenation of a Lrant or delegate agency reeneens means permanent withdtawal of the grantee’s or
delegate agency's authority to obligate breviously awarded grant funds before that authority would

(1) Withdrawal of funds awarded on the basis of the grantee's or delegate agency's underesti-
mate of the unobligated balance in 2 prior pesdod;

(2) Refusal by the funding agency to extend 2 grant ot award additiona! funds {such as refus-
al to make a competing or noncompeting continuation renewal, extension or supplemental
award);

(3) Withdrawal of the unobligated balance as of the expiration of a grant; and

(4) Annulment, ie., voiding of z grant upon determination that the award was obtained fraud-
ulently or was otherwise ilegal ot invalid from its inception.

Toral approved costs mean the sum of all costs of the Head Start Program approved for a given
budget period by the Administration for Children and Families, as indicated on the Financial Assis-

109




§1305.2

tance Award. Total approved costs consist of the federal share Plus any approved non-federal match,
including non-federal match above the statutory minimum,

Transition period means the three-year time period after December 9, 2011, on the Designation
Renewal System duting which ACF will convert all of the current continuous Hezd Start and Ear-
ly Head Start grants into five-year grants after reviewing cach grantee to determine if it meets any
of the conditions under §1304.12 of this chapter that Tequite recompetition or if the grantee will
receive its first five-year grant non-competitively.

range to be provided by another organization or an individual. Incidesra] trips, such as transporting
a sick child home befote the end of the day, or such as might be required to transport smail groups
of children to and from necessary services, are not included under the term,

Vergfy or any variance of the word means to check or determine the correctness of truth by investi-
gation ot by reference.

1o



